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No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the Agency , the City or the 
Underwriter to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this 
Official Statement in connection with the offering described herein, and if given or made, such other 
information or representations must not be relied upon as statements having been authorized by the Agency, 
the City, the Underwriter or any other entity. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to selJ or 
the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities other than the Series 2019 Bonds, nor shall there be any 
offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to buy the Series 2019 Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in 
which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale. This Official Statement is 
submitted in connection with the sale of the securities described in it and may not be reproduced or used, 
in whole or in part, for any other purposes. 

Unless otherwise indicated, the Agency or the City is the source of all tables and statistical and 
financial information contained in this Official Statement. Tlie information contained in this Official 
Statement concerning OTC has been obtained from OTC. The other information set forth herein has been 
furnished by the Agency, the City, or other sources believed to be reliable. The information and opinions 
expressed herein are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official Statement 
nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no 
change in the affairs of the Agency since the date of this Official Statement. 

This Official Statement should be considered in its entirety, and no one factor should be considered 
more or less important than any other by reason of its position in this Official Statement. Where statutes, 
reports or other documents are referred to herein, reference should be made to such statutes, reports or other 
documents for more complete information regarding the rights and obligations of parties thereto, facts and 
opinions contained therein, and the subject matter thereof. 

Any statements made in this Official Statement, including the appendices, involving matters of 
opinion or estimates, whether or not so expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of 
fact, and no representation is made that any of such estimates will be realized. This Official Statement 
contains certain forward-looking statements and information that are based on the Agency's beliefs as well 
as assumptions made by, and information currently available to, the Agency. Such statements are subject 
to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties 
materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from 
those anticipated, estimated or expected. 

The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and 
as part of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and 
circumstances of this transaction, but the UndeIWriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of 
such information. 

For purposes of compliance with Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, this 
document, as the same may be supplemented or corrected by the Agency from time-to-time, may be treated 
as an Official Statement with respect to the Bonds described herein and is "deeme d final" by the Agency 
as of the date hereof (or of the date of any supplement or correction) except for the omission of certain 
information permitted to be omitted pursuant to such Rule. 

In connection with the offering, the Underwriter may overallot or effect transactions which stabilize 
or maintain the market price of the securities offered hereby at a level above that which might otherwise 
prevail in the open market. Such stabilizing , if commenced , may be discontinued a t any time. 

These Series 2019 Bonds have not been approved or disapproved by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission or any state securities commission nor has the Securities and Exchange Commission or any 
state securities commission passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this Official Statement. Any 
representation to the contrary is a criminal offense. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 

$2~50,000 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS, ELECTRIC UTILITY AND SALFS TAX REVENUE BONDS 

(MORGAN CITY PROJECT), 

SERIES2019 

INTRODUCTION 

This Official Statement, including the cover page, introduction and appendices, provides 
information in connection with the issuance and sale by the Utah Infrastructure Agency ("UIA" 
or the "Agency") of its $2,550,000 Telecommunications, Electric Utility and Sales Tax Revenue 
Bonds (Morgan City Project), Series 2019 (the "Series 2019 Bonds"). 

The information in this Introduction is subject in all respects to more complete information 
contained elsewhere in this Official Statement. The order and placement of materials in this 
Official Statement, including the appendices hereto, are not to be deemed a determination of 
relevance, materiality or relative importance, and this Official Statement, including the appendices, 
should be read in its entirety. The offering of the Series 2019 Bonds to potential investors is made 
only by means of this entire Official Statement. 

Certain capitalized terms used in this Official Statement, unless otherwise defined in this 
Official Statement, have the meanings set forth in "APPENDIX B-FORM OF THE INDENTURE," and 
and "APPENDIX C-FORM OFTHE SERVICE CONTRACT." 

This Official Statement contains "forward-looking statements" that are based upon the 
Agency's current expectations and its projections about future events. When used in this Official 
Statement, the words "project," "estimate," "intend," "expect," "scheduled," "pro-fonna" and 
similar words identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are subject to 
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and factors that may be outside the control of the Agency. 
Actual results could differ materially from those contemplated by the forward-looking statements. 
Readers are cautioned not to place undue .reliance on these forward-looking statements, which 
speak only as of the date hereof. Neither the Agency nor any other party plans to issue any updates 
or revisions to these forward-looking statements based on future events. 

THE AGENCY 

The Agency is a political subdivision of the State of Utah (the "State"), and was created 
in 2010 pursuant to the Utah Interlocal Cooperation Act, Title 11, Chapter 13, Utah Code 
Annotated 1953, as amended (the "Interlocal Cooperation Act") , and the Second Amended and 
Restated Interlocal Cooperative Agreement of the Utah Infrastructure Agency originally dated as 
of June 7, 2010, and amended and restated as of November 1, 2010 (the "Interlocal Agreement"), 
among Brigham City, Centerville City, Layton City, Lindon City, Midvale City, Murray City, City 
of Orem, Payson City and West Valley City (each a "Member" and collectively, the "Members"). 
Pursuant to the lnterlocal Cooperation Act and the Interlocal Agreement, the Members organized 
the Agency to provide for the acquisition, construction and installation of advanced 



communication lines together with related improvements and facilities (the "UIA Network") for 
the purpose of connecting properties within the Members to the UIA Network, all of which will 
directly or indirectly benefit each of the Members. See "THE AGENCY" herein for more detailed 
information about the Agency, including management and financial information. 

The UIA Network is a fiber optic network enabling high-speed broadband services, such 
as voice, video and data access. The physical assets of the UIA Network include fiber optic lines, 
transmitters, power sources and backups, switches and access portals. The UIA Network operates 
under an open access model which allows qualified service providers to provide voice, video and 
data services to serve customers within the reach of the UIA Network. See "THE UIA NETWORK" 
herein. 

The operations of the IBA Network are dependent on its connection to, and the continued 
operations of, the fiber optic network (the "UTOPIA Network") of the Utah Telecommunication 
Open Infrastructure Agency ("UTOPIA"), as the UTOPIA Network provides critical 
infrastructure necessary for the operations of the UIA Network. The UIA Network is connected 
to the UTOPIA Network pursuant to an Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement, dated May 1, 2011, 
as amended and supplemented (the "/RU Agreement"), which grants to the Agency an indefeasible 
right of use (the "!RU") that provides the Agency access to certain facilities of and capacity in the 
UTOPIA Network through at least April 30, 2042. The Agency currently has only two employees, 
a Chief Executive Officer and a Secretaryffreasurer, both of whom are also UTOPIA employees 
and have their salaries paid by UTOPIA. The Agency has engaged UTOPIA for the management 
of various services for certain portions of the UIA Network, including planning and 
pre-construction management services to build the UIA Network and administration, operations 
management and service provider management related to the UIA Network, all pursuant to an 
lnterlocal Cooperative Agreement for Services, dated July 29, 2010, as amended and 
supplemented (the "UTOPIA Service Agreement"). The continued operations of the Agency and 
the UIA Network are heavily reliant on the continued operations of UTOPIA and the UTOPIA 
Network. See "'IHE NEIWORK" and "RISK FACTORS" herein. 

AUIHORITY AND PllRPOSE OF THE SERIES 2019 BONDS 

The Series 2019 Bonds are being issued pursuant to (i) the lnterlocal Cooperation Act; (ii) 
a General Indenture of Trust dated as of April 1, 2Ul9 (the "' General Indenture'' ), between the 
Agency and Zions Bancorporation, National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"); (iii) a First 
Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated as of April 1, 2019 (the "First Supplemental Indenture" 
and together with the General Indenture, the "Indenture"), between the Agency and the Trustee; 
and (iv) an authorizing resolution adopted on January 22, 2019 (the "Resolution") by the 
governing board of the Agency (the "Board"). 

The proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds will be used to (i) finance the acquisition, 
construction, and installation of advanced communication lines, equipment, and related 
improvements and facilities, as part of an advanced fiber optic communications network located 
within Morgan City, Utah (the "City") and permitting residents of the City to connect to the UIA 
Network (as further described below, the "2019 Project" or the "City Network"); (ii) provide 
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capitalized interest with respect to the Series 2019 Bonds; and (iii) pay costs of issuance of the 
Series 2019 Bonds. See "THE 2019 PROJECT" and "SOURCES AND USES OFFmms" herein. 

SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019 BONDS 

The principal of and interest on the Series 2019 Bonds are payable from and secured by 
the revenues pledged under the Indenture (the "Revenues"), which include all revenues, fees, 
income, rents, and receipts received or earned by the Agency pursuant to the Fiber 
Communications Service and Acquisition Contract, dated as of January 2, 2019, between the 
Agency and the City (the "Service Contract"), including, Hook-up Lease Revenues and City Fees 
and, in the event of a shortfall in Service Revenues, any advance of Allocated Electrical Fee and 
Sales Tax Revenues (as defined below). 

The primary and expected source of payments under the Service Contract is Service 
Revenues attributable to the City Network. "Service Revenues" consist primarily of Hook-up 
Lease Revenues and City Fees (each defined below). Amounts due to the Agency from the City 
under the Service Contract are ultimately secured by revenues received from (i) the collection by 
the City of revenues derived from the provision of electric services in a maximum annual amount 
of $90,360 (the "Allocated Electrical Fee Revenues"), and (ii) the levy by the City of sales taxes 
in a maximum annual amount of $90,360 (the "Allocated Sales Tax Revenues" and, collectively 
with the Allocated Electrical Fee Revenues, the "Allocated Electrical Fee and Sales Tax 
Revenues"). The City has pledged its Allocated Electrical Fee and Sales Tax Revenues in the 
event and to the extent there is a shortfall in the Service Revenues available to pay debt service on 
the Series 2019 Bonds. See "SECURITY FOR TIIB SERIES 2019 BONDS-The Service Contract" 
below. 

The maximum annual (fiscal year) debt service on the Series 2019 Bonds is $169,138. The 
total electric utility system revenues (from which Allocated Electrical Fee Revenues are derived) 
received by the City for the fiscal years 2017 and 2018 totaled $2,104,719 and $2,084,314, 
respectively, and the total sales and use tax revenues (from which Allocated Sales Tax Revenues 
are derived) received by the City for the fiscal years 2017 and 2018 totaled $7 40 ;211 and $810 ,980, 
respectively. 

The City has reserved the right under the Service Contract to issue debt of the City payable 
from Allocated Electrical Fee and Sales Tax Revenues or otherwise pledge such revenues upon 
compliance with certain debt service coverage requirements. See "SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019 
BONDS-The Service Contract" and "MORGAN CITY- Allocated Electrical Fee and Sales Tax 
Revenues." 

The Agency may issue Additional Bonds under the Indenture (the "Additional Bonds") 
upon the satisfaction of certain conditions set forth in the Indenture. The Additional Bonds will 
be secured by the Indenture on a parity with the Series 2019 Bonds. The Series 2019 Bonds and 
the Additional Bonds are sometimes collectively referred to herein as the "Bonds." See 
"SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019 BONDS-Additional Bonds" herein. 
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The Series 2019 Bonds are not a general obligation of the Agency, the City, any 
Member of the Agency, the State, or any agency, instrumentality or political subdivision of 
the State. Neither the faith and credit nor the ad valorem taxing power of the City, any 
Member, the State, or any agency, instrumentality or political subdivision of the State will 
be assigned or pledged for payment of the Series 2019 Bonds. The Agency has no taxing 
power. The Indenture does not pledge any properties of the City Network or other assets of 
the UIA Network, or any other assets or revenues of the Agency or the City except the 
Revenues, and the Agency will not otherwise mortgage or grant a security interest in the City 
Network or other assets of the UIA Network to secure payment of the Series 2019 Bonds. 

NO DEBT SERVICE REsERVE FOR TIIE SERIES 2019 BONDS 

There is no debt service reserve fund with respect to the Series 2019 Bonds. 

REDEMPTION 

The Series 2019 Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory sinking fund redemption 
prior to maturity. See "THE SERIES 2019 BONDS-Redemption" below. 

TAX MATTERS 

In the opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Bond Counsel to the Agency, under existing law 
and assuming continued compliance with certain requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended, the interest on the Series 2019 Bonds (including any original issue discount 
properly allocable to an owner thereof) is excludable from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes, and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax. 
Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that the interest on the Series 2019 Bonds is exempt from State 
individual income taxes. See "TAX MATTERS" in this Official Statement. Bond Counsel expresses 
no opinion regarding any other tax consequences relating to ownership or disposition of or the 
accrual or receipt of interest on the Series 2019 Bonds. 

CONTACT INFoRMATION 

The primary contact person for the Agency concerning the Series 2019 Bonds is: 

Laurie Harvey 
Secretary !Treasurer 

Utah Infrastructure Agency 
5858 South 900 East 
Murray, Utah 84121 

(801) 613-3859 
e-mail: lharvey@utopiafiber.com 
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Additional requests for information may be directed to the Agency's municipal advisor, as 
follows: 

GENERAL 

Laura D. Lewis, Principal 
Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc. 

41 North Rio Grande, Suite 101 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84101 
Telephone: (801) 596-0700 

e-mail: laura@lewisyoung.com 

THE SERIF.S 2019 BONDS 

The Series 2019 Bonds are dated their initial date of delivery and shall bear interest from 
such date. Interest on the Series 2019 Bonds will be payable semiannually on April 1 and October 
l of each year, commencing October 1, 2019. Interest on the Series 2019 Bonds will be computed 
on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The Series 2019 Bonds will 
be issued as fully-registered bonds, initially in book-entry form, in denominations of $5,000 and 
integral multiples thereof. 

The Series 2019 Bonds bear interest at the rates and mature in each of the years and 
principal amounts as set forth on the inside front cover page to this Official Statement. 

Principal of and the interest on the Series 2019 Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of 
the United States of America. Payment of the interest on any Bond shall be made to the person 
appearing on the Bond registration books of the Registrar as provided in the Indenture as the 
Registered Owner thereof, by check or draft mailed on the Interest Payment Date to the Registered 
Owner at his or her address as it appears on such registration books or to owners of $1,000 ,000 or 
more in aggregate principal amount of Series 2019 Bonds (or owners of 100% of any Series then 
Outstanding) by wire transfer to a bank account designated by the Registered Owner in written 
instructions furnished to the Trustee no later than the Regular Record Date for such payment. The 
interest on the Series 2019 Bonds so payable, and punctually paid and duly provided for, on any 
Interest Payment Date will be paid to the person who is the Registered Owner thereof at the close 
of business on the Regular Record Date for such interest immediately preceding such Interest 
Payment Date. Any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided for shall forthwith cease 
to be payable to the registered owner of any Bond on such Regular Record Date, and may be paid 
to the person who is the Registered Owner thereof at the close of business on a Special Record 
Date for the payment of such defaulted interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice thereof to be 
given to such Registered Owner not less than ten days prior to such Special Record Date. The 
principal of the Series 2019 Bonds is payable upon presentation and surrender thereof at the 
principal corporate trust office of the Trustee as Paying Agent. All such payments shall be valid 
and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Series 2019 Bond to the extent of the 
sum or sums so paid. 
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REGISTRATION, TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE 

The Agency will cause books for the registration or transfer of the Bonds to be kept at the 
principal corporate trust office of the Trustee, and the Agency appoints the Trustee to act as its 
registrar and transfer agent to keep such books and to make such registration and transfers. Upon 
surrender for transfer of any Bond at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee, the Agency 
will execute and the Trustee will authenticate and deliver in the name of the transferee or 
transferees, a new Bond or Bonds of authorized denomination for the aggregate principal amount 
which the Registered Owner is entitled to receive. Bonds of authorized denominations may be 
exchanged for Bonds of other authorized denominations of the same maturity, series, and interest 
rate upon request of the Owner thereof. 

All Bonds presented for transfer, exchange, or payment shall be accompanied by a written 
instrument or instruments of transfer or authorization for exchange, in form and with guaranty of 
signature reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee, duly executed by the Registered Owner or by his 
duly authorized attorney. 

New Bonds delivered upon any transfer or exchange shall be valid obligations of the 
Agency, evidencing the same debt as the Bonds surrendered, shall be secured by and entitled to all 
of the security and benefits of the Indenture to the same extent as the Bonds surrendered. No 
service charge shall be made for any exchange, transfer, or registration of Bonds, but the Agency 
may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may 
be imposed in relation thereto. The Agency and the Trustee shall not be required to transfer or 
exchange any Bond (a) during the period from and including any Regular Record Date, to and 
including the next succeeding Interest Payment Date, (b) during the period from and including the 
day fifteen days prior to any Special Record Date, to and including the date of the proposed 
payment pertaining thereto, ( c) during the period from and including the day fifteen days prior to 
the mailing of notice calling any Bonds for redemption, to and including the date of such mailing, 
or ( d) at any time following the mailing of notice calling such Bond for redemption. 

REDEMPTION 

Optional Redemption. The Series 2019 Bonds maturing on or after October 1, 2034, are 
subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Agency in whole or in part on any date 
on or after October l, 2029, in such order of maturity as may be designated by the Agency, at the 
redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued 
interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption. 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The Series 2019 Bonds maturing on October 1 of 
the years 2034 and 2044 are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption, by lot in such manner 
as the Trustee may determine, at a price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal 
amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date, on the dates and in the principal 
amounts as follows: 
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SERIES 2019 BONDS MATURING ON OCTOBER 1, 2034 

YEAR 

2030 
2031 
2032 
2033 
2034* 

Stated maturity. 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

$100,000 
100,000 
105,000 
110,000 
115,000 

SERIES 2019 BONDS MATURING ON OCTOBER 1, 2044 

YEAR 

2035 
2036 
2037 
2038 
2039 
2040 
2041 
2042 
2043 
2044* 

Stated maturity. 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

$115,000 
120,000 
125,000 
130,000 
135,000 
140,000 
145,000 
150,000 
155,000 
165,000 

Selection of Series 2019 Bonds for Redemption. H fewer than all of the Series 2019 Bonds 
maturing on October 1, 2034 or 2044, as applicable, are redeemed in a manner other than pursuant 
to a mandatory sinking fund redemption, the principal amount so redeemed will be credited at one 
hundred percent ( 100%) of the principal amount thereof by the Trustee against the obligation of 
the Agency on future mandatory sinking fund redemption dates for the Series 2019 Bonds 
maturing on October 1, 2034 or 2044, as applicable, in such order as directed by the Agency. 

Notice of Redemption. In the event any of the Bonds are to be redeemed, the Registrar 
shall cause notice to be given as required by the Indenture. Notice of such redemption (i) shall be 
filed with the Paying Agent designated for the Bonds being redeemed; and (ii) shall be mailed by 
first class mail, postage prepaid, to all Registered Owners of Bonds to be redeemed at their 
addresses as they appear on the registration books of the Registrar at least 30 days but not more 
than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption. Such notice shall include, among other 
information specified by the Indenture, the following: (i) the complete official name of the Bonds; 
(ii) in the case of partial redemption of any Bonds, the respective principal amounts thereof to be 
redeemed; (iii) the date of mailing of redemption notices and the redemption date; and (iv) the 
redemption price. 
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In addition to the foregoing, further notice of any redemption of Bonds under the Indenture 
shall be given by the Trustee, simultaneous with the mailed notice to Registered Owners, to the 
MSRB and all registered securities depositories (as reasonably determined by the Trustee) then in 
the business of holding substantial amounts of obligations of types comprising the Bonds. Such 
further notice shall contain the information required for a notice of redemption under the Indenture. 
Failure to give all or any portion of such further notice shall not in any manner defeat the 
effectiveness of a call for redemption. Upon the payment of the redemption price of Bonds being 
redeemed, each check or other transfer of funds issued for such purpose shall bear the CUSIP 
number, if any, identifying, by issue and maturity, the Bonds being redeemed with the proceeds of 
such check or other transfer. 

If at the time of mailing of any notice of optional redemption there shall not be on deposit 
with the Trustee moneys sufficient to redeem all the Bonds called for redemption, such notice shall 
state that such redemption shall be conditioned upon receipt by the Trustee on or prior to the date 
fixed for such redemption of moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on such Bonds 
to be redeemed and that if such moneys shall not have been so received said notice shall be of no 
force and effect and the Agency shall not be required to redeem such Bonds. In the event that such 
moneys are not so received, the redemption shall not be made and the Trustee shall within a 
reasonable time thereafter give notice, one time, in the same manner in which the notice of 
redemption was given, that such moneys were not so received. 

Any notice mailed shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not 
the owner of such Bonds receives the notice. Receipt of such notice shall not be a condition 
precedent to such redemption, and failure so to receive any such notice by any of such Registered 
Owners shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of the Bonds. 

In case any Bond is to be redeemed in part only, the notice of redemption which relates to 
such Bond shall state also that on or after the redemption date, upon surrender of such Bond, a new 
Bond in principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of such Bond will be issued. 

Partial Redemption. In case any registered Bond shall be redeemed in part only, upon the 
presentation of such Bond for such partial redemption, the Agency shall execute and the Trustee 
shall authenticate and shall deliver or cause to be delivered to or upon the written order of the 
Registered Owner thereof, at the expense of the Agency, a Bond or Bonds of the same Series, 
interest rate and maturity, in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of such 
registered Bond. Unless otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture, a portion of any Bond of 
a denomination of more than the minimum denomination of such Series specified in the Indenture 
or in the related Supplemental indenture to be redeemed will be in the principal amount of such 
minimum denomination or an integral multiple thereof and in selecting portions of such Bonds for 
redemption, the Trustee will treat each such Bond as representing that number of Bonds of such 
minimum denomination which is obtained by dividing the principal amount of such Bonds by such 
minimum denomination. 
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BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSI'EM 

DTC will act as securities depository for the Series 2019 Bonds. The Series 2019 Bonds 
will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's 
partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC. One fully-registered Series 2019 Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of each 
series of the Series 2019 Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be 
deposited with DTC. 

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company 
organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the 
New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within 
the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 A of the Exchange Act. DTC holds and provides asset 
servicing for over 3 .5 million issues of U .S. and non-U .S. equity issues, corporate and municipal 
debt issues and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's participants 
("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among 
Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through 
electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. 
This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants 
include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 
corporations and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The 
Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, 
National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are 
registered clearing agencies . DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to 
the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U .S. securities brokers and 
dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial 
relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). OTC 
bas an S&P Global Ratings rating of "AA+". The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on 
file with the Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. 

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, 
which will receive a credit for the Series 2019 Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest 
of each actual purchaser of each Series 2019 Bond ("Beneficial Owner") is in tum to be recorded 
on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written 
confirmation from OTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive 
written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their 
holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into 
the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Series 2019 Bonds are to be accomplished 
by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial 
Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in 
Series 2019 Bonds,exceptin the event that use of the book-entry system for the Series 2019 Bonds 
is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Series 2019 Bonds deposited by Direct Participants 
with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other 
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name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Series 2019 
Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do 
not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial 
Owners of the Series 2019 Bonds; DTC' s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants 
to whose accounts such Series 2019 Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial 
Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their 
holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 
Participants to Indirect Participants , and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to 
Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements atl}Ong them, subject to any statutory or 
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may 
wish to take certain steps to augment transmission to them of notices of significant events with 
respect to the Series 2019 Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults and proposed amendments 
to the Series 2019 Bond documents . For example, Beneficial Owners of Series 2019 Bonds may 
wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Series 2019 Bonds for their benefit has agreed to 
obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish 
to provide their names and addresses to the Registrar and request that copies of notices be provided 
directly to them. 

Redemption notices will be sent to DTC. lfless than all of the Series 2019 Bonds within 
an issue are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of 
each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with 
respect to the Series 2019 Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with 
DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures,DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Agency 
as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or 
voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Series 2019 Bonds are credited on 
the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Redemption proceeds, distributions and dividend payments on the Series 2019 Bonds will 
be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative 
of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds 
and corresponding detailed information from the Agency or Registrar, on payable date in 
accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to 
Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the 
case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street 
name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Registrar, or the 
Agency, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 
Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such 
other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility 
of the Agency or the Registrar, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the 
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the 
responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 
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DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Series 2019 
Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Agency or the Registrar. Under such 
circumstances, in the event that a successor depos~tory is not obtained, Series 2019 Bond 
certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

The Agency may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through 
DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, Series 2019 Bond certificates will be 
printed and delivered to DTC. 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been 
obtained from DTC, and the Agency talces no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 

The Agency will have no responsibility or obligation to any Securities Depository, any 
Participants in the Book-Entry System or the Beneficial Owners with respect to (a) the accuracy 
of any records maintained by the Securities Depository or any Participant; (b) the payment by the 
Securities Depository or by any Participant of any amount due to any Beneficial Owner in respect 
of the principal amount or redemption price of, or interest on, any Series 2019 Bonds; (c) the 
delivery of any notice by the Securities Depository or any Participant; ( d) the selection of the 
Beneficial Owners to receive payment in the event of any partial redemption of the Series 2019 
Bonds; or (e) any other action taken by the Securities Depository or any Participant. 

THE 2019 PROJECT 

The 2019 Project, which is a1so referred to herein as the City Network, consists of the 
acquisition, construction, and installation of advanced communication lines, equipment, and 
related improvements as part of a fiber optic advanced communications network located in the 
City. The City Network, which will be a component of the UIA Network, will connect to the 
existing UIA Network. The 2019 Project includes the construction of "last mile" or access-level 
fiber in defined footprints, lateral infrastructure to commercially zoned areas, "curb to the 
premises" construction and connection to the UIA Network. The 2019 Project will be undertaken 
throughout the boundaries of the City. Substantially all assets of the City Network will be owned 
by the Agency. The Agency has sufficient UIA Network capacity to provide connection services 
to its Members as well as to the City and other non-Member cities for which UIA Network 
components may be acquired and constructed by the Agency in the future. 
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SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The estimated sources and uses of proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds are shown below: 

SOURCES 

Principal Amount 
Net Original Issue Premium 

Total Sources 

USES 

Series 2019 Project 
Capitalized Interest 
Costs of Issuance<!) 

Total Uses 

$2,550,000.00 
67.548.70 

$2.617.548.70 

$2,287 ,000.00 
199,040.10 
131.508.60 

$2 .617 .548 .70 

m Includes Underwriter's discount; legal, municipal advisor, and Trustee fees; and other costs and expenses 
related to the issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds. 
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DEBT SERVICE ON THE SERIES 2019 BONDS 

The following table shows the debt service requirements for the Series 2019 Bonds: 

FISCAL YEAR 

ENDING JUNE 30 PRINCIPAL INTERESJ<ll TOTAL 

2019 $ $ $ 
2020 97,402.60 97,402.60 
2021 101,637.50 101,637.50 
2022 101,637.50 101,637.50 
2023 65,000 100,012.50 165,012.50 
2024 70,000 96,637.50 166,637.50 
2025 75,000 93,012.50 168,012.50 
2026 80,000 89,137.50 169,137.50 
2027 80,000 85,137.50 165,137.50 
2028 85,000 81,012.50 166,012.50 
2029 90,000 76,637.50 166,637.50 
2030 95,000 72,01250 167,012.50 
2031 100,000 67,950.00 167,950.00 
2032 100,000 64,575.00 164,575.00 
2033 105,000 61,115.63 166,115.63 
2034 110,000 57,487.51 167,487.51 
2035 115,000 53,690.63 168,690.63 
2036 115,000 49,593.75 164,593.75 
2037 120,000 45,187.50 165,187.50 
2038 125,000 40,593.75 165,593.75 
2039 130,000 35,812.50 165,812.50 
2040 135,000 30,843.75 165,843.75 
2041 140,000 25,687.50 165,687.50 
2042 145,000 20,343.75 165,343.75 
2043 150,000 14,812.50 164,812.50 
2044 155,000 9,093.75 164,093.75 
2045 165.000 3.093.75 168.093.75 

TOTAL $2.550,000 $1,5:Z4,158.8:Z $4,124,158.B:Z 

Ol Interest on the Series 2019 Bonds through April 1, 2021 will be paid from capitalized interest. 

SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019 BONDS 

PLEDGE OF THE INDENTURE 

The Series 2019 Bonds and any Additional Bonds issued pursuant to the Indenture are 
special limited obligations of the Agency secured equally and ratably by and payable exclusively 
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from (i) the Revenues and (ii) all moneys in funds and accounts held by the Trustee under the 
Indenture. 

"Revenues" include all revenues, fees, income, rents, and receipts received or earned by 
the Agency pursuant to the Service Contract, including Hook-up Lease Revenues and City Fees 
and, in the event of a shortfall in Service Revenues, any advance of Allocated Electrical Fee and 
Sales Tax Revenues (as defined below). Revenues do not include gifts or grants received by the 
Agency. See "The Service Contract" below. 

The amounts payable under the Service Contract are ultimately payable from and secured 
by Allocated Electrical Fee and Sales Tax Revenues of the City. See "THE SERVICE CONTRACT" 
and "MORGAN CITY" below. 

The Series 2019 Bonds are not a general obligation of the Agency, the City, any Member 
of the Agency, the State, or any agency, instrumentality or political subdivision of the State. 
Neither the faith and credit nor the ad valorem taxing power of the City, any Member, the State, 
or any agency, instrumentality or political subdivision of the State will be assigned or pledged for 
payment of the Series 2019 Bonds. The Agency has no taxing power. The Indenture does not 
pledge any properties of the City Network or other assets of the UIA Network or any other assets 
or revenues of the Agency or the City except the Revenues, and the Agency will not otherwise 
mortgage or grant a security interest in the City Network or other assets of the UlA Network to 
secure payment of the Series 2019 Bonds. 

To secure the timely payment of the principal of and interest on the Series 2019 Bonds, the 
Agency has pledged and assigned to the Trustee the Revenues and all moneys in the funds and 
accounts established by the Indenture. The Indenture establishes a Bond Fund to be held by the 
Trustee, a Revenue Fund to be held by the Agency, and certain other funds and accounts. 

FLoW OF F'UNDS 

(a) The Indenture provides that all Revenues shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund and 
accounted for by the Agency separate and apart from all other moneys of the Agency. 

(b) So long as any Bonds are Outstanding, as a first charge and lien on the Revenues, the 
Agency shall, on or before the first Business Day of each month, transfer to the Trustee for deposit 
into the Bond Fund from the Revenue Fund an amount equal to: 

(i) one-sixth of the interest falling due on the Bonds on the next succeeding 
Interest Payment Date established for the Bonds (provided, however, that so long as there 
are moneys representing capitalized interest on deposit with the Trustee to pay interest on 
the Bonds next coming due, the Agency need not transfer from the Revenue fund to pay 
interest on the Bonds); plus 

(ii) one-twelfth of the principal and premium, if any, falling due on the next 
succeeding principal payment date established for the Bonds; plus 
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(iii) one-twelfth of the Sinking Fund Installments, if any, falling due on the next 
succeeding Sinking Fund Installment payment date, 

the sum of which shall be sufficient, when added to the existing balance in the Bond Fund, 
to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds promptly on each such 
Interest Payment Date as the same become due and payable. The foregoing provisions may 
be revised by a Supplemental Indenture for any Series of Bonds having other than 
semiannual Interest Payment Dates. In the event the Agency shall have deposited for any 
month less than the amounts required pursuant to (i), (ii) or (iii) above, the Trustee shall, 
within five Business Days of such payment deficiency and unless otherwise cured by the 
Agency within that period, notify the City of the amount of such deficiency, with a copy 
of such notice to be sent to the Agency. Further, such notice to the City shall include a 
demand for payment from the Allocated Electrical Fee and Sales Tax Revenues of the City 
to the amount of such deficiency, all in accordance with the provisions the Service 
Contract. Any receipt of Allocated Electrical Fee and Sales Tax Revenues by the Trustee 
from the City shall be deposited into the Bond Fund and applied pursuant to (i), (ii) and 
(iii) above. 

( c) As a second charge and lien on the Revenues (on a parity basis), the Agency shall 
make the following transfers to the Trustee on or before the fifteenth day of each month of each 
year: 

(i) To the extent the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any, is not funded 
with a Reserve Instrument or Instruments, (A) to the accounts in the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund any amounts required by the Indenture and by any Supplemental Indenture to 
accumulate therein the applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement with respect to each 
Series of Bonds at the times and in the amounts provided in the Indenture and in any 
Supplemental Indenture and (B) if funds shall have been withdrawn from an account in the 
Debt Service Reserve Fund or any account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund is at any time 
funded in an amount less than the applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement, the 
Agency shall deposit Revenues in such account( s) in the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
sufficient in amount to restore such account(s) within one year with twelve substantially 
equal payments during such period (unless otherwise provided for by the Supplemental 
Indenture governing the applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement); or a ratable 
portion (based on the amount to be transferred pursuant to subparagraph (ii) below) of 
remaining Revenues if less than the amount necessary; and 

(ii) Equally and ratably to the accounts of the Reserve Instrument Fund with 
respect to all Reserve Instruments which are in effect and are expected to continue in effect 
after the end of such month, such amount of the remaining Revenues, or a ratable portion 
(based on the amount to be transferred pursuant to subparagraph (i) above) of the amount 
so remaining if less than the amount necessary, that is required to be paid on or before the 
next such monthly transfer or deposit of Revenues into the Reserve Instrument Fund, to 
the Reserve Instrument Provider pursuant to any Reserve Instrument Agreement, other than 
Reserve Instrument Costs, in order to cause the Reserve Instrument Coverage to equal the 
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Reserve Instrument Limit within · one year from any draw date under the Reserve 
Instrument. 

(d) As a third charge and lien on the Revenues, the Agency shall cause to be paid from 
the Revenue Fund from time to time as the Agency shall determine all Operation and Maintenance 
Expenses as the same become due and payable, and thereupon such expenses shall be promptly 
paid. "Operation and Maintenance Expenses" are defined by the Indenture as all expenses 
reasonably incurred by the Agency in connection with the operation and maintenance of the City 
Network, whether incurred by the Agency or paid to any other entity pursuant to contract or 
otherwise, necessary to keep the City Network in efficient operating condition, including cost of 
any audits required by the Indenture, payment of promotional and marketing expenses and real 
estate brokerage fees, payment of premiums for insurance and, generally all expenses, exclusive 
of depreciation (including depreciation related expenses of any joint venture) which under 
generally accepted accounting practices are properly allocable to operation and maintenance; 
however, only such expenses as are reasonably and properly necessary to the efficient operation 
and maintenance of the City Network shall be included. 

(e) As a fourth charge and lien on the Revenues, the Agency shall deposit in the Repair 
and Replacement Fund any amount required by the Indenture to accumulate therein the Repair and 
Replacement Reserve Requirement. In the event that the amount on deposit in the Repair and 
Replacement Fund shall ever be less than the Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement for 
the Bonds then Outstanding (or, after the issuance of Additional Bonds, the amount required to be 
on deposit therein), from time to time, the Agency shall deposit to the Repair and Replacement 
Fund from the Revenue Fund all remaining Revenues of the City Network after payments required 
by paragraphs (b), (c) and (d) above have been made until there is on deposit in the Repair and 
Replacement Fund an amount equal to the Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement. Subject 
to the provisions of paragraph (f) below, this provision is not intended to limit, and does not limit, 
the right of the Agency to deposit additional moneys in the Repair and Replacement Fund from 
time to time as the Agency may determine. 

(f) Subject to making the foregoing deposits, the Agency may use the balance of the 
Revenues accounted for in the Revenue Fund for any of the following: (i) redemption of Bonds; 
(ii) refinancing, refunding, or advance refunding of any Bonds; (iii) any amounts owing from the 
Agency to the City under the Service Contract; or (iv) for any other lawful pwpose. 

THE SERVICE CONTRACT 

General. Under the Service Contract, the Agency will provide certain wholesale services 
(the "Connection Services") to the City whereby end users in the City (the "End Users") have 
access to improvements installed, operated and maintained by the Agency within the City or 
specifically undertaken for the benefit of the City through which they may contract with private 
providers for cable television and telecommunication services (broadband) provided through the 
City Network. Such improvements will be used to provide Connection Services to End Users 
within the City. Connection Services also includes the access rights to and capacity in the City 
Network. 
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Under the Service Contract, the Agency also agrees to provide for the maintenance and 
operation of the City Network and will market or cause to be marketed, on behalf of the City, 
connection and access to the City Network to the residents and businesses of the City. For a more 
detailed description of the Connection Services, see Exhibit A to the Service Contract attached 
hereto as "APPENDIX C-FORM OF THE SERVICE CON1RACT ." 

Payments received by the Agency from the City under the Service Contract constitute the 
principal source of the Revenues pledged to the payment of the Series 2019 Bonds under the 
Indenture. 

The Service Contract extends at least to such time as the Series 2019 Bonds and any other 
obligations payable from amounts under the Service Contract shall have been retired in accordance 
with their terms. 

Operation of the Service Contract. ln consideration for the services provided by the 
Agency to the City under the Service Contract, the City agrees to pay to the Agency an amount 
equal to the sum of all Capital Costs of the Agency relating to the City Network during each fiscal 
year or other applicable period (the "UIA Revenue Requirement"). As of the date of issuance of 
the Series 2019 Bonds, the Capital Costs of the Agency relating to the City Network consist solely 
of debt service on the Series 2019 Bonds. 

The Service Contract provides for the Agency to, (i) on behalf of the City, impose and 
collect fees and charges (the "Hook-up Lease Revenues") generated pursuant to agreements 
between the City or the Agency and certain End Users that allow such End Users to connect to the 
UIA Network (the "Hook-up Leases"), and (ii) apply the Hook-up Lease Revenues toward the 
payment of the UIA Revenue Requirement. 

Under the Service Contract, the Agency will also apply all City Fees toward the payment 
of the UIA Revenue Requirement upon receipt of the City Fees. "City Fees" are fees paid by the 
City to the Agency for the provision of Connection Services to City-owned facilities or resources. 
The City Fees, the Hook-up Lease Revenues, and any Service Fees* are referred to collectively 
herein as the "Service Revenues." 

The City's payment obligations under the Service Contract as described above are 
irrevocable, absolute and unconditional and shall not be subject to any reduction, whether by 
defense, recoupment, counterclaim, set-off, termination, or offset or otherwise, and shall not be 
conditioned upon the construction, performance or non-performance of the City Network or the 
Agency. The remedy for non-performance under the Service Contract is limited to mandamus, 
specific performance or equitable remedy. 

* "Service Fees" are defined in the Service Contract as fees charged by or on behalf of the City to the End Users 
of the City Network other than Hook-up Lease Revenues and Pledged Electrical Fee Revenues or Sales Tax 
Revenues. The City does not currently plan to charge Service Fees. 
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Except as payable from Allocated Electrical Fee and Sales Tax Revenues, as described 
below, the City's obligation to make monthly payments under the Service Contract is payable 
solely from the Service Revenues. Each monthly installment payable by the City to the Agency 
under the Service Contract is due and payable by the City not later than the fifteenth day of the 
next succeeding month. If the Service Revenues are not paid in full on or before the close of 
business on the fifteenth day of the month in which such Service Revenues are due, an interest 
charge will be made at the rate of 10% per annum. If all or a portion of the Service Revenues 
remain unpaid after the fifteenth day of the month in which the Service Revenues are due, the 
Agency may, upon giving 30 days' advance written notice, discontinue Connection Services and 
other services under the Service Contract to the City unless, and may refuse to resume such 
services to the City until, the delinquent installment has been paid. 

Upon termination of the Service Contract, all Service Revenues will become revenues of, 
and belong to, the Agency. 

Use of Allocated Electrical Fee and Sales Tax Revenues. It is intended that the first source 
for the payment of the UIA Revenue Requirement will be the Service Revenues . As of the issuance 
of the Series 2019 Bonds, the UIA Revenue Requirement consists solely of the debt service costs 
of the Series 2019 Bonds. In the event that the Service Revenues are not sufficient to pay the UIA 
Revenue Requirement when due, and if the Agency fails to cure such shortfall on behalf of the 
City, the City has agreed pursuant to the Service Contract to advance to the Agency the City's 
Allocated Electrical Fee Revenues and Sales Tax Revenues in an amount sufficient to fund the 
difference between the UIA Revenue Requirement and the Service Revenues (the "Shortfall"). 

"Allocated Electrical Fee Revenues" means all revenues, fees, and similar charges 
collected by the City for the provision of electric services through the City's electric enterprise 
system, in a maximum annual amount of $90,360 per year. "Allocated Sales Tax Revenues" means 
all sales and use tax revenues that the City collects under Title 59, Chapter 12, Part 2 of Utah Code 
Annotated 1953, as amended (the "Local Sales and Use Tax Act"), up a maximum annual amount 
of $90 ,360 per year. 

The Service Contract provides that on or prior to each January 1 and July 1, the Agency 
will determine: (i) the UIA Revenue Requirement due on the next succeeding March 15 or 
September 15, as applicable, and (ii) the ampunt of Service Revenues the Agency reasonably 
believes will be available for payment of the UIA Revenue Requirement on such March 15 or 
September 15. In addition, the Agency shall inform the Trustee and the City of any Shortfall and, 
on or prior to each January 15 or July 15, as applicable, submit a request to the City for Allocated 
Electrical Fee and Sales Tax Revenues equal to the Shortfall. The City agrees to pay the Shortfall 
to the Agency no later than the next succeeding March 15 or September 15, as applicable. The 
Agency covenants to take such other action as it lawfully may take to assure that the City remits 
to the Agency from Allocated Electrical Fee and Sales Tax Revenues any Shortfall pursuant to the 
Service Contract. 

If for any reason the Agency or the City fails to comply with its obligations relating to any 
Shortfall under the Service Contract, the Trustee in accordance with the Indenture will, at any time 
during which a Shortfall exists, submit a request to the City to remit to the Trustee Allocated 
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Electrical Fee and Sales Tax Revenues equal to the Shortfall. The City agrees to pay the Shortfall 
to the Trustee no later than the next succeeding March 15 or September 15, as applicable. 

The Service Contract permits the City to create or incur additional debt or other obligations 
secured by a pledge of the City's revenues generated from the City's electrical fees and revenues 
generated from the City's sales tax on a parity with the pledge created by the Service Contract, so 
long as the total revenues generated from the City's electrical fees and total revenues generated 
from the City's sales tax received by the City during the fiscal year immediately preceding the 
fiscal year in which the additional parity debt or obligation is to be issued or incurred are not less 
than 150% of the maximum annual debt service in any given fiscal year on the sum of (i) the debt 
service on the additional parity debt or obligation plus (ii) debt service on any outstanding debt or 
obligation previously issued or incurred by the City and secured by sales tax revenues or electrical 
fees, and (iii) the debt service on any obligations issued by the Agency and payable from amounts 
paid or received under the Service Contract, tested for the period of such additional parity debt or 
obligation. 

All Allocated Electrical Fee and Sales Tax Revenues paid by the City to the Agency under 
the Service Contract will constitute a loan by the City to the Agency, to be evidenced by a 
promissory note to be paid by the Agency. The Service Contract provides that the City is entitled 
to interest on each loan advance at the per annum rate equal to the rate of return at the Utah Public 
Treasurer's Investment Fund in effect at the time of execution and delivery of the promissory note, 
unless by agreement of the City and the Agency a lesser interest rate is set forth in the executed 
promissory note for said loan. The loan obligation incurred by the Agency under the Service 
Contract will be subordinate and junior to the Agency's other payment obligations, including with 
respect to the Series 2019 Bonds. Payment obligations represented by a promissory note will 
survive termination of the Service Contract until paid in full or otherwise extinguished. 

During the term of the Service Contract, the City covenants that it will not, unless directed 
to do so by the State or a court of competent jurisdiction, reduce the rate of the electrical fees or 
sales taxes from which it derives Allocated Electrical Fee and Sales Tax Revenues. 

The maximum annual (fiscal year) debt service on the Series 2019 Bonds is $169,138 The 
total Electrical Fee Revenues (from which Allocated Electrical Fee Revenues are derived) received 
by the City for the fiscal years 2017 and 2018 totaled $2,104,719 and $2,084,314, respectively, 
and the total sales and use tax revenues (from which Allocated Sales Tax Revenues are derived) 
received by the City for the fiscal years 2017 and 2018 totaled $740,211 and $810,980, 
respectively. 

Electrical Fee and Sales Tax Revenue Parity Obligations. The City has no outstanding 
obligations secured by a pledge of electrical fee revenues or sales tax revenues. The Service 
Contract permits the City to create or incur additional debt or other obligations secured by a pledge 
of the City's revenues generated from the City's electrical fees and revenues generated from the 
City's sales tax on a parity with the pledge created by the Service Contract, as described above. 
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PROJECTED SERVICE REvENuEs 

The table below shows, for the fiscal years shown below, the Service Revenues projected 
to be derived from the Service Contract. The Agency expects to begin providing Connection 
Services under the Service Contract in August 2019. As discussed above, the City has agreed in 
the Service Contract to transfer Allocated Electrical Fee and Sales Tax Revenues to the Agency to 
the extent necessary to fund any Shortfall in Service Revenues. 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 2fil.2 2Q2il 2021 2022. 2Q23. 

Projected SerVice Revenues(!) 
Hook-up Lease Revenues $- $24,800 $107,300 $152,800 $172,100 
City Fees - --1.jOO 9.000 9.000 9.QQQ -

Total Projected Service Revenues $0 $37,800 $117,400 $100,600 $180,500 

UIA Revenue Requirement(2) 

Series 2019 Bonds Debt Service* $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $101 ,638 $165,013 

Remaining Service Revenues $0 $37,800 $117,400 $58 ,962 $15,487 

( 1) Although the Service Contract provideii that Service Revenues also include Service Fees, if any, the City does not plan to charge Service Fees . 
(2) Under the Service Contract, the UIA Revenue Requirement includes Capital Costs of the Agency relating to the City Network, which, as of 

the issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds, consist solely of debt service on the Series 2019 Bonds. 

• Debt service on the Series 2019 Bonds through April 1, 2021 will be paid from capitalized interest . 

HISTORICAL ELECTRICAL FEE AND SALES AND USE TAX REvENUES OF THE CITY 

As discussed herein, in the event of a Shortfall in the Service Revenues, the City has 
pledged to lend to the Agency its Allocated Electrical Fee Revenues, which consist of up to a 
maximum annual amount of $90,360 of the City's electric utility system revenues, and Allocated 
Sales Tax Revenues, which consist of up to a maximum annual amount of $90,360 of the City's 
sales and use tax revenues. The maximum annual (fiscal year) debt service on the Series 2019 
Bonds is $169,138. The following table shows the City' s total electric utility system revenues and 
sales tax revenues for the years shown: 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 20la 20..11 ~ ~ 2014 

Electric Utility System Revenues(!) $2,019,576 $2,065,078 $1 ,889,913 $1 ,821,416 $2 ,011,549 

Sales and Use Tax Revenues(Z) BlQ.280 740,211 691.JQl M::2.12~ 566,123 

Total Electric System and Sales Tax Revenue $~,83Q.~5~ $2JiQ5~82 $~.:i8l .2.1~ $~~~.52!J $2~2'.Z~2 

Maximum Debt Service on the Series 2019 Bonds $169,138 $169,138 $169,138 $169,138 $169,138 

Ratio of Electric System and Sales and Use Tax 
Revenue to Maximum Debt Service 16.7 16.6 153 14.6 15.2 

(I) The maximum annual pledge of Allocated Electrical Fee Revenues under the Service Contract is $90,360. 
(2) The maximum annual pledge of Allocated Sales Tax Revenues under the Service Contract is $90,360. 
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ADDmONAL BONDS 

No other indebtedness, bonds or notes of the Agency that are secured by a pledge of the 
Revenues senior to the pledge of the Revenues for the payment of the Series 2019 Bonds may be 
issued or incurred by the Agency without the prior written consent of 100% of all Registered 
Owners of the Outstanding Bonds. 

No Additional Bonds or other indebtedness, bonds or notes of the Agency payable on a 
parity with the Series 2019 Bonds out of Revenues will be issued unless the Allocated Electrical 
Fee and Allocated Sales Tax Revenues received by the City during the fiscal year immediately 
preceding the fiscal year in which the Additional Bonds, indebtedness, bonds or notes are to be 
issued are not less than 100% of the maximum annual debt service in any given fiscal year on the 
sum of (i) the debt service on the Additional Bonds, indebtedness, bonds or notes of the Agency, 
plus (ii) debt service on the Series 2019 Bonds and any Additional Bonds or parity indebtedness, 
bonds or notes of the Agency or the City previously issued and outstanding (and secured by a 
pledge of the Electrical Fee Revenues or Sales Tax Revenue, plus (iii) the debt service on any 
obligations issued by the Issuer and payable from amounts paid or received under the Service 
Contract; tested for the period of such Additional Bonds or parity debt or obligation. 

NO DEBT SERVICE REsERVE FOR THE SERIES 2019 BONDS 

There is no debt service reserve account in connection with the issuance of the Series 2019 
Bonds. 

OUI'STANDING AGENCY BONDS 

The Agency has previously. issued its (i) General Revenue Bonds (the "General Revenue 
Bonds"), which are currently outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $96,620,000, and 
(ii) Layton City Telecommunications and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2018 (the "Layton 
Bonds"), which are currently outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $22,285,000. The 
Agency's General Revenue Bonds are payable from and secured, pursuant to a separate indenture, 
by the revenues due and payable under separate service contracts with the Members and from 
certain franchise tax revenues of the Members. The Agency's Layton Bonds are payable from and 
secured, pursuant to a separate indenture, by the revenues due and payable under a separate service 
contract with Layton City, including from certain franchise tax revenues of Layton City. See "THE 
AGENCY-Outstanding Obligations of the Agency" herein. 

MORGAN CITY 

GENERAL 

Morgan City, Utah was incorporated in 18<>8 and covers an area of approximately 3.2 
square miles. According to the U.S. Census Bureau, the City had a 2017 estimated population of 
4 ,249. The City is located in Morgan County, approximately 44 miles northeast of Salt Lake City 
and approximately 24 miles southeast of Ogden City. 
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The tables below summarize certain demographic data regarding the City, Morgan County, 
and the State. 

SPECIFIED OWNER-OCCUPIED UNITS 

MORGAN CITY THE STATE 

Value Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $50,000 33 3.07% 27,876 4.27% 
$50,000 to $99,999 17 1.58 20,676 3.16 
$100,000 to $149,999 51 4.74 73,821 11.30 
$150,000 to $199,999 226 21.00 118,224 18.09 
$200,000 to $299,999 463 43.03 198,443 30.37 
$300,000 to $499,999 273 25.37 155,700 23.83 
$500,000 to $999,999 13 1.21 49,748 7.61 
$1,000,000 or more __ o 0.00 8.941 1.37 

Total 1,076 100.00% 653,429 100.00% 

(Source: U.S. Census Bureau) 

MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME 

MORGAN C ITY THE STATE 

Household Income Number Percent Number Percent 
Under $10,000 17 1.32% 41,568 4.43% 
$10,000 to $14,999 3 0.23 31,462 3.35 
$15 ,000 to $24 ,999 58 451 69,801 7.44 
$25 ,000 to $34 /)99 51 3.96 79,338 8.45 
$35 ,000 to $49 ,999 198 15.38 122,029 13.00 
$50,000 to $74,999 297 23.08 194,204 20.70 
$75 ,000 to $99 ,999 253 19.66 142,832 15.22 
$100,000 to $149,999 290 22.53 154,368 16.45 
$150,000 to $199,999 74 5.75 54,469 5.80 
$200,000 or more ~ 3.57 48.224 5.15 

Total 1,287 100.00% 938,365 100.00% 
Median Household Income $76,625 $42,247 

(Source: U.S. Census Bureau) 

ELECTRICAL FEE REVENUES 

The City owns and operates a municipal electric system. The City's electric utility system 
was originally constructed in 1933. It includes approximately 27 miles of transmission and 
distribution lines. There are three employees in the City's electrical department. 
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The City is a member of Utah Associated Municipal Power Systems ("VAMPS"). The 
City purchases power from UAMPS by participating in the following UAMPS Projects: 

Project/Power Supply Resource 

Hunter Project- Coal and 8team combme 
cycle, Emery County, Utah 

San Juan Project-Coal and steam combine 
cycle, Farmington New Mexico 

Intermountam Power Project - Coal and 
steam combine cycle, Delta Utah 

Colorado River Storage Project (summer)­
Hydroelectric, 56 power plants including 
Hoover Dam 

Colorado River Storage Project (wmter)­
Hydroelectric, 56 power plants includmg 
Hoover Dam 

PVWind 

Hori;;e Butte Wind Project - Wmd Farm, 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 

Pool and Resource Projects - Projects within 
UAMPS to buy and sell power between 
members and on the open market 

City's Share of Generating Capacity (kW) 

438 

500 

3,420 

934 

1,516 

5 

303 

934 

The City reports that it holds all licenses, permits and approvals necessary for the operation 
of its electric utility. 

The following tables presents summary :financial and operating information for the City's 
electric utility for the fiscal years shown. 
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MORGAN CITY, UTAH 
STATEMENT OF NET PosmoN - ELECTRIC FUND* 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

ASSBTS 
Current Assets: 

Cash ................................................................ $1,330,818 $1,537,109 $1,594,673 $2,079,331 $1 ,756,522 
Restricted Cash ............................................... 21,672 12,673 2,720 47,580 42,990 
Accounts Receivable (Net) ............................. 179,355 168,128 144,852 145,223 165,766 
Inventory ..................... ................. ................... 127,346 109.097 94 ,185 99,126 101,251 
Due from Other Funds .................................... 736,414 805,401 873,362 940,311 1,006,264 
Prepaid Expenses ............................................ 2.552 2,633 3 120 3,168 113! 

Total Current Assets ................................... 2J2s m 2 !i3S !l!l 21122112 3 31! :Z32 J.[Z! S2:Z 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Net Pension Asset ........................................... s 27 
Capital Assets: 

Land ............................ .......... ...................... 96,794 17,.520 17,520 17,520 17,520 
Buildings .................................. ................... 1,001 ,943 1,001,943 558,576 41,812 31,812 
Utility Systems ........................................... 3,175,414 2,829,727 2,731,Q79 2,408,539 2,390,900 
Machinery and Equipment .......................... 362,577 341,565 341,S65 337,633 269,789 
Construction in Progress ............................. 303,841 :. :. 
Less Accumulated Depreciation ................. <I s2s mm Cl ~Hill~ Cl 2~!l.J!i2l ( 1 ]Qi ll!ll (2Ci:Z 21!tll 
Total Capital Assets, Net Total Assets ....... 334Hll! 2:Z:Z!:Zl5 2.400,;m 1 :ZOO:ZIZ I :Z!203:i 

Total Assets ............................................ s :Z!J 641 5 409 :Z5fi s 113358 S !l!S!llJ !Jll!i.562 
Deferred Outflows of Resources Relating to 

Pensions ...................................................... 1Qi!ll2 22.:ZQ3 :Z!i!l!l:Z 24,S43 
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of 

Resources .......... .... ................................. $5 8!'1:8.!!~3 $~ ~1!2 ~52 $5182 365 $5 CM!l.!!26 $ 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable ............................................ $ 227,976 $ 104,936 $ 111,849 $ 105,477 s 94,756 
Customer Deposits .......................................... 16,690 16,240 14,440 13,690 14,880 

Total Current Liabilities ............................. ~ ...lll..m ~ ~ ~ 
NoDC\IIICnt Liabilities: 

Net Pension Liability ...................................... 129,453 175,962 lSWl l.l.5...5.2Z 
Total Liabilities ............. ... ........................... :m112 2221311 222JllQ 23!2!i!'l IQ2 fi3fi 

Deferred inflows of resources: 
Relating to Pensions ....................................... ~ _22.JU --1.1.5Ql ___li.1ll 

Total liabilities and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources .......................................... ~ ~ ....22illl ~ IQ2!i36 

NET POSITION: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets ...................... 3,041,642 2,774,714 1,895,614 1,700,717 1,742,035 
Restricted for Impact Fees ................................ 21 ,672 12 ,673 2,720 47,580 42,990 
Unrestricted ....................................................... 2 .3J!!.m 2J2:i !ill Z2~1:i!l 3.QRJ:iJ 2221201 

Total Net Position assets ........................ 5.323 !'l:l.:Z s 183 002 !'l.!!~M !B!l ! 22Q,:i5!l !'l.:ZQ!i 226 

Total Liabilities and Net Position .......... $5~41!043 $~ ~1!2~52 $5 182 36~ $:2 !M!l.!l26 ~816 562 

This summary has not been audited. 
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MORGAN CITY, UTAH 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION­

ELECTRIC FuND* 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

Charges for Services ......................................... .. 
Other Operating Revenues ................................. . 

Total Operating Revenues ............................. . 

OPERA TING ExPENSES: 

Personnel services .............................................. . 
Purchases water/power/refuse ........................... . 
Supplies ....•.....•................................................... 
Office Expense ................................................. .. 
Professional Services ......................................... . 
Miscellaneous .................................................... . 
Equipment and Maintenance ............................. . 
Insurance ............................................................ . 
Depreciation ....................................................... . 

Total Operating Expenses .............................. . 

Operating Income (Loss) ......................................... . 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
Impact Fees ........................................................ . 

Connection Fees ............................................... .. 
Interest Revenue ................................................ . 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) ..... . 

Net Income {Loss) Before Contributions and 
Transfers ............................................................ . 

Capital Contributions ........................................... . 

Change in Net Position ............................................ . 

Total Net Position - Beginning .....••.•......•..•.............. 

Prior Year Adjustment - GASB 68 

Total Net Position - Ending ................................... . 

* This summary has not been audited. 

2018 

$1,984,437 
35139 

2.019.576 

448,412 
1,069,297 

62,392 
39,246 
47,568 
10,588 
7/)57 

10,291 
179.045 

I 873 896 

145.680 

8,736 

6,758 
49,244 
64.738 

210 418 

210,418 

5 183 009 

$5 393A27 
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FISCAL YEAR ENDED JuNE 30 

2017 

$1,942,138 

122.~ 
2-065078 

473,205 
946,241 
146,563 
34,033 
12,720 
11,276 
13,394 
11,090 

HiHi22 
I 816 l!M 

248 884 

15,498 

11,453 
12,690 
39.641 

Z!!!! 5Z5 

288,525 

482!1:!1:!!!1: 

$5 183 002 

2016 

$1,873 ,()48 

Ui.!!6.:i 
1-889 913 

426,203 
935,081 
270,740 

28,808 
16,124 
17,639 
32,745 
12,739 

H4!1:2!i 
l !!!!!!: !!01 

~ 

19,633 

39,551 
13,841 
73.025 

~ 
~ 

103,934 

!!: 22!! !!!!!! 

$4 824 484 

2015 

$1,799,384 
22.032 

1821-416 

398,979 
990,419 
61,321 
31,144 
16,461 
13,426 
17,032 
11,203 

136 855 

1676 840 

144576 

8,136 
39,588 
14,876 
62li00 

207176 

207,176 

4,706,926 

<123552) 

$4 790 550 

2014 

$1,999,290 
12259 

2011.549 

403,688 
981,792 
87 ,118 
34,158 
22,938 

8,154 
28,582 
11,862 

126 582 
I 704 874 

306.675 

17;l.57 
31,721 
15,818 
64726 

37!A71 

371,471 

4 335 455 

$4 706 226 



SALES AND USE TAX REvENUES 

The Allocated Sales Tax Revenues pledged in the Service Contract are the sales and use 
tax revenues that the City collects under the Local Sales and Use Tax Act, up a maximum annual 
amount of $90,360. 

Under the Local Sales and Use Tax Act, sales taxes are imposed on the amount paid or 
charged for sales of tangible personal property in the State and for services rendered in the State 
for the repair, renovation or installation of tangible personal property. A use tax is imposed on the 
amount paid or charged for the use, storage or other consumption of tangible personal property in 
the State, including services for the repair, renovation or installation of such tangible personal 
property. Sales and use taxes also apply to leases and rentals of tangible personal property if the 
tangible personal property is in the State, the lessee talces possession in the State, or the tangible 
personal property is stored, used or otherwise consumed in the State. 

A sales and use tax due and unpaid constitutes a debt due from the vendor and may be 
collected, together with interest, penalty, and costs, by appropriate judicial proceeding within three 
years after the vendor is delinquent. Furthermore, if a sales and use tax is not paid when due and 
if the vendor has not followed the procedures to object to a notice of deficiency, the Utah State 
Tax Commission may issue a warrant directed to the sheriff of any county commanding the sheriff 
to levy upon and sell the real and personal property of a delinquent taxpayer found within such 
county for the payment of the tax due. The amount of the warrant shall have the force and effect 
of an execution against all personal property of the delinquent taxpayer and shall become a lien 
upon the real property of the delinquent taxpayer in the same manner as a judgment duly rendered 
by any district court. 

Local Sales and Use Taxes. The Local Sales and Use Tax Act currently provides that each 
county, city and town in the State may levy a sales and use tax of up to 1 % on the purchase price 
of taxable goods and services. Although local governments may elect to levy sales and use taxes 
at rates less than 1 %, various provisions of the Local Sales and Use Tax Act encourage them to 
levy these taxes at the rate of 1 %. The legislative intent of the Local Sales and Use Tax Act is to 
provide the counties, cities and towns of the State with an added source of revenue to assist them 
in meeting their financial needs and servicing their bonded indebtedness. 

The City levies sales and use taxes at the maximum legal rate of 1 % . 

Sales and use taxes are collected by the Utah State Tax Commission and distributed 
monthly to each county, city and town. The distributions are based on a formula, which provides 
that (i) 50% of sales and use tax collections will be distributed based on the percentage of the 
population of the local government to the total population of all similar local governments in the 
State and (ii) 50% of sales and use tax collections will be distributed based on the point of sale 
(the "50150 Distribution"). The 50/50 Distribution formula and other provisions of the Local 
Sales and Use Tax Act are subject to legislative changes. 
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Beginning in Fiscal Year 2014 and ending with Fiscal Year 2016, a local government 
received the Minimum Tax Revenue Distribution for such fiscal year if for Fiscal Year 2013 the 
50150 Distribution was less than or equal to the product of the Minimum Tax Revenue Distribution 
and 90% (for Fiscal Years 2014 through 2016 the "Minimum Tax Revenue Distribution" means 
the greater of the tax revenue distributions received by the local government in Fiscal Year 2001 
or Fiscal Year 2005). Beginning in Fiscal Year 2018 and ending with Fiscal Year 2022, a local 
government shall receive a tax distribution equal to the greater of the 50/50 Distribution or the 
total amount of tax revenue distributions received by the local government in Fiscal Year 2005. 

largest Sales and Use Tax Payers in the City. In fiscal year 2018, the largest 10 businesses 
collected approximately 62% of the total sales and use taxes collected in the City, and the largest 
tax collection by a single business was approximately 17%. 

Historical Sales and Use Tax Revenues of the City. For a five-year history of the City's 
sales and use tax revenues, see "SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019 BONDS-Historical Electrical Fee 
and Sales and Use Tax Revenues of the City" herein. 

THE AGENCY 

GENERAL 

Creation and purpose. The Agency is a separate legal entity, body politic and corporate, 
and a political subdivision of the State regularly created, established, organized and existing under 
and by virtue of the provisions of the Interlocal Agreement, the Interlocal Cooperation Act and the 
State constitution. The Members include the following Utah municipalities: Brigham City, 
Centerville City, Layton City, Lindon City, Midvale City, Murray City, City of Orem, Payson City 
and West Valley City. A map showing the location of the Members is provided on page ii of this 
Official Statement. 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, cities may exercise and enjoy 
jointly with other cities any power, privileges or authority exercised or capable of being exercised 
by a city. State law permits municipalities to purchase, lease, construct or equip communications 
facilities that are designed to provide services within the municipality, and that the municipality 
uses for internal municipal government purposes, or by written contract, leases, sells capacity in 
or grants other similar rights to a private provider to use the facilities in connection with a private 
provider offering cable television services or public telecommunications services. The Interlocal 
Cooperation Act permits cities to make the most efficient use of their power by enabling them to 
cooperate with other cities on the basis of mutual advantage and thereby to provide services and 
facilities in a manner and under forms of governmental organization that will accord best with 
geographic, economic, population and other factors influencing the needs of development of local 
communities and will provide the benefit of economy of scale, economic development and 
utilization of natural resources for the overall promotion of the general welfare of the State. 
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Corporate and Statutory Powers. Pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act and the 
lnterlocal Agreement, the Agency has the power to: (i) issue bonds, and construct, lease, operate 
(or cause the same to occur) and own the UIA Network; (ii) enter into contracts with suppliers, 
contractors, providers and others to facilitate the accomplishment of the purposes listed in (i); (iii) 
undertake such actions as are necessary or advisable to effectuate its general pwpose; (iv) enter 
into contracts, bond, construct and undertake actions to effectuate such purposes, which may be 
done in series or phases, as determined by the Board; (v) upgrade and expand the UIA Network as 
new development occurs within the boundaries of the Member cities and as other municipalities 
join the Agency; and (vi) engage in such other lawful activity in which an interlocal cooperative 
may become involved and conduct any and all transactions and activities related thereto. 

Organization. The Agency is governed by a nine-member governing board (the "Board"), 
consisting of representatives appointed from each of the Members. The present Board members 
are as follows: 

NAME CITY BOARD ROLE* 
Alex Jensen Layton City Chair 

Jason Roberts Brigham City First Vice Chair 
Sam Lentz Orem City Third Vice Chair 

Jeff Acerson Lindon City Director 
Bryce Haderlie Midvale City Director 

Paul Isaac West Valley City Director 
Clark Wilkinson Centerville City Director 

"' The positions of Second Vice Chair and Fourth Vice Chair and one of the other Director positions are currently vacant. 

The Board is required to hold at least one regular meeting annually, but may call other 
meetings as necessary. Each Member is entitled to one vote for each one thousand (1,000) 
residents, rounded to the nearest one thousand, as determined by the most recent official census or 
census estimate of the United States Census Bureau or the Utah Population Estimates Committee. 
There must be a quorum present at each meeting in order to take any action. A quorum consists 
of the presence of the Board members entitled to cast a majority of the votes , which is not a simple 
majority of Board members since votes are weighted based on population. 
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ESTIMATED APPROXIMATE 

MEMBER PoPULATION CURRENT VOTING% 

West Valley City 136,170 30% 
City of Orem 97,839 21 
Layton City 76,691 17 
Murray City 49,295 11 
Midvale City 33,208 7 
Payson City 19,892 4 

Brigham City 19,182 4 
Centerville City 17,657 4 

Lindon City 10,968 2 

(Source: U.S. Census Bureau; population estimate as of July 1, 2017 .) 

The Board also elects from among its members a Chair, a First Vice Chair, a Second Vice 
Chair (currently vacant), a Third Vice Chair and a Fourth Vice Chair (currently vacant). The 
aforementioned officials serve as the Executive Committee of the Board. The Executive 
Committee has oversight of the operations of the Agency as delegated by the Board. 

The Board appoints a Chief Executive Officer, who, subject to oversight by the Board, has 
general supervision, management, administration, direction, and control of the business and 
officers of the Agency and has such other related duties as may be prescribed by the Board. The 
Chief Executive Officer is authorized to perform any function required of the Agency by the 
Interlocal Agreement. The day-to-day operations are handled by the Chief Executive Officer. Set 
forth below is brief biographical information of certain key administrative personnel. 

Roger Timmerman, Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Timmerman has served as Chief 
Executive Officer of the Agency since 2016. He also serves as Executive Director of UTOPIA, a 
position he has also held since 2016. Prior to joining the Agency and UTOPIA, Mr. Timmerman 
was Vice President of Engineering for Vivint Wireless, one of the country's largest wireless 
internet service providers, and helped launch wireless ISP in Utah and Texas. Mr. Timmerman 
also previously served as the Chief Technology Officer for UTOPIA for five years. He also 
worked as a Network Engineer for the City of Provo for its iProvo fiber-to-the-home project. After 
graduation, he worked for the BYU Office of Information Technology as a Network Product 
Manager and oversaw the deployment of various network products. He graduated from Brigham 
Young University with a B .S. in Information Technology in 2004 and received a Master of Science 
degree in Information Technology from Brigham Young University in 2009. 

Laurie Harvey, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary/Treasurer. Ms. Harvey was 
appointed Secretary/Treasurer of the Agency in January 2019. She replaced Kirt Sudweeks, who 
retired in January 2019 after serving as Secretary ffreasurer for 13 years. She also serves as the 
Chief Financial Officer of lITOPIA. Prior to joining the Agency, Ms. Harvey was an Assistant 
City Manager for Midvale City, one of the Agency's member cities. She was employed by 
Midvale City for 20 years, starting out as Finance Director in 1998, advancing to Director of 
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Administrative Services in 2008, and taking on additional duties as Assistant City Manager in 
2013. She has served on the boards of both UIA and UTOPIA and on the Agency's Finance 
Committee. She is a Certified Public Accountant and a Certified Public Finance Officer. She 
holds a B.S. in accounting from the University of Utah. 

AoomoN/WITHDRA w AL/DISSOLUTION 

Any municipality that wishes to become a member of the Agency may do so upon approval 
of the governing body of the governmental entity and the Agency's Board. Entities that become 
members of the Agency subsequent to the original execution of the Interlocal Agreement have the 
same rights, power and authority as the original Members. To date, no additional members have 
been added since the inception of the Agency. 

The Agency may be dissolved by a two-thirds vote of the Members, so long as it has no 
outstanding bonds (including the Series 2019 Bonds). Upon dissolution and after payment in full 
of all outstanding bonds and other obligations, the Board will equitably disburse the assets of the 
Agency to then current Members. To the extent possible, each Member will receive ownership of 
that portion of the UIA Network within its boundaries, at no additional cost to each then current 
Member. 

OUTSTANDING OBLIGATIONS OF THE AGENCY 

PRINCIPAL 

MATURITY AMOUNT 

SERIES PURPOSE AMOUNT DATE 0UTST ANDING 

2017A(l) Improvements & Refunding $73,905,000 October 15, 2040 $ 71,760,000 
2017B(l) Refunding 3,500,000 October 15, 2023 3,050,000 
2018AC1) Improvements 21,810,000 October 15, 2040 21,810,000 
2018(2) Layton Improvements 22,285,000 October 15, 2044 22,285,000 
2019(3) Morgan Improvements 2,550,000 October 1, 2044 2j50,000 

Total $121,455,000 

(1) Issued under the Agency's separate general revenue bond indenture. Secured by the Agency operating revenues and a pledge 
of franchise taxes under a 2011 Service Contract between the Agency and its Members. 

(2) Issued under the Agency's separate indenture with respect to these bonds. Secured by revenues received by the Agency with 
respect to certain telecommunications facilities constructed by the Agency to provide fiber communications service in Layton 
City, Utah. 

<3) For purposes of this Official Statement, the Series 2019 Bonds are considered issued and outstanding. 

In addition, the Agency has outstanding its notes (the "Member Notes") in the aggregate 
amount of $3,718,636 payable to certain of the Members. The Member Notes evidence working 
capital assessments made by the Agency to such Members for fiscal years 2013-2015 pursuant to 
the Interlocal Agreement in order to help the Agency meet ongoing operational expense 
obligations, including payments to UTOPIA for operational expenses of the UTOPIA Network. 
The Member Notes are payable from certain Agency net revenues (subordinate to its bonds). 
Assessments are subject to the budgetary processes and approvals of the Members. Although most 
of the Members agreed to pay at least some portion of the assessments in the past, no assurance 
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can be given that the Members will agree to do so in the future in the event that any additional 
assessments are necessary. The Agency did not assess the Members (and no new notes were 
issued) for the past three fiscal years, and the Agency does not expect to issue any additional notes 
in the future. 

NO DEFAULTED BONDS 

The Agency has never been in default on any material contractual or financial obligation, 
including the punctual payment of principal or interest on any of its indebtedness. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The Agency believes that much of the current infrastructure and technology utilized by the 
telecommunications industry will need to be replaced in the future with faster and higher capacity 
fiber optic infrastructure to best serve the evolving and growing demands of users. The Agency 
believes that it is well positioned to meet the emerging needs of the industry within its service area. 

The UIA Network is a fiber optic network providing high-speed broadband voice, video 
and <lat.a access. The UIA Network is connected to the UTOPIA Network pursuant to the IRU 
Agreement. The UTOPIA Network is an open-access system where UTOPIA designs, builds and 
operates a fiber infrastructure that multiple competing service providers utilize to connect to end­
customers. The synergy provided by the Agency's partnership with UTOPIA allows both 
organizations to provide citizens a state-of-the-art broadband network. The Agency's projects are 
facilit.ating economic development throughout the Agency's (and UTOPIA's) member cities. 

The Agency, working in conjunction with the UTOPIA Network, has est.ablished a track 
record of successfully building out fiber infrastructure that brings fast and reliable internet service 
to customers within the boundaries of the Members. Competition among service providers within 
the UIA Network has helped ensure competitively priced internet services and excellent customer 
support. If a specific service provider fails to provide reliable and affordable service, the open­
access system allows a customer to switch to a new service provider while utilizing the same 
UTOPIA fiber connection. 

As of June 30, 2018, more than 30 residential and business internet service providers were 
actively providing services utilizing the combined UTOPIA/UIA Network and a total of 19,905 
homes and businesses had subscribed for services. As of February 1, 2019, the Agency estimates 
that the number of subscribers has grown to approximately 22,300 homes and businesses. Future 
growth of the UIA Network will be largely demand-based, bringing the network first to those areas 
that will generally bring the best return on investment. The Agency continues to make significant 
progress towards its original mission: to build and maintain a fiber optic network to service all of 
the businesses and residents in UTOPIA' s member cities . As of February 1, 2019, more than 2,4 73 
miles of fiber cable have been placed within the boundaries of the 11 UTOPIA member cities. 
Within footprints serviced by 150 hut sites, there are approximately 166,500 addresses, of which 
approximately 102,500 are able to receive services of the combined UTOPIA/UIA Network. The 
remaining addresses are located in apartment buildings, condominium developments or in areas 
isolated by right-of-way or pole access issues. The combined UTOPIA/UIA Network has grown 
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to become the largest open-access system of its kind in North America and is now available to 
over 168,000 addresses throughout the service area. 

Financial results for the Agency for its fiscal year ended June 30, 2UUS, were generally 
very positive. Operating revenues were up $1 ,586,000, a 17.5% increase from fiscal year 2017. 
Operating Expenses were up by $2,385,000 (including an increase in depreciation of $919,400, 
and recognition of services provided by UTOPIA on behalf of UIA totaling $1,086,800). 
Operating Income was $3,541,075, a decrease of 18% from FY 2017. Customers of the Agency 
increased by 2,300 in fiscal year 2018, a 29% increase from 2017. Average Recurring Monthly 
Revenue increased by $132,000, a 17 .4% increase from 2017. 

For fiscal year 2019, the Agency budgeted for continued increases in revenues and 
operating income based on customer trends and expected margins. The Agency's operating 
revenues have grown by more than $1,293,000 through the first six months of fiscal year 2019, an 
increase of 25%, when compared to the first six months of fiscal year 2018. Currently, operating 
revenues for fiscal year 2019 are tracking approximately 6% ahead of the Agency's budget. 

Certain recent trends in the industry should benefit both the near-term success and long­
term viability of UTOPIA and the Agency. Consumer demand in the service area continues to 
outpace available incumbent provider options, which has led to significant customer growth for 
the Agency and UTOPIA. UTOPIA and the Agency are adding customers at the fastest pace in 
their history, with growth coming from all areas where their service is available. Subscriber 
disconnections (known as churn) for UTOPIA ( <4% annually) are well below industry averages, 
and the low churn rate has helped to contribute to net growth of customers over time. Additionally, 
based on an independent third-party survey conducted in August 2018 and contracted for by 
UTOPIA, UTOPIA's Net Promoter Score, an industry metric for measuring customer satisfaction, 
was significantly higher than any other known Net Promoter Score for broadband options in Utah. 

Further, the industry trend of "cord-cutting," a practice where customers cancel traditional 
cable related services in favor of internet only delivered services, should greatly benefit UTOPIA 
and the Agency. Much of the cable and telecom industries are threatened by new internet-delivered 
services for phone (such as Ooma and Vonage) or video streaming (such as Netflix, Hulu, SlingTV 
and YouTube TV) because the cable and telecom providers often depend on bundled revenues for 
profitability. The trend of increased cord-cutting is driving consumers to cancel cable TV and 
phone services in favor of faster internet connections and internet delivered services. Because the 
Agency's and UTOPIA's revenue models are generally based on connection revenues and higher 
speed internet access at competitive rates and are not reliant on providing bundled services, the 
Agency and UTOPIA believe they are well positioned to benefit from the cord-cutting trend. 

The result of these industry trends, many of which should provide increased demand for 
broadband services of the type provided by UTOPIA and the Agency, together with improving 
economies of scale for UTOPIA and the Agency related to continued growth, should collectively 
better ensure the long-term viability of UTOPIA and the Agency as they finish the buildout of 
member cities and potentially expand into new cities. 
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FINANCIAL SUMMARIES AND BUDGET 

The following tables summarize the Agency's recent financial history as well as its budget 
for fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. The Agency prepared the historical tables based on 
information set forth in the Agency's audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 
30, 2014 through June 30, 2018. 

UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 

STATEMENT OF REvENUES' EXPENSES, AND CHA...~GES IN FuND NET PosmoN* 

FISCAL YEAR E NDED JUNE 30, 
2Ql8_ 2fll1 2QlQ 2Qll 2014 

Operating Revenues 
Access fees $ 8,111,854 $7,078 ,457 $6,059,951 $4,872,660 $3 ,038,824 
Installations 14,699 123,933 258,449 472,018 514,871 
Reconnections 2,373,662 1,813,818 1,362,514 982,663 769,246 
Miscellaneous operating 
revenue H1.6QQ 32.352 8,400 Q Q 

Total Operating Revenues $10,641.815 $2.055.5@ $2.f!82.JH $~ •• n1.J~U ~J22.941 
Operating Expenses 

Marketing 509,695 $323,884 $231,039 $86,Q13 $85,778 
Professional services 716,775 138,352 97,680 78,238 65,765 
Network 1,404,954 704,047 420,302 364,212 321,543 
Depreciation 4,4~2.Jl!2 J,549,885 3,002,Q55 2.f!53.J88 2.251.384 

Total Operating Expenses $7 ,lQQ.1!lQ $4.116,168 $3,751,076 $3.181.851 $2,724,470 
Operating Income (Loss) $3j41.Q25 ~.332.322 $3,938.238 $J,l~.42Q $1.528,421 
Non-Operating Revenues 
(Expenses) 

Interest income $ 528,398 $ 491,518 $ 386,958 $ 291,526 $ 329,094 
Installation related capital 
contributions 452,541 376,682 247,294 799,864 577,877 
Donated services from 
UTOPIA 546,883 
Bond interest and fees (4,506,128) (2,774,126) (2,993,006) (l ,917,898) (2,374,o95) 
Loss on disposal of assets £320.113) 

Total Non-Operating 
Revenues (Expenses) $£3.368.~22) $(1.2.Q~ .2~) $(2,3~!:! .254) $£826.SOS) $£1 a:~2 .124) 

Change in Net Position $ 172,596 $2,433,466 $1~79,484 $2,318,982 $131,347 

Total Net Position, July 1 $4®0.502 $2.167.043 $587559 $CJ ,731A23) $(1.862.770) 

Total Net Position, June 30 s~.z2~.1g~ $:1,600,502 $2.1~.D~~ $587559 $(J 231 ~23) 

* This summary bas not been audited. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION* 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 
2018 2.!ill 2016 2015 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash $ 5,447,838 $ 6,185,494 $ 3,146,791 $ 2,168,755 $ 996,661 
Restricted cash equivalents 4,504,137 8,970,264 25,443,378 2,298,904 5,573,515 

Trade receivables, net 1,100,484 1,011,553 491,703 468,801 327,634 
Inventory 2,579,451 1,240,161 885,408 658,843 296,805 

Notes receivable 236,173 218,007 193,111 180,946 151,665 
Prepaid expenses 5j53 11.210 

Total Current Assets $13,873,636 $l:Z.~2&82 $30,160,391 $5,776.249 $:Z,34fi,280 
Noncurrent Assets 

Notes receivable $3,091,433 $3,208,739 $3;275,771 $3,402,970 $3,576,268 
Restricted cash equivalents 
Capital Assets: 6,004,053 

Construction in progress 3,246,486 749,640 109,706 13,230 2,852,028 

Land 500,000 500,000 
Property and equipment, net fiber optic 
network 65,400,272 51,856,193 40,519,444 40,129,117 36,506,565 

Total Noncurrent Assets $78,24224!l $56J14~:Z2 $43,904,221 $43j!i:2.311 $!i2.234,861 
Total Assets $22,115,880 $13,251,261 $74 065.312 $!12.321.566 $50,281,HJ 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred issuance costs on bonds ,S,155.828 
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 5 155.818 

Total Assets and 
Deferred Outflows of Resources $21.211 758 $13.251.261 $74 065.312 $49 .321.566 $50.281.141 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable $1,931,760 $957,025 $409,987 $238,511 $380,330 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets 431,Q77 

Accrued liabilities 140,Q74 68,819 29,186 63,184 129,636 
Unearned/Deferred revenue 25,075 9,675 300,000 
Interest payable from restricted assets 762,473 596,607 605,940 402,597 408,513 

Capital leases payable 647,187 640,171 620,709 595,117 655,000 
Revenue bonds payable 2j95,000 1,690,000 1,645.000 l,Q05,QOO ~ 

Total Current Liabilities $6,1Qlj69 $3.262.222 $3Jl0,822 $2.;204,409 $3 .28!l.556 
Noncurrent Liabilities 

Capital Leases Payable 365,216 $1,012,403 $2,807,455 $5,168,053 $7,540,602 

Notes Payable 3,718,636 3,835,636 3,417,291 3,352,210 2,248,467 
Revenue Bonds Payable 82,313,232 60,546.!l!6 62J62.:Z01 37.202,335 38.238.232 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities $86 J2:Z .Q8!l $65.:224,455 $68.S!H.!l!l:Z $46.429~28 $48.:Z28,Q08 
Total Liabilities $22,4<}8,653 $62.356152 $11,828.262 $!18 ,134:.00:Z $52 012.56!l 
Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets ($5,540,482) $2,Q76,379 $2,763,232 $3,384,664 $3,350,994 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 9,672,253 2,559,705 2,543,594 1,635,981 1,133,381 

Unspent bond proceeds 73,464 5,813,952 22,293,844 260,326 3,600,544 

Unrestricted 567.870 (5~42.527) (25.433&22) (4,623,412) (2~16,342) 

Total Net Position $!1113,105 $4,600,502 $2167.0!13 $.5.81...552 $(1.131.423) 
Total Liabilities and Net Position $2:Z271.:Z58 $13 2.51261 $14.065.312 $42J21.S66 $..SQ 281 l!ll 

''' This summary has not been audited. 
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AGENCY BUDGET AND YEAR-TO-DATE FINANCIAL RESULTS 

Total Revenues<1> 

Expenses: 
Marketing 
Administrative services 
Professional services 
Network management 
Depreciation 
Bond interest and fees 

Total Expenses 

Net Income 

Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30. 2019* 
$12,713,100 

$ 518,600 
150,000 
25,200 

2,022,270 
4,800,000 
3J57.946 

$11,274,016 

$ 1,439,084 

Actual Year-to-Date 
Cthrou~h December 31. 2018) 

$6,701,200 

$ 327,100 
91,700 
12,000 

1,032,600 
2,199,200 
1591.400 

$5,254,000 

$1,447,200 

* The budget for fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, was adopted by the Board on June 25, 2018. The budget has not 
yet been amended for the 2018 UIA and Layton Bonds. Actual YID Interest income and Bond interest expense 
do not include transactions related to those bonds. 

(l) Budget consists of projected operating revenues in the amount of $12,675,600 and projected interest income in 
the amount of $37,500. Actual YTD consists of operating revenues of $6,494,700 and interest income of 
$206,500. 

THE UIA NETWORK 

GENERAL 

The UIA Network is an advanced communications network built with fiber optic 
technology, providing transmission of voice, data and video at speeds that are significantly faster 
than those available through certain competing technologies. Fiber optic technology supports the 
long-term projected growth in bandwidth and capacity required for increasing usage demand and 
requirements. The use of fiber optic technology to support homes and businesses has become 
more accepted as the telecommunications industry continues to implement new infrastructure and 
technology to meet increasing demand and economic needs. The Agency provides the fiber optic 
cable, laid both underground and above ground, necessary to connect each Member and the homes 
and businesses within each Member. Other elements of the UIA Network include conduits, fiber 
strands, splices, switches, transmitters, terminals, internal power sources and all other items 
necessary to operate the UIA Network. 

The UIA Network is based on providing transport services at layer 2 of the open systems 
interconnect (OSI) model. The core backbone is built around internet provider multi-protocol label 
switching (IP-MPLS). This structure gives the UIA Network a powerful, highly redundant core 
that remains transparent to customer traffic. The UIA Network employs an Active Ethernet 
architecture, meaning that customers are connected to community cabinets with active electronics. 
This architecture permits the Agency to scale economically and service business and residential 

-35-



customers over the same carrier grade network. It also allows the IBA Network to operate as an 
Open Access network with multiple internet service providers (ISPs) delivering customized 
services and products to customers. The UIA Network extends into the customer site with 
Customer Premise Equipment (CPE). The CPE device allows the conversion of optical signals to 
electrical signals that are separated by the ports on the CPE device. This device allows the IBA 
Network to deliver ISP services consisting of data, video and VoIP services with minimum 
equipment investment on behalf of the ISP or the customer. This design makes it possible to 
support flexible customer service without requiring a service visit each time the customer makes 
a change in services. 

The UIA Network deploys a fiber-to-the-premises (FfTP) network with a minimum 
capacity of 250 Mbps (megabits per second) in both directions, upload and download. The UIA 
Network is Gigabit capable for residents and currently supports speeds of up to 100 Gigabit for 
commercial customers. The Agency believes that this bandwidth makes it possible for service 
providers using the UIA Network to deliver higher quality services and launch innovative new 
services that existing networks cannot currently support. Also, since the carrying capacity of fiber 
plant can be significantly increased by changing the electronics in the UIA Network, the Agency 
believes the UIA Network has a long useful life and is able to support innovations created by 
evolving technologies. 

The UIA Network operates as a network under an open access model which is available to 
all qualified service providers. The Agency provides carrier class transport services to the 
Members and provides physical connections and transport services on behalf of the Members to 
End Users. Service providers contract with the Agency directly, or with UTOPIA, as the Agency's 
operator, for access to the IBA Network and then market and provide internet, video, telephone 
and other services to their customers. Such services will utilize the transport services provided by 
the Agency. The Agency, the Members and UTOPIA may also independently market and promote 
the benefits and uses of connecting to the IBA Network. 

The following table shows the five largest service providers on the UIA Network for the 
past three fiscal years, as measured by comparing the percentage of Agency revenues generated 
from such service provider against revenues generated from all Service Provider Agreements: 

SERVICE PROVIDER FISCAL YEAR 2018 FISCAL YEAR 2017 FISCAL YEAR2016 

Xmission 26.2% 22.7% 20.7% 
Veracity 20.1 18.9 18.4 
Windstream 8.8 11.4 13.1 
Sumo 7.6 7.8 8.6 
First Digital 6.7 7.4 7.1 
Total .69.A.%. 68.1% fil...!}!/Q 
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THE UTOPIA NETWORK 

UTOPIA is a separat.e legal entity and political subdivision of the State which was created 
under the lnterlocal Cooperation Act by 15 Utah municipalities. UTOPIA is governed by the First 
Amended and Restated Int.erlocal Cooperative Agreement of the Utah Telecommunication Open 
Infrastructure Agency, dat.ed as of June l, 2004. 

_ UTOPIA has the following member cities: Brigham City, Cedar City, Cedar Hills City, 
Centerville City, Layton City, Lindon City, Midvale City, Murray City, City of Orem, Payson 
City, Perry City, Riverton City, Tremonton City, Town of Vineyard and West Valley City. 

The Agency connects the UIA Network to the UTOPIA Network pursuant to the IRU 
Agreement and other agreements. See "Int.ersection of the UIA Network and Utopia Network" 
herein for a further discussion of the IRU Agreement. As of June 30, 2018, the UTOPIA Network 
consisted of approximately 2,473 miles of fiber cable (and associated duct) within the boundaries 
of eleven of UTOPIA's member cities. 

The table below presents the percentages of addresses within the Members that are passed 
by the UTOPIA Network as of December 31, 2018. 

MEMBER 

Centerville City 
Brigham City 
Lindon City 
Murray City 
Midvale City 
Payson City 
City of Orem 
Layton City 
West Valley City 

% OF ADDRESSES PASSED 

UTOPIA NETWORK 

99.03% 
96.71 
95.22 
69.85 
61.26 
51.50 
51.59 
67.13 
42.86 

INTERSECTION OF THE UIA NETWORK AND UTOPIA NETWORK 

The physical location of the UTOPIA Network is critical to the Agency's success because 
the Agency does not have the backbone telecommunications infrastructure in place nor the 
financing available to provide for such a large construction endeavor. Technically, the UIA 
Network could connect to many other networks other than the UTOPIA Network; however, no 
other fiber optic networks have the physical connections to the homes that the Agency intends to 
connect to the UIA Network, and the costs of connecting to different networks would be 
prohibitive. The IRU Agreement provides long-term rights to the Agency to connect the UIA 
Network to the UTOPIA Network. The initial t.erm of the IRU Agreement runs until April 30, 
2042, and the IRU Agreement will automatically renew in additional five-year increments, unless 
either party gives the other party at least 365 days written notice of such party's int.ent to terminate 
at the expiration of then current term. A party under the IRU Agreement may deliver to the other 
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party a written notice of default for (i) failing to make any payment of any amounts owed under 
the IRU Agreement, when no bona fide dispute exists, (ii) the breaching by either party or its 
agents, assigns or affiliates of any material provision (as defined in the IRU Agreement), or (iii) 
the filing or initiating of bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings or certain similar actions. If the 
Agency receives a notice of default related to the occurrence of an event described in (i) above, 
the Agency will have 30 days to cure. If the Agency fails to cure such event within the cure period, 
UTOPIA will have the right to either (a) suspend its performance obligations under the IRU 
Agreement, (b) seek an award for the past due balance, including interest and reasonable attorneys' 
fees, and/or (c) require the Agency to post a reasonable deposit or other adequate assurance of 
payment as a condition of continuing performance by UTOPIA. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
UTOPIA may not disconnect service or revoke the indefeasible right of use of the Agency with 
respect to any additional capacity except for non-payment of any additional indefeasible right of 
use fee with respect to that additional capacity. A party that has received a notice of default related 
to the occurrence of an event described in (ii) above will have 30 days to cure the alleged breach. 
If the defaulting party has commenced actions in good faith to cure such defaults which are not 
susceptible of being cured during such 30-day period, such period will be extended (but not in 
excess of 90 additional days) while such party continues such actions to cure. If such party fails 
to cure the breach within the applicable cure period, the IRU Agreement will not be terminated, 
but as long as such default shall be continuing, the non-defaulting party shall have the right to 
either (a) suspend its performance or payment obligations under the IRU Agreement, (b) seek an 
order of specific performance, and/or (c) seek the award of compensatory damages. Upon the 
expiration of the term of the IRU Agreement, or as a result of a material breach of a component 
set forth in the IRU Agreement which has gone uncured as set forth in the IRU Agreement, the 
IRU Agreement will terminate and the Agency shall owe UTOPIA no additional compensation. 

The Agency does not have a payroll, and both employees of the Agency are also employees 
of UTOPIA and are paid by UTOPIA. Pursuant to the UTOPIA Service Agreement, the Agency 
has contracted for UTOPIA to provide for the management of various services for certain portions 
of the UIA Network, including planning and pre-construction management services to build the 
IBA Network and administration and operations management of the IBA Network, including 
service provider management. The initial term of the UTOPIA Service Agreement was for five 
years (beginning June 29, 2010), and the Agency has continued rights to renew such Agreement, 
unless UTOPIA later objects in writing within 30 days, for successive one-year periods, on the 
same terms and conditions existing on the date of such renewal by delivering written notice to 
UTOPIA at least 30 days prior to the end of then existing term. The UTOPIA Service Agreement 
may be terminated as follows: (a) as required by law, (b) 30 days after a non-breaching party has 
delivered written notice of a material breach of the UTOPIA Service Agreement to the breaching 
party and such breach remains uncured, (c) by written mutual agreement of the parties, or (d) 
immediately, without delivery of notice, upon the insolvency or bankruptcy of a party, or upon the 
occurrence of certain similar events set forth in the UTOPIA Service Agreement. A party is 
required under the UTOPIA Service Agreement to immediately notify the other party in writing 
upon the occurrence of any of the events listed in (d). Failure to do so constitutes a material breach 
of the UTOPIA Service Agreement and will result in automatic termination of the UTOPIA 
Service Agreement. The UTOPIA Service Agreement is also subject to termination by the Agency 
for business convenience, for any or no reason, and without penalty, liability or obligation of any 
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kind (except for payment for conforming services already received) by delivering at least 90 days' 
written notice to UTOPIA. 

The combined UTOPWthe UIA Networks consist of 181 production footprints passing a 
total of 166,500 addresses, of which 102,500 are able to receive services at the decision of the 
household or business (marketable). The remaining non-marketable addresses are located in 
apartment buildings, condominium developments or in areas isolated by right-of-way or pole 
access issues. 

The following chart shows the total number of business and residential customers, the "take 
rate" and the "churn rate" of the combined UTOPIA/the illA Networks for the past four fiscal 
years. "Take rate" means the percentage of potential business and residential customers in that 
city that have signed up for either the illA Network or the UTOPIA Network. Upon complete 
build out of the combined UTOPIA/the UIA Networks, the total projected potential customers for 
the combined UTOPWthe UIA Networks is approximately 160,000. "Churn rate" means the 
percentage of customers of the combined UTOPWthe illA Networks that have terminated 
services in such fiscal year. 

COMBINED UTOPIA/THE UIA NETWORKS -CUSTOMERS, TAKE-RATE AND CHURN RATE 

FY 2018 FY2017 FY 2016 FY2015 FY2014 

Take- Take- Take- Take-

Customrn ~ Cusromrn Rate Customers ~ Q!§!Qm~s Brus:. Q!5tomer5 

Brigham City 1,%0 33.9% 1,833 313% 1,640 295% 1,380 31.4% 1,272 

Centerville 1,723 35.6 1,607 32.9 1,515 30.0 1,360 28.7 1,268 

Layton 2/:A)9 22,5 1,749 18.6 1,()96 16.l 599 16.8 505 

Lindon 1,503 46.4 1,442 44.8 1,385 43.4 1,294 45.0 1,209 

Midvale 790 14.3 747 13.6 677 122 599 17.7 565 

Murray 2,786 25.4 2,629 23.7 2,474 22.4 2,288 25.6 2,148 

Orem 3,828 27.0 3,316 265 3,200 24.4 3,182 29.2 3,157 

Payson 950 30.4 756 24.4 681 25.0 570 24.9 547 

Peay 471 27.1 344 19.3 132 7.5 2 0.0 2 

Tremonton 754 27.4 608 22.0 508 18.2 336 145 287 

West Valley 1/'73 11.0 1,098 9.6 839 10.3 695 14.3 635 

Misc. ......£U ___AlQ ~ ~ ____ill_ 

Total 19,520 16,539 14,515 12,631 11,860 

Lost Customers 565 736 518 610 

Churn Rate 3.42% 5.D7% 4.10% 5.14% 

Certain potential customers are candidates for services by both the Agency and UTOPIA. 
In such situations, the Agency and UTOPIA have a practice of allocating such potential customers 
to the Agency if any of the Agency's funds are expended when providing connection services to 
such customers. 

-39-

Take-

~ 
30.0% 

26.6 

20.8 

433 

19.0 

24.3 

29.3 

24.l 

0.0 

12.6 

13.6 



RlsK FACTORS 

The purchase of the Series 2019 Bonds involves certain investment risks that are discussed 
throughout this Official Statement. No prospective purchaser of the Series 2019 Bonds should 
make a decision to purchase any of the Series 2019 Bonds without first reading and considering 
the entire Official Statement, including all appendices, and making an independent evaluation of 
all such information. Certain of those investment risks are described below. The list of risks 
described below is not intended to be definitive or exhaustive and the order in which the following 
factors are presented is not intended to reflect the relative importance of any such risks. 

REVENUE LIMITATIONS 

General. The Series 2019 Bonds are payable solely t:rom and secured by a pledge and 
assignment of Revenues and moneys on deposit in the funds and accounts held by the Trustee 
under the Indenture. As previously discussed, Revenues are derived from the Service Revenues 
and, in the event and to the extent of any Shortfall, Allocated Electrical Fee and Sales Tax 
Revenues. A variety of factors could impact the amount of those sources of Revenues. Among 
other things, economic conditions, the demand for energy, the demand for communication services 
within the boundaries of the City, demographic changes, changes in governmental regulations and 
policies and other factors may adversely affect the financial condition of the Agency or the City, 
and, consequently, the availability of Revenues. No assurance can be made that Revenues will be 
realized by the Agency in amounts that together with the other funds held under the Indenture, will 
be sufficient to pay debt service on the Series 2019 Bonds when due. 

Revenues from Fees. Certain Revenues are generated from fees that the City, service 
providers or the Agency charges to customers within the boundaries of the City. Unlike other 
municipal enterprises, such as water and sewer systems or electric systems, residents within the 
City are not required to participate in the UIA Network. Subscription to the UIA Network by End 
Users is voluntary and may be canceled upon request. Therefore, price is more elastic than fees 
for other municipal enterprise systems and cannot be set at levels that would discourage 
participation by existing and potential customers. Additionally, although the City and the Agency 
have the ability to establish such fees without obtaining approval of any regulatory or other 
governmental agency, under State law, such fees must be deemed reasonable for the service 
provided. The ultimate determination of reasonableness lies with the Utah courts in the event any 
such fees are challenged. 

Electrical Fee Revenues. The City's Electrical Fee Revenues are generated from the 
operation of the City's electric utility system. The national and State economy, weather conditions 
and many other factors can affect the level of receipts of such Electrical Fee Revenues. 
Additionally, the Agency and the City cannot predict whether the Utah State Legislature (the 
"State Legislature") will take actions that affect the ability of the City to generate Electrical Fee 
Revenues. 

Uncertainty of Economic Activity and Allocated Sales Tax Revenues. The amount of sales 
and use tax revenues to be collected by the City is dependent on several factors beyond the control 
of the City, including, but not limited to, the state of the United States economy and the economy 
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of the State and the City. Any one or more of these factors could result in the City receiving less 
sales and use tax revenues than anticipated. During periods in which economic activity declines, 
sales and use tax revenues are likely to fall as compared to an earlier year. In addition, sales and 
use tax revenues are dependent on the volume of the transactions subject to the tax. From time to 
time, proposals have been made by the State Legislature to add or remove certain types of 
purchases from the sales and use tax, and the State (like many other states) has recognized the 
potential reduction in sales and use tax revenues because of purchases made through the internet 
and other nontraditional means. In addition, the State Legislature has, from time to time, 
considered legislation to revise the amount of sales and use tax to be levied or to adjust the method 
of allocating such taxes to local governmental entities. The Agency cannot predict what impact 
these items may have on the sales and use tax revenues it receives. 

CONSTRUCTION, EXPANSION AND OPERATION OF THE CITY NB'IWORK AND OTHER FACILITIES OF 

THE UIA NE'IWORK 

Construction of the UIA Network commenced in June 2011, and as of February 28, 2019, 
the UIA Network served 13,097 active business and residential customers. Timely construction 
of the City Network is critical to gaining users and generating Revenues. Construction of the City 
Network involves many risks common to construction projects such as shortages or delays in the 
availability of materials and qualified labor, work stoppages, contractual disputes with contractors 
or suppliers or others, weather interferences, construction accidents, delays in obtaining legal 
approvals, unforeseen engineering, archeological or environmental problems and unanticipated 
cost increases, any of which could give rise to significant delays or cost overruns. No assurance 
can be given that the construction of the City Network will be completed in a timely manner or 
that the cost will not exceed available funds of the Agency. Further, future bond issues of the 
Agency to finance capital expansion of the UIA Network (unless secured by individual Member 
or other city pledges in a manner similar to the Service Contract and the Series 2019 Bonds) are 
dependent upon sufficient net revenues to support the payment of debt service on such bonds and 
other factors and may not be a viable option for the Agency. 

The Agency and UTOPIA, as the Agency's contracted operator, are tasked with managing, 
operating and maintaining the UIA Network in an efficient and economical manner consistent with 
prudent telecommunications utility practice. As the UIA Network expands, its operation and 
maintenance expenses may increase, and no assurance can be given that such expenses will not 
exceed available funds of the Agency. The Agency is exempt from regulation by the Utah Public 
Service Commission ("PSC"), but the operation of the UIA Network is subject to various other 
governmental rules and regulations. If the UIA Network is not operating or operable as required 
by State law, the Agency may be subject to certain penalties or other remedies. In addition, service 
providers who utilize the UIA Network may be subject to regulation by the PSC, and any 
noncompliance by such service providers could negatively affect the operation of the UIA 
Network. 

COMPE1TI10N 

There is significant competition in the Utah telecommunications market. While the 
Agency believes that the UIA Network currently offers competitive pricing and certain distinct 
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technological advantages, competing telecommunications providers utilize greater name 
recognition, financial resources and marketing services to compete for users. Additionally, certain 
competitors offer some services at lower prices than service providers utilizing the UIA Network. 
There can be no assurance that the Agency or its service providers will have the financial resources 
or management expertise to continue to compete effectively for customers in the future. 

Advances in internet, data, television, telephone and related technology may occur at a very 
rapid pace. There can be no assurance that future advances in technology implemented by existing 
competitors or others will not render the services provided by the service providers of the 
combined UTOPINthe UIA Networks noncompetitive. 

DESTRUCTION OF THE UIA NETWORK 

The Indenture requires that the Agency, in its operation of the UIA Network (including the 
City Network), maintain insurance in such amounts and to such extent as is normally carried by 
other operating public utilities of the same size and type. In the event of any loss or damage, the 
Indenture requires that the proceeds of any such insurance be used first to restore or replace the 
property lost or damaged. There can be no assurance that the proceeds of any such insurance will 
be sufficient to restore or replace the lost or damaged property of the Agency. 

Pursuant to the issuance of the UTOPIA Bonds (hereinafter defined), UTOPIA is required 
to maintain similar insurance, and in the event of any loss or damage, such insurance proceeds 
would be used first to restore or replace the property lost or damaged. There can be no assurance 
that the proceeds of any such insurance will be sufficient to restore or replace the lost or damaged 
property of UTOPIA. 

The infrastructure of the UIA Network and the UTOPIA Network is regionally diverse and 
widely distributed. However, any damage to or destruction of any portions of the UIA Network 
or the UTOPIA Network may prevent the Agency from providing telecommunications services to 
some or all of its service providers. In such event, the revenues of the Agency may decrease. 

RELIANCE ON UTOPIA 

The Agency entered into the UTOPIA Service Agreement and the IRU Agreement to 
advance the Agency's objective of providing high speed telecommunications facilities to its 
Members and to capitalize on the economies of scale that can be achieved by connecting the UIA 
Network to the UTOPIA Network. Although the UIA Network could connect to many other 
networks other than the UTOPIA Network, no other fiber optic networks have the physical 
proximity to the homes that the Agency intends to connect to the UIA Network, and the costs of 
connecting to different networks would be prohibitive. 

UTOPIA undertook the acquisition and construction of the UTOPlA Network in 2004 and 
financed and refinanced such acquisition and construction with the issuance of bonds that are 
secured both by revenues of the UTOPIA Network and by a sales tax pledge of certain of 
UTOPIA's members. Although the UTOPIA Network is operational and generating revenues, the 
revenues have previously been insufficient to pay operational expenses and meet debt service 
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requirements of the UTOPIA Bonds. However, there has been no payment default of debt service 
on the UTOPIA Bonds. 

As of December 31, 2018, UTOPIA has outstanding revenue bonds in the aggregate 
amount of $182,101,997, comprised of $108,403,348 Tax-Exempt Adjustable Rate 
Telecommunications and Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A (the "UTOPIA 
Series 201 JA Bonds"), and $73,698,649 Taxable Adjustable Rate Telecommunications and Sales 
Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 201 lB (the "UTOPIA Series 201 JB Bonds", and together 
with the UTOPIA Series 201 lA Bonds, the "UTOPIA Bonds"). The original principal amount of 
the UTOPIA Series 2011A Bonds was $110,000,000, and the original principal amount of the 
UTOPIA Series 2011B Bonds was $75,000,000. The final maturity date of the UTOPIA Bonds is 
June 1, 2040. Key Bank National Association is the owner of the UTOPIA Series 201 lA Bonds, 
and Bank of America National Association is the owner of the UTOPIA Series 2011B Bonds. 
UTOPIA has two derivative contracts that hedge against variable interest rate volatility by 
matching the required pledged revenues of its member cities to the cash flow required for the debt 
service on the UTOPIA Bonds and the associated derivative contracts. The derivative contracts 
effectively fix the interest rate for the UTOPIA Series 201 lA Bonds at 4.984% and for the 
UTOPIA Series 201 lB Bonds at 5.665%. KeyBank National Association is the counterparty on 
the derivative contract related to the UTOPIA Series 201 lA Bonds; Bank of America National 
Association is the counterparty on the derivative contract related to the UTOPIA Series 2011B 
Bonds. UTOPIA also has notes payable to its members cities in the approximate amount of 
$122,127 ,473, reflecting member city contributions to pay the UTOPIA Bonds. The notes are 
payable on a subordinate basis to the UTOPIA Bonds. 

The Agency is not responsible for paying debt service on the UTOPIA Bonds or its other 
outstanding obligations. If UTOPIA is unable to meet its financial obligations as they become 
due, its continued ability to operate the UTOPIA Network could be impacted. Any disruption or 
inability of UTOPIA to operate the UTOPIA Network would likely have a material adverse impact 
on the ability of the Agency to meet its customer and financial obligations. 

Without sufficient moneys to operate, the UTOPIA Network could terminate, which would 
likely cause a shut-down of the UIA Network. In the event of a shut-down of the UIA Network 
following the termination of the UTOPIA Network or otherwise, amounts payable by the City 
under the Service Contract are required to continue to be paid; however, there can be no assurance 
that such amounts will be sufficient to pay debt service on the Series 2019 Bonds after other 
required expenses have been paid. 

-43-



CYB ER.SECURITY 

The risk of cyberattacks against commercial enterprises, including those operated for a 
governmental purpose, has become more prevalent in recent years. At least one of the rating 
agencies factors the risk of such an attack into its ratings analysis, recognizing that a cyberattack 
could affect liquidity, public policy and constituent confidence, and ultimately credit quality. A 
cyberattack could cause the UIA Network or the UTOPIA Network to cease or limit operational 
capacity, for short or extended lengths of time. Additionally, other potential negative 
consequences include data loss or compromise, diversion of resources to prevent future incidences 
and reputational damage resulting in loss of future revenues. To date, the Agency has not 
experienced a successful cyberattack. The Agency believes it has made all reasonable efforts to 
ensure that any such attack is not successful and that the UIA Network and the UTOPIA Network 
will not see any loss of service to customers or other consequences. However, there can be no 
assurance that a cyberattack will not occur in a manner resulting in damage to the UIA Network 
or the UTOPIA Network or other challenges. 

FuTIJRE CHANGES IN LAWS 

Various state and federal laws, regulations and constitutional provisions apply to the 
Agency, UTOPIA, each respective network, the Members and the Series 2019 Bonds. Future 
actions of State or federal legislatures may affect the overall financial conditions of the Agency or 
its ability to continue to collect revenues for its ongoing operations. The Agency can give no 
assurance that there will not be a change in, interpretation of or addition to such applicable laws, 
provisions and regulations that would have a material effect on the finances of the Agency, its 
corporate existence or its ability to offer advanced telecommunications services, collect revenues 
or attract service providers and customers. 

LIMITED REMEDIES 

The remedies of the Series 2019 Bondholders upon an Event of Default under the Indenture 
are limited. See "APPENDIX B-FORM OF THP INDENTURE-Remedies." Under the Indenture, 
there is no contractual remedy of acceleration. Further, the legal right and ability of a Series 2019 
Bondholder to enforce its rights and remedies under the Indenture may be limited by laws relating 
to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar laws relating to or affecting 
creditors' rights. In addition, a Series 2019 Bondholder's ability to enforce such rights and 
remedies may require judicial actions that are often subject to discretion and delay or that otherwise 
may not be readily available or may be limited. 

WITHDRAW AL OR CHANGE OF BOND RATING 

The Series 2019 Bonds have received a rating from S&P. Such rating can be changed or 
withdrawn at any time for reasons both under and outside the Agency's control. Any change or 
withdrawal of any rating on the Series 2019 Bonds could adversely affect the ability of investors 
to sell the Series 2019 Bonds or may affect the price at which they can be sold. 
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SECONDARY MARKET FOR 'IHE BONDS 

No assurance can be given that a secondary market will develop for the purchase and sale 
of the Series 2019 Bonds or, if a secondary market exists, that such Series 2019 Bonds can be sold 
for any particular price. The Underwriter is not obligated to engage in secondary market trading 
or to repurchase any of the Series 2019 Bonds at the request of the owners thereof. 

Prices of the Series 2019 Bonds as traded in the secondary market are subject to adjustment 
upward and downward in response to changes in the credit markets and other circumstances. No 
guarantee exists as to the future market value of the Series 2019 Bonds. Such market value could 
be substantially different from the original purchase price. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

A failure by the Agency to comply with its Continuing Disclosure Undertaking with respect 
to the Series 2019 Bonds (see "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE" herein) will not constitute an event of 
default on the Series 2019 Bonds. Any failure of the Agency's obligations under the Undertaking 
must be reported in accordance with Rule 15c2-12 (the "Rule") adopted by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (the "Commission") under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended (the "Excha.nge Act"), and may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the 
Series 2019 Bonds and their market price. 

SUITABILITY OF INvESTMENT 

The interest rate borne by the Series 2019 Bonds is intended to compensate the investor for 
assuming the risk of investing in the Series 2019 Bonds. Furthermore, the tax-exempt feature of 
the Series 2019 Bonds is currently more valuable to high tax bracket investors than to investors 
that are in low tax brackets. As such, the value of the interest compensation to any particular 
investor will vary with individual tax rates and circumstances. Each prospective investor should 
carefully examine this Official Statement and its own financial condition to make a judgment as 
to its ability to bear the economic risk of such an investment and whether or not the Series 2019 
Bonds are an appropriate investment for such investor. 

FACTORS RELATING TOT AX EXEMPTION 

As discussed under "TAX MATTERS" herein, interest on the Series 2019 Bonds could 
become includible in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation, retroactive to the date 
the Series 2019 Bonds were issued, as a result of future acts or omissions of the Agency in violation 
of its covenants in the Indenture. Should such an event of taxability occur, the Series 2019 Bonds 
are not subject to any special redemption. 

There are or may be pending in the Congress of the United States legislative proposals 
relating to the federal tax treatment of interest on the Series 2019 Bonds, including some that carry 
retroactive effective dates, that, if enacted, could affect the market value of the Series 2019 Bonds. 
Finally, reduction or elimination of the tax-exempt status of obligations such as the Series 2019 
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Bonds could have an adverse effect on the Agency's ability to access the capital markets to finance 
future capital or operational needs by reducing market demand for such obligations or materially 
increasing borrowing costs of the Agency. 

The tax-exempt bond office of the Internal Revenue Service (the "Service") is conducting 
audits of tax-exempt bonds, both compliance checks and full audits, with increasing frequency to 
determine whether, in the view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is includible 
in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. It cannot be predicted 
whether the Service will commence any such audit. If an audit is commenced, under current 
procedures the Service may treat the Agency as a taxpayer and the Series 2019 Bondholders may 
have no right to participate in such proceeding. The commencement of an audit with respect to 
any tax-exempt obligations of the Agency could adversely affect the market value and liquidity of 
the Series 2019 Bonds, regardless of the ultimate outcome. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The Agency will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the "Undertaking") for 
the benefit of the beneficial owners of the Series 2019 Bonds to send certain information annually 
and to provide notice of certain events to the MSRB pursuant to the requirements of the Rule. No 
person, other than the Agency, has undertaken, or is otherwise expected, to provide continuing 
disclosure with respect to the Series 2019 Bonds. At present, such dissemination is made through 
the MSRB 's Electronic Municipal Market Access system, referred to as EMMA ("EMMA"). The 
Agency is required to deliver such information within 210 days after the last day of the Agency's 
fiscal year (currently June 30), beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. The 
information to be provided on an annual basis, the events which will be noticed on an occurrence 
basis and a statement of other terms of the Undertaking, including termination, amendment and 
remedies, are set forth in "APPENDIX E-FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING." 

During the past five years, although the Agency timely filed its audited financial statements 
and certain operating information in connection with previously executed undertakings, it failed 
in certain years to timely file certain annual financial and operating information, including by 
failing to file certain financial and operating information with respect to the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2018, as required by prior undertakings relating to the Agency's Telecommunications Revenue 
and Refunding Bonds, Series 2017A and 2017B, Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2018A, and Layton City Telecommunications and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2018. The Agency has since filed the missing information on EMMA, together with a 
notice of failure to file, and recently hired a third-party disclosure agent to assist the Agency in 
ensuring future compliance with its continuing disclosure undertakings. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

ABSENCE OF LmGATION 

Josh Chandler, general counsel to the Agency, will issue an opinion dated the date of 
closing, that will state, among other things, that there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or any 
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other litigation or investigation at law or in equity, before or by any court, public board or body, 
which is pending or threatened, (a) challenging the creation, organization, or existence of the 
Agency; (b) challenging the titles of its directors or officers to their respective offices; ( c) seeking 
to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale, or delivery of the Series 2019 Bonds; (d) directly or 
indirectly contesting or affecting the proceedings or the authority by which the Series 2019 Bonds 
are issued; (e) contesting the validity of the Series 2019 Bonds or the issuance thereof, or (f) which 
if determined adversely to the Agency would have a materially adverse effect on the financial 
condition of the Agency or its ability to meet the debt service requirements on the Series 2019 
Bonds. 

Gary Crane, counsel to the City, will issue an opinion dated the date of closing, that will 
state, among other things, that there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or any other litigation 
or investigation at law or in equity, before or by any court, public board or body, which is pending 
or threatened, (a) challenging the creation, organization, or existence of the City; (b) challenging 
the titles of its officers to their respective offices; ( c) seeking to restrain or enjoin the execution or 
delivery of the Service Agreement; (d) directly or indirectly contesting or affecting the proceedings 
or the authority by which the Service Contract was executed and delivered; (e) contesting the 
validity of the Service Contract or the execution and delivery thereof, or (f) which if determined 
adversely to the City would have a materially adverse effect on the financial condition of the City 
or its ability to meet the UIA Revenue Requirement. 

GENERAL 

All legal matters incident to the authorization and issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds are 
subject to the approval of Gilmore & Bell, P .C., Salt Lake City, Utah, Bond Counsel to the Agency. 
Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Agency by its general counsel, Josh Chandler. 
Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the City by its counsel, Gary Crane, and for the 
Underwriter by its counsel, Chapman and Cutler LLP, Salt Lake City, Utah. Lewis Young 
Robertson & Burningham, Inc., Salt Lake City, Utah, has acted as municipal advisor to the Agency 
in connection with the issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds. The approving opinion of Bond Counsel 
will be delivered with the Series 2019 Bonds. A form of the opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth 
in APPENDIX D of this Official Statement. 

TAX MATTERS 

The following is a summary of the material federal and State of' Utah income tax 
consequences of holding and disposing of the Series 2019 Bonds. This summary is based upon 
laws, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions now in effect, all of which are subject to change 
(possibly on a retroactive basis). This summary does not discuss all aspects of federal income 
taxation that may be relevant to investors in light of their personal investment circumstances or 
describe the tax consequences to certain types of owners subject to special treatment under the 
federal income tax laws (for example, dealers in securities or other persons who do not hold the 
Series 2019 Bonds as a capital asset, tax-exempt organizations, individual retirement accounts and 
other tax deferred accounts, and foreign taxpayers), and, except for the income tax laws of the 
State of Utah, does not discuss the consequences to an owner under any state, local or foreign tax 
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laws. The summary does not deal with the tax treatment of persons who purchase the Series 2019 
Bonds in the secondary market. Prospective investors are advised to consult their own tax advisors 
regarding federal, state, local and other tax considerations of holding and disposing of the Series 
2019 Bonds. 

OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

In the opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Bond Counsel to the Agency, under the law 
currently existing as of the issue date of the Series 2019 Bonds: 

Federal Tax Exemption. The interest on the Series 2019 Bonds (including any original 
issue discount properly allocable to an owner thereof) is excludable from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes. 

Alternative Minimum Tax. The interest on the Series 2019 Bonds is not an item of tax 
preference for purposes of computing the federal alternative minimum tax. 

Bond Counsel's opinions are provided as of the date of the original issue of the Series 2019 
Bonds, subject to the condition that the Agency comply with all requirements of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance 
of the Series 2019 Bonds in order that interest thereon be, or continue to be, excludable from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes. The Agency has covenanted to comply with all such 
requirements. Failure to comply with certain of such requirements may cause the inclusion of 
interest on the Series 2019 Bonds in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to 
the date of issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds. 

State of Utah Tax Exemption. The interest on the Series 2019 Bonds is exempt from State 
of Utah individual income taxes. 

Bond Counsel is expressing no opm1on regarding other federal, state or local tax 
consequences arising with respect to the Series 2019 Bonds but has reviewed the discussion under 
the heading "TAX MATTERS." 

OTHER TAX CONSEQUENCES 

Original Issue Discount. For federal income tax purposes, original issue discount is the 
excess of the stated redemption price at maturity of a Series 2019 Bond over its issue price. The 
issue price of a Series 2019 Bond is generally the first price at which a substantial amount of the 
Series 2019 Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public. Under Section 1288 of the Code, 
original issue discount on tax-exempt bonds accrues on a compound basis. The amount of original 
issue discount that accrues to an owner of a Series 2019 Bond during any accrual period generally 
equals (1) the issue price of that Series 2019 Bond, plus the amount of original issue discount 
accrued in all prior accrual periods, multiplied by (2) the yield to maturity on that Series 2019 
Bond (determined on the basis of compounding at the close of each accrual period and properly 
adjusted for the length of the accrual period), minus (3) any interest payable on that Series 2019 
Bond during that accrual period. The amount of original issue discount accrued in a particular 
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accrual period will be considered to be received ratably on each day of the accrual period, will be 
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and will increase the owner's tax 
basis in that Series 2019 Bond. Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors 
concerning the calculation and accrual of original issue discount. 

Original Issue Premium. For federal income tax purposes, premium is the excess of the 
issue price of a Series 2019 Bond over its stated redemption price at maturity. The issue price of 
a Series 2019 Bond is generally the first price at which a substantial amount of the Series 2019 
Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public. Under Section 171 of the Code, premium on 
tax-exempt bonds amortizes over the term of the Series 2019 Bond using constant yield principles, 
based on the purchaser's yield to maturity. As premium is amortized, the owner's basis in the 
Series 2019 Bond and the amount of tax-exempt interest received will be reduced by the amount 
of amortizable premium properly allocable to the owner, which will result in an increase in the 
gain (or decrease in the loss) to be recognized for federal income tax purposes on sale or disposition 
of the Series 2019 Bond prior to its maturity. Even though the owner's basis is reduced, no federal 
income tax deduction is allowed. Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors 
concerning the calculation and accrual of bond premium. 

Sale, Exchange or Retirement of Bonds. Upon the sale, exchange or retirement (including 
redemption) of a Series 2019 Bond, an owner of the Series 2019 Bond generally will recognize 
gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between the amount of cash and the fair market 
value of any property received on the sale, exchange or retirement of the Series 2019 Bond (other 
than in respect of accrued and unpaid interest) and such owner's adjusted tax basis in the Series 
2019 Bond. To the extent a Series 2019 Bond is held as a capital asset, such gain or loss will be 
capital gain or loss and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the Series 2019 Bond has been held 
for more than 12 months at the time of sale, exchange or retirement. 

Reporting Requirements. In general, information reporting requirements will apply to 
certain payments of principal, interest and premium paid on the Series 2019 Bonds, and to the 
proceeds paid on the sale of the Series 2019 Bonds, other than certain exempt recipients (such as 
corporations and foreign entities). A backup withholding tax will apply to such payments if the 
owner fails to provide a taxpayer identification number or certification of foreign or other exempt 
status or fails to report in full dividend and interest income. The amount of any backup withholding 
from a payment to an owner will be allowed as a credit against the owner's federal income tax 
liability. 

Collateral Federal Income Tax Consequences. Prospective purchasers of the Series 2019 
Bonds should be aware that ownership of the Series 2019 Bonds may result in collateral federal 
income tax consequences to certain taxpayers, including, without limitation, financial institutions, 
property and casualty insurance companies, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad 
Retirement benefits, certain S corporations with "excess net passive income," foreign corporations 
subject to the branch profits tax, life insurance companies, and taxpayers who may be deemed to 
have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry or have paid or incurred certain 
expenses allocable to the Series 2019 Bonds. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding these 
tax consequences. Purchasers of Series 2019 Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to the 
applicability of these tax consequences and other federal income tax consequences of the purchase, 
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ownership and disposition of the Series 2019 Bonds, including the possible application of state, 
local, foreign and other tax laws. 

BOND RATING 

S&P Global Ratings has assigned a rating of "A-" to the Series 2019 Bonds. Such rating 
reflects only the view of the rating agency providing such rating and any desired explanation of 
the significance of such rating should be obtained from the rating agency. Generally, a rating 
agency bases its ratings on the information and materials furnished to it and on investigations, 
studies and assumptions of its own. There is no assurance such rating will continue for any given 
period of time or that such rating will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the rating 
agency, if in the judgment of such rating agency, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward 
revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Series 
2019 Bonds. Neither the Agency nor the Underwriter have undertaken any responsibility either to 
bring to the attention of the registered owners or the Beneficial Owners of the Series 2019 Bonds 
any proposed change in or withdrawal of the rating or to oppose any such change or withdrawal. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A copy of the Agency's audited basic financial statements for fiscal year ended June 30, 
2018 is appended hereto as "APPENDIX A-AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF UTAH 
INFRASTRUCTIJRE AGENCY FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR, ENDED JUNE 30, 2018." Such financial 
stat.ements have been audit.ed by Keddington & Christensen, LLC, Salt Lake City, Utah 
( "Keddington & Christensen"), as stated in its report in APPENDIX A. Keddington & Christ.ensen 
has not been asked to consent to the use of its name, audited financial stat.ements, and report in 
this Official Stat.ement. 

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR 

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc. Salt Lake City, Utah (the "Municipal 
Advisor"), has been employed as an independent municipal advisor to the Agency in connection 
with the issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds. The Municipal Advisor has not independently verified 
any of the information contained in this Official Statement and makes no representation to the 
owners or purchasers of the Series 2019 Bonds as to their completeness or accuracy. The 
Municipal Advisor's fee for services rendered with respect to the Series 2019 Bonds is contingent 
upon the delivery of such Series 2019 Bonds. Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc. also 
serves as municipal advisor to UTOPIA. 

UNDERWRITING 

The Series 2019 Bonds are being purchased by the Underwriter pursuant to a Bond 
Purchase Contract between the Agency and the Underwrit.er (the "Purchase Contract"). The 
Purchase Contract provides that the Underwriter will purchase all of the Series 2019 Bonds, if any 
are purchased, at a purchase price of $2,592,048.70 (representing the par amount of the Series 
2019 Bonds plus net original issue premium of $67,548.70 and less Underwriter's discount of 
$25,500.00 
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The Purchase Contract pursuant to which the Series 2019 Bonds are being sold provides 
that the Underwriter will purchase not less than all of the Series 2019 Bonds. The Underwriter's 
obligation to make such purchase is subject to certain terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase 
Contract, the approval of certain legal matters by counsel, and certain other conditions. 

The Underwriter may offer and sell the Series 2019 Bonds to certain dealers and others at 
prices lower than the offering prices stated on the inside cover page hereof. The offering price 
may be changed from time to time by the Underwriter. 

MlsCELLANEOUS 

RELATED PARTIES 

Certain of the parties involved with the issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds provide services 
to UTOPIA. Gilmore & Bell, P .C. serves as bond counsel to UTOPIA, and Lewis Young 
Robertson & Burningham serves as municipal advisor to UTOPIA. 

ADDIDONAL INFORMATION 

All quotations from and summaries and explanations of the Utah State Constitution, 
statutes, programs, laws of the State of Utah, court decisions, the Indenture, the Service Contract, 
and the Purchase Contract which are contained herein, do not purport to be complete, and reference 
is made to such constitution, statutes, programs, laws, court decisions, the Indenture, the Service 
Contract, and the Purchase Contract for full and complete statements of their respective provisions. 

All forecasts, estimates and other statements in this Official Statement involving matters 
of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, are intended as such and not as representations of 
fact. This Official Statement is not intended to be construed as a contract or agreement between 
the Agency and the purchasers or holders of any of the Series 2019 Bonds. 

The appendices attached hereto are an integral part of this Official Statement and should 
be read in conjunction with the foregoing material. 

The delivery of the Official Statement has been duly authorized by the Agency. 

UTAH INFRAs1RUCTURE AGENCY 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
Utah Infrastructure Agency 
Murray, Utah 

Report on the Financial Statements 

KfDDINGTON & CHRISTENSEN, CPAS 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

lialy K. Kcddinslon. Cl'A 
Phyl R. Wamoc~. l'l'i\ 
Man:us K. J\mucklc. CPA 
sic,·en M. Rowfoy. C'l'A 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Utah 
Infrastructure Agency (UIA) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise UIA' s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity,s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position ofUIA as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in its financial position 
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Telephone (801) 590-2600 
Fax (801) 265-9405 

1455 West 2200 South, Suite 201 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84119 



Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 6 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 3, 
2018 on our consideration of UIA's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over fmancial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering UIA's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

~ci~ 
Salt Lake City, Utah 
December 3, 2018 
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Introduction 

UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The following is a discussion and analysis of the Utah Infrastructure Agency (UIA) financial activities for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. 

Description of Business 
The Utah Infrastructure Agency (UIA) is a political subdivision of the State of Utah and was created in 
June 2010. Nine cities created the agency (Brigham City, Centerville City, Layton City, Lindon City, 
Midvale City, Murray City, Orem City, Payson City and West Valley City). 

The UIA network is a fiber optic network providing high-speed broadband voice, video and data access. 
This network includes fiber optic lines, transmitters, power sources and backups, switches and access 
portals. The network operates as a wholesale network, under an open-access model, which is available to 
all qualified service providers. The open-access aspect means subscribers-both residents and businesses­
have real choice for their broadband needs and can choose the provider and options that work best for them. 
Eight of the member cities (all except Payson City) pledged franchise tax revenues as partial loan guarantees 
in order to secure financing for the network. 

The UJA network is connected to the UTOPIA fiber optic network pursuant to an Indefeasible Right of Use 
Agreement (IRU) between UIA and UTOPIA, which grants UIA access to certain facilities of and capacity 
in the UTOPIA network. The UTOPIA network provides telecommunications services, support and 
management services as well as crucial infrastructure for the UIA network. The synergy provided by UIA's 
partnership with UTOPIA allows both organizations to provide their citizens a state-of-the-art broadband 
network. The project is facilitating economic development throughout UTOPIA member cities. Where the 
network is completed, residents and businesses have access to the fastest internet in the country. 

Twenty five service providers-Including First Digital, SumoFiber, Veracity, Windstream, and 
XMission,-were actively providing services and a total of 19,905 homes and businesses had subscribed 
to services at year end on the UTOPIA/UIA network. Future growth of the network will be largely demand­
based, bringing the network first to those areas that will bring the best return on investment. UIA continues 
to make significant progress towards the project's original mission: to build and maintain a fiber network 
to service all of the businesses and residents in UTOPIA's member cities. 

As of the end of June, 2018, more than 3,413 miles of fiber cable have been placed within the boundaries 
of the eleven members cities. Within footprints serviced by 158 hut sites, there are approximately 98,000 
addresses, of which approximately 81,000 are able to receive services. The remaining addresses are located 
in apartment buildings, condominium developments, or in areas isolated by right-of-way or pole access 
issues. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

Highlights 
Financial highlights include: 

• UIA's recurring operating revenues increased $1,586,000 from the prior year. 

• Operating profit (EBITDA) for the year was $634,000 higher than the prior year. 

Overview of Financial Statements 
The financial statements included in this report have been prepared in compliance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. The balance sheet provides information about the Agency's resources and 
obligations at year end. The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents the results 
of business activities during the course of the year. The statement of cash flows presents changes in cash 
and cash equivalents, resulting from operational and investing activities. Notes to the financial statements 
provide required disclosures and other information that are essential to the full understanding of material 
data provided in the statements. The notes present information about UIA's accounting policies, significant 
account balances, obligations, commitments, contingencies and subsequent events. 

Operating revenues of $10.6 million exceeded budget by about $52,000. Total operating expense (expenses 
excluding interest and depreciation) was $7 ,000 below budget. Operating profit (EBITDA) for the year was 
$157,000 better than budgeted. The net profit for the year was $173,000, which was better than budget by 
$1.0 million. 

Table 1 - Summary of the Agency's Statement of Net Position. 

2018 

Current and other assets $ 22,969,122 

Capital assets 69,146,758 

Total Assets 92,115,880 

Deferred outflows of resources 5,155,878 

Total Assets 97 ;2.71,758 

Current and other liabilities 6,101,569 

Long-term liabilities outstanding 86,397,084 

Total Liabilities 92,498,653 

Net investment in capital assets (5,540,482) 

Restricted 9,745,717 

Unrestricted 567,870 

Net Position $ 4,773,105 

4 

2017 

$ 20,851,428 

53,105,833 

73:J57 ;2.61 

73,957 ;2.61 

3:J62;2.97 

65,394,455 

69,356,752 

2,076,379 

8,373,657 

(5,849,527) 

$ 4,600,509 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

Table 2 - Summary of the Agency's Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

2018 2017 

Revenues: 

Operating revenues $ 10,641,815 $ 9,055,560 

Interest income 528,398 491,518 

Other revenues 999,424 376,682 

Total Revenues 12,169,637 9,923,760 

Expenditures: 
Marketing 509,695 323,884 

Professional services 716,775 138,352 

Network operations 1,404,954 704,047 

Depreciation 4,469,316 3,549,885 

Bond interest and fees 4,506,128 2,774,126 

Loss on disposal of assets 390,173 

Total Expenditures 11,997,041 7,490,294 

Change in net position 172,596 2,433,466 

Total net position, beginning of year 4,600,509 2,167,043 

Total net position, end of year $ 4,773,105 $ 4,600,509 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
UIA's capital assets, net of depreciation, were $69.l million. Types of assets include outside plant (fiber 
and conduit), inside plant (electronics), customer premise equipment, construction in progress and a 
capitalized lease (IRU). 

As of June 30, 2018, UIA's outstanding debt amounted to $89.6 million. This is comprised of the revenue 
bonds and the capitalized IRU note payable. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

Table 3 - Summary of VIA' s Capital Assets at June 30, 2018: 

2018 2017 

Construction in progress $ 3,246,486 $ 749,640 
Land 500,000 500,000 
Building 2,005,882 2,080,773 
Furniture and equipment 281,272 687,599 
Outside plant 36,789,870 26,305,279 

Inside plant 2,611,468 2,468,854 

Customer premise equipment 10,505,107 6,379,936 
Intangible right 13,206,673 13,933,752 

$ 69,146,758 $ 53,105,833 

Table 4 - Summary ofUIA's Debt at June 30, 2018: 

2018 2017 

Revenue bonds payable $ 84,908,232 $ 62,236,416 
Capital leases 1,012,403 1,652,574 

Notes payable 3,718,636 3,835,636 

$ 89,639,271 $ 67,724,626 

Contacting UIA's Financial Management 
This financial report is designed to provide interested readers with a general overview ofUIA's financial 
position and to demonstrate accountability. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer, 
Utah Infrastructure Agency, 5858 S 900 E Murray, UT 84121. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2018 

Assets 

Current Assets: 
Cash $ 5,447,838 
Trade receivables, net 1,100,484 
Inventory 2,579,451 
Prepaid expenses 5,553 
Notes receivable 236,173 
Restricted cash equivalents 4,504,137 

Total Current Assets 13,873,636 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted cash equivalents 6,004,053 
Notes receivable 3,091,433 
Capital Assets: 

Construction in progress 3,246,486 
Land 500,000 
Assets, net of accumuJated depreciation: 

Building 1,975,882 
Furniture and equipment 286,030 
Fiber optic network 63,138,360 

Total Noncurrent Assets 78,242,244 

Total Assets 92,115z880 

Deferred Outft.ows of Resources 

Deferred charge on refunding 5,155,878 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 97,271,758 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued) 

June 30, 2018 

Liabilities 

Corre nt Liabilities: 
Accmmts payab1e 
Accrued liabilities 

Interest payabJe from restricted assets 

Capital leases payable 

Revenue bonds payable 

Unearned revenue 

Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Capital leases payable 

Note payable 

Revenue bonds payable 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position 

Net Investment in capital assets 

Restricted for: 

Debt service 

Future development 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

Total Liabilities and Net Position 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

1,931,760 
140,074 
762,473 
647,187 

2,595,000 
25,075 

6,101,569 

365,216 
3,718,636 

82,313,232 

86,397,084 

92,498,653 

(5,540,482) 

9,672,253 
73,464 

567,870 

4,773,105 

97).71,758 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Operating Revenues: 
Access fees $ 8,111,854 
Installations 14,699 
Reconnections 2,373,662 
Miscellaneous operating revenue 141,600 

Total Operating Revenues 10,641,815 

Operating Expenses: 
Marketing 509,695 
Professional services 716,775 
Network 1,404,954 
Depreciation 4,469,316 

Total Operating Expenses 7,100,740 

Operating Income 3,541,075 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Interest income 528,398 
Installation reJated capital contributions 452,541 
Donated services from UTOPIA 546,883 
Bond interest and fees ( 4,506,128) 
Loss on disposal of assets (390,173l 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (3,368,479l 

Change In Net Position 172,596 

Total Net Position, Beginning of Year 4,600,509 

Total Net Position, End of Year $ 4,773,105 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 
Cash received from customers and users 

Payments to suppliers 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Pmchase of capital assets 

Proceeds from installations 
Bond interest and fees 
Proceeds from issuance of new bonds 

Principal paid on bonds 

Deposit into escrow for debt refimding 

Payment of note payab1e 

Principal paid on capital leases payable 

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities 

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activity: 
Proceeds from notes payable addition 

Net cash provided by non-capital ftnancing activity 

Cash Flows From Investing Activity: 
Interest income 

Net cash provided by investing activity 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning ofYear 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 10,609,922 
~6,106,017} 

4,503,905 

(16,535,931) 
510,042 

(4,472,843) 
85,084,614 
( 1,690,000) 

(66,288,255) 
(218,129) 

~655,0002 

(4,265,502) 

33,469 

33,469 

528,398 

528,398 

800,270 

15,155,758 

$ 15,956,028 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash from operating activities: 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

from operating activities: 

Depreciation expense 

Donated services from UTOPIA 

(Increase) decrease in assets re1ated to operations 

Trade receivables, net 

Prepaid expenses 
Inventory 
Note receivable related to operating revenues 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities related to operations 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 

Unearned Revenue 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Supplemental Information 

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities: 

Inventory additions to capital assets 

Capitalized interest addition to capital assets 

Accrued interest addition to notes payable 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

11 

$ 3,541,075 

4,469,316 
546,883 

(88,931) 
11,657 

(4,367,683) 
41,639 

263,295 
71,255 
15,399 

$ 4,503,905 

$ 2,734,504 
92,734 
67,660 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Reporting Entity 
Utah Infrastructure Agency (UIA), a separate legal entity and political subdivision of the State 
of Utah, was formed on July 29, 2010, by an lnterlocal Cooperative Agreement pursuant to the 
provisions of the Utah Interlocal Cooperation Act. UIA's Interlocal Cooperative Agreement has 
a term of five years, and is renewable every year thereafter. UIA consists of nine member-cities 
(eight pledging and one non-pledging) at June 30, 2018. UIA's purpose is to design, finance, 
build, operate, and maintain an open, wholesale, public telecommunication infrastructure that has 
the capacity to deliver high-speed connections to every home and business in the member 
communities. 

In evaluating how to define UIA for financial reporting purposes, management has considered 
all potential component units. The decision as to whether or not to include a potential component 
unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The basic, but not the only, criterion for including a 
potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body's ability to exercise 
oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial 
interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, 
but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the 
ability to significantly influence operations and accountability of fiscal matters. The other 
criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting 
entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether UIA is able to 
exercise oversight responsibilities. UIA does not have any component units, nor is it a component 
unit of any primary government. 

The following is a summary of the more significant policies. 

Financial Statement Presentation and Basis of Accounting 
UIA prepares its financial statements on an enterprise fund basis, using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing 
of related cash flows. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed 
and operated in a manner similar to private businesses, where the intent is that all costs of 
providing certain goods and services to the general public be financed or recovered primarily 
through user charges, or where it has been deemed that periodic determination of net income 
is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or 
other purposes. Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from 
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing 
services and producing and delivering goods in connection with UIA's principal ongoing 
operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating. 

Restricted Assets 
UIA maintains investments held by financial institutions for safekeeping of funds relating to 
service reserves and to fund capital assets. When both restricted and unrestricted assets are 
available, it is UIA's policy to use restricted assets first, then unrestricted assets as they are 
needed. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows 
of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to future period(s) and 
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. UIA reports a deferred 
charge on refunding in this category. 

Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost, which includes capitalization of interest costs 
incurred during construction. Normal maintenance and repair expenses that do not add to 
the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are 
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related fixed asset. The net 
book value of property sold or otherwise disposed of is removed from the property and 
accumulated depreciation accounts and the resulting gain or loss is included as nonoperating 
revenues or expenses. Depreciation of property and equipment was computed using the 
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Outside plant and certain customer premise equipment 
Office furniture and equipment and vehicles 
Intangible rights 

25 years 
3-5 years 
25 years 

Depreciation of inside plant and certain customer premise equipment was computed using an 
accelerated method over a six-year life. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
UIA considers aU cash and investments with original maturities of three months or less to be 
cash and cash equivalents. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents are defined as the cash accounts and the restricted cash equivalent accounts. 
Investments, in the form of accounts invested with the Utah Public Treasurer's Investment 
Fund (the State Treasurer's Pool) ofUIA are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
The allowance for doubtful accounts is UIA's best estimate of the amount of probable credit 
losses in the existing accounts receivable. UIA has reserved $188,502 ofaccounts receivable. 

Inventories 
Inventories are stated at cost using the first-in first-out method. 

Estimates and Assumptions 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is generally recorded when the service has been provided, and profit is recognized 
at that time. Revenues are reported net of bad debt expense. Total bad debt expense related 
to revenues of the current period is $0. 

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

UIA's deposit and investment policy is to follow the Utah Money Management Act. However, 
UIA does not have a separate deposit or investment policy that addresses specific types of deposit 
and investment risks to which UIA is exposed. 

Utah State law requires that UIA's funds be deposited with a "qualified depository" as defined 
by the Utah Money Management Act. "Qualified depository" includes any depository institution 
which has been certified by the Utah State Commissioner of Financial Institutions as having met 
the requirements as defined in Rule 11 of the Utah Money Management Act. Rule 11 establishes 
the formula for determining the amount of public funds which a qualified depository may hold 
in order to minimize risk of loss and defines capital requirements which an institution must 
maintain to be eligible to accept public funds. 

The Utah Money Management Act also governs the scope of securities allowed as appropriate 
temporary investments for UIA and conditions for making investment transactions. Investment 
transactions are to be conducted through qualified depositories or primary reporting dealers. 

As of June 30, 2018, UIA had the following deposits and investments, stated at carrying amount, 
which approximates fair value: 

Deposit and investment type 

Cash on deposit 

Investments in Utah Public Treasurer Investment Fl.Dlds 

Cash on Deposit: 

Fair Value 

$ 831,690 

15,124,338 

$ 15,956,028 

Custodial credit risk- deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank 
failure, UIA's deposits may not be returned to it. As of June 30, 2018, $1,736,761 of the 
$1,986, 761 balance of deposits was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and 
uncollateralized. UIA has no policy to manage this type of risk. 

Investment in Utah Public Treasurer's Investment Funds (PTIF): 
The PTIF is authorized and regulated by the Money Management Act, Section 51-7, Utah Code 
Annotated, 1953, as amended. The Act established the Money Management Council which 
oversees the activities of the State Treasurer and the PTIF and details the types of authorized 
investments. Deposits in the PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah, 
and participants share proportionally in any realized gains or losses on investments. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Interest rate risk. The risk that changes in the interest rate will have an adverse effect on the fair 
value of an investment. UIA's investments in PTIF are not subject to interest rate risk. 

Credit risk. This is the risk that an issuer or other counter party to an investment will not fulfill 
its obligations. As of June 30, 2018 the PTIF in which UIA has investments were unrated. 

Concentration of credit risk. This is the risk of loss attributable to the magnitude of VIA's 
investment in a single issuer. VIA' s investment in PTIF is not subject to a concentration of credit 
risk. 

Custodial credit risk - investments. This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty to a transaction, VIA will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are 
in the possession of an outside party. UIA' s investment in PTIF has no custodial credit risk. 

VIA categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has 
three levels, is based on valuation inputs used to measure an asset's fair value: Level 1 inputs 
are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other 
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Fair value measurements 
of VIA's investments in PTIF at June 30, 2018, or $15,181,628 are based on significant other 
observable inputs (Level 2 inputs). 

NOTE 3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

The following summarizes UIA's property and equipment as of June 30, 2018: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets, not 

being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Building 
Furniture and equipment 

Outside plant 
Inside plant 

Customer premise equipment 
Intangible right 

Total capital assets, 

being depreciated 

Beginning 
Balance 

$ 500,000 
749,640 

1,249,640 

2,122,279 
687,599 

30,828,753 
6,108,983 
8,152,429 

18,176,964 

Additions 

$ 
2,496,846 

2,496,846 

234,783 
11,947,211 
1,503,940 
4,717,634 

Deletions 

$ $ 

(585,260) 

(409,681) 

Ending 
Balance 

500,000 
3,246,486 

3,746,486 

2,122,279 
337,122 

42,775,964 
7,612,923 

12,460,382 
18,176,964 

$66,077,007 $18,403,568 $ (994,941) $ 83,485,634 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Deletions 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Building $ (41,506) $ (74,891) $ 

Furniture and equipment (250,937} 195,087 
Outside plant (4,523,474) (1,462,620) 
Inside plant (3,640,129) (1,361,326) 
Customer premise equipment (1,772,493) (592,463) 409,681 
Intangible right (4,243,212} (727,079) 

Total accumuJated depreciation (14,220,814} (4,469,316) 604,768 

Total capital asset, net of 

accumulated depreciation 51,856,193 13,934,252 p90,173l 

Property and Equipment, net $ 53,105,833 $16,431,098 $ (390,173) 

Ending 
Balance 

$ (116,397) 
(55,850) 

(5,986,094) 
(5,001,455) 
(1,955,275) 
(4,970,291} 

(18,085,362l 

65,400,272 

$ 69,146, 758 

Depreciation expense of $4,469,316 was charged to operating expense for the year ended June 
30, 2018. 

NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of the changes in long-term debt obligations for the year ended June 
30, 2018. 

Beginning Ending Due Within 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Revenue Bonds 
Series 2017A $ $ 73,905,000 $ $ 73,905,000 $ 2,145,000 
Series 2017B 3,500,000 3,500,000 450,000 
Series 2011A 21,095,000 (21,095,000) 
Series 2011B 4,860,000 (4,860,000) 
Series 2013 10,375,000 (10,375,000) 
Series 2015 23,690,000 (23,690,000) 
Plus: Unamortized Premiuns 2,216,416 7,679,614 (2,392,798) 7,503,232 

Total Revenue Bonds 62,236!416 85,084,614 ~62,412,7982 84,908,232 2,595,000 

Capital Leases 
UTOPIAIRU 1,652,574 !640,17Q 1,012,403 647,187 

Total Capital Leases 1,652,574 (640,17Q 1,012,403 647,187 

Notes Payable 
Pledging Members 3,699,438 67,660 (211,105) 3,555,993 
Tremonton Note 136,198 33,469 (7,024) 162,643 

Total Notes Payable 3,835,636 101,129 (218,129) 3,718,636 

Total Long-Term Debt $ 67,724,626 $ 85,185,743 $ (63,271,098) $ 89,639,271 $ 3,242,187 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Revenue Bonds 

Tax-exempt Telecommunications Revenue and Refuncling Bonds, Series 

2017A, original issue of $73,905,000, principal payments due in annual 

instalhnents beginning October 15, 2018, interest payments due semi­
annually at 2.00/o to 5.0%, with the final payment due October 15, 2040. 

The bonds were issued to refund the Series 201 lA, 2013, and 2015 Bonds 
and obtain additional funding for infrastructure. $ 73,905,000 

Taxable Telecommunication Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B, 

original issue of $3,500,000, principal payments due in annual instalhnents 

beginning October 15, 2018, interest payments due semi-annually at 3.50% 

with the fmal payment due October 15, 2023. The bonds were issued to 

refund the Series 201 IB Bonds. 3,500,000 

Total Revenue Bonds 77,405,000 

Less current portion (2,595,000) 

Noncurrent portion $ 74,810,000 

The following summarizes UIA's revenue bonds debt service requirements as ofJune 30, 2018: 

Year PrinciJ:!al Interest Total 

2019 $ 2,595,000 $ 3,642,125 $ 6,237,125 

2020 2,195,000 3,586,575 5,781,575 

2021 2,250,000 3,525,125 5,775,125 

2022 2,315,000 3,436,600 5,751,600 
2023 2,425,000 3,327,400 5,752,400 
2024-2028 13,050,000 14,812,625 27,862,625 
2029-2033 16,405,000 .11,172,625 27,577,625 

2034-2038 20,925,000 6,528,375 27,453,375 

2039-2041 15,245,000 1,168,125 16,413,125 

$ 77,405,000 $ 51,199,575 $ 128,604,575 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Revenue Bonds (Continued) 

Advanced Refunding/Defeasance of Debt in the Current Year 
As noted above, a portion of the Series 2017 A Bonds were used to advance refund the Series 
201 lA, Series 2013, and Series 2015 Bonds and the Series 2017B Bonds were used to advance 
refund the Series 201 lB Bonds. The refunding increased UIA' s total debt service by $12,919 ,685 
and resulted in an economic loss (difference between the present value of the debt service on the 
old and new bonds) of $3,892,766. The net proceeds from the Series 2017A and Series 2017B 
Bonds (collectively, the Series 2017 Bonds) used for the refunding totaled $64,802,106 and 
together with an equity contribution from UIA in the amount of $1,486, 149 were placed in a trust 
account with Zions Bank, the escrow agent for the defeasance. Accordingly, the trust account 
assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in UIA's financial statements. At 
June 30, 2018, $58,330,000 of the bonds remained outstanding and are considered defeased. 

The escrow agent is authorized to purchase direct non-callable obligations of, or obligations 
guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America (Government Securities) 
and establish a beginning cash balance for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. 
The escrow agent is not authorized to sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of or make substitutions 
of the Government Securities without UIA's authorization. No substitutions were requested as 
of June 30, 2018. 

Capital Lease 

Capital leases consist of the following: 

UIA is obligated under a lease for the use of a fiber¢ network from 

Utah Telecommunications Open Infrastructure Agency (UTOPIA), a 

related party. The terms and options contained in the lease have effectively 

created a fmancing arrangement, so UIA is required to record this 
transaction as a capital lease. Terms of the lease were renegotiated in 
December 2013. Lease payments of $54,583 are paid monthly beginning 

December 2013 including imputed interest at 1.09%. The capitalized cost of 

fiber optic network is $18,176,963, with accumulated depreciation of 

$4,970,291. $ 1,012,403 

Total Capital Lease 

Less current portion 

N oncurrent portion 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Minimum lease payments for the years ending June 30 are as follows: 

2019 $ 655,000 

2020 366,502 

Total minimum lease payments 1,021,502 

Less discount, representing imputed interest ~9,099~ 

Present vahle of net minimlDll 1ease payments $ 1,012,403 

NOTE 5 RELATED PARTY AND COMMITMENTS AND CONTRACTS 

Related Party 
Management has detennined that UIA and UTOPIA are related parties. During the year UTOPIA 
charged UIA a management fee of $539,945 for administration, accounting/finance, marketing, 
customer service and outside plant performed on behalf of UIA. Management estimated the 
actual value of those services to be $1,086,828. The donated services are recorded on the income 
statement. Since UIA's inception in 2011, UTOPIA has donated management services to UIA 
valued at approximately $4,100,000. 

VIA also leases a building to UTOPIA under an operating lease agreement entered into on May 
1, 2017. The term of the lease is five years with a one-year auto renewal. Payments received 
from UTOPIA for rent totaled $141,600 for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Interlocal Cooperative Agreement 
UIA has entered into an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with UTOPIA, wherein UIA will pay 
UTOPIA for network configuration, operation, and maintenance fees. The amount of the fees is 
determined based on the number of connections, subscribers, and services performed. The 
agreement is renewed annually. UIA recorded expenditures to UTOPIA of $862,823 for the year 
ended June 30, 2018. Since UIA's inception in 2011, UIA has paid a total of approximately 
$3, 100,000 to UTOPIA for services related to the Interlocal Cooperative Agreement. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 6 PLEDGING MEMBERS LIABILITY AND COMMITIMENTS 

The eight Pledging Members of UIA have pledged energy sales and use tax revenues to ensure 
that UIA fulfills its revenue requirement from the bond agreements. UIA is required by the Series 
2017 A & B bond covenants to have revenue equal to the operations and maintenance expenses 
and the capital costs in a fiscal year. In the event there is a shortfall, the pledging cities agree to 
lend its energy sales and use tax revenues in the maximum annual principal allocated to each city 
as set forth below: 

2018 Share of 2018 
Pledging Total Max. Maximum 
Member Pledge Pledge* 

Brigham City 0.62% $ 31,831 

Centerville City 3.63% 186,737 

Layton City 18.20% 937).72 

Lindon City 3.35% 172,516 

Midvale City 6.60"/o 339,988 
Murray City 13.40% 690,241 

Orem City 23.76% 1).23,786 

West Valley City 30.44% 1,568,781 

100.00°/o $ 5,151,152 

* These amounts are the estimated maximum annual 

amount of franchise tax revenue payable by each city. 

The Second Amended and Restated Interlocal Cooperative Agreement of UIA provides that the 
UIA Board of Directors may establish Working Capital Assessments to the Member Cities, the 
payment of which is subject to the appropriations authority of the governing bodies of the 
Member Cities. VIA has utilized this mechanism to pay certain operating expenses in order to 
avoid a shortfall under the Communications Services Contracts between UIA and the Member 
Cities. Under a shortfall scenario, UIA would be obligated to notify the Member Cities of their 
respective obligations to utilize Energy Sales and Use Taxes to replenish the shortfall. Provided 
enough cities pay their Working Capital Assessments, no shortfall exists and therefore, no 
obligation from Energy Sales and Use Taxes. The paid assessments, along with cumulative 
accrued interest of$153,326 for a total of$3,555,993, have been recorded as notes payable to the 
cities. For the year ended June 30, 2018, UIApaid a total of$211,105 back to the cities that were 
current on their assessments. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 6 PLEDGING MEMBERS LIABILITY AND COMMITMENTS (Continued) 

The schedule below summarizes the cumulative totals paid by the cities: 

2018 OpEx 2018 
Assessments Cumulative Payments to Cumulative 

City Paid Paid Cities Remaining 

Brigham City $ $ 34,824 $ (9,310) $ 25,514 
Centerville City 221,373 221,373 
Layton City 623,750 (46,471) 577,279 
Lindon City 118,155 118,155 
Midvale City 307,486 (16,858) 290,628 
Murray City 141,666 141,666 
Orem City 1,099,242 (60,680) 1,038,562 
Payson 50,000 50,000 
West Valley City 1,017,276 (77,786) 939,490 

$ $ 3,613,772 $ (211,105) $ 3,402,667 

NOTE 7 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On July 11, 2018, UIA issued $21,810,000 of Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, Series 
2018A to fund the acquisition, construction, and installation of the fiber-optic network. Principal 
payments on the bonds are due in annual installments of $550,000 to $1,635,000 beginning in 
2020 through 2041, with interest at 5 to 5.375% due semi-annually beginning in 2019. 

On August 15, 2018, UIA issued $22,285,000 of Layton City Telecommunications and Franchise 
Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2018 to fund the acquisition, construction, and installation of the 
fiber-optic network in Layton City. Principal payments on the bonds are due in annual 
installments of $150,000 to $1,515,000 beginning in 2022 through 2045, with interest at 3 to 5% 
due semi-annually beginning in 2019. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
Utah Infrastructure Agency 
Murray, Utah 

KEDDINOTON I# CHRISTENSEN, CPAS 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Gary K.. K•>dtlln11ton. CPA 
Phyl R. Wamack. CPA 
MllJ'Ctlll K. Arbuckle, C'PA 
Stc\"l.."11 M. Rowl~">'· CPA 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of 
Utah Infrastructure Agency (UIA), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise UIA's basic financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated December 3, 2018. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered UIA's internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofUIA's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness ofUIA's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, :in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement ofUIA's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of :internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might 
be material weakness or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether UIA's financial statements are free of material. 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statements amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

~~~ 
Salt Lake City, Utah 
December 3, 2018 
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KEDDINCJ'TON w CHRISTENSEN, CPAS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON 
COMPLIANCE A.:.~D REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE AS REQUIRED BY THE STATE 
COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE 

To the Board of Directors 
Utah Infrastructure Agency 
Murray. Utah 

Report on Compliance 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
Ciafy K. Kcddingtnn, CPA 
l'hyl R. Warnock, CPA 
Mar.:u.. K. Arbuckle, Cl'A 
Sle\'L.'11 M. Rowl~·y. ("PA 

We have audited the Utah Infrastructure Agency's (UIA) compliance with the applicable state compliance 
requirements described in the State Compliance Audit Guide, issued by the Office of the Utah State Auditor 
that could have a direct and material effect on UIA for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

State compliance requirements were tested for the year ended June 30, 2018, in the following areas: 

Budgetary Compliance 
Fund Balance 
Open and Public Meetings Act 

Management's Responsibility 

Treasurer's Bond 
Cash Management 

Management is responsible for compliance with the state requirements referred to above. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on UIA's compliance based on our audit of the state compliance 
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the State Compliance Audit Guide. Those standards and the State Compliance Audit Guide require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the state 
compliance requirements referred to above could have a direct and material effect on a state compliance 
requirement occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about UIA's compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each state 
compliance requirement referred to above. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of 
UIA' s compliance with those requirements. 

Opinion on Compliance 

In our opinion, UIA complied, in all material respects, with the state compliance requirements referred to 
above for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of UIA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the state compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit 
of compliance, we considered UIA's internal control over compliance with the state compliance 
requirements referred to above to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expression an opinion on compliance with those state compliance requirements and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the State Compliance Audit Guide, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of UIA' s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or to detect and correct, noncompliance with a state compliance requirement on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a state compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a general state compliance requirement that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing based on requirements of the State 
Compliance Audit Guide. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other pwpose. 

~~~ 
Salt Lake City, Utah 
December 3, 2018 
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THIS Gl!NllRALINDl!NTURE OP TRUST dated 01ofApril1. 2019, by IZMI bclwecn lhe 
UTAH lNFRASTRUCTtJH AGENCY (the "111UOJ"}, an lnlalocal oooperaliv1 and aopa­
lc1al 1n!Uy, body politic aod -nt• and a pol~i<al rubdM1loll of the: Slate of Utah, duly 
otpnlud ....i exiltinJ lllldlr Iha CoMrilurian .,.d la.., of tlie Slate of Ullh, and ZIONS 
BANCORPORATION, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a !Wioaal banl<in& auociotioo duly 
orpni•ed """ex;stma-fbclaws of the United Slates of America, 11111hori2ed by law lo •ccept 
and ex~ ttultl and hwin& it& principal corpot1.tc tnl5t ofrx:e ill S.lt ~~City, Utah, u t1USkC 
(the "Trus1<c"). 

WITNESSE TH: 

WHEREAS, the km« ii a separate legal entity, body polilic ...i corporate ond a political 
subdivision of the State of Utah regularly created, established., orpnizzd and cxi•ting under and 
by virtue of lhe provisloftl of ... lnter!ocal Cooperation Act, Title I I, Ch1ptc" 13, Utah C'odo 
Almotalod 1953, aa ammded (lhe "lnw·loc.al Acl'? ind o!lho Cmutitulion of the Sttle of Utah; 
ond 

WHEJlEAS, purmam to IM!ntertoeol Ac~ - mum.;p.lima within th• Slat• of Utah, 
org1nized the Issuer to finmc:c- the acquisilio.n, OOD.Struction, and imta.i.tion of fiber optic lines, 
oonnccrion lines lttd relttcd improvemc:uts and racilitics (the -Wetworkj; l.Dd 

WHEREAS, the laaer bu dclmnined that there is cxcca ~i1y io the Network f.Dd 
desires to pJ'OVide ••J>3Clly in Ille Network to Mrupn City, Utah (Ilic ''City"); and 

WHER'BAS, tht: Cityhe1ddcrmincd thit then: is a n.:«1 within the City co provid., 1ervii:e1 
•ffoi'ded by the Ne1.work (the ~ct ion Sctvic::c1") to its rc:11idcntt; md 

WllERl!AS, theh...,ond tho C'ily have antored into 1 Stnin Con Irle I (11 h<rein dcftned) 
to provide C'oMOOUON Sent ... to tlte City; ind 

WHBRl!AS, in-to aid Sorvi<e Canine~ the!...., - to obtaill llevo:uo1 (11 
ha,.in detlnad) 111ftlcicnt to pay de1'1 1omce on the Boodl (11 baoin ddlnod); end 

WHERl!AS, the~ will n« be pledged or~ in any""'"'"" or tor any 
pwpo1< 11 lbc: time of lbc: inumoc of the Initial Bonds (u heRin def-.1) and the hS\ler desim 
to pledp Slid Rlm\ues -.rd the payment of the principal _. -..e.t on "Kl Bonda; and 

WHEREAS, ~to die lr.,rlocal Act aacllor the Ulalo kd',...ioi Band Act, Title 11, 
Cbapter27, Utah Code Allllolaltd 1953,uamended (llle"RefundiD&BcmdAd," ondcolledivdy 
with the 1Dter1oc:al Act, tlic •Ad'), the Inucr ;. authorizod to .issue bonU of the type described 
Mre.in and to ~·e said tamds pmphle from a apecial fUnd into which die Revenuca of the Issuer 
m1y ba plerlpd: 

NOW, '!HBIU!l'OllB, THIS !NDBNJURB 01' TRUST WITI'ISSSJml: 

For 1nd in OOllli<!aotiOll of tbe prem!Aes, the mutull e..- of tho Issuer and tho 
n...t.e, the Jlllf<huc 6-om time to time of the Bondi by the Rqpa-d Ownm the""'f, tho 
iuuanco by the Security lnlttulnent lsSL1en Crom time 1o time of Scwri«y 1D1trumenfs and the 
iuuance by Reserve lnlttDmCnt Providm ftom time to tim~ orRcsuvc Wtrumcnt.t, and in order 

lo .. ..,. Ill< poJlll<Dt of the prinoipol of oad panilum, if my. ind inl•1<1t on Ille -. of 111 
Security 1-mt Repeymem OblipdOftl-...lnt lo dw:lr tenor ind cft'oct and of all a-.. 
ln1lrumelll x.po,m<nt Obliplionl accordiaJ lo lbeir Wiot Ind ef!'ect lllCl the .,..-_and 
oblCIWl1ca by Ihm lauer af •Il the CO'l/mmlw apn11ed OI imftlied benin. in t• Bonda. ill 111 
S<curity-.ma.t A&=mclitJ ID<I in 111 Raaw lmlnlmeol Aft't<m<olS. the W..C. doa lla<hy 
convey. usign md pledge unl.o lhc Tnnlce 1od 1lnlO its succenor1 in tn1ll fcn\'U Ill ri,&bl. lit1e 
and i- of the :uuet in and to(>) the~ (b) t11< Scmce Coolnct, (e) all mancyo in 
funds aod IHlCOllll!I held by the TNl1ce hertUDdar (-the R<bale FW>d), aod (d) all otll<r right> 
betcinoftcr panlod, fllll, far lho fiarther naniDc of the Boads and all Security inltrument 
Rep1)'1Dml Oblipt..,., aad 1ecood, for the fia1ber 1ecurily of all R'"'"'' Ina""'-' Repayment 
Obligstiom, mbje<t only to the provi1iom of111i1 Jadt:Dture penniuma the applic•rion -fr..­
the purpoKS and on the term5 and conditions Mt ftinh in thit Jndenturf: 

TOHAVJ! AND TOHOLOlll Iha 1omewithallprivil11e1 aod· appwt<lWICelhordlyand 
hereafter cannyed tnd wt,ned, or qroed ot !Iii.oded eo to bo, to the TM!ee 11111 its .....,&:live 
IUCOeJmn 1184 ollf8"1 ll1 ouch nt forev.r, 

IN TRUST NllVERTHllLESS, upoo the knn1 ond tnilt set !ol\h in this lnclontlft, FIRST, 
for the eqml .nd propottionutc benefit, security md p!'Otec1ion ot a11 Registered Owncn of the 
Bondi isai.cd punu~Dt to and s«:w'td by this Indenture and all Security Instrument Iaucn wilbout 
privilcce,. priority or distinction as lo the Uen or olbe:rwise of any Bond or Security lnstrament 
ls mer O\l\?t atty other by reason of time of i111UDCC, sale, delivery, maturity or ~don lhercoC 
or othmwise for llDY nusi:: wbatJOcvu, except • apmdy provided in or ptimitted. by thie: 
Indenture; ond SECOND, for the oquol and""""""°"" bcnefi~ 1ecurity and prcrtocrion of all 
Rt:1crw: llllUum.ent Pt'Dvidera, withow privil~ priority oi· di.u.iru:tioa. N to the lien or otherwise 
of •DY iw..e lmtrument R~ymmt Oblipdon owr 1ny of the other. by ,._of time of 
iauanoc, delivery or .:xpir11ion thorNf or alhenriM for any cauae whataocver; 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, thll if the 1-. ila ........ ,. or lllipl, lltoll well IDd truly 
pl)', or- to Ire poid, tho princip1J ind pramimD, lhay, cm tho Bcmda oad the.,_..,_ IX' to 
becomo due lhcn>on, It !he tim<o aod In lbe - matdoned in tho Bonda, all Secirrity 
In-Rqropncnt Obllg1ti<ml, .. oonlina to lbe lrUe inttnt and meanin& .......,r ao.rl lll 
Rc&cr\'e J"*111nc:ft: Repayment Oblip(ion1, scordin& to the true intent and mcanint; thereof. ot 
shall pmvidc. u pcmritted by this llldenhn, ro. the payment thereof 11 provK!ocl ;,, Anick X 
herco( and .diall poy or <aUK to be paid to tbe Truatoc all 111m1 of moucy d0e"' ta ........, doe lo 
M;,, ............ with tire terms and provi1iomof thia IDdc:n<ure, thm upo111ucb final poymall& or 
pro.Uions for melt payments by the Issuer, this -.0, and the ri&JrH hereby ......... m1U 
tmninam; 01huwile this Jndeotuc'Y &.hall n:roPt in full force and effecL 

The ~ 1.11d conditions upaZl ..,... tbc Bondt arc to bt executed,, ambenricaled. 
doliven:d. HeUnd md aQQlptod by Ill penom who &om time co time ,b,all be or ~ 
R<aioteiwdOwnm thonro( tmd tho tnllll ond .....-upon whlelr tire hv<n..,...., to be held 
and dlspOlcd, wblcb .. 1d 1n1111 and ccmdi~om tlioTrwrlae he"by occepta, 11<" ~ 



AllTICLEI 
DEl'INITTONS 

Section I. I ~ A1 oscd in tkil lndeatun:, the following tmm shoU hav< lie 
followinc ....,,;.p ...... the coot .. 1 otherwise clesrly indicote&: 

"AocJOto:d Amount" means, witlo """'°' lo Capital App«ciotian llcnds of ooy Series ud 
as of the date of ealculal.ian, the amc>Ulll rcpreanting the Milial pW>lie offcrin,g price., pNt: llle 
occ:umul111Cd ond compounded ;......,, on ,.ch Bonds, 1s established J>W"'lnl to the Supploncnal 
lndenllft auth<lrizioc such C.pital Appreciati<u Bands. 

"Act•• cott~'tively mC8Ds, H 1pplic1hle, lhe ln1edoC8l Coopention Act, Tille 11, Ollpler 
13, Utall Code, ind th• Utah Relllnding Bond Ac~ Title 11, Clmptcr27, Utah Code. 

"Add~l..W BondJ" means all Bonds i.uucd under Section 2.15 ofthiJ lndeaturc, other 
du111be lnitiat Boock. which are seC'IJftd by a pledge of the Revenues on 1 parity with the pledp 
or :Rcva1uc1 for the peymcnt of the Bonds and the Security hutrument Repayment Obligatiom 
hcreia authorized. 

"Admlniatratiw Coats" means all Ser.."Urity In strum.mt Costs md Relerve Insttumtut COiii. 

"Ar.grc:p.tc Annual Debt Service RcquifCIJlcnf"' mctm the total Debt Service {inclu.dinJ 
1oy Repaymeot Obliptton1) for any ooe Bond Fund Yeor (orothrr spooific period) ou ell Sme1 
of Bonds Outrtandi.nc or any 1p.:ci1ied portion thcrcof. 

"Allocattd Electrical Fee Revenues'' merana lhe Electrical F-re llevmuos allocated to pay 
the City' a obli.ptiom under the Service Contnct in an amount up to S90,360 11mu1fly. 

.. Altocaud Sale1 Tax Revenue .. means the Sales Tu. Revenue alloca1ed to pe.y the City'• 
obliptiou under 1he Service Contracl in an amount up 10 S90.-'l60 annually. 

"Authoriud Amomt .. meanc, widi. respect to a Commen:ial Paper Progrwm, 6-e maximum 
Pmcipal O!DOWll of commercial paper which is tllcn alllhoriud by the lueet: to be OlllltaDdioi at 
flG:f OM time punuant to Ill<~ Coratur<ial P1pw Progmn. 

.. Autborizcd Repreaawativt .. means the Chair. m.y Vice CbaW, or Secretary, Trcnrcr1 

Cllid"&ceutm: O!f1CCT, or my oth<rotliee<oftho lssut:r"' deaigoot<:d inwriling bytbe IN¥CJ to 
t.c Tnntce. 

"8ood FWIC!" ,,_,,the UIA-Motg. Sood Fund ereakd;.. Section 3.3 hcroofto be held 
by 1be Ttvslec and odminittcrcd ~IX> ScclKoo S.3 locn:of 

"BD!ld P..t Year" mca .. tlte l:i-..tonth p<tiocl bop.ning October 16 of ooch yoor and "°""'°" theDCXt oucceediog Oelobu IS, u..,i tho! the fustBoadFund Yeorsholl beainoa the 
dale or delivery of lhc Initial Bonds and r.ltall end oo th• next succeeding October IS. 

HJlondholdcr .. "Bondowner •• "Registered Owner•• or •10wner" means m., rt,U:tered 
ownu of any Bond& herein auth~d aceording to the re~tration book.I of the l.11ucr maintlincd 
by tho Tu111 .. 11 R.o1P11ntr. 

"Bonds" means bond<. - commercial popcr01·othcrol>liptioo1 (olh<• Ihm Rqioymcnt 
Obligalioos) .. thoriz<d by and ar any ttmc o.m..di"i pumuant to thiJ lndcntln, incbling the 
loitial Bonds and my Additiooal Bondi. 

'"llusilless Dey" meam my day(•) (I) oa wblch bankiog bwineu is trlDllCled, but not 
lnctuding E1Y day 011 wbid. balJb arc •Ulhorizcd to he c&oicd. ia New York City or in tile cicy in 
which Ike Tnatec hu its PrDtipal C<icporolc TMI Olfoce or, with respect to a rtlatcd S<ries or 
Bonds, in the city in whicll Mly 8ccwi1y lnltn.unca1 t11uerhas its principlll ofr1ec f'orl"l'J'OSU of 
&uc:h Security lnstrumeAt and (ii) on whkh the New Yaak Stock Exchange is open, or (b) as 
otllorwix provided in 1 SupplomaJj1J lndonlll~. 

''Copital Appreciation Bonds" m<lllll Bonds the int.,..t OD which (a) iJ compouodcd tmd 
llCC\IJn111latcd at the r:atCJ and on lhc dales set forth in the SuppJc"'CDt•l Indmtnrc 1uthorizing the 
iu.uanc" of such Bonds and designat;ng tMm es ClpjtaJ Appreejation Bond&. and (b) is payabfo 
upon maturity or prior rcdcmptiou of 1udJ Bonds. 

''Chait' means the Chair of the b.svct or ey successor lo the duties of au~ omoe. 

"City" mcens Morgan City, Utoh, a political 111bdlvl1io11 of the State. 

..City Fc:ca:·• hu the mc:Ring: given to such term in th-= Service Contract. 

••code" means the Internal Revenue Code. of 1986. 11 amended. 

'~OIWrum.."ial Pl}Jfl' Program" me am commercial paptt oblisations with n11.turitits of not 
more than two hundn:d seventy (270) dlys frwn the date1 of iauance thereof which arc illuc:d aa.d 
n:iuucd by the k&ucr from time 10 lime puraulll'I to Article Il henaf and nrc out6tending up ton 
Authorized Amount. 

"'Comcir;;tion Servi.oc:s" t11C11dl thf. wbolCNlc.1ervi«1 provided by the ltsuc:r to lhe City 
pursuant lo 1he Service Contract whereby a dtsi&nmd amount of end uacn within tlk! aty have 
acce• to the UIA-Morgm Component Network 1hrou1h whiclli they may contract with privltc 
ptOYidcrl to Rccivc Cable T clcvisiod Service& and PubJic T clecorrmnmiC91ion Scrvicca (al tltose 
tcnm are defined in the T•lc<Gmouoicetiont Act). 

"Conoln><1iooo Fu:>d" .,..,. the UIA-Morpn Coosavctioa Fund t.'ROl<d in Section 3.l 
bcrcoftn be: hold bylho TrlllUc _, adlnilliltored put9U8Dt to Section 5.1 henx>t 

"Coat"« "CoW" at "Coll of Compktioa.," or a.ny pbnsc of similar import, in comection 
with a Project or with !be rcl\mdiog of •DY Bol>dJ, -ns all COits ond expem ... whi<b .. properly 
chu.&Ublc lhcmo under &<..,.)Jy ocooptod aoc:-tiog priociplos or whl<h '1< incid<utol In the 
firulncing, llC(JUW.ti:on and cot1strucrion o( a Projeca. or tM refunding of any Bonds, including, 
without limitiog die generality of the roregoilJ&; 

(•) amounts pryablc: lo contnctors and OOlll incident to Ou: awudof contiut&; 

(b) coat of labor, C1ci1Jtip;a and 1C1Vicn tumisbcd by the llrucr md itl 
eniploytt11 ot others, DJ1teci1l1 and supplies putChll1ed 'by the luuer or othm and permita: 
and liecn1e1 ob1ained by the llluer or otbcn; 
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(•) .,.;-q. 1U<bite<!u1'1~ Jepl, pJonnins. uadetwriU.... mult<:Uns. 
occo1111dn1 erld otllo' P"OfoNiOMl and llllviloty lion; 

(d) pnmiuml far - bondl 111d lmunnce claria1 coot<nJc:tica end _,, 
on accouo.1 of penona1 iajmica ar.d property damage in the course of camtruction and 
iosurance •&Aina the same; 

(e) imCf'Clt c:xpc:nsca. i.t:c.luding interest on !he Series of Bon.ds relating to a 
Projett, 

(1) priati:Qa. t:npvi.ig and other C.K:pcngq: of fimacia& fee.I of financial t'ltin1 
scrvicc1 and costs ofi~ the Seriea: of Bonds; 

(J) eom. feel, end expenu:1 in connl!lCdon with Che: •CQUisidon of ml ad 
P"""'al propedy ar npts tl11mn, inclw!io1 premiums far title lmurmco; 

(h) cDOls of ftmll"'ro, flx11>m, l"1d oqui~ pan:bo1od by !be lftuer 111d 
ueeelW')' to comtruct 1 Projecl; 

(i) ammmts mquirod to rtpay monc:y1 advanced by 1he Cjty or temport.ty or 
boud 11oticipation loans m nate1 made to finance the com of a Projecr; 

(j) CDlll: of lite improwm~nts performed by du: Iauer in antil.iptition of a 
Project; 

(k) ......,. ...,....ry to fund the fimds cnst<d underlhi1 lndentuh:; 

0) cOlla of ay Oporotion lllld M~ l!llpcm•• 1Dd o!bor worklna 
•apil&l IJlp<ftlin!na to ny &c!ll~H to bo acquired for 1 Project ind of •II)' 1n1e .. 11 on • 
s.r;,. of Bond& lor 1111f1 pcri<>d not cx<eedhig the pctiod. ..-by dio t..uor to dl'.-1 
lhc conllntctioo of• l'nljld plus """ you, • • herein proYidod, of ID)' d!1oouttt OD b<mdJ 
or other ltCUritlct. llftd ot 1a.y n:1erYC11 for che payment of the princ:ipll of and itrume&t on 
a Saie1 of Bonda. of any rep*eme:nt ~ltJMNd and ohny dhcr' caaiit of issuuoc of a Serict 
of Bendt orottw.....;ti•, Sccuri!y Instrument C"'1I ad R...... lmlnlmonl Coots; 

(m) - of -.li•a thil lndco!Uf< or o4bcr irullumcnl OUlborl:zinc the 
iauance or« Olbriwitir mppcrtaining to. Series o(lkmds; 

(n) all o&bcr opcnses neoenary or desirable md appcr\tining '° a Projoc:t. u 
eaimec:ed or othawile asc::atlined by the hsuc:r, inclwtiQg: costs of eoatingeneiu fcs- a 
Projoct; lDd 

(o) ~ to dt< luuer of Noh 1moun11, if 1111)', 11 1holl be nee•IWY to 
t•imburtc !be - ID lllll for ldvoncco and ptoylllatls lborotofi>a• mode or .. 111 
lht:rel<>f'oro hlcuned bytlie llluer for 1ny il1111 oCCo111. 

In 1hc cHc of refmt.d:iftg at J'Ddcl:Jning .mny bond.I or olbcr obliptiODI, .. Colt"' includes, 
without liruitin& the 1enerolilyofllte foregoing, the items listodm(c), (o). CO, (i ), (k), OJ. (m) 1nd 
(o) above, advtrtiliuc aiid odtcrczpcnses rela~d to the redempti011 of'mcll bonds to be T'Cdecmcd 

and 1•.c tcdoniptim price of such bocdo (ml t1te oc:craed inle,... peyob~ on rcdanption 10 Ibo 
<Xlclll •• ,-. pn>Vidod fO<~ 

-cro.~ Dete" metm 'IV'ith reapocc to CroM-ovct Jlefur.ding Borwh the mm an wbicb 
the Priot:ipol porlion of the .. 1.1cder..s..,..,,.llo(uedodBondl i1 Co be paid or redeemed tlom the 
p<.....S. al a:clt ~ .. Jtd\lnding Boods. 

"'Crou-oYa' Refunded BcxMk" mc1n1 Bandt OI Olber obligations refimde-11 by Cro.-ovcr 
Rc!i>ndmge...i.. 

"Croa-ov<t R<funding B°""'" meano Boadl Mod ll>rthcpwposc of1<fundinglloncb or 
other obi~ ifOie proceeds of 1uch CrooHVer l!dlodin& Bonds ire itrovOcobly dq>ositccl in 
escrow in utisfadioo. of the ~quinmlentl ofScclioa 11·:21·3, Utlh Code:, to 1~cure the ~t 
Oil on IJIPlimblo ndomption doto or moturily dote oftlt< Cl<>IMIVOT Ref\uldcd Dando (IUbjoct to 
po11lble- to poy Pticctpol of the c- over kofimdlllc Bond& undoroortlin ci~")ocd 
the olnliDp om 1111<h UCTOW doposit arc .. quincl to be 1pplfo<I to pay ln"'1•11 on the: en,,....,., 
Rof\uldiq Bcmth un~I tbe Qo11-ov1r Date. 

""Cmnmt Interest Bonds" means all Bunck oth~ than C1pit•l Apprceiation 8omb. Interest 
on Cwrutl Jn!Cl<ll Bonds lltall be payable puioclictlly on the lnt<rest P1ynu:c1 Dotes pnMded 
lhcrdor jp 1 Supplemenlal lndmture. 

"Debi Senoice" moan1, tmlas specified olbenrilC by S11j>J1l<m0t1tal ind<Dllln: foe a s.ries 
of Bonds, for - portioular Bond Fund Year llld for any Series of Bonds ond ony llopaymc:nt 
Obligations,. an~ equal to the 1um of(1) all inmftst payable dming such Bond Fund VeaT 
on •uch Series ofBondl plu1 (b) lhe Principol ~ pay1blc durin1 1uch Bond Fund Year 
on (i) Nldi Bondi Oubtandina, c1lcul11ed on lhe 0111unpdon thlt Bonds Ou"""'4inc oa lhe day 
or colc:ulOlion ..... eo be Oullttmdiq by,.._ al; but~ by......, of, poymast oilhm: upon 
m11wily or ttppiication of any Sinltinr f'IUtd ""1allmcnll rcqul .. d by tho htdcnttn, ond (it) ... h 
Rtp1)11tml ObliptiOC1 tbm o•t•WllWt&; provided, l>owever, forpu!p ... I of Slc!Um 1.15 bonof; 

(I) wllm ealculMing inwut poyoble doftig such Bond Fund Ye• tor ony Series of 
VlrioblcbleBoitdl ccRcpoymcDl Oblipti-beariac""""'' " • ..n.ble '"te,.i,;.b-bc 
ucettaincd filr uy pol'lic1tlor Bond Fund Ycor, ii ....Ube aslltDl<d !bit IUCh Series ofVuiohlo 
Riie Bonds cc rdlted Repaym<al Obliptiou will - .....,, 111ucli morltct role of iate=t 
1pplQbk to sudt Scric5 of Vuiable Riie Bondi or .. lated Repayment Obl;pt._ • sholl be 
..tablilbod forlllis pwposc in the opinioo0Cdiol,,_'1 flnoociol advisor, underwrituouimilat 
1gent (which-I rot< ofinterut moybc boood ._ lt'OC<>&nizcd compor1blommct indox.1n 
average of inlen:lt tutes for prior yun or othenritc)) 9Dd 

(2) w!l.n ,.lcuJaW.g int<n:ot poy•bl• duriai IUCh Bond Fund Y•tt with- to any 
C'onmtll'Ciol "-Program, Debt Som<e lllloll illclude • 1tttOUnt equol to tho 1UJ11ololl priaeipol 
and 1--'' !bot would be porobk durinc ltlch Bond Fund Y.., ullltlltbtit t111t lhe 
Auth<lriml Amount of mcb Comnterciol P1pcr l'foFllll l1 tmortlHd Oii 1 level debt ttelYice bui< 
over 1 period of30 yan brfilmiJtg on lhc don of eokulot!Oll or, lfl11cr, the lost doyoflhopaiod 
during which obligations can be i11ucd und" sw:h Commcrciel Peper Program. and bearing 
interest at mch market rate of interest applicable to mch Commercial Piper Program u shill be 
cstabliahcd f«- tbi1 p!JIPOIC in the opinion oftbe i.uet'I fin111clat •dv1sor, underwriter DJ lilnil'1' 



ogent (which markcl rale of interest may be based upon a recognized OO?np11rablc market index, an 
average of in.temt rates for prior years or otherwiae). 

•
1.Dcht Service Reserve Fund'' means the UIA-Morgan Dc:bt Sc:rvjce ~serve: Fund crcJtcd 

in Section 3.S hereof to be held by the Trustee and administered pumumt to Section S.S hereof. 

"'Debt Service Reserve Requirement'" mcmui with respect to cJch Scria of Bcmds issut:d 
punuant to this Indenture. the dcfmjlion sci forth in the Supplemental Indenture relating lo such 
Scric:t: ofBonds. 

"'Direct ObligatioM" means noncallable Government ObligKioua. 

" 1EJcctrical Pee: Rc:vcnuc:s .. mcam 111 groN rcvenur:s, fce:s, .and simjJat charac& collected by 
tho City for the provi1ion of electric sCTVice1 through the C'i1y•s electric enterpriH fund. 

•
1Esc:rowed Interest'" meam amoun11 imvocably deposited In c11cruw in •ccm:danct with 

the requirement.I of Section 11·27·3, Utah Code. in connection with the i11uance ofRefimding 
Bonds or Cross-over R.t:fimding Bonds MCW:ed by rueb amounts or earnings on such arnoun1s 
which ar0; required lo be epplRd to PllY intere51 on auch Cross-over Refur.idins Bonds or the related 
Cro'"""'"1 Jlcfundcd Bcmds. 

04Event of Default .. melD.li wilh rc11pc~ to any dcfalJ.lt OJ event of default hetcubder imy 
occurrence or~vent specified in and defined by Section 7.1 hereo[ 

wFitch" means Fitch Rltings. 

''Oovcmiog Body'"' mc:1t11J. lbe Boud ofDirecton. of the l:s&uer. 

.. Govcnune.nt Obli3ation1" means solely one OT more of the. following: 

(a) State and Local GOV<!11lil<Dt Seri<• issued by the United Stoles Trcaswy 
C"SLOS"); 

(b) United States Trouury bills, uol<I• aud bonds, as ttadcd on the open madcet; 

(c) Zero Coupon United States 1'n:1&1111' Bonde; ond 

(d) Any other dmt obliglltiom of or obligations uncondition•lly guannteed 
by, the Un;ted State1 of America (including, without limitation, obHgatio11& common1y 
rcferJcd tCJ u "'llEFCORP strips .. ). 

'11ook:-up Leue Revenues" has the meaning given to 1Uch term in Arti~le I of the Servi~• 
Cantnct. 

"'IDdeature" meam this OCACNI Indenlurc of Trust as from time Lo time amended or 
nippl~entt:d by Supplemea.ta.1 ~in accordance with the letms of this Indenture. 

.. Initial Bonds'" means tht tint Series of Bondi Wucd under thili Indenture. 

••rn1eresr: Payment Date" manu the slated payment date of an installmcnL of interest on the 
Bonds. 

••i.,.w:t• or ''UlA .. means the U~ lnfrastrudute Agency and il!I IUCctlilSOfl. 

'"Moody·•" means Moody1s lnvcstOl'i SHVjce. Inc. 

"'Operation .-nd Maintcpucc ~cnse1." means all expenses rcasmtably iru.'Un'Cd by UIA 
in connection with the open.tlon and D'l.linlenance of lhe UIA-Morgan Componc:nt. Network. 
whether incurred by UlA or paid to any otbcr entity punruant to coutnict or othC"IWi.sc. ne&eSllJY 
to keep the UIA-Morgm Component Network ill efficient OlJetating condition, jn..:luding OOlilt of 
audit& herejnafter required, p11ymcnt of promotional and marketing cxpCDsC!ll md real estllte 
brokerage fees, payment of premiums for insunncu and, generally aH expt:DSes, cxi;lusjve of 
depreciation (including depreciation related cxpcmcs of my joint ventun:) which under gcncn1.Uy 
aca:pted .-Cl,XJ\lnting P"'L."licc:• arc pt01Jerly 1llm::able to opctltion and maintenance; however, ouly 
such expenses as an 1"Ca1onably and pl"opcrly ~cst!IU'Y ta the effi.c;knt aperetion •nd rn.ainlerw:acc 
of Che UIA-Morgao Component Nctworlc shall be included. 

"Ouu.tanding" or "Bonds Outstanding" mNns at any datu all Bondi whi&;h have not been 
canceled which have been or arc being authenticated and delivered by the Tru&tec under thl& 
lndcnturo, exeept; 

(a) Any Bond or portion thereof which at the time b.s been paid or deemed 
paid pursu.nt ta Artidc :X of th.iii Indenturej md 

(b) Any Bond in lieu of or in sub5titution fOTwhich 1 new Bond 1hlll have been 
authcnricaled •nd delivertd hereunder, unless proof 11ti1factoty to lhe Tnurtec js p1ueoted 
that such Bond is held by a bona fide holder in due courae.. 

""r.ying Agcn1 .. mc•n.s the Trm;lce, llPJloinlcd as the initial paying agt:nt for the Bonds 
punuanl to Sections 6.6 and 11.S hereof, .and any additional or successor paying agent appointed 
pursnant bt:reto. 

"Plcd11cd ll<mds" meon1 my Bonds that have been (•)pledged or in which any im....t hu 
otherwise been granted to a Seauity lnslnlmca.t l.nuu H collat.enl accurity for Security 
lnstnunt:ni Repayment Oblig.tion& or (b) purchas~ lt'ld held by a St:CUrity lnsoument Issuer 
pur1umt to • SIM:Uri.Ly Instrument 

""PriDRpal'' mcal'l1 (•)with req)Cct to anyC•pilaJ ~•ti on BCJJtd, tbt: Accreted Amount 
thereof (tho differeuce botween lhe ltab:d lllIIO\lllt to be paid ot moturity llld tho A'"'''*d Amount 
being deemed unearned intere:sl). except H used m. connection with the auithorizalion md il1u1nce 
of Bondi and with the order of priority of payment of Bonds after an Event of Default, in which 
ctse "Principal .. mc:am the initial public offering: price of • Capital AlJprt:ci111Lion Bond (the 
diffcRnoc between the Accreh:d Amomit and the initial public offering price being deemed 
intere&t). and (b) with respect to any Cuncnt Interest Bond, the principal IUllOUDl of imcb Bond 
payable at mlilturity • 
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"'Prlndpal Carpente Tnut Olf"1e1'" mana, wilh reaped to 1he Trwtcc, ch• ofl"tc:e o! the 
nu.tee at On< Sooth Moln, 12111 lloor, S1k Lab Oty, UUh 14133 or such oth<t or odditlon1l 
olll<et u 01oy be tpa.'lBed 'by lie TtvtloO. 

"Principe! lnsuu-"-.os ohnydate ofca\cul01ios, (•)'lrilll respcCI toMly Sam 
of Bonds, '° lo•& 1111ty Boedt tlwnof- Ouutanmng, (i) the l'riDc;pol 11DOW11 of Boodl of sud> 
Scricl duo oo a ccnain ~dale foe which no SiDkini; Fund Installments ha .. been mal>lilhed, 
or (ii) the unu.tid1ed t.lutce of ny Sinking Fund hlStallmenr due oa a cct1ain t\Jrurc d.tc for 
Bonda of sui:b Series, pJm dte arnoun1 of thr: 1ink.iytg fund J-cdc::mption premiwns. it any, which 
would be applicable upoo n::daoprion of 1uch Bondi on such fulure date in 1 Prindpal amouut 
eqllll to well wmtiofi<d bolaaMz of 1uch Sinkiilg Fund Jnstallmmt and (b) wilh n••t•«t to my 
Rcptymcol Obli.ptions. the prinri.Ptl amount nr such ltep•ymcnt Obliptiom duo OA a cenaia 
fulURdat<. 

'1'1W1ity Bonda .. m ... all ldd.itlonaJ indebtednes•, bomk or DOta ofth1 l11uu Jnued in 
occordtnco wttb S1c~Oll 2.14 aftbis Indenture, which ore '°""'""by 1 pledge of tho Revenueo 
senior to th• piodJe ot lt.<vmueo for the poyment o! the bonds aid the Security ln111UmcDt 
Repeymenl Obllpdoo lwftln llllthooitod. 

.. Projoc:t" mr:ans the 9Cqlliaition,. construction. idllblU.tion, and cquippina of 
coaununicatiom facilities aodimprovemenLt within Morgan City, Utah. including the acquisition 
of1~011 n,hts to ind cap9City in the UIA Networlc: and lhe Ul'Ol'lA Network, as such definiUon 
is 111pplem<ntcd from tlmo ta time by Supplemental IndOll!urel ill acc:<ll'dorn:c with !hi> 0.,,.,.1 
lndeoturo. 

••put Bond" m~nsany Ba:Dd'Nhich is ~nof a Series ofBondswtUch is subjec.tto pwcl\aze 
by the I11utt, it1 agent ar a drinl pnty fr<r.n the Owner of the Bond pummttt to provj1iou of the 
Supplemmlll lodc:nruro mthorizi., th< iHu"'ce of tho Bond and deoipalin1 it or• Put Bond. 

"Qu1lifiod lu_ .. _ my of the followins 1Kmitiao: 

(1) ~ObHgoU-; 

(b) Olllipticw of any of the following fcdcm ogmci<s wllich obligotlom 
...,....,.,, r.u r1ith """cmlit obHpOO.. of the United s ..... of America inoilldins: the 
l!xpo<t·latport Book of Ibo Unilod Stale&; the GavenuraK Notioml M..,,.c< Alsoc:iaOoo; 
the Fodertll Finaac:iios Ballk; the Fonner'• Home ~ the fcdel'll Housing 
Acbbinistntio..; tt.c M.ritimc Adminislntion: General ScMccl A~inU:tntioa, Small 
Butiow ~«the DcpaltmClll ofHousing ud U!Joa l>evdopmcot (PHA '1); 

(c:) Moocymmbtfundorared "AAAm" or"A>.Am-0" or better by S8'P and/or 
ti>• equi .. Jen1 ro.liotorbetl<rofMoody'a Of oo n.tod), iaclDdiDa lllOllC)' muket !lladl ltom 
'IW!lich the Tn11toe or il!l ollllioi<t dOf\ve • feo for ltlve.,,..,. odviomy or other 1"1Vie" to 
the fund; 

(cl) Commttrial poptt which I• mlod ot the lime of pwohue lo the llnalc 
highest cl1uiflcotiOI\ P-1 by Moody'• or A-1+ by S.tP, md whic:h1111nn-.. not more than 
270 d•y• aft<rthodatt of purchase; 

(c) Bonc!J, nolct or other nid- or iftd•b1tdne11 med "AAA" 'by SAP "'d 
"AMI" 'by Moody's ltoued by the F..i...I MalMlnll MortpJe Ao•oclatlon or die FcdoTal 
u..,,. Lma M..,,.,e C«pcndoa wilh iamin!oi ...wriri<t not~ tine,....; 

(I) U.S. dollot dc....u..t.d dcpollt aceoonts, f<deral lun<b ...d baokv's 
M:OqltDCel wllh dometti< COCDJDel<iol 1-i<a, incl~ the Trume ond ill affiliates. 
w!Ui:h i.. .. a nling on their short-lam cenmc:atts al dcpooil on the dale of purchue of 
"A-\" or"A-1+" by S&P ond "P·I" byMoody'und matur:ng no more th .. 360days 1flcr 
1bc datt of purchzsc (ratiop Oct holdimg ................ not ooMidet'Od H the l'lliag oft be 
bm>I:); 

(&) The fund held by the n-..r for the Stom orutah and comnxmly known 
u tlle Utah Stale Public. Tn:a1un:r'11Dvc:etmcat FUAd; and 

(II) Any other invcltn1mtr orr.....ili<1 p11J111ittod for lnve1111!!entafyablic funds 
undorlb1Stot.eMoooyM.,,.pmeotAclafl974, Title SI, Chaptc·7, UllhCode,mclwlirl1 
.,_.. CODtnlcll pennitted by Scctloa Sl-7·17ClXd) thoroof. 

"'Rating Agency'' means Fitch., Moody's, or S.t:P nd their •ucceuors ond aM:igns, but only 
ta the cxteDI such reting agency is then provJclibs • .ating oa •Serie• of Bonds ilAICd hm:under 
at th!:' request ofdtc Issuer. If eirber1Uch RatiQgA.fPl!CYceues to act u • aecuririe& ratmg1gency, 
tilt lssu.er niay dt:rignate aey fl•tion.tly rccopizcd IOC\Jritks ratln.a: agency u • rcplaccmcnt. 

-~ Cl.1tgo1y" or "Rldfli C.tqorics" _,, ... or m.on: of the generic r11ting 
categori9 of a R..ting Agency, without rcprd to U1J rtfinement « lflldation of IUCb ming 
category or ca&egories by a nwncric.I rooditia' w otherwise. 

"llellet1blalltbltr1ao"m11n1wllhNtpoc:tta..,Seri<1ofBond1whlrelhobll.w11benoa 
is inlcadocl ta be acludable l'tom """ - fot r.1 ... 1 income tu purpoo"' the -
(dotonnilllblo 11 at each Rebm Colculolioo IIN) ofNbolabl1 orbitn1ge payable to Ibo "United 
Stol<I at1h<1im .. and In th01moun11 opecifiecl m Sediolt 141(1)(3) o!'tl>e Code and SKtion 1.1411-
3 ofthe ltegulotlom. 

"ltcbam c.Jculatioo Do<c" meam, willl ._. ta ony Scria of Bonds whore the iolaest 
thereon is ialmikd to be excmdablc fii>m .snm iuQome for f't&nl income tu: ~ the 
lnttcest Payment DaU: na.t pm:ediD& Ille Gftli -ry of the istuc: dtt< of mch S<rico of 
Bands, .... fifth .ullvmmy of1be initiol Rc-C.Jc.U<ioo Do<c r,. such s.ne. of Bandt,""" 
the dm ofmiranenl of the last Bood foe llOdo Scrica. 

"hbole Fund" means the UIA·Moopn Rcbote Fund cruted in Section 3.1 licreof 1o be 
held by Ille Trame and adminitt<t<d pum11ol 1o Scdioft S.S hmof. 

"Rqistnll" mCOllt the Truoi.c (or - ~ doti11111rd u lt<gilll'll' by ~I 
h>dao-), 1ppoiated 11 the rqi- l'or tho Bcmdt pmouont to Sactiooo 2. ?, 6.S pd 11.5 benof, 
1nd my .witioml or SUC:t:CllOf rcsiltn.r appoialedl JNl'IDlftt hereto. 

"R<plor ll<rord Dott" =~ uo\e,. °""'""" provided by Supplcmentll lod<ol,irc for 
a Serier of Bonds, the fifteenth day inunediatdy.,,....,., uch lnterut Payment 0.. 
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.. Rcmarkctin& A1ent" me1n1 t mn11tc:ting ·~t or c:ommerci•l peper dealer appointed by 
the ,,...,,. punuenl ID 1 SUppktttml>l lndeotu~ 

"Repair Md Repi.c.o- l'...r.,.... the UIA-M"flan Rcpeir mnd Replacement Fund 
created in Section 3.7 h•~f IO be held by the luuer urd adnoini>tcred p...-t to Sedion S.7 
hertof. 

"'Repair and RcpJ1ccmCl'.t Reserve Requirement" means the llllOWlt or snooou f'rom lime 
to tim.: nquired under each SUpplcmmtl1 Indenture to be an deposit in tho RcpeiT ind 
R.eplacemcnr Fund. 

".Rcpoyrncot Obliplioos" me1ns, collcclivcly, all Ouutanding Security lntuumcor 
Repayment Oblip1ion1 111<11\.,m< Instrument Rcp.ymcnt Obliplionl. 

·•R.c:serve !nltrument" means a duke or instrument islued by a Reserve: Instrument 
Prvvider 10 lltisfy all or any portion of the Dr:bt SW/ice Reserve Requirement applicable to a 
Seri.cs of Bonds with thc)11iorwrittm approval of the S~urity IMtrumettt IHuer, if any. The: 1cnn 
"l\ca<M> lnstnunent" includes, by way of cxomple end not of limitalion, lcltcn o{ mdl~ bond 
insurance polici..:s, JUTCty bonds, IW:lclby bond purchase agreement&, linu of credit, and other 
devices. 

••Re&erv1 Ins1rvmont ~nr means any agroemet enlcrcd into by the Issuer awl 1 
Rc1cntc lmtnmc:nt Provider pumumt to a Supplemental Indenture (including the mpplie1ble 
portions of 1 Supplcmcnlal Jndmtu.n:) and providing for the jssuam:c by 1ud> R.csc:rve Jnsttument 
Ptovider of a JtDcrve lmtrumcnt. 

1'Reservc 1D1tnuncrn Co111" mans aJl fees, praniums. cxpcns:., •nd similar cot:u, other 
lhln R11m. bts1Nme11t 11...,.yment Obligaliot11, roqultod IX> be paid to • Reserve ln111Utne1tt 
Providor)IWSuant to 1 !1.e1em. hlltrumcJ>t Air<""""''· Each !We""' lnmument ~ ....U 
specify the fees, prartiums. expenses, and oost1 consritur:ing Reserve lnstn&mcAt Cotti. 

.. Jlmcrve ln1tru*Ot COYCl'lge"" meam, aJ of llDY date ol c1k.i..ttion. th6 •~pie M'l>OW1 
owilobl< to be pold ID tho n.m .. pllDlllml ix.-mdor all !Wcrve bllnJJDcDta. 

"Rescm: !mtnll!lalt Fund" me&n1 tbc UIA-Morpa Jtescm: htl-Puod -.d in 
Section 3.6 hereof to be held bylhe Trustce ond ~ -llllD Se<ticn S.6 her<of. 

'1l-.ve lm1niment Limit" means, u of"'>' do1< of cak.lorioft and <rih rcspc<t to my 
ltc&erve lnstruMe:o&. tk 1naximUll\ agpc1aic amount n1ilable to be paid under IUCk Reserve 
INtnnent iato th< Ddit ScMce it..crve Fwtd aauming for porposos of sucll ealculation thst tho: 
amou.al initially availlble UJ>der eac:h Ra:CJVe Instrument Ms not been ftduccd or that the aroount 
initially availlbLe undtt e1d:i llc:Jnve ln1trument hu only been reduced as a :n:sUl1 of the payment 
of principol oflh< opp!icoblc Series ofBonds. 

.. Resen-e IDltnlmmlt Provida'' rae1n1 ID)' bmk, uving1 and loan aasoci11iori. 11.vinp 
bink. tbriA Wtitutioo, credit union, imurmcc company, smety ComplD)', or other insticurion 
i&suina a R.eHrVo ID1trumait, which at the fune of i1:1UBD.cc of the Racrve. ln1trumcnt ii raled in 
one of tire four h!P11t Retin1 C1tqioric1 by • Roting Agency. 

II 
4Mll-ZOl().TQ1,¥.<4 

••Reserve lnSltWDe:llt Repayment Obtiptiom. .. rnc:em. Hof any d6Lc of cal~ion and 1"ith 
rup«:t ID my Re>cm: hllln!menl A_.., thoto OIJCltlndjwg IMl10llllls poyable by die luucr 
undor-11 R<savc hwrw!><ttt Ayetmtnt to repay the Rts<ivc lastnuMM Provider for paymml5 
pnmou.ly mado by it p.....,,. to 1 R_..o lnsnutnettL Thor< •U not be iuchtdcd in the 
colculatia. of 11....,.. lmlNm<nt Repaym<111 Obliptions my 11. ... ,,,., lnllnlm<nt Cor!I. 

"11.<VCD<I< F...r l1ICIDt the UIA-Mor&an Rn'<MJC fllDd Ol'Oll<d in s.<1;..n l.2 beteof IO 
be hold by the t,..cr and odmini&tuod pun•ant ID Section , ,2 hcm>f. 

.. ReYe:oucs .. mqim all revenues, feet. income, ren.11. and ""ipts rc-:civcd or earned by the 
Jssuu punu1nt to cb.e Service Conlrlct, includil:Jt a ll of the City FOCI and the Hook-up U,sc 
Rtw:nucs received pumum.1 lo 1he Service Contract and other amounts received pursuant lo the: 
Service Contract (includii:ag any advance of Alloc:Med. SalO!I Tu R.cvenu and Allocated Elcctdcal 
Fee RevemMs (as described thi=Rin}), 1QScthetwidti all inffr.IR earned by and prof"ltll deriv~ from 
the Hie of invertmea11 in the related fun.di 1hcrcof. .Rneoutt do not include gi& or grant1 received 
byUIA. 

''S&P"' mcaDs S&.P Global llatinp, a bminc11 unit of St*1ckrd. A Poor'• Financilll Servk:i;.s 
u.c. 

''Sales Tu. Revenue•• means 111 11111 tu J'IV'11UO that dtc City coJlecil under Title 59, 
Chapter 12, Part 2 of the Utab Code. 

''Secretary"' means the Secretary of the Wuer or any succeaor to the duties of 5uch office. 

.. Security Instrument" me.ma 1n 1n1tn1me111 01" other device ju•ed by a Security Instrument 
Issuer 1o pay. or 1o provide security or liquJdily for, 1 Stri1t.1 of Bonds. The mm '"Security 
Imtrument .. irJcli,u:!es, by way of eumpl• INld not of limi111tion, lettcn of credit., bond insun.n~ 
policies,, 11andby bcmd purcblse ~nu., lines of credit and otha- tc:i;urlty instrtmient1 and 
=dil enh1ncen=t or liquidity devices (but does not indvok o R<1.,.. lnstnmieot); provided, 
however, that 1W3 such device or iutrumcnl shall be a -Sccwi.17 Jnattument"' for purpo1~ of this 
lndenUn wtlm '!"'oiJically.., dcsipated in a Suppkm-1 lnden""" oulhori7.ing the use of sucll 
device or iastrumcnt. 

"S<CUrity lllllnlmcnt ACJ"ement" metnl ony lCJ'ICllWlll .-..! Otto by the l.HUet' ond a 
Sccurily 1-luuer purlUIDt to a Supplemental~ frnclucling lbe 1ppli<oblo porticla6 
of• S\lpll~ lndeltture} pvriding r.. the ;,..-c by suc1r Suwily lnstrumatt Issuer of 1 

Secwily lmtnmctot. 

"Securily lnllnlm<DI Colts" 11\CBDJ, wilh teopect to 1111y Seeurily lnstnunellt, oil fees, 
premNms. cx:pcNCs •nd aimilat CO&t&. «her thin Socuriry lnstnuncnt kcp1ymcnt Obligations. 
rcqoirm. 10 be paid 10 a Security lmlnHPcn1 lssuer pursunt to a Security lnstrum~ Agmcment 
or lbe Supplomelllal lndenlurc 1uthorizin1 the .,. of 1uob Se<Urity htltrumont. Such Security 
lnstrvmcnt Agreen.ont or Suppl...-l lndentw< cball specify any fees, premiums, expenses, and 
costs constituting Sceurily lnsltum~ Costs. 

"Sc~ty Iutrumettt Juucf' means any blnk or otha finltlcial institution. imunmcc 
comp.ny, 1urety company. or other inatLtu.tion it.iuia&• Security Instnm:w1t. 
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"Scouril)l ln•ll'llrnOlll ~t ObliJaliDlll" ll1HtlS,"' ofony dlle of calculodon and 
with nHpect to any Security lmtrum1mc Aareienicn.1, •nyouCllllndini'mnaunts payable by dus IMuer 
under tho Soourity ln11Nlllllll Agnemcnt or the SupplemeAtll In- authorizicg tho UH or 
such Seccrity lnmummt to 11:J>1Y tba S1tCUrity Instrument ls.suer fbr peyment1 prtviously or 
concurrently made by the Scc:urity Inltrumcnt ls.sucrpursuanttoaSccurity lnstnnncnt. There shall 
nol be inch;idcd in the adc:ulation. (If the: amount of Security lmtrumenl Repayn:uml Obligalions 
.any Security (nstrument Com. 

"Saic:s" means all of the .Bonds authenticated and ddiw:n:d on original jsswmce and 
identified pursuant to the Supplemental Indenture authorizing llXfl Bonds Iii a 1epuatt: Series of 
Bondi, and RDY Bonds 1herafter authenticated 11nd deliven:d. in lieu. dicrwf or in subatitution 
therefor. 

"Si:rvia: Contract .. man• the Flbct Co:mrnunlc:atiom md k:Quj1ition Service enJ 
Ai:quisition Conir.ct, dated 11 of JIDIUU)' 2, 201 U, entered Into - tho l•uor ood tho City. 

"SUIJdDf PWld Acco\ml" .,..., tho UIA-Moipn Sinking l'llnd A<counl of the Bond Fllncl 
created in St:ction 3.4 henol'to be held by the Ttuatee end adminitm:mf punuant to Section 5.4 
hereof. 

1'Sinking Fund [amlhrum:t: .. means the 1mount of money which is requiR:d to be deposited 
into the Sinking Fund Account in each Bond Fund Year for the n:lin:lJ'lcnt of Term Bonds as 
sp~ified in the Supplcmc:atel buknturt authorizing aid Term. Bondi (whether at maturity or by 
redemption). and ;ncluding the redemption premium, if any. 

"Spc<ial Re<ord Doll:" IDWlli ru<:h date u may be fixed fur the poyment or defaulted 
interest on. the Bonds in 1ccordance with this lndenturc, 

WStat1:11 meem the &1111 of Utah. 

wsuppllmcntal Inclcnhn" meau any indenture between the lmuarand the Trmlee entered 
m.to purmanl: to and In compliance with tl:.e provi.1ion1 of Article IX lterecf. 

Tclecommunicatiom Act.. means che Municipal C.bJe TclevisiOD and PubJic 
Telecommunications SCIYicc Act, Title l 0, Chapter 1 &~ Ulsh Code. 

0 1"cmt Bonds .. lllU1la l))C Bonds which Jh•lt bi: subjed to ftlittment by 0pcrarion af 
mandato>y sinkittg fund r<dcmJ>bobS frmn the SinkillJ: Fund A=uot. 

"Trustee." meansz.iom Bancorporation., National Aalocitlioa, One SouthMzliD, 12th floor, 
Sak Lake Cily, Utah 84133 or llllY m~c:ssor 1,':0ipontion rmulting from or .surviving any 
'°D&Dlidation or merger to which it or itl mcce11Gn may be 1 puty and any sucoe11or trustee at 
lnY time 1ervb:ig II IUCcellOI' tnlltee hereunder. 

"UlA-Morpn Compm:1m Netwo.rk" means the fibar optic: llilu., connection line1 md 
related improvements and llu:ilities ecquired and 0001Lrutted by llIA (Dl<luding the ooquisition by 
UIA of .accc11111 right pnd CllpKitywithin du: lJT'OPIA Network and the UIA Network) erid whkh 
arc employed to provide services lO the end u1m in the City punuut to and contemplated by the 
Service Coottact. 
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·~ Network"' mlllll fiber optic Jinm. conm:ction ltnca and related impnwemml.J 1nd 
feLilltleo ocqulred ond conllll'UC .. d by UTA, including tho acqui1iti011 by UIA or ..... rialllll 1nd 
c1p1•ity Ill tho UfOPIA Network. 

"1.Jtah Code" means Utah Code Annotated. 19S3, u:s .ruend~. 

""Ul"OPIA"' means the Utah TeEecODDllllnia:tioD Open Infrastructure Agency, a tqlllfltc 
legal mlity, body, politic and corponilc and a politii:al suhdivia;jon of tlu: Slate of Utah,. cra11lcd 
pursuant to tlio lntorio<al Act. 

""UTOPIA Network" means UTOPIA"1 wb.ok:sllCc: tdccommuniealions network togclhcr 
with any addilioos, repiilirs, rtnewals, rep]acanenll,, expansions, exten&ions and improvements lo 
said network. 

0 Vari1ble R.lle Bonds'' melDI, II of.an)" date af Hlculation, Bonds, the inteiat on which 
for 111)' 1btun pmiod of tim1, is to be calcuhrted. at • mt6 which ia not susccpdbltl to • pni:::i11 
dctcmtlbltiOb. 

-Year"' means any twelve-consecutive month period, 

Section 1.2 Indenture to Con!l.titutc Cgntmd. In comideration of the putdmlk: •nd 
:acceptance from time to titne of any attd 11111 Df 1JJc Bands authorized to be i.&1ued hereunder by the 
Rc:gislelod OwDln theRof; the issuarKe from time lo lime of uiy ond all Security lmtruments by 
Securily lllltl'IDDCllt Issuers, and the issuanct: from time to time of any and all Rtsa'Ye lmrrm:dcntJ; 
by Reserve lnlllnlmenl Providcn pursuaot i..-, Ibis lndenlur< shall be dtc111cd to be and sball 
con11titute a QOntr.;t between the lnui:r and the Owners from time to timi: of 1hc Bonds, the 
Security Instrument ls.suer& .and the Reserve 1mtrumcDI Providers; and the pledge madr in lhi11: 
Indenture ancl the c ..... nts ind agreomenll - ICI fbrdl to be perf«lllod by'"' Oil boholf of the,,..., lboD b<, FIRST, for the equal~ ]llllloction 1nd Mturity of the Ownm oflllJIDd 
all of th Bondi and the Sccuril)I lnltrummt l1ouen ofony 111d ill oflho Socuril)I imtnunenll all 
of which. nipnilel1 of d1I time or times of their i.....-ct, delivery, tn11Nrity1 or upimion, lhall 
be of equal nmk without preferem:e. prtodty, or diJ'tini;tio.o of •DY of the Bon.di or Security 
Im:h'umcml llepa)iment Obligalions over any Olhms, Cll:cept u cxprcHly provided in or pemllded 
by this lndadurc, ond SECOND, for the equal bcndi~ protcction, Ind securiiy of ti!< !l<Scrvc 
Instrument Providen of any and all of the Raavt: lnsll'umentJ whld.1 regardless of Ille lime or 
times of their ismanr;e, delivery, or termination. &hall be of equal nmk without preference. priority, 
or distindicm of any :Reserve Instrument over any other thereof. 

Socri011 1.3 ~ This lndenlun:, except wborc the oontext by cl<orimplicanon 
herein otherwise n:quirea, .shall be i:::onstn.u:d .u followl: 

(•) The '"""' "hereby," "llmoo(" "hcr<io," "boroto," ''bercuodcr," lllld any 
limillr .....,, uoed in this lndon1ul't llhlll l'lltt to tbia lndouturo in itl enlinty omlcn the 
acmtn:I c:J.rly indicates otherwise. 

(b) Words In lhe sln&1>la< - iodude the plural, and wordo in the plural 
indod.c the singul1r. 
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(c) Wordo ill tho -•10 ga>dc>- ioelude tho fanil>ine ond die .....,, ....S 
wllo> the IC- SO incfie•1, wonJa of the - gmd<r n.of..-IO Ill)' gndcr. 

(d) Articles, sections, suhae<1iom, pora~s, ond subpanigr•pbs m<llliooed 
byamnber, loner, orodierwiae, comspond totbe~articler, M<liom,su-ions. 
pv11f11Pha, Md IU~ hettOf 00 llWlli>eted or odoenrise to cbiplcd. 

(<) The 1ille1 oc Jeodlineupplied IO artiolea, ...iiom aod IUbt<ctioos henUJ llt'e 

inscrtt:d only 11 1 n'\llttler of' conven;cnce and cosc ;n ~c Md ia oo Wty defiM, limit 
CK" dctcribe the scope CJ£ Wat of..., pruviliio• of thi! lndcitmte. 

ARTICLl!ll 
THE BONDS 

Section 2.1 A»tbmjgtjgo ofiooda. There is hereby autboriztd for iHUIDCf hom1nder 
Bondi which may, if and when audtori.nd by Supplemental lndenruro, be issued in one .°' mono 
•epnto Strit1. P,.ch Scric11 ofBODdli shall be Rthorb:ed by a Supplcmentll Indenture. which 1hall 
Jtltie the purpo11 orpurpo1e1 far which e1ch 1uch Series of Bond& i11 being iMued. The agrepte 
princi.,.J omOUllt ofBondl which may bo iHued dtall not ho limited except 111 pt0vided be1-.!n or 
oa may be limited by law provided lhot lb< •&ll"gate principol 1m011Dt of Bonds of coch IUOh 
Sorico lhall t10t ClO>Cod tho ltllll\ltlt opccifi<d in the Suppi.cnehtai lndetltur< 1111tborizin1 ea<:h IUCh 
Series ofBoodt. 

Sectton.2.2 QqqjptionqfBpnsb.: P,yment 

(•) Each Seriu of Botlda is111<d undor the pn>Yi1iom hcn:ofmay bo iNvod only 
u reptet<d bands. Uole11 olherwioe specified ill the Supplc-"1 llldeoturc Mltl!orizin& 
IUCh Scrie1 of Bonds, coc:h Series of Bonds "'"11 be: in the dcnotllination of five Thomand 
Dollull ($5,000) each 0t .. y illl<pl multipl• thereof, sllall be numbcml con!IC<\ltivcly 
!tom R.-1 ~Ind shall bearintemt payable on oaclt l11taeot P1,-Dt1e. 

(b) EachScria olllaodl iuutd underthepn>Yisiomhorooflhall bc:dolcd, lhllll 
beor iolaat 1111 tote or-· not exceeding tM ......mi.n - pettt>incd by low on clle dote 
of iairiol iuu&nce of ...,h Serie&, lliW1 be poyoble on tM claya, llholJ be: 1aic.d to 1Mtln on 
... dayo and in the ycm ud shall be: oobjc<t .. rodemplioo prior .. their mpective 
moturiDel oll aa set Wrth in the S..ppkmclltol Jodentul< •utllorizilt& Neb Series of Bonds. 
Eoch ~ ofllonda lhoD be daipat<d "[Tu~U1blc] Te~ti­
EJcctrie Utility ond Soles Tax Rev.,.,. [Relimdili&) Bonds (Morgan City Project), Scriu 
___, in each case insenio.I: the year in which the Ba.els ll'C bsued Ind, ifneoc111l)',., 
identiryiol Serles leUel·. 

(c) Both tho priocipol ohnd tbe illl....t an th• Boads - be l"'J'lblo in i.twful 
money of Ill• Unlt<d Sblte1 of Amcrico. l'tlym<t>t oftbc ;m...., m ony Bond shill be mode 
to the penoo appearinJ on lheBond r<silllntion hooks orthc Rcsit4nr hmin1D<rJ>!"Vided 
for 111 lhe RcJi11*tNd OWner thueofby check or draft ma;lod on the lnk:~st P.yment Dato 
to the llegi&tcn:d Owner Ill. his tddtes• llli it appean on IUCh rogistntion books or ta oWJJtn 
ofSS,000,000 or more inaggrogate prin~ipil 11mOUDt ofBmuh (otownct& oft00% ofluy 

IS 
4....aol0-71Z1,v,"4 

Saico lhcn Oubl»ldint) by ,.;,. -.rer to• book _...,, 1-<d ill the Uni«d Stat .. of 
America deciFated by die Rqillmd Owner in written iulnlcliou funiishcd to the 
Trustee oo Jotcr thin the RcJUlv Rcoonl Dote l'or such paymmt. Uolou olhawioe 
opcci!Hxl ;,, the toi.ttod Supplemeabl IDdcuftH't, the ........ on Bo!lds to payoblo, &Del 
~paid ....S duly J'l""idcd l<ir, oa my - Paymmt Dole will be: paid to the 
penon who is the RcgiJteftd OWner lheroof II the close ofbllsinet& on the Regular Record 
Dote fa< such iftt<Tnt imrncdioc<ly prcccd;,>g such 1 ...... 1 Poymcnt Dole. Any ouch U­
not so punctually poid or duly provided for shal forthwiO c .... 10 be: .payable to the 
1<gittend owtter ohny Bond on such Rcplu llocord Date, •nd may be: poid to tt.: penon 
who i& the Registered Owner thete<>f al the clo .. ofbuliAm Oil • Speci.11 Record Date I« 
the payment of such dcflul1cd interc:sl lo be fixed by 1hc Tn.IJkc, noti" thereof to bt: given 
to mca. Rcgi&tcted. Owner not less then ten (10) d1y1 prior to such Special Record Date. 
Tbc pri11cip•I of aad premium. if a.ny. oo Bonde a.re .-yibtc upon presentation Md 
surrender lhcn::of pt the Principe• Corpott.ie Trust Office of rht Tnateie u Pl)fing A(ent, 
ncepl 11 otherwise provided by Supplemootol llldail .... All 1udt poym<ttb "'"11 be: wlid 
and c:mxlu•I to "ti,;fy ind dilchlrp the liability upon such Bond to the extent ofthe. sum 
or mms so pt id. 

(d} The Bonds of each Strim may contain or have en.doned thereon such 
provisions, specifi.catiom and descriptive words not tncomiltent with the provilion1 hereof 
u may ht ncc:cHIE)' o.r 4.birwblc to comply with cuatom. the rule• of any •ccuritia; 
exchanae or C"Ommistion or brokeraae board or alherwi1e1 u ml)' be spe!Wified in the 
Supplomental lndmure outborizin& such Serieo ofBondJ. 

ScctiD1D 2.3 Exccutiocr Limited Ob!ipJ.ioo tJnlcu other.vile specified in the related 
Supplemen!DI Ind..,_, !be BOlldl oflny Seri,. >hill b• uecui.d on bohalf of Ille lauer witb the 
manual or official factimilc sipaTUrc of ill Cbllt, cownrtipcd with the manual or official 
facsimile JJ.anature of the Sccrelary, and shall Mn impascd or impriatcd Cbcrcan lhc eOJJ>onrtc 
seal or flc:11imile thereof of lhc Issuer. In CllC MlY offictr, chc f'acs•Uc of who.se &ipaturc WU 
appc11 a. tbe Boock, 1hall ceuc 10 be wc:h ofUcet before lM: delivtty of 11uch BOAds. such 
lllcsimil• lhlll newrthel ... be valid and suffi<ioal for •ll ~·· .... ....,. 11 ifhc had ...,,.iaed 
in office uMiJ deliftfY. 

The Bondi, toged>er witb iotacal llla<oa, ...t 1111 Rcpoymm< Obliptiou oblll be: limitod 
oblipciom orm. m. ... pa,.Oluoldy"'"" m. Rc.a!-(excopl lo ... Wartpaid out of moneys 
-l>ut.sble to tJoe 8-1 proeeeds, or mooeys ...,.ived by "° Truttec, or ...., IUnds created 
h.......i.r (acopl tho Rmto Fa), or tJoe - flom the tcmponry •- lhl:reol). n.e 
Bonds maJI be: D valid daim of ftte ttsp<c:tiY< Rcsl.tteftd OwMri theruJf only against the 
Re.en..., aod oilier lllOllC)'> i:t fil.odJ aod -• held by the l'nlll<e h<mmd<r (except the 
Rcboo: Fund) aod tM "'-hereby pledp111nd 111iJPll the wne for the tqual •nd mable paytn<'1t 
of the Bonds ...t olJ Repayment Obliptl- Ind doe ~ shall be: -d ~DO olher pwpooc: 
thlll lopay lhopJin<ipol of, premium, ihny, ond iatett.11 on lhe BO<lds ud IO pay lhe Repoyment 
Obliga<ioM, ""cept u may be: od>awil< copr<lliy alllh<lrir<d bc:t<io a< by Suppletncmal 
ladcnlurc. The i1SU11ncc or the Boock and dc:Jin:ry ol 8IJY Socwity Instrument Agn:cttt.ent Ot 
Rcccrvc IMttllmtttt Agreement Mall not, WrcctJy, indbctly or continpnt1y, obJiptll: the: b:suor OJ 

any 1gency1 in.mwnoatality or politi.<=til 1uNtivi1ion thc:rcoft.o levy any fonn oflaxation therefor 
or to make ny appropriation for their ptymtnt. 
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The pn>Yilioo1 of thi1 5cdion 2.3 re11U., 1a Ille execltli111 of Bandt mty bo chonicd os 
they opp!y 10 Che Bondi of my Sorie1 by the Suppl<m<ntal Indenture lllllhorim, IUdl Serl• ot 
Bonde. 

(a) Tbcllldmun:cn:otesavalidmdbiadiagplcd&e-1111iCJll!lentofsccurity 
i:\tctelt in all ()f eae bw:nue& p ledged Wider the L1dr:Mure ia favor of the Trustc:e u 
KOUrity for~otthe llood•, enfon:oable bytbe Tnut.in accordonee with the tmN 
then:of. 

(b) Under the laws of the Staie, iuch pledee md ""snment Uld security 
interest is auto.,.tlcaJly pcri"cct<ci by Section 11-14-501, Utah Code Allnotated 1953, 11 
amended, ond Is and lhall have priority u .,.WI oll porti .. llr.rllla cWDil of oay kind In 
tort. C'Ontnct, or d.blrwiu boro1fter impo11d on the Revcnum. 

(c) The ls..., and th• l'nlol<C oovc:naat ...t opwc to lw 1uch 1o1ion 
(includins, 11 applioehk, filing o!UCC financing 111-ond contlmaadons ll!mol) 11 
;, nl:C\:Qalry from time lo time lo preserve the priority of the pledge of th" Trust eru.tc 
~c:r 1pplicablc !aw. 

Section 2.S Aulbcd1ic;at::on and Deliyery ofBt'lnds 

(a) lk......,. dmll deliver cxi:cutod Bonds of w:h Serie• lo the TNslet for 
autbcnricatiota. Subject to Ike :tatid'action of the conditiom for ..thentlc:atfo.n of Bonds Kl 
fonh htrtin. the TrUltft 1hlll authenticate such Bondi, and deliver them upon the on:kr of 
the l•uer to thc pun:huas thereof (or hold ll!em oo thdr Mmll) upon !be poymelll by the 
pur<hasm to tho 1'nllt<e for lhe ICCOUDI of lhc 1 ..... or Che purthaoe price thmfor. 
!Joli""'Y by tho ~ llsall b• 11111 acquitlll to the purchaoaa tbr the purduoH prieo of 
MJcb Bondi, 111d Midi purcbler1 eholl bo undor no oblipliall ID oco lo U.. opplicllion 
thereof. Tho proceeda of dt& aale of ouch Bonds shall, -· be dl•pooed of ouly " 
p11>vlded hmm and hi lbc-d Suppkmenlal lndentuR. 

(b) No lloDd shall he valid « obliptory r..- "'1 IJU'l'Ofe or ellli~od lo any 
stcmityorbotcfit henutder, u."lless and until aeertific:m: of.mhenrintion cm such Bond 
sub>uontially Mi the Cot111 tel forth iD 1he S.pplemental IadenluR aulhorizing IU<b Bond 
lball have been dllly c:x...-1 by U,o Tru.1co, ond,...,. accul<d <a1ificllle of the Truotce 
upon eny such llaDd shit he C011Clusi, .. evidence that such lload has been outhcnticoted 
IDd delivered hereunder. 1he Trustee's cenifi<ato of .-liaa oa Ill)' Bond shall he 
dcOlncd to hove_, dtoc:ated by it if 1igncd by ao IRllhorizal officer of the Trust••, but ii 
lhall Dot bo noc-,. lbat tM A~ officer sign the ~ of authentication oo all of 
t!i< Boade is rued honwider. 

(c) Prior to die authelltiuation by the Tnlllee o!-Scrlct of BD'1de there shall 
hove b<m filod wilh 1bc Tnuleo: 

(i) A copy, duly =rifled by the S«nWy of this Indenture (to the 
extent 110t theretofore so filed) and the SuppJtmt:nlal ~'C authorizing such 
Series ofBor.da. 
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(II) A oopy, certlftod by thc Socre1ary. of thc proccedlnp otthc lancr'1 
<lowrn~ Bod, approvin& tho ftocatiOD end deliwry oftil< inmutn<fttll opocitl<d 
hi SIC1i0112.5(c)(l) b...in 1nd 1ho ..-ion Uld delivay of 1Uch Sorim ofl!oods, 
together with • nrtie.cett. dlted - or dM date of autbcnticarion of such Series of 
a-ls. of the Sc=wy that such P""'Cedinas ~ sriU in r..,,. aid dfcct Mlhout 
ammdmenlJ OKC<pt Q dJown ;., -h procccdinp. 

(ui) A roqu.,t Ind ~t!on to the TN.,.. of the laner to 
authe.lltiC1tc 1ucb Sciics of Bondi in. the •&P"DJ:l1e principal amount lhuein 
lpf.Cified ind deliver them t.o purdauen therein ide.ntifi~ upon peymmt to tht 
nu.tee, for ae<:ount of the Issuer, ofdle. IUID spee:ifi~ dtcrtin. 

(iv) A copy, duly caOOod by die Scmtaty, of the s.,..;.., Ccntract. 

(v) An opiDiouolbcmd 001la0el dated the d,.. of1ulil-1111otsuch 
Serl" of Bondi; 10 the elfeot lllat (1) Ibo lnuor bu 1Ulhorized tho 4IUOllliml and 
dolivoty ofthir lnd•ature IDd l1ldl Scri•ofBond1 end this lnclenhlI9bu been duly 
a<CUtod and delivered by the ....,.,. ud i1 1 valid ond binding md cnfon:coblo 
agtccment of the Issuer; (b) this Iadcoture create• the v1Hd pledge whidl it purports 
lO cnate. of the Revenues; and {c) th6 Bonds of such Serice are VBlid md binding 
oblip.tion5 of the I11ucr, cntidcd to tho bene(rts and sccwity hct"cof, provided that 
&u£h opini(ltt nlt)f cont1in limilltian1 .-ccptablc 10 the purc;hascr of mch Series of 
Bondi. 

(d) The r..ucr may provide by Supplcmentol lndealure for the ddi>ay to lbe 
Tl'lll!CC of one. or more S~ty IMtr:mm:DD with tapcct to 1ny Scric1 of Bondi and the 
01ecutioa oad dtlivay of aoy SO<Urity llllllumenl Aarean<nll deemod ""'*'""Y in 
c:oomdiaath ...... ith. 

(e) Subject m ony limitatiom amllia<d ln • SUpplcm<ntal lndeftture, chc '-1 
may p!'O'lidc a Scourily lmlniat<nt £ou111 Seriea of Boocls (or D11Y 1ub1~tl!R one Security 
1-um<al for onothcr). 

(I) The Issuer may provide by Sllppkm<ntal llldcn!ure fa< the ismaoce ond 
dcli.ay to tbc Tn1&loc or ...... ~ - lmtrvncnb aad the exC<lllim .... ddnay 
of ""'f Reo""' lmlTum"" Agr<-.s-cd •eeestlt)' in eonneclion theftwith. 

(g) ne bluet may aulhorize by SlqJplcmenlal lndcnure the - or Put 
Boadi; pnrrided that oey obliplioo of Ille lsouel to p1y the purcbase pri<e of any mdlPut 
Rando •boll-bo secur.d by &plcdgo o(a_,., on I parily wOJ, !he plodge-d 
in Seclion 6.2 horoot: Tho !Mucr may pnMdo r.r Iha oppoialmoot of ouch Rmwbling 
Agoalll, iiuloxing apnto, laldar q-oc ad.._,.., U.. l11uer may d-

0>) The IHU<r moy iaoludo IUdi piovi1iom in a SupplOllttlltal lndenlun: 
lllllhorizilgtbe iraumco 0£1 Serira of._,. _,,,,4 by 1 Soc:urlty lltolNmllll 11 lbe llluor 
docm5 appropriate. irn:ludin1: 

(i) So !Olli H th• Security lmlNOlcnt 14 In full fo1"" ond dfoct. om! 
peymcct oo tho Socunly In•- is not iD default, (A) tho Socurity -.....nt 
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Iasuer shall be deemed lo be lhc Owner of the Outstanding Bonds of ruch Series (1) 
when thc•pprov.ttl, C"Ql.Uicnt or action Clfthc Bondowncrt fotSUt::h Series of Bon&: is 
required or may be exercised under the lndenlure and (2) following an Event of 
Def.Wt and (ll) the .Indenture may not be amended in Ill)' manner which affects the 
rights of such Sa::urity lnsttumc:nt Wutr without ill prior written consent. 

(ii) In lhe evenl tluil the l>rincipal and redcmpticm price, if applicable. 
and interest dut on any Scri.:s of Bonds Out!ltlnding shall be paid under the 
proviliom of u. Secwity lDlllUUU:Qt, 1111) covcntmlJ, agra:mcnllll and other oblig•tiobs 
of the Issuer to the Bondownm: of such Series of Bonds shall continue to exjtt and 
such Security Imt:rum.cnt Is mer shall be &ubrogatcd to the rights of &uch Bondownms 
in accordance with the tenns l'lf suc:h Security lns1tumcnt. 

(iii) In addition, such Supplemental tndcnture may eltl.bli&h such 
provision.s as 1111 necessary to provide rclev.ant information lo the Security 
JostnLmenl l11uer and to pr0vido .a m~h11nilm for piying Prirt~ip•l lnst11llrndtU: •nd 
interert on such Seri ea: of Bonds fiom the Security luatrument. 

Section 2.6 Mutilated Lo!t Sk!lcn or Dg;fMya:I Bgnds, In the: event NlY Bond i1 
mutil•ted, lo&t, stolen or dcai.troyccl, the Issuer may u:ecute and the Trustee mey euthenticate a new 
Bond of like date, Series, maturity and denomination H that mutilated, lost,. stolen or deslro)'ed; 
provickd lbat, in chD i;qe of any mutiliitc:d BCJttd, such mucilattd Bond shall flnt be: 'llrtendcred to 
the Truste"" and in the cue of any loiilt 1tol1m or destroyed Bond. there iihall be fint fumilhcd to 
lhe TrustDC evidence of such loss. theft or destruction sati&faclory to the Trustee. together in all 
cases with indcn1J1ity s1tisfutmy to the Trustt:e and the. Wiucl'. Jn the event any .such Bond shall 
ha.ve matutcd, inrtced ofisslring • duplicetc Bond, lhe Tlustcc may pay the auie without sum:ndcr 
lhercof upon complillll.ce wilh lhe foregoing. The TrustDe may charge lhe Registered Owner of 
such Bond with its reasonable f~s md expenses in connection therewith. Any Bond j5med 
pul'JUJmt lo lhia; Scr;tion2.61hall be di;entedpatt tlfthc Series of Bonds in rea~ctofwhich itwu 
is5Ued and an original additional 0011tr1ctual obliption of the Issuer. 

Scetion 2.7 Registptimt ofBandsr Pemm Treated H Owng!, The b1mct ah.all elllk 

the books for the registration and for the ITIDlfer of the Bondi to be kept by the Truslee which iJ. 
h«eby constitured and appointed. the R~giatrar of the l1&uer with respect to the Bonds; provided, 
hl'IWt.vet, that the &suer may by Supplemental Indenture seled 1 parly other than the Tna&tee to 
ect as Registrar with respect to the Series of Bonds i111ued under 11id Supplemental Indenture. 
Upon the occurre:oc~ of an Event of Dt:fault which wDU}d require any Securily I111trument b1uer 
lo make payment under a SO<Urity lnstrumonl Agtoemen~ lho Rogbllllr shall mako 1uoh 
registration bookl IVljJ•bh: to the Scf;Ul'ity ltQ>trumcn• bllUCT. Any Bond m•y, in 1ci:onlancc with 
its tenns, be trllnsferrcd only upon the .registration books kept by the R.cgi1trar, by the porson in 
whose name it i5 R!gi!l'tmd, in pcnon or by lll1 or her duly authorized attorney, upon 1urrcnder of 
:rucb Bond for c:aocell•tion, acoompartl~ by th: livery of a written in.strumetit of tm:Jsfcr in a form 
approved by lh• llogistnr, duly excoutcd. No lnmlf11 shall be offe<tive until enlor<d on ~ 
regi•tration boob kept by !he llogi&trar. Upon •llrrllll<hlr for transfer of any Bond at the Principal 
Colpan.te Trull Office of the Trustee. duly endorsed by. or accompanied by a writtco inslrument 
or m.trumc:nts of tntr111fe:r in Conn ••1isf•ctm"Y to the Tn.lstce tdd duly cxecuetd by, the Registered 
Owner or hi.I or hm' attorney duly authorized in writing1 the Issuer ahatl exrcute and tbe Tnlltee 
shaU 1uthenticale and deliver in the mime of the lnlnsferee or tnmferecs., a new Bond or Bonds of 
the same Series and th~ same maturity for a like aggregate principal amOUD.t as the Bond 
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.surrendered for Inns fer. Bonds may be excluin,ged at the Principal Corporale Trust Office of the 
Trustt~ for a like aggregate principal amount ofBond!I of the same Sc:rics and th.: wru: maturity. 
The exc:Qltion by the ls suer of any BODd of eny Juthorizcd denomination dtall r;-oJ'JJtilule full 8"d 
due authorizatCoo of such dcnominat~on, and the Trwitee shall thin by be authorized to authenfa:ate 
and deliver such Bond. Except as otherwi&c provided in a Supplemcntal Indenture with respect to 
a St;:ric:s of Bonds, the lsSl,ler and the TNstt:e shall nol be rcquh'Cd lo transfer or exchange any Bond 
{a) during the period from ~ including any Rt:gul•T Record Dab:, to and including the next 
succeeding Interest P•yme.nt D•te, (b) dwing the period from and including the day fifteen day1 
prior to 1ny Spcci.11 lleoord Dltc, to and including the date of the proposed payment pcrhlining 
thereto. (c) during the period from and including the day fifteen days prior to the mailing of notice 
calling any Bonds for rcdcmplion, to imd im:Judiilg the: da~ of 1&ar;h mailing, or (d) at any time 
roll owing the m•iling or notice calHng mch Bond for redemption. 

The h:sucr, the Rcgistr.J and lhe Pay.ins Agciit m11y tn:at and tomidcrtbe person in. whOJIJic 
name each Bond is registered on the regiatrttion books kept by the Registrar as the holder and 
abBOlukl owner th~oft'or the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, tht: principal or 
Rdemptjon price thcteof .11.nd il\t~SI ihle th~ and for 11111 olher JIWPDlllCS 'Whllt$0cver, and 
neither the l1&uer, nor the Registrar nor th" Paying Agent shall be affected by any notice to the 
co.nb'ar)'. Payment of or on account of eitbe1· principal of or interest on any Bond shall be made 
only to or upon order of the Registered Owner thereof or such perton"s legal representative, but 
such l'Cgistiation may be chaDgt:d. H hcrcin.tmvc proViiL:d. All 11oui::h pll)'nlcnU siba?l be v..ljd and 
effectual. to aalilfy ind dilchar1e lhe liability upon sueh Bond to the extent of the JUJD or 5UID5 10 

p1id. 

The Trustee shall require !he payment by lhe Bondholder requnling exchange or -er 
of Bonds of any tax or olher governmental charge l11d by lh.e Issuc.r of any service chqe of the 
TrQsb:e B$ Rt:giiitru which 11n: u:quited to bl!: paid wilb rtspt!ct to &uch exchange or cranifet and 
web charges &hall be paid before such new Bond lhall be deliv=d. 

Sec:tion 2.8 Redtmptjon Proyisjon:., The Tenn Bond& of~di S~Ri of Bonds shall be 
subject, to the extent p1'0Vided in the Supplemental Indenture authorizing each &ucb. SeLies of 
Bonds, to ndomplion prior to maturity by opetalion of Sinkins Fund Installments uquired ID be 
made tolhe Sinking Fund Account. Tht: Bonds ofcec:h Series shall fttrthcrbe subject to rtdcmpticm 
prior to malUrily 1t such times and upon 1ur;h terms as shall be fixed by suM SupplcmeuhiJ 
Indenture. Excispt u otherwise provided in a Supplementll Indenture, if fewer than ill Bond5 of 1 

St:rit!I ue lo be redeemed, the panicular maturitie.1 of such Bonds to be redeemed and the Principal 
smoun.1$ of such JI1111b.lri1ic11 to be n::di;c;mcd &hall be Kleclcd by the I&s1.1cr, If fewer than •ll l'lflhe 
Bonds of any ode m1turity ofa Seriu shall becalld forredemptiODt th" partkular units of Bondi, 
as detcnnincd in accordance with Seetion 2.10 hcn:of, to be .redeemed shall be selected by the 
Tnnncc by lot in &QCh :rruumcr ~the T11JiKec, in its discn:tion, nH.y deem flit IJ1d 1ppropri1tc:. 

Section 2.9 NDtice of Redemption. 

(a) In the event any of the Bonds are to be redeemed, tbe Registrar shall cau1e 
notice to be g;ven u provided in dri1 Section 2.9. Vnla;s othenv;1e specified in the 
Supplemental Jndcntute •ulhl'lrizil'lg the i1;iru.nce afthe apJJlicable Se1ies l'lfBonds, notice 
of sueh ndomptiou (i) Jball be !ilod with tho Paying Agent deoignatod fo• the Bondi boing 
n:decmed; md (ii) !hall be m11ilcd by lint clu. mail, portqe )>Upaid, to all Registered 
Owners of Bonds to be rcdt:emed at their addr"scs Biii they appear on the rcgLstration boob 
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of tbe lle1isbwr II :..ua lbit1)' (JO) d&yt bu!""' m0tt - sixty (60) 41')'1 prior 10 tbe d&te 
~xcd for rcd-<mpri .... SUdl ""'""° 1hall 111Cll the followma lnl'onnlllon: 

(I) the complete ollklal unx of..,. a...., ia<lllding Series, to bo 
ndeomcd, Ille iclmlilicttion llUIDben of Bonds ad the CUSIP mimben, if any, of 
lhe Bonds bcVli redttmec!. provided <hat U)' such llOlicc >hall IUll< that DO 
repreSdlltiao ii mldt as 10 the OOl"l'ttthe&I of CUSIP ~ cichc:r., prinled on 
guch Bonds or • C011tah•ed i11 the notice of ndemption and dun reliance may be 
placed only on. the identification n.umbcn contliacd in die notice or priDted on such 
Bond<; 

(ii) uq Ol.\er dcocriptivc infomwion DC<ded IO identify 1ccun.tely tho 
Boods bcia,g ralixmad. incl-.xling:, but not limitr.d ta, the origiDal iHt;C d1tc or. and 
intotut - 1111, ltldlBond1; 

Oil) in the • .,. nf pottl•I r•dcmptbs of 11117 Bonds, tho r<spceliv• 
pr!n<lpal .. ounll lbcrooflO be rotlccmcd; 

(Iv) the dote of mailing ofred<mption notices ond the red<mption date; 

(v) 1hc ri:dcmVjon prii:c:j 

(vi) 1111 on the :edemption date the redemption priet will become due 
.,,d p1ysblo apon ~ such Band or portion lh=o! <111lod for t<dcmption and that 
interest thucon tbaD. cC11c to accrue from and lfter aid date; and 

(vii) the place where such Bondi are to be mrrcndcrcd for p•ymatl, 
d.,l .... tiaa die...,.. and add.mo of the redemptioa .,..a with the 11t1t110 ofa coallet 
pmOll and IC:cpbcme number. 

(b) In oddition to tho f.,...ing, NrlhAor llOlice ot "'1 redemption of Bon.U 
hcnunder lhall bo gfw.11. by d:it Trustee. •imuhapeaus with 1be mRlcld notk• to bgistind o..,,.,,, bY rq~ ccdilied mai~ onmi&bt d<livoryi«Vi<c, wcl<ctrooi<; mcons tolho 
Municipol s..uri6ca IWkmW.g Boord ond all ~ occuritie1 depositories (u 
..........i,t1 detennillod by the Trustee) lhcn;,, the - oflloldiag-llmlial omounu 
of obllptlotu of typa 00D1prising the Bonds. Such filr1hcr noli<:c wll C<Jntoin the 
infonnat;ootcquittd iA cW.C (a) above. Failure 10 give alt or my portion of such f\zrtbcr 
DOtic:e r.hsll not ill _, _. def at the effootinn.., of• coll fo< ndcmplion. 

(c) Upon,.. poyment of the t<dcmption price af-being redeemed. each 
cbcct « olhcr lrlmlw offimds isoucd for such pulJlOH 111110 bear Ille CUSIP number, lf 
tm)', ldonri!)Ona, 1ly ilme md nwturity, the Bondi beta• red,....cd with tbs pR>O<Cdl of 
1ucb cbcclt or otllornmfar. 

(d) lhl tbl timt of mal!bii of Ill)' notice of op ti-I redemption there .sbsll not 
bt oa. depO&it with dle Tnastet moneya suftlcient to tt.deem aD the: Bondi c•llcd for 
n:dcmption. 1ucb nolXc lhall ftllc; thal JuM Rdemption lhall be cooditioncd upon receipt 
by tfrlc Trultce on Ol'priorto the J1te :fixed far such redcmpt:km olmouC1y1 suffidO'lll to pay 
lilt principal of and iMered on such Bond& to be redeemed and that if 1uch ltlOll.C')'• 1b1ll 
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llOl bin boeu 10 roc:dvcd sold 110tioo lhall M ot"" fon:e one! elfect lttld !be 1-mll 
not he reqain.! lo redeem 111<h Bondi. In die ...,"that Neb morioyt .,.. not so nc:n..d, 
the ndomption shall not la msdc ant the 'l'NUe 1blll within I ,....onobl• lllnc thcRoller 
gift- nolicc., one time, in the same nmmcr in which the notii;e at redcmptjop wa. ,mm. 
tlm mch moneys were not so received.. 

(•) A ""ondJ>Orice ofrcdallpcim lball be pvcn, not lalertban llillety(90)days 
IUbleqDeftt to tli< t<demplion date, to llesistmd Own... of Bond& a< portjou tbm:of 
.redeemed but .mo failed lo dclivcr Boatk li>r nderoJllioo prior to the 60tJo dly fQllnwiAg 
oudlndcmplion dote. 

(I) Jury noli<:e mailed •hill bo COO<lutively premned to have bo<a <lllJy g;..,,, 
whethc:£ or not lhc 0W11cr of such BOD.di nceivu lhe notice. Reuipt of mch .notice ahalt 
not be.• condition precedent to sueh rr:dcmpdort. tnd f1ilun so to re1*ve Ill)' mch natict 
by Olly of S11Ch Rcptcrod OWl>on sblll llOl afl'ect th• 'llllldlty of the proot<diop lbr lh• 
n:dcmption ofllto Bond•. 

(g) Jn cue 10.y Bond ii to be rcdeuned In put only, the notice of~on 
which rclatm to tuch Bond shall s11lc 11.Jo lhlt on or after the redemption d1te., upon 
lllll'tf:dda-of such Bond, a new Bond iu princi~l emount equal to the umedecmed portion 
of ouch Bond will be issued. 

Section 2.10 Partially kc:dcemed Ful'Y Rcgi11g;ttd Bonda Uult:H othuwise lpecific:d irI 
th• r<lotl:d Sapplcmcnllll lndenaw, in cu• •I)' rqistm:d Bond shill be redeemed in port only, 
upo.o the pn:smt1tion of such Bond for IUC.b pctW rcdemptiM. the llsuer shall uccuae and the 
Trustee~ .utbenticaCc: •nd $hall deliver or aime to be deJiv~d 10 ot upcm the writttd onkr of 
the JtqUtcrect Owner thenof, at the cxpmtt ottbl: 1-uer, a Bond or Bondi of die mDC Series, 
interat-admsturity,!n •-leprindpol-OQ\111 to Ibo unredeemed portion afoucb 
rcflJl<ood Bond. llnlCI• oth<rwioc provided by SuppJ .... ntal lndonlun, I portion ohtty Boru! o( 
• dcnomiaotion of mon th&ll the minilllum dGlomiallicm or.ucb s.,; .. op•riflcd - or la lbe 
nilled Bapp-1 lndtmttn"' bo rtdoomod wiD bo in the principal &m<>Unl of such minimum 
dmomimion or 111 imcg:ra1 mu!tiple thereof tad ilti selecting portiOftl of sateh Bc:mds for 
n:dcmptiob. the Trwta: will trat each sueh Boad 11 Rl>f'Neotin.& lhaC om:nber of Bonds of 111Ch 
minimun clcnmninotioo which is obtlined by dl\'idifts the p<incipal amount of mch llOllds by suell 
mininun dc:nomillMion. 

Sectionl.11 ~. All - 1'llidl hove bocft ...,,.ndcrcd for poymta~ 
~ or-.gc. snd Bouckp11Rboocd6om0zrfm<lll<Y' h<ld by the Ttul!0<11cramdcr ct 
NITClldcred to tbc Trustee by the llsucr, shall be~ ond etanlted or othuwiio dcrmiycd by 
the Tnmee and shall not be Risrued; provided. haftwf, that one or more new Bonds &ball be 
iHU<d lo.tllo..,,......omcd pon;.., ofoay Boad withoul cbltJ• to the Rcpter<d aw--..( 

- 2.12 Nonm:11cn111ign pf Bcplt. Utlln• otbelwi1• j)IVYidcd by S~I 
1ndm11n, ;.. t1to sYotJt my Boud mn ao1 he pn.....i 11>r .-)'meo.t ""'°" 111< priocjpol 111<roor 
becomm duc, oilllcr at maturity orothcrwl1c, or at 1bc d&tc uxed fi>r· todomplion tbonot ifftm.U 
rrufficicnt to pq 1UCh. Bond aha II hive been m1de .vaillhle to the Trustee, 11l li1bility oflhe JHUer 
lo the~ Ow=· th .. 1,of for the poymelll of such Bond lhllll forthwith ecue, l<1mino1eand 
be oomplmly cm.:httrged, and lhemipoo it lhllU llo tile duty of tho Truotec to hold _.. fuad or 
funds. widiout liobility to the Regilltl:rcd Owner of "'1Ch Bond for intcrert tbcrC(JJ), for the beacfit 

22 
o!IWl-2090-1U1,'ll.-4 



of the 1t.,;11 ... d Own..- of Nch Bond ..... sull thereafter be-.icted .. elusively"' Neb f\Jod 
or fuAds for 1ny dlim or whatever n1ture on his pMt l'M:remder or on. or with ruptct to, said 
Bond. If WJy 8""d shall - be ..,,...,led fDJ poymcnl witbito four yun fol)ow;.g the dlolc wlM:o 
such Bond bccom. du., wMtber by maturity or otbe:lwise, the Trwtte shell, to the exttwc 
pcnnickd by law. repoy ... the lHuer lhe fuock therdofon: held by it ror poym<ot of &udi Bood, 
and sucll Bood 1lllll Nbject lo lbc def..,.. of ""Y applicable ltalule oflimiralioo tbettafler be an 
un1:ecKT1r::d obligabon of the Jsaucr, -1 the Rcgistcral Ownc:rthcmof Wll ~entitled to look only 
to the Wuet for payment. and then aoly lo the exle:nt of the amount so repaid. and lhe· l11uu rhan 
not be liable Car uty intcn:1t tMrcon •nd shill not be rcprdcd •• 1 truatee ohuch money. The 
proYia.iam of thia Sei:tion 2.12 are &ubject to the provi1liour af Tidtt: 67. Oiaptu 4&, Ut:th Code. 

Soctioo 2.13 ~ Subject ta the provioiom hereo~ the Initial Bonds may be 
1uthcntiC111Cd and dclivmd by t~ Trusree upoa .satisfaction of the condition& specifl~d in Section 
2.S(c) hereof ind Uty additional conditioM :1pccificd irt. lhc Supr>lt:tnental Indenture wtborizins 
rucb s.n .. of Bondi. 

Scctionl.14 Jgwmgs of Priority Bonds No PriorityBoudJ Dlllybc: i111\lCd or incurred 
by tht ka:uet without Che prior wrinen consent of 100% of all R.egi1lel'ed Own.en of the 
Out1taodlns Bonds. 

Section 2.lS Wyanpe pCAdrljtionll Bonds. No Additional Bonds or other indtblednus, 
bonds or nolt1 of the lllun p1yable on a parity with the Bonds and the Security lnllrumenl 
Rl:ptyment Obligations herein authori1,cd out of the Ri:vcnue1 will be issued unit$& the AlloC11tcd 
Elcclricll l'cc llcvcltuco and Allocated Sales TIX RcvC11UC r«ci><d by Ille City during lhe Fi1cal 
Year im.mrdi1tely prc:ccdinx the FilcaJ Y car in which the Additional Bonds, indchtcdnc111, hoods 
or nOlc:I of the Issuer ll'e to be iHued are not leas than 100% of the maximum mnua1 debt service 
in mt)' aivcn Fiaea1 Yur OD the IWD of(i) tho dchl 11eni1;e on tho Addition•! Bondi, indebttdmu, 
bonds or now of tho l.uuer, plus (ii) debt acrvice on the lnitit.l Bonds, and any Additional Bondi 
0C pority iJtdcblcdaw, bonds or DOlcl of the llsucr OC the aty prcviou1(y iJsued aad OUtltendllta 
(ood sccurod by a pledcc of..,. Electri<al Fee Revonue1 or Salco T .. Rcvcnu•) plua (iii) lhe debl 
service cm uy obliptiooa baued by the llsuer and payable mm ..,.,.,... paid oc received under 
Iha S.mco Ccialnoct, toJlad for Clio period ofluch Additional Bondi or parity debl or oblipti.,.. 

Section 2.16 Fgm g(BAQdl The Bonda of eadt Serie& Ind the Trustee's Authcncicllion 
eer1uica1c lhall be in ... bJtantially lltc fonns lhcrcoC s<t forth in the Suppkmailal IDdcotwe 
1uthoritina the illuoce of such Bondi, with ss• omiasiMs. imcrtioM, and Virilrions M may be -wy. de1inhloo, 1Uthcci2ed, lltd pamitted her<by. 

Sectkm l.17 Covgnm 1pin1t Creatim; or Ps:rmittinl Liens. Except for 1he pJed&e of 
Rnmues to secuC¥ peyment of the Bonds end Repayment Obligations herwnder. the RevftNft 
ar. and aliall be free and clear of any pledgo, lim, charge O< ..,cumbra ... tlocrcoo or wi<h rcspcc:t 
tlwmo; provided, howner, that nothing coniaioed herein shall prew.a.t the Issuer ftom UM-a, if 
ud to lbt: extent permitted by law, iDdchkdnc:n having 1 lie.a on RcvCINCS subordinate to that of 
the Bondi lltd ltcpaymenl Obligations. Nothing herein shall be oon1trucd ta limit lb• lorucr from 
incurring addirioMl obli111tions which an: payable &om or secured by 110arcc offC'YCn\IC1 that is 
diff<t...n Crom lhc Rcvcnuco plodgcd hcicin. 
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AltTICLElll 
CREATION OP FUNDS AND AC'COUNTS 

Section 3.1 Ontkm of Construction fund Thtrt ii hereby cauttd and ordered 
tllablished iol the c:uJlody of th• 1\vslN a f\md to bo known u doe "UIA-Morpn C....­
f Wld." There ii hereby created and onletcd c1tablishtd io the C4dlody of the Tndtee a oeparaie 
account witltin lbc Coutruclioo l'Und for ca<h l'rojoct to be clcaiJoaced by lie aamc of the 
apri1icablt ProjectotScrid o1B«wk•nd, ifapplicabk, a acpererc ac:cvuot forcechSerie1 af'Bond& 
and for all grant moneys or other moaoya 10 be received by lb~ lnuer for deposit in the 
Constructkln Fund. 

S~tioo 3.2 Crc1tiog of Rm:nuc; Fupd There U, hcRby crated and ordcmJ established 
with the h1ur:r a fund lo he kn.own. a1 lhe ••UJA.Morpn Rcvm.ue Fund." For acx::ounlifll purposes, 
the Revenue Fund may be redesignattd by dUferent ICCO\Wt names by the !&suer ftom tim"' to time. 

Seetion 3.3 Crqtion of Bond Fund There ii hereby cn::ated and otdet"ed established in 
the custody oflheTNalce a fimd to be known u the 4.JJA..Morp.n Bond Fund." 

Section 3.4 Crgtion pf Sinkjps Fwd Ar.tt!llrrt Th~ ic hereby created and anlcrcd 
established in the custody of the Tluttee a aepantt. eccounl within the Bond Fund an account to 
be latown u llte ''UIA-Morgan Sinking Fuud Accounl." 

Section 3.S Cnatign or Psht Ss:ryjcc Rc1eyo Fund There is hereby ereatW and 
onlcml catoblisltod in lho <U1lody of lhc Trustee a fund to be known as the ''UJA-Morgon Debi 
Service JU:;,.uvc Fund ... 

Section 3.6 Crelion pf Ragve lmtrumr:nt Fupd. There is hereby CJatcd and ordered 
es11blished ill the cwtody of the Tn1111ee 111 fund to be known H rhc ""UIA-Motaart Re.crve 
Instrument Fund. .. 

Section 3.7 Crqtigg of Repair yd Bcpl•mnmt Fund. 'JkR: is hc:n:tJy ~tc:d •nd 
ordered e1t1.blisbcd is the cuslOdy of tbe J1suer • fUnd 10 be: b>own as tbC" ttUIA-Morgm Repair 
and lteplacemomt Fund." 

Sectioa l.B Crgliq! oCBc!wc P»o.4. 'Tbtre ii hereby cmlcd lltd onlcml catablillled 
in <M cuscody oft!te Trustee e fund lo be luto-., the "UIA-Morpn Rehote Fund." 

Section 3.9 Crca1ion or Fun4t Md A«Ql!Ota. NotNichltandini anything oorniaed 
bt:rein to tile contrary, die; TruJC:ee need Mt cnat• Ill)' of the funcb « accouMt referenctd in this 
Article Ill 1IDlil &nch funds er aeccMmtl shall be utiliDd •s provided in 1 Supplcment1l lndc1Uurc.. 
1be Issuer may. by SuppkrnenLal Indenture. autborizc: the creation of 1dditioa.al funds and 
•dditional accounu within any fwlds. 
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ARTICLE IV 
APPLICATION OF BOND PROC'l!BDS 

Upon the IHuan.ce of eath SmH!1 Df Baod11 the proceeda thereof lhall be deposited H 

provided in lhe Supplemental Indenture aulhorizing lhe issuance ofmch Series of Bonds. 

ARTICLEV 
USE OF FUNDS 

Si:ction S. I Use ofCm1tructjoc Fund. 

(a) So laag u ID Event of Deflulc 9hall not ha\-e oeeurrtd end he continuing 
ind '"'•"Pl •• -IC ptOVidod by Supplemmtal lndmturo, moneyt depoaitcd in tho 
•Jllll'O]ll'i•tc account in the Co111truction Fund ohaJt be dilburscd by th• Tlwtcc lo po.y 1h< 
Co1to of 1 Project, In ooch mo within ttirec Bulinou Dlyt (or within ouch longer period 
11 i1 """"'"bly roqqlrod fO liijllidalo in•cohmmf> in th Cunobuotlan Fund if required ta 
make: such paymmt) after the receipt by the Truslce ot 1 written requisition approved by 
an Authorized RcpraicntJttivc of the- lssuer in substatllinJJy the form llJI' Exhibit A .Uached 
hetc1o, stating that the Trustee Mall disbUJ'IC sums in lbe IDIDlla 1pecified by and at the 
diroc:rion of the Issuer to the person or entity dcsi,gMtcd in mch written requisition, l11d 
that the IIDOUD.t Id fmth therein is justly dire and owing: ad COftltitutcs • C~t of 1 Projc:&,,1 
bll!l'cd upon •uditcd, itemized cllims 1ubstantiated in support 'lhcm>f. 

(b) Upon receipt of such rtquisition, the: Truitcc: shell pay the obligation set 
forth in such n:quisilian out of mone:YJ io the applicable account in the Conslluction Fund. 
In T1111kilqi such ~ the Trustee mey r<ly upon Ibo infilrmorion oubmittod in ••ch 
roquiollion. Such poymmtl ohall he preownod lo be mado properly ond tho Tlwloo lhall 
llOI be r<qWrcd lo ....u)' 1bo oppllca1iOJI af ony paymmn &am duo Ccm11n1<tion Fund or to 
inquire into the- lbr whi<h dl1bunomonto are bciDg lll8de tram the Conll!nlctlon 
Fund. 

(<) '!be llmcr llhall deliver to tho Trustee, within 90 daya •fter Ill< <ontplctioo 
of .a Prujtct, a certifkatt tut.1lted by an Authorized RcpruentltiYe of the Issuer stating: 

(i) 1hat such Project bas been futly CGdlplded in. accordance with the 
plans and lpCCifications thc:tcfl.lr, as amended from time to time, and srafins the Wite 
of completiao for such Projecl; and 

(Ui lha1 lhe Projcol bas been fillly poid farond ao claim ordaims exist 
11pi1111 the laucr or 111tnst 1vch Project out ofwbfoh 1 lien ba11ed on 1\1Mt1hla1 
labor 01· mat...W aim or might ripen; PJ~vided, -.,...., tll<I~ mey bo OX<Cpt<d 
&om the fotwaolq cenlfilO!ltion 1Df dtim or cllim1 out at which 1 limi exi1ll or 
might ripm in !ho oven! the 11111<1' intondl lo •-mdt claim or cloimt, In which 
event suoh claim or claims shall be descrlbed M the Tmr'.cc. 

(d) In the ....,,the oertifii:atc filed with theT.-. pURu•utto Se<tion S.l(c) 
herein .shall stale that there is a claim or clllitrui in controvt:ny which create 01· might ripen 
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into a lim., m Authorized llepreaenlltivc oflhc l•ucr lhaU file 11imil1r certificate with 
the Tnuioe wh"" and u ouch •hum or oloim& 1h11l have been llllly poid ar o!hcrwi1< 
dlachupd. 

{c) The Trua:tee JU1d tht lnuer shall keep and maintain adcqoeb: records 
pertaining to e1.ch accmmt within the Comtmction Fund and all dllhurscmcnts: ~. 

(f) Unless olherwi&e specified .in • Supplemental Ia.dc:olwo, upon completion 
of• Project and payment of all costs and expenses incident thereto and the filing with the 
Trustee of doCUJnenlS ttquitcd by tbi1 Section 5.l, any balance m111ining in the ipp]ie11ble 
.wunt iD the Construction Fund rellling 10 such Projoct shall. as directed by an 
Authorized Representative oftbc !SSlla'., be dqiooited in the Bond Fund, to be "f'PJ;a;[, (i) 
toward Ille redemption of the Series ofBmuls is:luc:d to fmanec auch Project oc{ii) to pay 
~l md/or intllWlt next fAllin.1 duo widl nspect lo sum S11.ie1 ofBoml1. 

(I) The Tn.111ee lhall. to tht: ~ tbcn: tta no er.her 1Y11il1ble 1'mdl held under 
the IDdmturc, u11 lh1 remaining 'ftmds in lbe Comtruction Pund fo pay priacipll and 
interclt on lhc gonm at any time in lhe event ota paymcnt default hercnndcr. 

Section S.2 APPlication ofRcvcnuq. 

(1) All R<vonues >hall bo depooitod in tho Revenue Fund and occ:ounted for by 
th<'- '"P""'"' and opar1 from all otbcrmaoeys of the l"""· 

(b} So long as any Bonds an: Olltst.nding. as a first cblrge and lien on. the 
R~ucs. the Issuer 1hall. on or before me fira: BusinciH o.y of cap;h month, transfer to 
~ Tnu;1ct: for deposit into the Bond Fund from the Revenue Fund an amocmt equal to; 

(i) ono 1ixlh (116) ol the intcrcsl fallllll due on tho Bondi au tlle moxt 
....,.odin& lnt....,I Payment Don .ablishod for tho Bondi (provided, -..or, 
lhot 10 Iona as there aro """"'YI~ capJt.alizodintemt on llepooilwllbthc 
Tnllteo kl pay inttirest Oil the Bonds De'Xt comUts due, the l1111Ucr n=d not alloe8tt 
tn the Revc:nnc Fund to pil)' iDtaat Oil the Bonds}~ plus 

(ii) one twelfth (1112) of..,. pcinoipol ond pmnium, if my, filling due 
on the "°"' succeeding principol payment date establiohed for the Bancla; plus 

(iii) one twelfth (l/12) the SiakiDJl Fund lnttallmenas, ir any, falliDg duo 
on lhe ne.xl succeeding Sinkirw; Fund lmllllmenl payment date; 

the 111111 of which shall be sufficient, when added to the exirting baluc:e in die Baad Pund, 
lo pay the principal of, premlurn, If my, IDd ialcre1t on Ibo Bondi pml11]>Uy OD - .. ch 
im.r..tl'a)'men1Date 11 lho ''""" -dDU•dpoyablo. Tho forogoingpn>Yisimmmay 
be - by a SvppJcrocnlll lndmibin 1iJr my s.,.; .. of Bonda bov1111 other thao 
-..I ln!mat Paymonl Dat11. ID Ibo nut lhe blucr shall baV< deposirecl for 1ny 
moDlh 1ooo than tho amounts requir<d punmnt m (1), (li) or (iii) obovc, tho Trml<c llholl, 
within five Business Days of Sllch prymmt cldieje:ncy and unless otherwise cured by the 
IHaer during that period. notify the City of the mnount of 1ucb deficiency, wilb a copy of 
such notice to be sent to the Issuer. Funher, melt notice ta the City ~II iududc: • dcmlnd 
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for paymcnl ftom rhe Alla<:aled Electrical Fee Revenues .and Alla<:atcd Sales Fnmdlise 
'fax kCVl."1tUe of the City to the amount of 1uch deficiency, 111 in 1coord1m:e with this 
provisioM of Section 3.:5 of the Service Contr1.c1.. An.y receipl of Allocated Electrical Fee 
:R~c:nui=:I a:ndA1loClltl;d S.li::•Tqx Rcvcnui;by1hc Tnu<tce from the City tiliall be dcpo111itcd 
into the Bond Flmd md appliod puml8llt to (i), (ii) and (iii) above. 

(~) As a scp;:Qnd ~argi; and licn on thc Revenues {otJ. a pari1y bti:ia). the w .. er 
shall make thi= following tnmsfen 10 the Trustee: on or before the fit\"nth day of Cilt;:h 
month of each year: 

(i) To fhe extent the Dobt &rviot Reserve Requiroment. if my, is oot 
funded with a Reserve Inacnnnent or lnsttum.e.nt!, (A) to the accounts in 1he Debt 
Service Reserve Fund any amount! required hereby IDd by any SUpplcmc:Jltal 
Indenture to 11cc\mnllab: thCRin the upplic:Jbh: Debt Service Rekl'Ye Requimnent 
with.respect to cacb Scrie1 of Bond~ at the: times and in the amount! provided hi;:rcln 
and in ll11Y Supplcmontal Indenture and (B) if fundl shall have been withdnown from 
1:11 acco11J1t in che Debt Service Reserw Fund or any account in. die Debt Sctvic:~ 
Reserve Fund ii at any limi; funded io an amount lQls than the 1ppli1;1lblc: Debt 
Service R.ccCJYe kcquircment, the IMuer .&hall d"f>Dsit Revenu~s in truch 1ccount(1) 
in the Debt Service Ri=:1C1VC Fund sufficient in amount to restore such 1ccount(s) 
withio """ year with tw<lvc (12) subotanlially "1juol poymeftb duriJ>a •uoh p<riod 
(unle,. otherwise provided fur by the Supplcmontal Indenture goveming the 
applicable I>eht Service R.esen•e Requiremenl); or a ntab!e portion (based on the 
amount to be tmlsfemd pul'Sllant 10 Seclion 5.2(cXii) hereof) of remaining 
Revenues if less than the amount neccnary; and 

(ii} Equlilly 11:.id ralably to the Recou:nU: of the Re11erve ln:atrument Fund 
with rapeet to all Reserve Tnstnuni:ntJ whieb ITC in cff'e..t 1U1d ~ cxpcf;b:d to 
continue in i;ffcct after the e.nd af such mooth, such amllUnt of lhe remaining 
RcVC:dUCS, or 1:1 ratable portion (hued on the amount to be transferred punuant to 
Sc:p;:.tion 5.2(c)(i) hc:i-..ot) of thi; 11mount 10 l"CID.lljning if lca11 thi1n the BJD01JI1t 
ncce1111ry, the.tis required to be paid. on or before the next 1ucb monthly tnmfer or 
deposit of Revenui:s into the Rcserw Tnstrum«lt Fund, to the R~e Instrument 
Provider pursuant lo any Rt:serve IMtnunent Asreement, other thin Reserve 
Instrument Cosll, in order to c~HLW tb.e RctuVe Instrument Covenge lo equal t1w 
Reserve fnlltrumcnt Limit within one year :from any da.11w date under the Reserve 
hi$lr\lfi1Cttt, 

(d) AR a third chltgc lt1.d lien on the Rcvc:nu'2, the Issuer shall cat:IC to be paid 
from lhe ~e Fund from time to time as the Issuer shall detenninc, all Operation and 
Mainti;nanc:o Expellllt:.5 of the bmc:r as the same: b~omc chJc IHld JJllY•hle, and thernpon 
such ""'°"'°' shall be promptly poid. 

(c:) ~a fourth chargi; and lim on tbi; Revenues, the INuc:r aht11l ®pwil in the: 
Repair and Replacement Fwld any amount required hereby and by any Supplemental 
Inden1ure to accumolate lhercin the Repair and Rcplacomcnt Jlcscrvc Requirement. ID the 
event that the 1JDO\lnt on dcpCl!ilit iJ1 the R.epait and Rcpltct:ttllem Fttnd ah111l evet be Je111 
than the Repair and Replacoment ReseJVC Requirement for the Bonds then Outstanding 
(or, after the i11uaD(le of Additi.oMl Bonda., lhe amo.m.t required to be on dcpmit therein), 
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&om time lo lime, lhc Itsucr shall deposil lil the Rep~ir and ~laccment Fund from the 
Revenue Fund all rern1ining Revenues of the UIA-Morpn Component Network after 
poymonll requir<d by SectioOJ 5.2(b1 5.2(c) md S.2(d) herein have been made until th= 
i& cnt depo,.ir in the Repair and Replacement Fund an 1mounr equal to the Re.pair and 
Repla cement Rc$c:rvc Requirement. Subject to the proviti:ons of Section ~.2{.f) herein, this 
provi&ion is nol intended lo limit, and &bill not limit, lhc righl of the lssuer lo depa1H 
additional moneys in the Rcpair •d Rq>1accrnent Fund from time to time as the [ssucr may 
dclenPine. 

(I) Subject to making the: foregoins depooits, the "'"'"'""'Y use the balance of 
the R.eveitue1 accounted for in the Revenue Fund for any of th~ following: 

(i) redemption ofBonds; 

{ii) refinancing, refunding, or adv1ncc refunding of ony Bonds; 

(iii) any micnmts owine from the Issuer to the City under the Service 
Contract; or 

(iv) for Ill}' other lawful pwpoN. 

Scctiot:15.3 lJJe of Bond Fund. The lsaucr nit)' din:c:t the Truatee, pun~t LO a 
Supplementll Indenture, lo awte •dditional 111;!.}lnmts within lhi; Bond Fund for l'I 1qJ11111l1; Scric:s 
of Bonds Wld... tho Indenture. 

(•} The Trustee: lhlll make dcpotil:! to the Bond Fund, as and wbm ret't:ivcd, 
15 follows: 

(i) 

(ii) 
hereof, 

a.ccn1ed interest recW.ved upon the isswmcis of any Smics of Bonds~ 

all moo~ p.,..ble by the houOJ" •• •pco;jfied in Seotioa ~.2(b) 

(iii) any IIIlOUDt in the Combwtion fund to the c:Jtkut required by or 
directedpunuaat to SC<tiou S.1(1) hereof upon completion ofa Project; 

(iv) all moncystransft:m:d from thi; Debt Scrvia: Rc:1i:rve Fund l;lr fimn 
a R.Mervc Instrument or Instruments then in cffi:ct 15 provided in .Section S.S hereor, 
and 

(v) all other moneys rcccived by the Trustee hereunder when 
accompanied by directiom from the penon depositing ruch moneys thlt such 
monoy1o 1rt to be paid into the. Bond Fund. 

(b) Except ;111 provided ira Section 7.4 hereof and as provided in this Sec1i001 :5.3 
.and C:;ic.~pt 11 oth~ provided by Supplt:111c:11td lhdehtutc, tnOitq1 in 1® Bortd Fut1d 
shall be expended J01ely for the following pmposea ind in the following order of priority: 

(i) on or befim each IntCRlt Payment Date for l:llCb Si;ric;s of Bonds, 
the amount required to pay the interest due on &ucb date; 
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(ii) OD « bc:fan: IKh Principe] Imlelllllea! U doto. the -
roq•ind to poy Ille Prmc;prJ lnmllmont due oa oudl due date; ond 

(lil) on « befOI~ eocb rcdemptlon ilolc Car eouh Serice of Bood.o, the 
amount required top.aythc redemption price ofmd ICCIUcd interest on auch Bonds 
thcu to be Rd.caned. 

Such amowita sluoU b• "!'Plied by lb< Paying Agw lo poy Priocipal IDsllllDt<nll and 
redemptioo priu of. Ind ioo:rcs1 on Iii< n:l1ted S.riea of Banda. 

The Trustee ab&ll P9Y OUl o(the Bond Fund to the: Scc:urity bwtr.unent Issuer, ifany, lhat 
has i.nued a Security lmtrmne:nt wilh respect Co such Seritt of Bondi an amount equal to 
ony S«Urily IDslnlmeDI ll<payment Obligation !hon due and payablo to such Soc:uril)' 
lmtrumml llrucr. l!UqM .. othvwiN 1p<cifi<.d in 1 rdllOCI Supplemonlll lnd•nlw< oil 
ouch Sewrily lno!nmlalt llcpoymCdl OblipcioM abll be pold on I ]lO!'ily with the 
ptyment& to be: mode with re.ipl<I lo prillcipal ond - aa lhe Bond.o; provided thol 
tmlOUllls poid llllder 1 Stcllrlty l .. 1Nmot>11holl be: applied ocly to JllY tho n1latod Serie1 of 
Bcmdio. If p.,,_.. ii eo made oo Plodaod Band. bald for the beneftt of the Security 
Iostn1.tnenl luuer, a E:IDITC5poodins payment OJt the Soc:mily" lnl1rumall Repayment 
Obligation shaU be deemed to b11Ve been made (withoul reqairing an •ddidou1l payment 
by the Issuer) aud tb.e Trustee shall kt\.'P its rccardJ ll~. 

The Issuer beret.y nthoriza JJJd directs lhe Trustee to~ sufficient funds from che 
Bond Fund ID poy prift<ipll of .00 int=st on die - and on Security INtTUmcnt 
Rq>•ymeM Obliptitms • the sa:ne bc:come due and Jll1'blc and to make said filNl• .. 
withdl'lwn 1voilable to t!oc 'l'nl>t .. and any Paying ApDI f« the pwpo50 of poyU\g ta id 
Principal and iDltl'tAlt. 

(c) Al\a-JIOJmmlt ill full o!the!'rittcip•I ofomllalmat on {i) 111 Borulo ltoued 
herounder (or 1ft..-pnmol011 hos bom mod• for th• poymcnt tbe<eof" prvvided lwnoin 10 

that ouch Bonda 111 oa loepr Olltltonding); (il) all ,.,_ "'lating to all ou1111ndlna 
Security 1 .. - ._.,t Obliplioo.I and llcoenc Instrument Repayment 
Obli,gotiom in ~ with tl-.cir r<opccti>< tcnm; llld (iit1 tbe feet, c:hotict, and 
exp.nm of lhc Trotlce. tile Payina A&ent and any Olhu llllOUDts required lo be poid 
hereunder ot under "'1 St+pplcmcncal lndenmre and madcl' 1ny Seanity Instrument 
Agreemeol and under my Resorve 1 .. trum<'Pl Agm:mcal; all ..,aunt.a .-cmainin& in the 
Bond Fund 1h1ll be paid IO the lH11cr. 

Section !i.4 llg p(Sintjng flmd As;cow1 

(al Tiie Tftllfee 11Wl 1pPl7 ""''C)'S ill the SillJcilla Fond Aocoual to the 
-.Ut of 111\Y Tonn Bondi req•lred to be retired by opomlian of the Sil>ki.a• Fund 
AoOOW1t under lhe plOY!Ao111 of end in occonlonoe widt the Supplemenlll Indenture 
1uthoririllf tho bnmoe of 1u<b Tenn Bond~ either by IWlkniplion in occonlanOI with 
IUCh SUpplemtntal lndmtme or, 1t 1he direction of ta.. 111111'1'1 purcha1e of 1uch T~n'n 
Bonds in the opu m.arkd p.riot to the date on which 11otice of1he redemption of sud! Tenn 
Bonds k Jivcn punullld hereto, at a price nor 1o exceed cbc tttkrnpion price of .uch Term 
Bondi (plus acciued ial...a wbicb will be peid from - in tbc: Bond F'IDd otbu than 
those in Ille Siakiaa Faod Acoo1mt). 
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(b) Oltlhe-lyda1oofl!l)'Tamlloodo.lhe1'rulteolho~opp~lb-ya 
an hnd in the Sinking Fond Account for tho PIJDlatl of tho prittclpol of Olldt Tmn llanda. 

Section S.5 U1e of DBbt Smiqo Bcw:ryc f'hnd. Bxnpl u otherwise pro¥1ded In tbl1 
Section 5.5 or by Supplement.al Jrulenfuro, and "'bjoot to the Immediately fol lawinj: IClllellco, 
monc)ll in each accolmt in the Debt ScrvJce Re.rve Fund shill ai .Jl ~s be mainllioed in an 
en1ouol not lell than the applicable Debc Suvicc R.cxrve R.cqWrcmcnt, if any. la "1alllling the 
emount an dcpolic in t:al:h account in cM Debt Saviac Rcsc:rw Fund, the amount of f1Ct1 RCICJ'W 
ln•tNlhellit Con:ngt: wiU he treated 11 an am.aunt on dtpm~ in lucb a~ in the Or.ht SQ'Vicc 
Re&erve Fuad. Eocb Supplemental Inden- outboriziag the i11u1nce ofa Sa;.1 e>f llcmAb mil 
specify thr: Debt Service Re1ervc: R.equireUJt,illf., if lb)'. •ppticab)c to web Serie1 whith amount 
lbal!, ualess olhcrwiae specified by lhe retpecti"" Supplem•ntal lodonlur<:, cithor be (a) ckpwilod 
inuncdilrtdy upon. the Issuance and delivery of AllCh Series fi"om (i) proceeds from the: ale thereof 
or from &D1 allw le&ally ov&il•bl< ....,..., or (ii) by a h1erve IMll\lmcut or !no-., or (iii) 
ony c-~of, (b) deposited ft<>m llVlilablohvcnues ov<r the period oftiato ~lied 
there!., « (c) depot!t11d ftom oey oo:abimlicm of (a) and (h) abcrve; pnMdad -..... tho 
l'cftgoios provilimt 1111111 be 1ub)<<1 to Iha nquirm>cllls of oey Sccur'.ty Int- kNCr •<t 
forth in the R:latcd SUppkmental Jndcncurc. 1! .t my lime the amount on deposit in -'Y account 
of the Deb1 Senricc.Rcaervc Fund is lc11 lhan the minimum. amount lo be m.intaintd1he:re.itt taadcr 
this S«:tion S.S. the Ttu1ttt is ~quired on bthlllf ofdtc Issuer to exercise lJIA'1 nmedim uoder 
the Service Comract to collect Revenues 1ufficic:at to R!ple:uish the Dtbt Senticc Rc:scrw Fund. 

1n the ..... fUnd.o on deposit in'" .-or the D.i.t Smnc• Resem: l'uad .. needod 
10 malct up any defii:iendes in the Bond Fund u afmemcncioned, •ad tla£n:: is imvfficient cub 
1vlilablc ;,, ...... ·-or the Dd>l Sen1cc Reoen. Fund to moke up sucb ddiciaq 1od 
Re1erve l"Mt:rwnmti 1pplit11ble to JUc:h Series are ill effi::ct. the Trustee shall immedi11t.ly make a 
demond for _,, oa 111<h Rosorvc lnl1nmlmlo, to tbe maximum '"""'' outboriDd by ... h 
R<serw Instnanenl'I, la tho omounl noc;_,- to nmko up ••ch deflol.,,.y, md lrmnedialcly 
d1pooit mch poyment upon receipt thOnlOf into tho Bond Fund. Thcreofter, the 1-tholl b• 
obl(caled ta mmtate the Reserve hutrwh<n!I .. pnwicled la Section 5.2(e)(il) ltoteia. 

No _.,.. lnltnlment slUlll be: oltowed to toqJir< oc terminate while di< maled Seti<o of 
Bonds .. Oatstoadina 111\len and ..,;1 ouh hu bc:en ckpolited Into tit< .. 1.1<d -- oftli< 
Debt Scrvi4» '.GICIVt: Fund. or a new Reauve lnllrumcnt has been issued in place of lht expiring: 
or terminltiq Rnc:rvc lnstrumcnt, or any ~ thereof in an amount « to provide 
cavci~. 11 the case may be. at Jeut equal to tbc 1DOUDt roqui..-"ed to be m.ainttincd in the rdated 
1ccowUofthc: Debt Service Reserve PWtd. 

Ex«pr .. athcfwitc provi<lcd by I S"1'1'1-l lnd£ntu«:, mol>C)'l 11 any lime'"' .i.po.;t 
Ml the aa:ount of 1be Debt Service ReaetYC Ftm.d in cz.ccn of the amounr. ~uired to~ maialained 
t11c .. n. (!llkina U.o '""'"" tho 1m01101 of ..- Jto•orv• llllaumw C'OY ... ) •n bo 
IJlllOrotrod.,. Ibo Truateo to tho Boad Puod II i..t anoe oocb y-. 

Maa1J11Oildcpoailla1ny a«OUnt oflbe Ddll Servioe Re1IM! Fund 1holl be med to molce 
up any ddi<iendea In tllc Bond Fund only far lhc Serieo of Bonda 10""'11d by Mid •CC'OUlll Ottd 
MY Jlmcnc Imtnlmenl &ha11 only be & .. wn upon. with l'cspcct to the Seric:t of Bc:mdl for which 
1uct. -.e Imtmnem""' oblliaed. 
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Whcnp;vcr thr:: ba1a"i;e in ah atca\Ull of the Debt Service Reserve F11nd exceeds the amounl 
required to redeem or pay the Blatcd Series of OutJtandjng Bonds, inc1uding: int~rt accl'Qcd 1o 
the dak. ofp1ymcot or rcdcmpOon. and premium, if any, due. upon redemption, lhc Trurtce, shall, 
up0111 ~if11 of• written direction of the lssuer, tranlfer tbe amount iu tbt related account of the 
Debt Scnricc Rcsc1vcFund la the Band Fund lo be applied mi the next :sueceeding lntereit Payment 
Dale to the paymenl and rcdemplion of all the .related Series of Outstanding Bond&. 

Scction !5.6 Use of Rc!CC'YC lndnlJIJenl f>Jnd. There &hall be: paid ioto the Res~rve 
lnslnlment Fund the amou.nu rcqufred hereby .and by .a Supplemental hJde:oture to be .so paid. The 
amounts in the lteserve lnstrume"t Fund shall, from time ta time, be applied by the Tn.istee on 
behalf of the £s1uer to pay the Reserve Imtrum.cnt Repayment Obligations which arc due ind 
payable Co any R.a crve Imtrumcnt Provider under any appliciblc: Racrve In5trumcnt Agreement. 

Section .S. 7 Us.; er Repair and Rmlesmumt Fund AH mon.qr. h1 the Repair and 
Reple11;:cmCJ1t Fund may be drawn ob am! used by the hsuet ft11• the plll'pOSe of (a} paying the cost 
of unusual or cxtraordinuy mDintelllnee or repairs of the UlA-Morpn Component Networki {b) 
paying the costs of any rencwaJ.1, renovation,, improvemmb, expansion or replacements to the 
UIA-MorgBll Co~tNetwork; and (c} payirig the cod ofanyreplaceme11.t of buildings, lines, 
equipment and other related facilities, to the emnt the 1amc arc: not paid u pwrt of the onlinvy 
and nonn1I expense of the operation of the UlA·Morgan Component Network. 

Funds shall be deposited monlhly from available Revenues in sm:h amounts .u DUI)' be 
r<quircd from time to time by co ch Supplcmcntol Jndculure umil rile Repair end Roplocement Fund 
has an amount equivalent to the Repair and Replacement Requirement Any defk:imcies below 
the ltep1ir aud lteplaoema1it Ri:quimnont shall bo made up from Revenues of the UIA-Componcnt 
Network available fm· mch pmpo11es. Funds at any time on deposit in the Rcpejr and Replacement 
Fund in excess of the amount required to be maintained therein may, at any time, be used by the 
lssuCT for any lowful pwpo"" 

Section 5.8 Use afRebate Fund. 

(a) If it bocomca nec,.suy for rile l.5olier to comply with rile rebote 
roquir<m""" of the Code and rile Regulation•, the Ttunce shall crtablish and th=oftcr 
maintain. :110 long 1s lhc: Bondi which arc a:ubje.c.t to $11.id rebate te.quirements are 
Outl'tandin.1. • Rebate Fund, which shall be held separate and apan ftom all othtn" funds 
and accOJ.LnU ~st:tblished tm.der thi£ [ndenture and from &fl other moneys of the Trultce. 

(b) All amounts in the ltebate Fund, including income ell'Ded from inva.tment 
of the fund, shall be held by the Ttusteo ft'ee and clear of the lien of the lndcntun:. Jn the 
ev~t lh~ amount ot1 dcpo&it in the RdJatir; Futtd c:~eds the aggregate amount ofRebatable 
Arbilragc: for one or more Series of Bonds, as verified in writing by an iDdependent public 
accounlant or other qualified profeuional at the time the Rc:ba11.ble .Arbih'age is 
determined. the excess amount r<emaining after payment of the Rebatable Arbitnige to the 
United States 1ha11. upon tho Issuer's written n:queit accomplllicd by the dctcnnin•tion 
report, he poid by the Tninoc lo the bsue:r. 

(e:) The l11NCT .11hall dc:t\:Tminc the •mount of Rchai.ble Arbitnge ar1d the 
tiorresponding ltcquired Rebate Deposit with respect to each Series of Bonds on each 
applicable Rebate Calculltion Date IUd tab all oth11 actions ncceSYT)' to comply with the 
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rebate rcquircmenll of the Code. and the kesuJations. The Issuer sboll depO&it inlo the 
Rebatt Fund the Required Rebate Deposit. if any, with rcspecrto each Serii:s of Bonds (or 
in&trurt the Trust" lo trlll'sfer to the Rcb11ote Fund mOQcya; rcprcsenliDB such Requited 
kebm Deposit from the Fundl. and AccoUDll held under die lndenhn"e other than the 
Rebate Fund) or 1h•U otherwi1e make payment of lhe rebate to be paid to the United States 
al the time:• tCql.lttcd by the Code and the Regulations. [f applicable, the ksucr &hall imtrucl 
in writing th11 Thuitc:c: to wilhdr!tw from the Rebate Fund .,.d pay Jny n:betc over IO the 
United Statca. TIN: detenninaciot1. of Rebatable Arbitrage made with mpect to each 1ueb 
payment date and with respect to anywithdnwal .nd p11ymenl to lhc l1suer from the Rebate 
Fmtd pursu1nt to the Indenture murt be verified. in writing by an independenl pubHc 
accountant or other q_uaJjficd professiOMl. The TNll~ may rdy conclu1ivcly •PDD and 
1hall be fully protected from all )jabi1ity in nlying upon the l•uer'1 determinations., 
calculations, and certiticatimu required by this Section S.S, and the Tru&tee shall have no 
~pon1ibili1y to indepcmleutly make any calculations or dcmmination or to review tb<e 
Issuer'• determinations, calculations, ind eertifieariot11 required by llU1 Socrion S.8. 

(d) The Tr\lsLcc. :!!hall, at least 11;ix.ty {60} days prior 10 each Rebiale Calculation 
Dile, notify the l1suer of the reqWmnents of thi1 Section 5.8. By agreeing to gjvc: thi1 
notice , the Tnu;lce usumes no ruponsibililywhatsoever for compliance by the Issuer with 
the requirements of Section 148 of the Code or my 1ucce11or. The Issuer expressly agrees 
that (notwithl1audiDg 1111)' olhor provi>ion of rile !Julc.,turc) 1111)' tioilure of di< TrtlSIO< to 
give any such notice, for any ra1on whatloever, lhall not c:auae the Trustee to be 
reapcmsible for any failure of tho 11suer to comply wjlh the requirements of 111Cd Sei:tion 
148 or any liUCOCOCNDf thereof: 

(e) The provisions of this Section .5.8 may be amended or deleted without 
Boodowuc:r consent or poticc, Upon receipt by the Iuui:t and the TtlH«:e of an opinion af 
nationally recognized bond com:1cl th.It 1uch amendment or delcrioo will not .dvc:n:cly 
affi:ct the cxcludll!llbility frum @:f'OS! income of interest on the Boruh. 

Section 5.9 Jnvesttncnt of FUnds. Unless provided otherwise by Supplement:al 
Indenture, any mDDeys in tho Bond Fund, tbc Comtruotion Fund, tho Rcoetve lnslrumcnt Fund, 
the Rebate. Fund, the Dr:bt Servia: Reserve Fund, or the Repair and Repl1.C'ett!.ent Fund shall, at 
the di1cretion and authorintion oft~ 1Huer1 be invetted by the TrWitec in Qullified IrM:1tmenlJ; 
provided. however, that mon.eyg on deposit in the Bond Fund and the Reserve lnslrument FunJ 
niay otdy be invested in Qualified. Inve&tments having a maturity date of one year or le SB. If no 
written 1Uthoriz.ation i1 given to the Tru1tei;,, Jmn1C)'6 .shllll be h.c:ld u.ninvcsted, Slich invesimcnts 
shall be held by lhe Troll"8, and when the Trustee detemUru::s it necessary to mi= du: moneys in 
the Funds for the purposes for which the. Funds were crcaled, it lhall liqu.idale •t prevailing market 
prices 1s much of the in'VQtn1cnU as mf1Y be necesuiy and apply the procetds co Ill.Ch purpose5. 
All income derived from lhe investment of the Comtrucrion Fund, the Bond Fund, lhe Rc:tCrvc 
Ins1nlmmt Fund ind the R.cbate Fund shill be m1intained in said respective Funds ind disbursed 
along with the otll.er money.s on deposit therein as h~iD provicL:d.. All incom-= derived from the 
jnvesCmCDt oftbe Debt Savicc R.e1CJVC f\Q:id .ball hi:: di11ibun:cd in acconlaru:c wilh Scctian S.3 
heno1, except as otherwise provided by Supplemimcal Cndcnture. All moneys in the AevemM! Fund 
may, at the dilicrttioo of the Wuer. be inve~d bytbe lssuer in Qualified lnvertments. 

The Truslee 111111 hive no liability or responsibility for any Jou resulting from any 
invesemcnt mML: in accordance with thcprovjs.iom of this Sectioo .S.9. The Trot tee dmll be entitled 



tn 111ume thlt eny in.vellmetlt. wldch 1t lho time ofpurch•~ is 1 Qulllllcd Invcatmont. rcm1im • 
Qualifitd Investment thcr.ftw, U.nt rtn:ipt of written notioe ar infbml1tlon to the contr.ary. 

The Tnulee may, to the a.ttnt permitted by the State MOMY MJ.nagcm~t Act ot 1974, 
Title SI, Chapter 7, Ulllh Code, mike any and all investments pennitt..i by tho provision• of tho 
Indenture thRlugh its own ocauy afits aftili•tc:'a iJlvq.lmcnt ~. 

The !•suer ""'-lcdtl<o O..t to tl:c extent regu111iom of Ibo oomptrollcr o( the CUJTCncy 
or any other ri:gulatory entity annt the l&SUc:r the right to nceive brobn&~ confinnationti of the 
tccurity transactions as dacy oecur, the lnuer 1pc:cifically waives n:ccipt of such confinnations to 
the uteru pennined by law, The Trvst .. wiU furnish Ille r- periodic cub tnn>DC!ion 
statements which includit 1he ckcail for all investment tr<tnsaction1 made by~ Ttustu hc:rnnder. 

The !....: 1tt1y l...a! dlo -· ... depmit in the Jqlli' aod J\cphctmall Fllod u 
pcnnitlod by 1pplicable low. 

S«:~on 5.10 IllllLflllda. All moneys 111d •tour!U'" ....i...I by tho Trultee under tho 
proviliont of this Jndemute llllll be trusl futsdJ und" the terms bereohnd &hall not be aubj~t lo 
lien or atachm~nt of l'DY enditor of the St1te or any po!itiml mbc:tivislon1 body, agency, or 
lnattutnentality thereof or of the bluet and shall bot be subject to mpprorprietion by any JcgillaUvc 
body or otherwise. Such IOoD~ •d securities Jhall be held in trust am:! 1pplicd iu •cconl!lnce 
with the proviJions hcreot Unlca ml until disbursed pummit la tlu: terms her<0~ all such 
money< •nd leO\lrili"' c...a tlu: inc<Jmc thcrcfrorn) shall be held hy the Tru•tec .. 1ccurlly for 
payment of the principal of. PRmiam. if any1 and interest on the Bonda and the feee tnd c:xpcn•e1 
o(tlu: Trustee p•yable lu:mJadcr. 

Section 5.11 Mrf'gd qCV,J11!fjop and frMucney pfyelvtjgp la ~omputiuf the amount 
In ~ ftmd or llC<OWll, Qualifiod lnva- th1ll bo valuod llt -bl. cxolutiw of accrued 
intmll. Wltll mpcot lo1D li..ta llld occounta, -Oii lholl -.ur......Uy, actpt ill tllo 11Vtot 
of a withdrawol hm the 0.'b( Se<vko Ro1rrvo Funcl, wh._,... -'1itle1 shoU bo Yllued 
immedille(y after auch willlclnwol. 

ARTICLll VI 
GBNllRAL COVENANTS 

Section 6.1 Qmm1 Cgysnmts. The Issuer hereby COVCllUUI and •&THS with each and 
every Registered Owner of :he Bciods iatued h4=rcundcr. Secmity lmtnamcot W.Ucr, and Reserve 
lnstnnnent Provider u follows: 

(1) Wbilell!Q'oflh• principal ofmd m..-oatll< Bondi m ou111andinr1nd 
11Z1J1•id, or any Ropoy-1 ObUptiOCll.,. outmndin&- ..... 1ati011 or othot ·-••t 
oftlte Oovtmiqllodyafllc r....,, 1pplylna tbel\o-:btho (IO)'I"""' of the Bondi 
Olld the Rtpaymeal Obu,.dml Iha!! be incvacablc ulllil.,. Boadl llldlor ~ !llplymmt 
Obligations have bca pai4 in lhll 11 to both prii>oipol """ iAl<Rst, eud la not subject to 
amendment in any nmraG"which would impair the rigld5 or the holdc.n of those Bonds or 
the Repayment Oblipliont wb;ch W<>uld in my way jeopll'llh< the ti=ty p•yin<nl o( 
priJK:ipal or interat wbca due. f Furthenl'H1n:, tlric R~1;1 from all JetVice.s of the UlA-
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Mmpn CompOllCDI Network to tlu: City - Ill• Service C'Olllrlct and 1'I all end usora 
c:ontmnplmd by tho Semce ContrlCC shall be 1ufficicnt to poy the Op«ation ind 
Moi-o Bxpo111e1 or the tnA-Mmpn Companoct Network lftd to pnMdo nmneys 
for each Bond Fund Year wfficicnt to meet UlA '5 payment abliptians under this 
IudcDtairc. Tiu: lNUCf l&f'CCS that should itl atu11111I fiaancill 1i.tcmcot made in at:cordlnce 
with the provisiom of Section 6.l(d) hr.Roi ditclose that durini the period covc:ml by web 
financial 111.temerit the R~ues wen: not It Jean ~qual to the above requirement. the 
lltuer may modify its nte1, re .. 1JJd chosg<o.] 

(b) Th< Issuer will tr11intaic the UIA-Morg1n Component Netwmlc lllld die UIA 
Netw\llkiD good cmdition a.ad opawtc tt.c same in ao efficient llllMCI". 

(c) EadlRcpstcred OWna-, SccurilJ Jnst....,,..,t lrsuer l!ld a.a.,,.--., 
Pnmdcr Wll ban I right, Jn tddltlon to 1Jl allwriglt1' afl'onlod It by Ille lllWI ofd!o Sllto, 
10l!IPl1to&odobtolnli-lft)'<DW\of-tjurl•dlotlon1uob~orard<r•m1y 
be-ry to requirl th1 l11uer lo diorae or colleot re11D111~ll '"'"' for 1...X.. -1i<d 
bylbolJIA.MorpnCompoc<DtNc-..mci111t1'1moot1llrequiremen11-IDOof 
any applicable .Reserve lMtrumem ~. 

(d) So Iona 11 ony prin.;pal lllJd iuterest payments o( tho Boods ore 
~. or any Repayment Obliptions me outstandins, proper boob of l'OCCJ!'cl and 
- ..nu be kept by th1 1 .. uer teporate ond opart from all oth11 recorda IDO "°"'""'ts, 
lhowing complett 100. corrtct cmricl of .n tnnsacti.on1 rd&tins to the tJJA-Moipn 
Compoucnt Network. Blob Rept....t Own«, Seourity lmlrwlcnt IHuer IDO Raen•e 
~ Provider, or any duly authorized agent DI' •gc:n(I thereof a.bill hive the rigbt at 
aD .-omble time• to IMpeet all......_"'"°""" l!ld data relatin&tbct<to ...i 1o ......,_ 

die IJIA-Mcqlll Componont N-&"'II' u oehcwilo J1<1>Vldld heroin, the '"""" 
fllnher ..,.e, - k will within two hundnld tn (210) days followfna the clole of each 
Boad l'wld Y-caw• .,, 1udit ohucll boob llld ICCOUll1' to bo madl by•• ia&pca4cot 
finD of cortifiod public 1c•cu11tan111 tbawm&tllereccipts ond dilbwalmmta tbr-of 
the ._., 1od the UIA-Moqm Campanmt Notwodr ind that aucb IWdll wlD be 
... illl>l<:fi>t in$pccllon by ca.,j, Rtgim.d °"""',Security hla"""'cnt IN-...i hllerve 
lnstrumcnt Provider. 

All apcms .. incurred In compiling the inlivm>tion n:quirod by this Sectica 6.1 ohall be 
regarded and paid 1s an OpcraUon and Mai.....,,ce E>pensc. 

Section U firn Lien Bonda· Pppljty of I ieos. The Bonds and my Scrmity 
Insttumcnt ~ ObUplion1 corulituim • irrnoclblc lic:u upcm. Che bvtnuc:s, rubonlimtc 
to any Priority Bonds Wued pursuant to Secrion 2. 14 hc:n::in. The l11utr covenant• dlat the Bond .. 
and S«:urily lnllrumcnt R<paymtnt Obll .. tlom .bma!lor 1uthorized 10 b< l11ued and li'clm time 
"'timo--.IU,. ... equitably ind Rlllbly oecmed by a tim on tho llov«NH md "'"1111111 be 
"'1ld .. to Ill)' priarity""" ovwth• other in the 'PP°*""' oCcbe Rom111111 r...,cllna attlu:timc 
or rim•oftiu:iMuance of the Bondi or dcti...,. ors...uy IN!Nmeulll, it bei!11111elotCDtiOll o! 
the l11urthotthm. lhall bo no priority....,.,. the Bonds orlho Smuitr lnllrumcnl ._.,,. 
Oblig- ttprdlcu of the fact thot tllcy may he actually ;,.ucc1 UJll/0< deliV<ml 1t dilf<mtt 
timea. 
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Arly ouJamnent or pledge from tbeb•ucr •o• ~ ""1-Pf<widerof(a)plOCccds 
of tlic isouonce and Ille of Bo .. d1, (b) Rov- or (e) Fund1 e1tobl;,ool hcrcbr, ineWing 
.......,....., if 111y, thcn>of. ;. and lllal be ·-k> the -ipmenl and pledae effected 
hereby to Ille RAlfiaa'oel OWIMn of .. s...ls and to die Secority lnltnlmonl 11 ...... 

&ctioa 6.3 PmncnJ oC Prips;joal and fnkreU. The Iaue:r oo"lltl&Dll that it will 
punctutlly poy « e....., lo be poMl the Priocipal of llld inlereSI on evr:ry Bond isaucd h<Ruodcr, 
aay Security lnStt11111<11t RcpcymcM Obligation< and any Ra..,.. ln&trw»enl Rcpeymcne 
Obliptioo1, in strict oonfonMty with the tam& of the Bonds, thil lndc:ntui:c, any Security 
lnsuumeat Aafeemeal and aoy llaerve lnstnuuent Apemen~ aeconlina I<> Ille lnl< inte• 1J1d 
""""""' h<i<of ..,c1 tb<reof. The Prill.-ipal of ud interest oo the BO!uls, till)' Security JnltrUmalt 
Repoyment Obliptions and any llucn'< Instrument Rcpl}'lPCRt Obliptions are payable tolcly 
fiom the Revcnuc1 (acept to chi: ex lent pr.id out of moneys attributable to Bond proceed. or other 
funds treated bemJ.Ddcr or the income from the temporary invmtmeal theuof), which R.evmuc1 
ore henby spociftcally plodpd aud a•rigncd to the poyment thereof in lhe manneund to tho axleDt 
herein tpccified, llld noching in lhc Bonds, this IndenlUr<, my Security !"'"""'°"' Aareeinent or 
any Rlile:rve lmh'\Ullent AJrccmcnt should be considered as pledging any other funds or u1et1 of 
the IJlllltl' for th• poymtm thereof. 

Section 6.4 Pcrfqnpnnoe of Coyenmtir Issuer. The I"uet' caw:nanl1 that it will 
faithfully perform el •ll tinle. J.ny cd all cm.-enants, undutalcinp. stipul1tiotl.9, and providons 
contained herein, and In any and every Bond, Sc<Urity ln-..t Ap<"""'t IJld Retet\IC 
ln11nlmcnt Agreement. The l&suer represents that il is duly 1Ulborizcd m:ukr the: Comriturion of 
the St1tc and under the Act to iuue the Bonds IUthoriz.ed hereby 1nd to execute this Jndenrure, 
thet 111 1C1lon1 oa its put f~r tbc ilisUMCc of tbe BoJWis and the execution and delivery of dt.i• 
lndccturc ho>'< been duly 1t1d offoctively .. ken, and lhlll lhe Bonds ill the hllldt of Ille R<pmred 
Ownen tber«1f ue ud will be valid md enforcclbte obligabou of the Issuer •ccardina to the 
import thereof. 

Section 6.5 LW orRood!w!14m. The Trustee will kocp on file at its Principal Cmpms'" 
Trust Oflke o litl ot the - ...i ~. of the hJill•<d Owners or all BOids which .,. 
ftcm time tb tim< rc&itteredOOI ,..ngillntioo boob ill the hMcb oflhc T-ee os ll<&illnr filr 
lhc Boadt. At .......,.bit times and under mosonabte rc~ esmblilhed by the Trustao, Aid 
litt may be U..pecocd and copied by the luuer or by the R.egistcml o-cra (or a dctilnated 
rcprueoutive tbeRol) or '"' - (10%} or """" In ~ ..._ .. of - then 
Ou11t111dinc. MCb owucnhip -' the autliority of ay &UCh designalcd repruentativc lo be 
CYidtnccd 10 tt.e re.sonable sa1is&cti.m1 of the Trustee. 

Sccrion 6.6 [)pigmtion ofAdclifiontl Psylm AtJm11. ~ (u11er ~ cownMC1 and 
1grce1 to cMJ,je the necrssuy .arnnsements 1o be made through tM Tn>ll:et and to be tMttafttr 
c-od for dw deoJ..,.U... of alt•""''" p•yll>g ........ if any, and for the ~ anilable or 
fund• bcrcuoder, but ooly to the utent 1uch funds are made available to tllc IJtuer - Bcmd 
proceeds ar other f\mcSt cre1led henunder or the ineome from the iemporlry investment thereof, 
(or the poylllttlt of tw:h of the Bonds as shall be pmeoled when due at the Principal C-nte 
Trust Office oC1he TN1tee, or iU wtDGHor iD trutt bc'1:Wldtr, or at the prifteiptJ corporate trust 
office of said altnnatt Payin1 Apntl. 
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Secboft 6.7 Expcidffipua CgmtN(1iQQ The laucr shill eompletc tM acquisitiob -.d 
COflllructioa of each l'nljcct"'°lh•ll ptac:lic.I diopttch andwill causcall ""1ATo<riooto bo e«ected 
in a sound and economical mmncr . 

S<dioo 6.8 M ........... o( AHelf. The luuer, in order I<> mun Cho efficient 
-and opaatioa of its unt1 aod lo....,.. caeh lleJitlcrcd Owuer, Security IMUwncnt 
1m1er and llcsavc IDWument Pnmdcr &om time "' time 1hat Cho Iuuer'& ...... will be apcnted 
Qn 90l1Dd bmineu princir>lea. will employ compttUnt ind uperi.C:KCd m1n1gancnt for said mctE, 

will use its best efforts to ICC thl.t 1.Jd a-.cb IJ"C II all times opt:rMcd Md maiM.ained in frst-clas& 
rcpoiulld condilian and ill llUCh mmnerduttlle opendns tffioitncy thcn:of shall he ofdle hi.ah"" 
cloarlocw. 

Section 6.9 the of Lccatly Anltablc MQMYI NotwiU..&anding 1rty olhcr provisions 
hereof, nothing h~n shall be con1tn1od to prewnt the INuer from {a) paying all or any part of 
the OSJention and Maintenante Exponaes from any 1Uadt: av•Uablc to the ls•uc:t· for 1uch 1JUrpOt1e, 
(b) depositing any fund.I 1V1i111b..lo lo the Issuer for such putpoee in tny account in tile Bond Fund 
for the p•ro-t of the interetl on, premium, if any, or the principol of my Bondi issued under 
ptovUiona heftaf or for lhe redemption of my such Bcmds, or (c) depositing •hy f'urub available 
to the luucr for 1ueh p1Hp0se in 1hc Rwrvc lnmumcnt FUnd for the payment of my amountl 
payable umlct my applicable Reserve lnllnlm.ent Aartoment. 

Section 6.10 Pmntnt of In• tnd 01her Cbv101, The. luuer covenanl1 tb11 all taxes 
111d usessmcnu or other municipal or gowmmcntal cb.qc1 lawfWly levied or usc:11Dd upon the 
UIA-Morpn Component Network. or upon any part theteaf or upon any income therefrom will be 
paid when thi:: lliamc shall bccD111.e due. that ao lien or cllqt upoa dMi UIA-Morpii Component 
Network or any ))'rt thc:rc:of or upon any R.c:vcnuc1 tbm:o( except for the lien and charge thereon 
created hereunder and securiDJ the Bondi, will be created or permitted to be created ranting 
equally with orprio.r to 1M Bonds (except (or the parity lien the:rc:on of Additional Bonds iuucd 
li:om time to lime hcrcundor and under Supplemeatal lndellturc1 bcreto), and !hot all lawful claims 
alld demands f« t.bor, mot<rilllt, supplies or odler ol>jects which. if wipaid, might by law bocomc 
a lie. upon the UIA-Mcq;m Compoa.cat Network or 11ny put tMreof or upon the Rtt'enuec lhereof 
will be poid or diodlarged, °' od"'*e provi<ioo will be made tor Ille poymont or dll<hargc or 
such ct.ims and deman<k within 60 days aftcr lhc mnc "'°II """"'"; pnMdcd, i..w.v.., lhM 
oollJhig in this Scctioa 6.10 &hall -ire my tuCb Ueo or chup 10 be paid or disc:baQ:<d or 
pro"';... ....i. tt.crcfor so '°"& u the validity ol tucll lien « <loarp •II be .-d ill good 
r.ith and by appnlllrialo lepl proceedinp. 

Sectioo 6.11 ~. Tbe wuerwill talf-inlure or.-ry ~- r.c1-._ bul­
limitod to, worbnen•s compensation insuqnoc and public liftili1Y inawance. in .uch amomta and 
to ouch ateat., is ..,,,,..ly carried by a<lien operalJoc pubUc: utilities of Ibo same type. The ooot 
of IUCb. insurmce shall be comidcred an Opcntion and Maintm.mcc Expense of the Issuer. Jn the 
cveol of loot or damacc, in•nnnce proceed• shall be U&ed lir1t fur Cho purpoae of ratoriog or 
replacin8 the pi-operty lost °' ~d. Arly ranaindu 1hall be p•id into the Bond fwlcl. 

Si:dion 6.12 lnitrumen• M fuab¢r AalWIDcc. The lstuer ind thi: Tnulcc mutually 
covenant that they will. from time to time. each upon the: written tc'lucsl of the other, or upon. the 
RqUtlt of 1 Security lmtrumcnt kwer or 1 Rc1crw Inrrrument Provider, newt. and deliver such 
further ~tt lll1d take or tlUH to ht taken aach further actions 111 may be R11onablc: IUld ., 
may be requjrcd by the: other to cany out the purpo1e.a bereoe provided, however, that no 1Uch 
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inslnlmenll or IClian oboll ........ ODy p""°"al liability al the Tn11 .. e or mcmbcn or d10 
aowmina body of the 1.-..... or IJl7 otll<'.al thonoof. 

s..dooo6.13 0.-NattoSa!! Tholuuuwillnohcl,lwe,mortp1e,-. 
0< ;,. 1oy .,.llDlr di._ of Ille UIA-MorgM Compcne111 - ar the U1A Networic or 111y 
suh<IMtial pan lh<reo!; iududioe oey and all extensiom and lddiU.... '11iot miy be made: d>crelo, 
until a1J principal or aod ,_ "'1 the Bond., and all R<paytmm Obliptiom, haYO beal paid ;., 
f\Jtl, cot•ept .. follows: 

(•) Tiie INU<r may ••II any ponion or said propaty (i) whiclt thall have been 
replactd by other propeny of •l lee1t cqU1l wlue, (ii) which tlalll uase to be ftCCCISIJ)' for 
the efficient opcntioa ottbc UIA-Mcwpn Compon,,,,. Ne- or the UIA Network and 
the dispo1KM>n ot'tldUcb. will not, as dctamincd by the~ hoity of the Jnuc.r. rcsull 
in 1 motorial roduetioa ht ltcv111uc1 In 1ny ye1r, or Qh) tho value, 11 d...,mtined by Che 
rovemJ"' body of the ._, of tho propat1y to bo ••Id, ...,od, ablOdonod, mon,.,.d, 01· 
oeherwise diapoood ot(toccther with 1a.y other property limilmly di190Hd ofwhbt• th• 12 
ctlondor tllOlltbl pncedias tho propOKd di1pooldon) - DOI ....,...i five peroenl (S%) of 
the value of the UIA-Mcqu Component Network and lDA Netwmk ui11:ts1 AJ detcrmlncd 
by the coveminc body of lhe lssuct, pruvidcd, however, tba1 in the event of any sale H 

afoniraid, the pmcecds of Midi '8le not needed to acquin: ollJa" UIA-Mmgan Component 
Neiwork I.Rd UIA N-property 1hall be paid in1o lhe llmJd Fund. 

(b) The t.ucr mey lease or m•kc contracbl or pant licensee for the opctttion 
of, or mah 1.nupan:n.11 rur the UIC of. or gnm.1 easements or othi:r rights with mpcct to, 
1oy port of the UIA-Mmpn Cmnl'O"""t Natwork or die UIA N«wodc, l"'Dvidcd thllt ony 
such )cue_ contl:ld, liccmc. arrangement, casement orrigbl does not impede the operation 
or the UIA-M'"PD C<mponenc Network or the UIA N.._,,. one! tmy pt1ymenl received 
by thl baw undo or ia cannoctton wt1h lfl)' such J-., ccmnct. llc:entt:, arranaement. 
eo•emeM or dPt ta Roped of tho UIA-Morpn Compamm Network or tho UIA Notw<>dc 
oir •ey pll't tblrlof 1blll CODstitute R.lvcaues, 

Scction6.14 PlQMien gC pcllPAumt Cttv Fees !Dd ffook:Up Lcug Rcvcnuu, lo 
eccon:hnce with &ho Sc:Niee Ccm1nc;t, the bsuer covenants ..,, it *11 exercise 111 remedies 
1vail1blc to it to coll eel ddMqllcnr City Fees mnd Hook..(Jp Leue ~and any other moni« 
owed to the luuuunderaid Strrice Coatncl 

Sectioo 6.1$ A!mpl amt Prioc lo the begimina of each Pis1l Year the luuer lboU 
prtpareand adop<a bucl&cl lilrcbe UIA·MorslJI Compoaenl-tb<thenc>t enauioc Fiscol 
Y<1r. Al the end ofthc: finl Iii& months of each F1«1l Y...-• .,. hiucu~all r<Vicw ir. bw!aet for 
such F'm:al Yfft, .ad in tho 4"ad ectual Revenues, Operation ad MaintcnaftO! Ew:pensu or other 
teqt11ittmcftt1 do ftOt rubdaalially cwre1pand wiih such budaet. die Jssua ftll prcpve an 
tmmdtcl bud1.a ror the~ o( tuch Filcll Year. ne 1-cr' a1'o DllY adopt at ID)' cima ID 

..,mdod budpl for tho Anllintlcr of the then cumnt Fl1t:1l Year. 
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Alna.sw 
EVENTS OP DEl'AUL'n REMEDll!S 

Sc:cdm ?.1 :2vtats a( Default. &di of the foU~ evcata i1 h.uelly dec1ued an 
"l!venlofDdilul<": 

(•) if poymcnt of ony - til lntemt on my of the B<Dls .... - b< 
-1c by..-.. behalf oflhc lnucr wloen tk- lholl beODlllC due end poyMtc; ar 

(b) irpayment oftlte prillcipol ar~ Fund lumtllmeat ordleR<lclnption 
.....,.;-if iny, 00 my or the: Bondi aba1J not be ...de by or •• behalfof tbe 11 .... when 
the ame dlall become due and payable, eidMnt .,.turicy 0< by proceedinp forredemplicm 
in ...,,_,. of maturity or tbrouah flilure ID ftll.IUI eay payment to my fund -.i.r ot 

odl....i.c;or 

(o) if the Iuuor 111611 for tJty - bo ...i ... d inc1poble of ft111i11iq itl 
obliptiml hemmdcr; or 

(d) if an <Jl'der or dee.rec .i.11 be CD.lcr'C'd, with the consent or ac:quicaccncc of 
the ~' appointing • RCCivcr or alltOdian fur any of the Revenue. of the Jwuer, or 
appnwing a petition filed •&•inst the lllUCll' seekio.1 root'&&hization of the bnc:r under the 
fedenll bollkruptcy laws orony otheroUnilerlew 0<11IM1 of the United Slotel or Am<rico 
or my.,... th<roof, or if my ruch ordu ordeeRie, hMng hcca •otcrod without the c:oment 
or ..,.w-encc of the ls&uer 1boll nol be vocelod or diach111ed or llaycd on llJIPClll wilhin 
JO d'Y" .lftct the entry thcn:ofj or 

(c) if any proceed.inc shaU be illltihded. with the cODJCD1or1cquicsa:acc of the 
._, fir the Jlllll'ot• or elrecllttJ a -.poottlaa banveen tho 1"111er •nd ill .....WU. or 
far tbe ....,.,. of acljturin( tbe cl&iG al..,.. CNd!IOn p-to eny l'1otlcnl or ..... 
lillllte aow or hereitler Ollocled, if a.. claiim of ••cb erediton .,. or IDOJ bo mulor 1111y 
- .. p1yoblo from R"""au•: « 

<fl ;r (i) the: '""'" a ldilld&od -.. by • OOW1 or ..,mpctat judoclidioo, 
« (u) 1n order, judsmcnt or decree .. mMnd by my coun of~ jorildiction 
~ without the consent al tJiie iu:ip, • receiver, trust«: or aatodiao or-.c lm>cr 
.. o{thc ..bole or..,. part ortbc lnuer'• )11-'Y a.od..., ortbe aro....id ~--. ... 
........ j~ "'.i.e..., ohatl aotbo ....-oractuideots .. ycd ,.;u,;, 60•Y> from 
tile dolo o{ entry tbeftof, or 

(g) if the luuer lhall file a pc- ..... ,.er seckiui 1<..-goaimion. relief 0< _ ........,...t und<r the fcdcnl bonl:ruptcy low1 or aoy odler •ppl icoblc lawor-.n. 
altheUnited Stotea of Amaieaoroay-tl!Anor; or 

(b) If, Wider the provi1i-olany other trw lbr lltt n ltof or 1id of..-., ony 
eamtolcanpet<tttjuri1d!cdo1Uhall --..dy or oontrol of the !11U<T orottlln~IOI• 
ot:.ay ..0.i.llli.ll part oCthe property of tile Iuuer, llld aucb ••stody or cotlln>l lhall not 
be taminoled within 30 doya fiom the ....., of lll\llllp<ion of oucb t:111tody ... comro~ or 
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(i) jfthe Issuer shall de&.ult in the due and punctual performance of &n)' olhcr 
of die L"OVenants, conditions, a~imnts and provisions. contained ht the Bonds, or herein 
or my Supplcmcnlal Indenture; hereof on the part of the l11uer to be: pcrfonned1 other than 
as set forth 1bove in this Section 7. t, 1nd 1Uch Dcfwlt shall continue for 30 chys 1ftcr 
written notice spccif)'iDg such Event ofDcfauh mdrequi.dng the same to he remedied shall 
hive been givcri. to the hlJ\ler by the Tru11tcc , which may give such notice in its disi::rctfon 
-'ui sh111ll gi~ such notie-= at the writt= Rquert of the: Registered OwnCTS of not 1-=ss than 
twcDly·five percent (2S%) in 11ggreg1te Principal amount of the Bonds then OutltJlnding 
hereunder: or 

Gl lDY event specifit:d in a Supplemental Indenture u constituting an Evmt of 
Defaull. 

Section 7.2 Rmedje1· Rjgb11 of Regjatered Ownem Upon lhe OC(~ce of an Event 
of Default, the Trustee, upon being indemnified pursumt to Scctjon 8.1 hcrwf, may ptnue 1»y 
av1ilable remedy by suit at low or in eq~~ry to enforce the payment of the principal ofpremiun'I, if 
any, md intorc:Jt OD the: Bonds thm Outstanding or to cufon:e any obligations of tbe I11uer 
hereunder, provided, however, tbal nothing herein shall he OOM!ruod to pant the Bondholdcr, lhc 
Trustee, any Security Instrument Iuuer. or any Resccve Jnatrument ]&suer, any tigh1 of accelemdon 
ofthc: payment of the Principal of; orinte:rut, or premium on the Bonds. 

If an Event of Default Shill have occurre~ ud if requested so to do by {•) Reg;inered 
Owncn of not Im th.., twcuty-fivc pcrc<Dt (lS%) in oggrcgate Principal omount of the Bomb 
then Outatanding,, (b) Security lnltnunmt lssuen al that time providing Security ln.strumenLI 
which are in full force and effect and not in default oo any payment obligation and which .secw:o 
hOt leas than twenty-five pctt:cnt (2:5%} in iaggrcsate Princip.al 11nowu. of Bond& at the time 
Outatanding,, or (c) any combination of Registered Ownen and Security ln!iblmlent Issuers 
dcscnlxd in (a) ond (b) obove "'l""""ti"i not J.., than tw<:nty-fivc pcroc:nt (25%) in aurcgatc 
Principal amount of Bonds at lbe time Outstanding, ed indemnified as provided in Sei:tion 8.1 
hcreofi the Trustee shall be obJjgatcd to exerci.H such one or more of the righb and powcn 
confen'ed by this Section 7.2 u 1he 'l\'Ultec, being advised by counse~ shall deem most expedient 
in the interest of the Registered Owners and the Security Instrument Issuers. 

No rcmcd)' by lht: terms hereof confcm:d upon OT rt:scrvcd to the 'Jiustc:e (or to· the 
Registered Ownen or to the Securily Instrument Issuen) is intended to be exclusive of any other 
mncdy, but aiM .and evtry &ucb remedy 1hall be i::umulatin ind ahlll be in addition to any other 
remedy given to the TrutiileC. the Registered Owners or the Secwity Instrument lauen or now or 
hereaRer cx.lsfinl at law or in equity or by statute. 

No delay or omission to exercile any right or power accruing upon any Event of Defiault 
that! impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any Event of Default 
or acquicsi:encc theteirt~ and every such right attd power may be c:xctciAcd from time to time and 
a& often as may be deemM expedient 

No waiver of any Event ofDc&.iuJt hereunder, whether by the Trp•tec or by the Regis1cted 
Ownc11 or tho: Seii:Urity lnltrument Issuers 1haJI cKtmd to or shall affct:t any subKqUCP1 Bvcnt of 
Dt:faull or shall impair any rights or mnedii:s consequent thereon. 
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Section 7.3 Righi of)lyisti;rcd Owners to Direcl Pmcccding,t Anything herein to the 
contrary notwilhrtanding. unless a SuppJc1nemar Jndenture providea othctWise, eitber (a) the 
Rcgiatcrd Owners of a majoricy in e.ggrcptc Principal .am.oUDt of the Bonds lheo Outslanding, (b} 
the Security Instrunumt lssucn at the time providing Security lnstrumentfi which are in full fo.roe. 
and cft'ect aDd not in default on any paymCDt obligation 1111d which secure not less 1han fifty pCl'L'icnt 
(SO%) in .tggtegatc Princip:al amoonl of Bonds at the time Ou.tst11ndbtj, « (c) sny r;ombi:nation of 
Rc:gi1ten::d Owners lntd Securi1y I~trument Ismc:ri: descn'bed in (•)and (h) above npre5tmting not 
leH than fifty percent (50%) in .tggl"eg•tc Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding, .shall 
hnve lbc right, 1t any time by an Wtrumen.t or instruments in writing executed and delivered to 
the TRlltee, to direct the time. method and place of ccmdLlclidg all proceedings to be taken in 
e~clion wilh th1; enfon:emc:nt of the: tmns and eooditions hereof, or for the appoinlment of a 
receiver or any other proceedinp hereunder; provided, lhet such direction sluill not be othcrwis~ 
than in accordaru:e with the provisions of Jaw and of this lndentui-e. 

Section 1.4 Aqotie1tion of MgneYA. All moneys reDCived by the Trustee pursuant to 
any right given or action mlom under the provi&ions of Ibis Article VII dial!, after payment of 
Tru11~·1 fees Md ~pp;ra:1;1 inc:tudins the: f"' and c:~pc:t11C1 of i ll eoumc:I for the: ~c:edings 
nsmlting in the collt:ction of sucli moneys and of the expenses and liabilities Bnd advances incurred 
or made by the Trustee, be dep"'ited in the Bond Fund ond all moneys 90 deposited in the Boru! 
Fund ,boll be opplicd in the follow"'& ot<lor; 

(• ) To the payment of the principal of, premium, if my, and iuter.:st then due 
and payable Oft the BOJ1d1 and the Security Instrument Repayme1Jt Obligiltion.s as follows: 

(i) Unleos the Prinoipal of all the Bonds <hall have become due and 
pry•bie, •11 iuch mone)'J •hall be l!pplicd; 

FIRST-To the-payment to the penons entitled thereto of all 
inlhllmcn(I; gf inlcl'\':st 1hc:n d1,11; on tht:: Bonds and the intcrc11t 
component of any Security lnltrument Repayment Obligationc then 
due, in the order of1he maturity of the installments of such interest 
and, iftbeamoun.t avail1ble ah.all not be sufficient to pl y id fu.11 any 
;articular inltallm'111, then to 1lHI payment ral&bly, ~ording to the 
omount• doe on ouch inatallmen~ to the pcnons entitled thereto, 
without any d.iJ.c:riminltion 01 ptivilege; 11.nd 

SECOND-To the payment to lho ponons entitled thereto of 
the unpaid Principal of and premium, if any, oo the Bonds which 
d!all have booo1ne due (other llum Bonds '"1lcd for redemption for 
the- payment of which money1 are held pumlDllt to the provisions 
hcrcoO. in the order ofthc:.ir due date•. ind the Principal component 
of .toy Stcurity lnltnblltnt Repayment Obliptions then due, •nd, if 
the amount available shall not he sufficient to pay in fUll all the. 
Bondi :and lhe Principal component of any Security lnstrumenl 
Repayment Obligations ~ on any particular date. then to the 
paymienl 1"*1*bly, acool'liing to the amDUnt af PriD1;:ipsl due on 1uch 
dm, to the ptnOJU entitled thereto without ID)' discrimination or 
privilege. 
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(h) lithe priacipol of all the Bollds "'"11 M¥c -me dve ond payable, 
Ill 1uch mOftC)'ll llhl!I be oppliod IO the Ji.ymml of tho Priucipol llld intmll then 
du<! •!Id OllP'id - the Bondi 111d Security l1111rumm Re.-)'UWlt Oblipli0011, 
without~ arpriority otPrindpal overimaest m otinr~ '1W:!l Principll, 
arofanyiilliN1tmeBlofin1ete&l<wttmyothetinmlmmlof~t, orofMyBond 
or Security lollrurna!t R<paymcm Obligation over ..,. ocher Bond or s-rity 
l""11Ur.<ol R<poymenl Obligllion, ralably, oceording to the ""'°"'"' cl>e 
~ivcly for Pri11t!p.al and interest, to the pq11t1m entitled thereto witbou\ any 
d.i.&c.rimlnation cw privilege. 

(ia) To tho: ptymont of •II ohliptiom ......t 10 111 Resm,. lostn1ment 
Providers. ntab1y. according to the amounts due wUhoul any Wscrimbwtion or 
prdC'f'Ctlce U11dcr aey 1pplicable •ireement related to any Rcsmrc: lmlrUment 
Asi~emeot. 

Wh111ovor moneya 1n lo be applied pursuant lo the ........ ; ... of lbi> Soc:~Oll 7.4. IVCh 
moneyo ohlll be applied II mth dm<a, and Crom time lo limo, u Ibo Tl.- shall dctmnine, boviDJ 
due rcprd to the amoants of •ch moneys available for such IPIJlica!ion and the likcllbood of 
pddiricmal moneys bi:cominc 1vailablc f01" such 1pplicarion in 1he filrurc. Whenever the Trustoo 
shall apply ouch fund£, ff lbalJ fix lbe date (whi<h'1mll he anhda<OlPayment Dote unlcil it lholl 
deem another date more lllitahle) upon which auch application is 1o be made •nd upon Juch date: 
intc~st on the amounts of principal paid on JUCh dates sha11~IO1caue. 

Section 7.5 Bgmc4jHYatcd in Trustee. Allrightl of•ction (au:tudinc the rlchl to fllc: 
proof of claimJ) hereunder ot under any of the Bondi may be cofonzd by lhc Tf\151~ wicbout the: 
po11cuiao of NL)' of the Bonds or the prod\IC'tion thereof in my trial or ~er procoodings l'Clated 
1!11:rcto 1nd Uly ouch l\lil or proceodinr instituted by the Tnuloo ft1: bo bn>ujht in ill uamo 11 
Tntslff without tho noCOllily of joinin1 u plaindtr. or det'<nclma Ill)' R<gilmed Ownen of tho 
Bonu, 1.11d any,., ... ..,. ofjadpttnt 1hlll be lbr lbc equal bcndJt oftbc Regiltcnd Owun of 
the Out-dlna Bonda. 

Section 7.6 Rir;hb pl lcmcdiq ofRcgjJ1qcd Ownm. &ccpt 11 pr<Mdcd in the lut 
1<11lence of this S.C«oo 7.6. DO hgimnd Owner of my Bond or Sc:c:arily Im-l"ucr sblll 
bve any right 11> lnsti1t1to eny IGit, 1ctiar. or pR>Ceeding in equity at"' l•w for the <nfon:..­
llCRof or for lbe execution of any bust thcn:of or far the •ppoiolmc:ul af a receiver Ol' Ill)' other 
r<nlCdy hemindcr, uol-• i;.,.... ofl>ellluh hts ooc:urred ofwhidi dio Trutt.r hts beenDC>lified 
u prolridod ID Secdoft U(g) h...m, or of which by said Sediaa it i& "-»<d to htY< noti0<, -
unlct• llllO Rccimr'ed °"""'*of twenty-five pcn><r>I (25%) in agppte principol IDIOUIJI oflhe 
Bonds then Oullton<ting at Socurity INll'Ument losuen at the time pn>Yidini Security lNlnlm<nll 
which .,. ID !WI force ODd dfect and ue not ill defaull oa Ill)' ..,_1 obligaJHio llDd which 
... .,., not 1 .. ttuin IWOlll)'-!I'" pen:ettl (2S%) It\...,. .... priDcipll-ofllcmd1 at lhotill'IO 
Outatondq •hill hove mode writ1en r<quut to Ille TN<fec IUlll &boll bvo otr ... d moonol>lo 
oppottwity oithor to ~ to aen:l11 the powen lweilsbofin ...,i.d or to institute 111<h 
action, IVk or proi:eedq in ill ..., nat'l1<, 11« uolu• '1ao 1bcy ban olfr .. d IO the l'nlll<r 
indemnity u p19Ylclod in !leoWm t.t hereofnortlllle,. lhe T,,,....lll1ll 1hC1Utlr:r r.u or n:fi>'" lo 
elt~i&c the powers hcn:in.bovc vwntcd. or to Ustitulc 5Ucb adimt. nit or proceeding in its awn 
nanic or1111m1:1. Such notific:dim. tegU.cltt andoffi:r ofindenmityw: llcrc:bydcc.larcd in~ case 
1t the option of the Trustee to be conditions precedenl to lhe execution of 1he powm ind ltllM 
hereof, Bild to Ill)' •clion or~ of action for the ~on::mi.e:nt be:rcof. « for the appointment of 
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1 rcccivcrarlllrG'f Olhcrremcdy hereomdor; it boil!I undentood llld intended thal.., _«more 
ReJisloftd Owner oflhe Bondi or Security !ftalnlmont l11uor wn haw .. Y rigt.;,, any,,,.,.... 
wh111oewr to affect. disturb or pnojudice tbe lien timor by hi actioo or la moie. uy right 
herwnder oxcept in the monned1cm11 pn1vided, ...d dllt all proc:eedinaJ at low co: In equity lhlll 
be il:slituled. bod 8lld maintained in the manner beJdn provUkd and loo: the equol bau:fil of the 
lbogi11-d Owncn; of oil Bands then Ou"""1diD& ond all Security lnstru..- '-' u thr bmo 
pn>viding Security !Mlnllnentl. Nothin&hemli .....mat sl11I~ howevC1', affea ocimpeirlheright 
of any llegisl:etm Ownec or Security IDltrumcal 1 ..... 10 r:nforce the covmant.1 oC1he i.uer to 
pi)' the: principal of, pn:mium, if any, 1od mcc:iwt OD taeh of tbe Boodt iuucd h~dcr held by 
such Regimnd Owner ond Security 1111-RopoymClll Oblipliom at the time, plaoc, Crom 
lht source ad in the mmmer iD said Bonds or Soc.rity ln1tnunene llc:paymcnt Obligations 
i:xpn:DCd. 

Saction 7.1 Tpnp!n1tion gfPmctmljg• ID we the Tn.i•tec. any Reaistc:redOwna·or 
any Secustty lnltM»ODI l1Sue: !hall haw pro<eodod IO cnfon:c 1111y t;abt bclwndor by the 
appoinlmot of• receiver, or otherwitt, ud 11114 pruceDd.ia&• shill haw been cliKmdirmcd or 
abmdaned fllr 1'1111 r<HOll, or 1htll have he111 ddonnillcd advmoly lo tho 1'Jt111.., Ibo hgillmred 
C>.vllel', ~Security fllsti\lment Issuer, thcn m.d in evcrj 1ucll cue tht Issuer and 1heTrn.rtee lhaLJ 
be rcstoR::d to lhcir formc:r pDJittonli 11.ad rigbt1 bemmcler, and all rights, remedies 8nd powcn of 
the Trustee lhaD continue as if no IUt'h proceeding& bid. btcl\ taken, 

Scdion 7.8 Waiwri of!OOml! ofDcl!n4 Subject to Soc ti Oil 8.1 (g) he-1; lbe TRlltee 
may in ilJ diseretion, and with the prior wriUcn CODICtll of all Sec\lrity lnslru.D'lent lauas 1l the 
time providing Security lnJtrument'9 W11ive any Bvfflt of Default hercundc:r •nd its: conscqocnc::cs 
and shall do so upon the written requat of the R.qistcred Own.en of(•) 1 majority in aggregate 
Principal unount of all the Bonds then Outlilndiq or Secarity b&trumenr Iuuen It lite time. 
providiq: Scasrily 1""tnlmcu11 whM1 •re ia "111 Ion:• and tfhC't and •ns not ia dd.nlt Oil NJY 
paymllll oblipljoa a11d whidi 10011n not las illon Uy pmettt ('!ml In ...,.pie Prill<ipel 
amoUDt of llcmda at the lime Outmndi"ll in nopect or which '" EVent of Default in dlo po)•n1111t 
ol'prillCipol Olld inlcreat Qiot, or (b) • 1t1•Jarily In o,ppte principal llDCIWll OClhe B.- then 
Outstmuliq « SO<Urily lnltnlmetlt lsouen II !be lime p!O\lidina SoctllitY lub'ut'lllata wllloll 111 
in tl:ll lix<:c md d!"ect 8lld an: 11<11 in default'"' ..,. Ji.ym<11t obli&1rioo ...t whicb.....,...,. ,..., 
than filly pcrcem (SO%) ia aurcplc Principol - or Bandt 11 the time Otllllandiag in Ibo 
case of any odter Event of Dofauk; pn>vided, -.,.,.., dmt there oluoll not be waived (o) anydofwlt 
ill the ii.-aftbc principal ofa•y Bood .. 1thedole that 1 Principal lmtallmad i& due, cw(iQ 
1ny default in the payment whe11 due of the -... oe lll}' such Bonds, unless priocto such woiver 
or ,...uao., all llTC .. or intc=~ ..;sh illlcnot (ID the ex- pmnittcd by to..) ol lhe - bome 
by the Bonda in....,... of whidi AK'h Ev.,. ol'Dcfoull aball have OC>ClllT<d on OY<rdae inllallmo:ti• 
of in!tftft and all 1na11 of payments of princ::ipll llKI pn=mil)m, ir wy, whc:n due and all ezpemes 
of ti:<: Tn"1ec, in 0:01111c"'1ion with sud! Ev eat of DefirWt •hll hove bc<11 poid or p:vvidcd for, md 
in case DtSf1 mcb waiver orraeillion, ot ia c:e• -.y procetdJna .U.n by tho Tr.-. cm KCUUl1t 
ofmymcha-ofDofault ohlll bo .. hcltlclisooalinadorabmd011edor derenniarid-..1y, 
th<11 tmd ill ....,. such • .,. lhc l11un, the Tnaltae, tho llqillered Owncrw 1114 lbc Security 
lnatrummt......,. shall be rcmm:d to their - paaidons and righll hereunder, _.r..ty, 
but no IUOh waivtiror retci11ion 1ball ext.end to my tublequc:nt 01· othor Event D(Dcf;iub, orm:.,air 
any rigbl OOlllO..,.nl lheAou. 
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Section 7.9 Coqpcration gflvyer r. the CNC of flnY Event ofl>etau.ll berwndc:r. tM 
laucr shall cocp<nt• with 111< Tru&tu awl use ill belt efforu 11> pn>te<:t tlle Registcrod Owners, 
Rcaave lnatnon<nt Providers, and tile Socwity lutnmled Iauers. 

Altl'JCLEVUI 
THE TRUSTEE 

Section t .1 ASCFJ!bmcc of the Trmts. The Tnastcc •cccpU lhc tn&611 impmed upon it 
hurcby. wd l&fetS to perfann said U111tl u 1 corporate trustee ordinmily would perfom> said trusts 
1.mdcr 1 corporttc indm~ but 110. implied OOYCDlnts or obliption1 ihlll De rad inlO this 
Indenture qain1t ck: Trumc. 

(•) 1'b£ TN.Jtce m1y execute any of the trusts DI." powc1'1 thcn.:of md pci'form 
eny of its duties by or through attorney•. agents, rcceiven, or em.ployell!I and tfN Tiuatee 
1hatl not be rcapon1iblc for ~ mis~t or negligence on the pUt of any agent or 
1ttomey appointed with due care 111d shall be entitlDd to advice of counsel C<Jnceming 111 
maUcQ of" trusts hCT'tOf and the J.uties hereunder, and may in all f:.ll&:S pl)' 1ueh TtlJonablc 
compcMatiOn to llll auch 11tomcyJ, 11gc,.tlli, rc:ccivctJ 1.t1d c.1t1.ployccs aa tnay l'l:UOD&bly be 
employed in connection with the tru1hl hereof. The T1ustee may ai;t upon the opln.l<m or 
advice of counael. Thie Trw.tce chill not be n:spoa&ible for any lo18 or damage tesultittg 
ftom any action or n01MU:ti0n in good faith in n:liaru:e upon :such opinion or advice. 

(b) The Tt'UJtcc 1hal1 not b~ iupon1iblc for 1ny n:cital hm:in, or in the Bondi 
(except in respect to the certificate of the Trustee endoraed on the. Bondi), or colledin& any 
i"""""'e D>OalO)'S, or fur 0.. validity of the ....Won by the Issuer of this Ind- or of 
any 1\1.pplem~u tbueto or instrwmmts of fw1her uiUlace, or for the 1ntT'iciency of 1he 
sccwi:ry far the Bonds iaued beminder or intended to be secured bueby; and the Truslee 
Wll not be bound to uecrtlin or inquin: •• to the pcrf'onn1nQC or ol»ctv11ncci of•")' 
covenants_ condltiom or agreements on the part of the lnuer; bul lhe TNl.tee may requ,Lrc 
o(tho !Huor Ml intcnmli<n and adYico u to th< perfomat<o of tho ..... .,.,, <oadilionJ 
and ......,,.., .. afortnid 8lld •• to the cOllditioo of the property herein oocrtey<d. The 
Tnlllce Jhall not be rcspomibtc oc liabk foe aay Jon ..Jfercd in eomeclion with any 
invcltmenl o( !Undo made by kin .... ~ with the pn>Yisions hetoof. Tho Trvotce shall 
blrvcno iupocllibilily wi1ll tcspcd to any infomalion, llatanm, «recital in anyo!faina 
_-.,, or o1hor disdoswo ..-ial ~d or dUtribuled 'fith nopo<I to .. 
B-. 

(e) The Trustee sh.it not bo~e for the-of myeo..IJ•vch01ldcatcd 
or delivered hcmmder, ex.cept 11 specifically set rorth beRin.. 'Ihe Trustee may bc:oomo tho 
owocr of Bcmd.t secured. hereby with the same rights which it woutd have if not Trustee. 

(d) Tbe TYUSlee lhall be protected in actinl upoo my 110ti<e, reque1~ consent, 
ccniflcatc, ordor, affidavit, lt!tter, r.etegram or other piper or document be:Hevcd to be 
pnuioc and correct and to hll\'t been 1igncd or sent by the proper person or penons. Airy 
•ction uikcn by the Trust.e pomnmt hcMo u.pon th.: rc:qur:lit or •uthority or <:0n11enl of1ny 
per1oa. who at the time or making such request or giv.iD.g such wthority or consall ii the 
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Rcgist<:Rd Owner or Illy !kind. Will be <onolusivo llDd binding upo11 all future OYmen of 
the aamc Bond and Upon B<*Cla iuue&J in achlr\Je thcftfor or in place thcttof: 

{c) A1 to Che c.xiltc::ncc 01 aoacx.btncc of 1ny fact or a to the 111ffil:ic::Dcy or 
vel;di!y af my inlCJ<meal. popu « pn><e<dilla, lht Tnatu aha II be enritled 10 rely upon a 
cortifice.t• 1ipll '"' bcba1r or tho h....,. by oo Aurh<lrizod R-lalivc as suJ!icienl 
evidence of the f8clJ tM:reiD coat&ined nd prior\O the ()(;(:Wtt;hct of an Evatt t>f'~ 
of which the lMtcc},... been notified Nprovidcd in Scetion l . l(g) ~Wt, orofw>Nch by 
aid P~ it is deemed to have notice. lbaU a.LIO be 1t liberty to accept a simit. 
ccrti&ate to Che r;ffa:f tlMtt my p1rticular dctlin& traunction « action is: neceSS1ry or 
expedient, but may at its cli1cretion. secure s~h further evidmce deemed nece&sary or 
advisable. but shall in ao euc k bound lO 1ecurc the 11mc. The Trutce may accept a 
certificate or •n Aud\orized Rep!"'*ntative of the lauer W\dtr its fiCaf to th~ cffi;:ct that• 
rc11oluUon in the fO{m therein 11ct fonh bas been adopted by the Issuer as conclusive 
cvidoneo tbot OU<h n:oolutioo hos b= duly adopted, and is in IUll fu,.. and effect. 

(I) The p•=inivc riilhl oftheTru&tccto de thinp cmnntntedh=in llhallnot 
be oonmucd as a duty and the Trusree sh.U not be aruwaable for other thin ilJ: nc~~ 
or willful m.iJli::ondud. 

(I) The Trustee 1hlll.I not be 1'tqUi.tcd to tlkc notice or be deemed to have notip;c 
of 1ny Ewn1 of Default hereunder, ncep1· an Event ofDcfiult described in Section 7.1(1) 
or (b), m>J<q the Trw<tec •hall bo spccific11ly notified. in writin& of such Default by the 
Issuer, • Security Instrument Issuer or by lbe R.cciltered OWnen of at lc111t twenty-five 
peroent (lS%) in tho 1ggnpte principal amount of my Sorie1 of the Bonda then 
OutsWJdifta and all notice& or other jwtrumtntc 1~uit'flli herr;by to be delivct'ed to the 
Tru11ee mwit, in order to be effective. be dclivertd al the Principal Corporate Trust Office 
of the 'l'rusttt, •nd. in d.c Dbscucc of 1uch notK:c so dclivcn:d, she Ttwitce m1y conclU!oivcly 
assume there is no E'/eD.t of Def.auk except u t&:nuid. 

(h) At my and 111 nuomblo tim• llld upon ,..,oaable pior writtm noti«, 
th< Trustee, Md ill dilly autboriud qents, -...,Y&, Ujlel1&, mP>e<n, l<COUtllanll IJld 
1"pnMll!ltilu, Will have the risbt IUlly to inlpect 111 boob, plpOn and records of th< 
Issuer pcnaioing to the lloodt, ..cl 11> take wch memoranda - and in ,...rd- a 
lbl)'becletittd. 

(i) Tloe Trwtoo oNll ool bo required 10 .... Ill)' bond OI' IUtely ill respect of 
the i::xccutioti of the aeXI tnKU end powen orothcrwik in rupc:ct of the prcmiM:s. 

(i) Notwithstanding 111ytlling el,...i.:.. bemn ...,toincd, the Tu.toe """11 
have the righl, but lhall not be reqtrired, to de:Mlnd, in respect of the authcnbcabon of any 
Bonds, thr: withdn.wal of any cuh, thcc release or any pi-opcrty, or 111.y action whatsoever 
within the purview bell!Of. 1m.y lhowina, ctrtifieatu. opinion&, tppni1al1, or other 
inl'omlllli<Jn, or corpontc actim or evld=:o theroo~ in addition to that by the tams het<of 
required u a condition of &ueb 1ction by the Tt\Jllflei, deemed dMinbk: for the 
1uthonticalion of any Bonds, the wilhdrawal of l1f)' CHh, or the taking o( any other action 
by the Trush:e. 



(kl AD """°YI received by !he Tru1teo or llll' hJilll Ajeot wll, until used 
or 1pplied or invcllod u hertin provided, be held in tnllt fw !ho plllJIOHI for ..tdeh tliey 
wm n:coivod but DOOd DOI be lllJ'Opted from othor llmdo exoq>I to 1ho moal roquired by 
l.w. Neither the Tnutce 8'M" eny Peyfu1 Agent •hall b• um. .-rcy liability for intertlt 01\ 

my moneys r.eceivcd bc:mmder acept IU<:b as may he: qn:cd upon. 

{1) If m1y Evctd of Def.ult hereunder 1hall haw occurred and be conlim,i:ing, 
th.: Ttustc.c: Ui1ll excn:i• 11.1ch of the rights and p<J'Wa1 VCltal in it hereby and 1haJI use 
the JQnc dqi~c oC QR as a pnadt.nt man would txeteisc otmc in the eircvmstancct iD the 
conduct ofbjs own .tr.in. 

(m} The Tiuolc< Wll be und<t no obiigoliaD ID ....-cise any of the npts ex 
powen vested in it by lllil lndenlure at the req'.lesl, order or di""'tion or "">' af the 
Roprercd Ownao, Security Instrument 1,...,. or R__,, lllllnmmtt Providm, punull!lt 
to tbc provl<lono of lhll IDdeoton:, unlm such Rogisaed Own<n, SOCl>tky lnllnlmc:tlt 
hauen or Ro- -.nt Provtden wll ho .. - "' Ille nu1tee security or 
indmmity nti11"ctufYto ~opinll the 00111, oxpemeuad lillolitim whicl> may be incumd 
t.h11l'l!lin or thereby. 

(n) Tiie Tnutec thall not be required to expend, 1dvmc•, or risk iu own funds 
m· inC\JJ' any finimcif.l lilb:ility in the J>Clformancc of ill dulie& or in dtc cxcrcis:c of H)' of 
its rishll or povma lfil oluill have rea10110ble grounds lllrbclievina !bit repoyment of such 
funds or 111.tirfaceuty indannity •11i111t such rblc or Liabili1y- ii not aaurtid to it. 

Sectioa 1.2 fcc1. Clwrg i nd BJpmsg of Trustee The Thll1ee lb.all be entitled to 
payment and/ex ~imb,ua::mcnt fOr n:esoruibJc fet1 foe its savica rendered u Trustee hcrcudcr 
wd oil odv11!1cc1, counsd r.e. llld other ex pent« .-bly 8-....rily made er in<.'WT<d by 
lbc Truatee bi ...__ wllll ouch 1orvic:er. '!'hr Tnutoo oholl be cnti1lcd co payment and 
mmbun...- f« the "'""''blo ft es Mid chetJ<t of the Tnllloo u l'aJinc Al"'t and R<s;i•lnlr 
for lite 8ottdt •• h...i..hcm pnmdocl. Upon an Event of Ddiml~ boll oab' upon on Bvont of 
De&ult, tho Trulleo lhall bn9 I rlsJ>I of paymont prior Ill ~ Oii ICCOUlll of lntoreot OJ 
pri.ncipeil o(, or premium. if any, cm any BO!Ml tor the foregoing advmc:a. fc.cs, cosu._ lllld expc:m:cs 
ittcumd. The Ttu1tce's rial* undct· th1' Seel.ion 8.2 will not tenninale upon '" ft:1iptio.n or 
removal or upon payment of1he Boruh and discharge of the lndencure. 

Section 8.3 Ng«iq 1Q Bg:cjatcrcd Owtten if Event ofl>ctiiult Ocsuu. If an Event of 
Default occurs ofwhicb die Trmke ii by Section 8.l(g) hereofn:quiral to take noLic1 orifnoti~ 
of an Event of Dcfa.ult be giwn 10 the Truttcc as in said Se ... 1ion provided, theo. the Trm~ shall 
&ivc written notice tbcreofby rcgWtertd ct' certified niail to ID 8e£urity Instrument Jssuc:n or to 
Re,;1tcn:d Ownm of all Bondi ch«L Outsa:indins shown on tbc rqistmion boob of the Bonds 
kept by the Trustee"' &qillnor fGr tho Bonds. 

S1c:lion 8.4 ! ............ !ty Tru11t1 Io my judidal ..-ecn.a lo which th1Ioouerla1 
l*IY &%1<1 Milch in the opinioD or tho Truate• ottd it1 countel boa ......... dal bculoi Oii tho 
mt<""' o!Rogillered 0..... ofllo Boodt, lheTN11ce11J1y- CM blholf ofsudl Owners 
a11d oho II do oo if roqucotocl in ..ntinc by tlw Registen:d Owners llf It leost ......,ty.frvc pen=! 
(2S%) in oggrcptc pri1'cipol - ortbe lloftdl then Outstaadinc Ollll indemftiAed H provided 
1'<rein. The rishta ond obliptiom llf thc TN1tee under thi• Scctioa 8.4.,. svbjei:t to the opprovsl 
of a court Df coruJ)etent jurilclic:tian. 
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Section U Supcs11Dt Dvatoo.. Any corpantion or H~iatioo tnto wbicb lhe Trullee 
may be oonverit:d or rni;rac:d. or with whieh it nw.y 'be con10Hdated, or io Wh;cfl it m.y •ft or 
tr1n1f'rl' its corpante truu bu•lncH and aum u • whole or mbltimrially a& • wbok. ot lDy 
corporatian or ••omtion re1ultin.g fl"om ny IUCll oo.nvmioa, •al•, muger1 C011tolidltion or 
transfer to which it is a party, ipco facto, shall be md become ruci:eHor Trustee hcmmder and 
vailcd with •ll oflhc title lo the whole propMy«lt\111 c1:talc and •ll the ITultl, powen, discrelions, 
immunitie5. privilc1e1 and all other m1ttcrs u wu 111 sndecessor, without th~ cucution or filing 
of"">' inotnlmem or 1111 fultbet act, deod of C<lllVCYIDCC on the psn of any of the potties lu:n:to, 
anything benin lo the CODlnlfY oolWich&ttodina. 

S«riob 1.6 Resiwtian by Iha; Ttpdtt.. The Trustee and ID)' IUCCCIMlf 1"nllla: may II 
any time raip from the truSU hettby ermlcd by giving wrinen noti" to lbe lllUd', at.tYCd 
pcnomlly.,,. i., n:ais1cr<d 0< ccrtifood moil, ...i by regimm!.,. omified m>il 1o ndi ltelerve 
1mtNmmt llmor, Security lnstrumem l11uer ml llqill.ORd o... .. r of Bondi Ihm <>imaadioJ, 
llllAI NCI> noi.,,atiool shall l1lb t1rei:t upOll Ille opp- of ond .. cophnlCe by • _,,,., .. 
Troetec ....,.,mted bi di< m1Dner 101 fonh iD Socticm l.S hen:of, provided, bowoY.:r !hit if no 
l\ICC...,. Tnlltec hll1 been oppoifttod wllhla lia1y (60) cloys of lhe dote of IUOh llOllce of 
n:signdicm, the n::1igning TN.ltec m1y petition any COW1 of co.npctcnt jurildiction fbr the 
appointmc:nt of 1 1Utce11or Trus1ee, 11.nd SUch court m.y th~upon, after such notice. if any. •:!i it 
deems pruper and prescribes, appoint 1 1\1.~CSIOJ" Trustee. 

Sccticm 8. 7 ks;moval nf the Dum 1be ~ may be rt moved 1t llDY time, by an 
iNlnlment or COl!C!JtJ<nl iNlruntenll (a) in wriliq doliv<Rd to the Trustee, and signed by thc 
l11uer, un'- chcR cxisa any Event ofOeC.UJt, at (b) in writing dcliw:rcd 10 the Tnllbet' and tht 
II.suer, IJld signed by the Rcgiatel"Cd Owncn of a majority in agregate Pri.Dcip1l 9mou.Dt of Bands 
!hen Oualmdiag if on Event of De&ult e>ills; pnwided tho! such iNtrum<nt or ....,,_,, 
c~ oppoinc a -or TruslM !hlo:ting th< quo~ sci for1h honi.o. No hllDOVlll 
of a Tlu11oc 1holl become etfeotive bemiodcr lllllcoo end until 1 ,....., .. ~ llot bcca 
oppointecl; pruvided, howner thot if no 1ucca-'l'nlllee hu boon oppointed within 60 doys ol 
the do.to of 111<11 .nodce of n:oiptl0tt, the ,..;ping Tnutee moy pethloo oay court of_,......, 
juri1dictioa 1br the appointment of 1 oueetuor rr-. ond nch court 11>1)' tliemipon, .... iucl> 
notice. if any,• ii deems prop« tnd preccrib~ mppoint 1 sul.'Ccuor l"nlstff. 

Section 8.8 Appointment of&ucccuorim1tu· Icmpgmry Tnwcc. In 1:111c ._ Tru11cc: 
hereunder lhlll ruig1l or be removed, or be clisaolvcd, or lhaTI be in eounc of dia:oJution or 
liquidstioD, °" olhclwisc bcccmie incapable: of actitJg hcteW'lder, or in cNe it shall be l.akcn nnder 
the conlrol of 111J public officer or officcra., or of• nceiver appointed by a court. • hlCCCUor ~Y 
bt appointed by the lssuct{or. if an Event ofDdau.ltc:zi&ts, by the R.eiistcred Owuen ot.n.jority 
in a~h: priacip•I amounl of Bonds then Oidswldtcig, by •n instrument or coac:mrcnt 
inllnlm<nll in writin1 •i_gnod by •uch <>--. or by 1hoir attomcya in llic:t, doly ..,.i..,mcd; 
provided, l>IMldbelm, !bit in c111 at ouch ... _, lhc: I11ucr by m lutNmont eumtod by m 
AulhoriSld ~Uv1 undo< !ta ,.,i DKY oppoiJrl • temporory Tn11toe to fill IOCll VIClllC)' 
11111tl • _,... Thllloe lhall be oppoWcd 1oy die Kos;iltond Ownon bi lhc: - obovc 
pnnridod; oml my 1uch Wllpomy Tn11tee 10 oppoltlled by the i..u.,. sblll lmmodillely ond 
--OCI be 1111>moded by tho Trullee oo oppointed by 1och Reshterod 0.-.~ 8-y 
SUCCHIOr Trmtee 1ppoin&cd pursuant 10 Che prvvmr- of this Scc:tkio 1.8 ot oth~ mll be a 
INS! ·- OJ httlt in eood 11andiug baviq I ._nod copitll ,.., •UIJllUS at DOI leos tbm 
sso.000.000. Eodl R<1erve lnstnun<nt l'rovUIC< and Security Instrument 1 ...... sball lie notified 



immediately upon the re1ignarion 01· termination of the Tru&tee and provided wich 1 list of 
candidates: for th~ office- of successor Trusree.. 

Section 8.9 Concerning A.Jw Succeaor Ttustee. Every IUCCCSSOI' Trustee appointed 
hereunder shall execute, acknowled,p and deliver to its predec:t1ssor and also to thi; lssuu an 
instrument in writing acccptins such appointmem: hereunder, and thereupon such 11tcctssor, 
without any further act, deed or convcyan1;:c:, shall bot01I1c fully vc:111tcd with zill the: cst.atca:, 
properties, rights~ pOWCB, trusts, duties 111d obligation& of its pn:lhlce1sor; but 11uc.h ~ceSM>r 
shall, DCVCJ1heless, on the written request of the Issuer, or of the 1UCccssor Trultcc. execute alld 
deliver an instnnnent tl'IU'.lsfcrring to such ruccec&Or Tl'l.lltee all the estates, properties, rights, 
powc:n and trusl5 of au ch prt:dc:i;c:asor hercundc:ri 1md every prcdcct:ssor Trustee sh.U ddiVt:J all 
securities and moneys held by it as T.rul5lce hereunder to 111 successor. Should any irutnnnent in 
writing from th.: Issuer be required by any lUOC.:llilor Trmtce for more fully and certainly vcrting 
in such iLltte.MiOt the e...tate8, rights, powen and dbliH hereby ~ted or in1ended to be vested in 
the predece•or. ~my imd 111 such imtrumentl in writing shall, on requmft be executed, 
aclcnowlcdgcd and delivered by the Issuer. The resjgnacion of uy Tl'1litce mid the instnunent or 
imtn,tments removing any Tn,isLU ll1d appoi.n1i118 a successor hereunder, togelher with all olher 
inslnlmcn1s provided for in thi• Artiele Vlll shall be fih:d "' r<eo<dcd by the ''"'"""°' Ttwlc< in 
each 1~ordin.1 office, If IJJy, where the fndentm:e 1h1U have been flied ID.di or recorded. 

Section 8.10 Inytpe Protected jg RC!Mng Upqn Indenture Etc The indenlum, 
opinion.a, ccrtificim:s mid other instruments provided for herein may he accept!Ml by the T1111teis 11 

conclusive evidence of the facts and conclusions stated therein and shall be full warrant, protcrtion. 
end authority to the Tru•lo• for tho 1111 .... of prop my and the vntbdraW111 of .... h ho=nd.,., 

Section S.l l Succcygr Ttwke U lruatcg PAvjng Agent apd Bgnd RcaWnq In the 
ovcnt of.- dl•nge. m the otliee ofTt\IJtoe. tho predocaso:r TJU5tcc whk:h ha11 l'C$ig:rtcd or b~n 
removed 1hall ceas~ co be Tnastee hereunder and Regi1trar for the Bonds and Paying Agent for 
p.rinc:ipal of, prcm.ium, if any, and interest on the Boo.di, and tlw succc:ROr Tru1tec shalt bccomi; 
11uch Trustee, Rcgilotnir IDd Paying Agent for the Bonds. 

Section 8.12 Trugt Eatate Mg Be ygtcd jn Sepmh; or Co-Dyst. II i1 the pLUpme of 
lhis Indeniure that there shall bc:"tiO violalion oftlflytaw of any jurisdiction (inch.tding: plrlicullrly 
1he Jaws of lhe State) denying or restricting the righc of banking corporations or &H~iations co 
lramact buslncss 8:11 Troatce in 1uchjuri11dlctlon. It i1 n:cognizcd that in case of litigation hereunder, 
IUld in puttcuhlr in c:uc of thi:: ~ruent of rt:mcdie1 on Event of Default, or in case the Trustee 
dcam that by rellOD of any present or future law of any jurisdictillD jt may not cxcrejsc any oftbc 
powers, rights, or remedies herein granted lo lhe Trustee or hold title to the bUl estate, as herein 
gnnted. or take any odler action which may b~ decinible or necessary in oonnection therewith, it 
may be ncc:c:i;sary that the Ttu&tce ilS>J)oin.t lln additicntal ittdividuml or iMtltutiOl'l llS a 1eparate or 
co-trustee. The following provisions of this Section 8.12 .are adapted to these end&. 

Ju the event th.al th~ Ttultc:i; 11ppaints an adtlitionlll jndividual or ins61Qtion as a .1cpa ... 1c or 
co-trustee, e1ch and every remedy, power,rigbt, claim, demand1 cause of action, immunity, ~state, 
title, interest 1nd lien expressed or intcnd.t:d. hen: by to be t:>tcrciscd by or vc:rted in or conveyed CO 
the Trustee with respect theJ"etO shall bf: ex.en:i11ble- by and vested in such separate or CG-trustee. 
but only to tho extent De ... Nary to enable; the MJJllll'ltc: or c;:o-1r\lltcc to cxcml!ie AJch powen, righh 
and remedies, and every covcnanl and oblig1cion nooeuaryto the mi:ercise thereof by s11ch separate 
or co· tn.111ee shall nm to and bf: enforceable by eilher of them. 
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Should any dc:ed. c:onvq1n..c or imtrumcnt jn writing from the: ls.suer be: required by the: 
KpaJ'alc tl1lltce or co•tnlSC~ co 1ppoinbsd by the Trustee for more fully and certainly vesting in 
•d COJtfirming lo it such properties. rights, powus. trusts, dutic1 and obligations, any and all su<:b 
dc:cdlli, canv~ci;s qnd iTQitrumcnts in writing 111hdll, on rc:queirt of such l:nl$lee or co-lrt.li=tcc, be 
execut~ aeknow)edgcd and dc:liva'Qd by the Issu.c:1;. ID QISC:. any sc:p'1'9.tc trus~c: or 1;:0-trustec, or 
a successor lo either, 1hall die., become incapable of acting, msign or be removed, all the csl:lites, 
properties, right!, powien.. mms, du.rice and obligations of ru<:h 1epamtc trustee or co-O'ustee, so 
Wu permitted hy b.w, .lulll ve1t in and be C}l;crciscd by the Trustee until lhc •ppoinlmcnt of11 
new trustee or successor 10 such sepuote. lnlstee. or co-trustee. 

Secriott &.13 Anti.ml A«ountin@. Tue Trust~ shall prepare an annual accounttns for 
each Bond Fund Year by lhe CDd of the month following c:aeh suc:b Bond Fund Yc:ar showing in 
n:o1on1ble detail all financial rr.nsactionc relating lo the fund& .ad accounts held by the 'l'ru&~ 
hereunder during the acoounting period and the balance in any funds or accounts created hereby 
111 of the bcginnini .and close: ofJUCh acc01uuiri19eriod, and sh-11 tnail the s11mi; to the bsuc:r .nd 
co each hserw1 lnsttument Provider requnting the. smnc. TI.e Trustee shall aho make available 
for inspection by any Registered Owner a copy of said annual acoounling (wilh lhe names md 
addn:Hcll of Rcgistt:n:d Owneta receividgpayment of ~bt service on dte Bonds deleted thetdt'om) 
and shall mail the same if requested iri writiog tD do JO by Rcgi,tcrcd Ow:i.crs afat lclllt twcnly­
five percent (2S%) in a113rep1< principal amoont or Bonds then Out.standing to the designee of 
said Owners specifii:d in said written request It the addrc11 there-in designated. On or before the 
end of the month followin1 each Bond Fund Year, the Tnu1ee shall, upon wridetl requeit, provide 
Co the Issuer ind the Issuer's indepcndimt audjtor repre.sentacions 1s to the acwnicy of this faclJ 
contained ia. the financial reports conccming the tnnsactions described. herein that were &:livered 
by tho l'n<il<e during 11>< l!ood Fund V.ar jwol endod. 

Si:ctiOD S.J4 Indemgificatjou. To the exleut permitted by law and subject to the 
provi1iOM of Section 8.l{a) of this Indenture, the Issuer shall indemnify and save Trustee hmnle11 
against any liabiEities it may incur in the excrcjse end performance of h1 powers and duties 
hereunder, other than those due lo its own negligence or willful misconduct. 

Section 8.15 In.iatcc's Right to Own pnd I>nl in Bood1 The bank or trusl compmy 
acting as Trustee underthb Jndenhtre, and its db~ctois, officers. employc-=1 or 11gents. may in good 
fiailh buy, sell. own, hold and deal in any of the Bonds Lt&ued hereunder and secured by thi1 
Indenture, and may join io IDY a~on whic:b any Bondholder may be entitled to take witb lib 
effect as if such bank or trust company were not the nustct: undt:r this Indenture. 

ARTICLE IX 
SUPPLl!MENTAL INDENTURES 

Section 9,1 Supple-mMJtol lodmb,ln;• Nm Requjring f.M@;nt qfRssistered Qwnen and 
Ri;gerye lmstnnnent Prpyjdcn. The Jauer and the Trw:tee may, without the COOleDl of any of th..: 
Registered Owoen, or Reserve Instrument Providers, but wilh lhc conscr.t of the SDCurity 
Jn1trument lsmer Ind with notice to all ~rve lnslJ'UmCnt Providi:rs, enter into an indenture or 
indenturc:1 aupplc;mcntal hcmo. lll 11bJII not be UJoonsisknt wilh the tCJlJUI JDd provi11i«lm hereof, 
for any one or more of the followinJ pmposes: 
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(a) To piovldo I« the i11u1nco of Additional Bondi Ill ocoonlw:e with the 
proviolo"' or SIOllOll 2.IS hmof; 

(b) To ""'"""Y omblgu!ty or formal defoct,. omilliall herein; 

{c) To ,aranr IO or confer 11pon the Trwtee for the beno1it of the Re&is~ 
Owners. any Security lmtrument :Wutrs and any llescrvc :lmtnlmmt Providcn any 
additioml righi., R:rD<dic:a, powcn or authori1y tlw may lawfully be crontcd to or 
confeind upon die R~illtftd Ownm or 1ny of'thi:rn wtudl lhall not adv'1'1'kly &ffctt the 
intertrts of any R.CHIVC lmtnuncnt Providm or Security lmtnl::D.cnt l.uua11 without its 
amKnt; 

(d) To atbjeGt to thi& IDdcutw< addit"-1 ll<Yatuel or odx< rewnues. 
p10portios. ~lltcnl or •curity; 

(•) To pn>¥ide for Ille i ... lll<a of tho Bondi pamwrt to a boolc-couy l)'Stom 
or 11 unooni!ioatod n,;.c.r.d public obliption1 ,...wm to tho proviaions of the 
llcai&tered Publie Olillpliont Ac~ Title IS, Chapts 7 Ullh Code, or aoy ooce•Hm· 
provisions oflnw; 

(l) To mate any change which shall not materially advmcly affect the rights 
or :intellsti of the Owners of any Out1Wuling Bonds, my Security IMtrumcnt l1suen or 
any Rcsuvc W-Ptuvider, requested or appJU¥<d by a Klotitli AJ<ncy in order to 
obtain or maintain ay :rw.tiDJ on lhe Bon~ or reqamd ur approve.cf by 1 Security 
lnstrumM l~ucr at Rcftnle ln1tnament Provider in order co inrute or provide other 
security for any Bondi; 

(t) lf!MBoada aft'ecttd by any cbange ... -bya RodJttAjtncy, to makl 
lU1Y cha:ole which - ... retllJt la I toducdon of the t:ttlinc (witbou< talcin& into account 
any rating relating ma Security ln11tum<r1tl1iuer or Rlsm:lmtmnoat !11UOr) applicable 
to any of the Bondi so o1l'Oatd, provided that ihny oflhe Bondf 10 111'ect<d arc oecunod 
by a Seourity IMrumatt, oueb eb11>1• muat be eppmwd la writiltc by tho •~illled S«w;ty 
Imtnnncnl Isrucr; 

(h} tfthc Bondi affected by any change are JeCUNd by a Security Tnslnlmcnt, 
10 make any cb111gC 1pp10Vtd 1n \\Ti ting by the rel11ed Security Instrument (Auer. provided 
that if any of tho - to affected ''" rated by a Roting A....,:y, suoh chanp shill not 
result in a redu<:ticm of the ming appUe1ble to any oflheBmut. so affected; 

(i) Unlat1 otb<nri•• provided by a SuP11lcmcatal Indenture authori>ing a 
Snici; of Bon~ the ..... don of the facilities to constitute a Project by 1ueh 
Supplemental lndattun moy be mocliDed or amended i!tb- doliven to the Trustte 
(A} a Supplem-1 J-.n deal~ tlte &cllltlol IG ~duo Project, (B) an 
apinioo of~ ......i to tho ctr.ct that 1Uch atllelldrtiaK will not adv<:nely aff<ct the 
.. lidity of the llollda ud (C} a certillcote of the luuar IO the ol&ct that suolt amecclment 
wiD not 1dvmcly a1fecl the l1Suer'1 ablllly 1o comply -thc-iaionl of tho lncknture; 
and 
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(j) To ecnrect 1ny refcrmcc1 canmincd herein to provitions at 1be Act. rbc 
Code Ott "111tr applic.blD p1'0Vi1iott1 Df 1nf 1hlf liave been amended to dud the nfmmeH 
hc:ram. ~ oon"Del. 

SeWon 9.2 S11PP!cmen(lt lndcntvms R@Jiring Coment of RcgiFfm!d 0wpm 
Security Inmummrt Juu<q. ood BC§Crve lnslrumglf Prgyidm• Wfjym tad Cohlenbi by 
Rccjsmd Owngrs EJ:clU1ivc of Supplcnamtal lndmtum covered by Section 9.1 hereof and 
~ubject ta the 1cm'J .rwt provi1ion1 contained in :his Section 9.2, and not otherMJC, the Rt:gilkred 
Owners of66-2/3% in •w<s•t< Principol UllOUlll ofthe Bonds then OutMandinl! ohoJl lmvc die 
righ~ ftom time to time, anythiq oont.ained h<n:i1I to the contniry notwkhJtondiag, to(•) """""1t 
10 and_... the cxc<:lllion by tb< Issuer and the Ttaee of llllCb other iodcnllft or irtdaimes 
supplcmertlal hereto as thall be deemed OCe<all}' and deon.ble by the IMucr for the puJ'Oft of 
mo<lifJWlc. altcriac. amcwdin;. acldinc to or ,_;,,ding, in "'Y porric:ullr, Ill)' of the tennr or 
provillionsccmlainedboreinorinanyS"Pl'lemmtolladmture,or(b)waivcorcon-trlthetakins 
by th• la,_ of lll7 1Cdcm problbltod, or tll< - by tho INUer of tho takiita rrt my action 
noqulred, by ltt;)I of the provt.i- hereof or of my ind&mtw< supplc'lllOl\t&I hlt<lo; provided, 
h.....-. th.al nollliJll in this SOCl!oo 9.2 caataincd tMll pmnit or be cODJU\led 11 penn;um, Q) 
11n cxtmsion of the date th1t a Principa1 Tnstallmenr Is due at niahnil)' or m1ndttory nodcmption or 
redudion in the principal amounl of. or rcductian in the ntle of or extenslon of the titne of p&)'ing 
of interest on, or reduction of any prem.iun1 p1ya.blc on the redemption of, ID)' Barut. wilhout the 
conscpt oftbc llc&iJttJ'C'd Owner of such Band,, or fli) a reductiOft. in the •tnount ..- cncmion of 
the time of any payment required by any Fuad ""blishcd ltemmder applicable to any Bond< 
without the con1e11t of the Re1iat~d Ownen af 111 the- Bondi which would bt .tfectled by the 
tction lO be taca, or (jii) 1 rcductioa La the aforuaid a.ggMglte principtl amount afBoack. the 
llcgistaed 0....... ofwhlcb.,. required to oomtml to any such waiver or Supplew.iW """""°"• 
or(iv}offcdtherights of the Recislen>clo..nasoflesthan all Bonds tbeo outsllmdiag, widlout 
the c-of ... Rcpt.,..i 0wnett of all tho B-at the time Ou11tandi .. wllicli "'"'Id bo 
affected by t!te.aion to betaken. lnaddlt!on,oonpplomonthomoshall moditytberigbls, dulies, 
or immualtla oltlie Trwt<e, without the - ooruont or the TN1toe.1! a SccwflJ In111n11111ull 
.. a lleMr¥e lnalrummt ia in ot!ect with J.apoct tr> any Seri" of Booda Outmadiaa and if 1 

propoaod modificatitm or amendmmt would llfccl auch s.,;., of Bontl.s, tbca, """<Jll • pmridod 
in Sedion 9.1 hem>C. neither tbia l.adentuJe nor any Supplemental IDdentore with...,... to such 
smes of Bonds lhaJJ be modified 0t amended 11111)' time without lhe prior written conlent of the 
related Security IDIU\llnent Jssue1" or Reserve Instrument P1:ovidc:r, 1s 11pplicable. 

Section 9.3 TntrtK Autbod7~d tg Join in Amcndmcnh and Sunplements· Relince on 
~ The Tm;te• i& autboriZ<d to join .nth the lssu<r in Ibo execution and ddivoty of my 
Supplatta1tal btdmturc or omcndmcnt pr:rmill<d by Ibis Article IX and in 10 doing lholJ be fully 
proteclal by mi opinion or cowud that .uch SUFPl.emental Indenture or amendment ii 110pcrmittcd 
and has been dWy auth0tuod by the luu01 ad tbll all tbinp occemry to make it • .aJid aod 
bllldina..,-1t1rve boon dooa. 

Sectioa. 9A °"inien gtQ:u.gJ fcr SUppJ.-tal Indcnturn Bc!:an the~ IDd che 
Trustoe ltball mter ink> any Sllpplr:menlll) ladoobn pmnant to thio Artiolt IX, dun lltall lmvo 
been deliwnid 11> 1lto 'l'nuloo an opinion of..,,,,. .. llOtinl that ouch Supplommtal l..i..tur. ia 
ai:thom..d umlerthe lnd<Mw'<, and that 1uch Supplcmcrtlol Indenture will, upoo the exeeulim and 
dc?ivtlJ ~ be valid and bindina upon IM ksua ia acconbncc with ic1 tmm.. 
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ARTIC'LEX 
DISCHARGti OF INDl!NTURti 

f( lh.c lnun aha)) ply or ctu1c: to be paid. or there shall be ctllcrwile peid or provilk>a for 
peym<lll made, to oc for the Rtci•tuocl Ownen olthe llot!do, the principal olend inter<st due or 
lo bccoone cb> lh<r<oo at the nm.. and ill !he nwmer stipulated lhen:in, and shall P'Y or ...... to 
be paid lo the Trustee all l\llDI oCmaocyi due or lo bcc:on>c: due -c:cordllle: to the provisiowl hereof, 
«tel to •11 Secwiry Jnslnll'tleM t11uen and 1U Reserve Instrument Prorid&:n all sums of money due 
or 10 became due .cconUn1 lo the provi:11ioos of my Security Instrument Ayccmcn1a Uld R.ctc:rve 
lnltr\Unmt Agrecmettt1, 11 applicable, then thetie presenu and the ellate and rigkta htnby Jm1Md 
tball ewe, tamiuate ed. be void, whcrqpoa the TJ11.Stce dmll i::ancd. and discbarac the lien 
bcn:of, ind rcleuc, Hsign 8Ud deliver unto the Issuer any and all the estate. right. title and interest 
In and to any tnd 111 t1Jhl> uaigned or pledged lo the: Tnuotcc, h<ld by the Tt11a1«, or othcrwi1< 
subject to the lien hereof', except moneys or securities held by the Trustee for the payma11 ottbe 
principal of 11md interest on the Bonds, the pll)'IDmt of amountl pU?1uant to any Seeurity lnrtrvmetu 
Agreements or the payment of uaowltl pW'IUlnt to any JU: serve 1nstnnncnt Apei:mnu. 

Ally Bond lhall be deOllled to be paid wilhio the meming of lhi1 Article X when poymctlt 
of th• principal of 1uch Bon~ plu1 interc1t thereon to the due date thL."l\..'Of(whether such due date 
he by tetion of maturity or upon redemption 11 provided hci"Cin. m· otherwise), either (a.) shalt 
have been made or cauted to hive been made ju 11::c:ordmce with the b:l1'ft8. th~f. or (b) 11h11t 
have bocn provided by irmrocably depositing wilh or for the benefit of the Truat<e, in tnl>t and 
irrevocably 1ettin11 uldc oxclusivdy for such payment, (i) 11\0DO)'I sufficient to make suc:h 
payment, or (ii) Direct Obliptions maturing u to principal zind intt:rea in such amount and at 1uch 
tl.mcs u will itlsure the ava.ilabilily of1uffi~jC!Jlt moneys to make 5uch P'-YJDcnt, and all occca1ry 
and proper feet, compau:ation aad expctllCIS of the Tru1tcc and •"Y p1yin111e:nt pertain.in& lo the 
lloud with '""J><ct lo which auch <Lopo1it ii made ahall haw beca paid or the paymeol th.,.of 
provided tor to the 11tisftic:doa oCthc Trustee. At suci:i times •:s • Bond WIJ be deemed to be paid 
hereunder, u afon::teid. it 1haJJ no JonF be secured by or cntitled to the btnefiCI heftOf, except 
for tbt: purposes of any aucb peymcat from auch tnOb.eyt or Direct Obligatiant. 

NOlwithllll>dinS Ille ron:JOiDL itt the cue of Bondi, which by their tmm may be 
rcdttmcd prior to their ata<ed maatrity, no cleposit ander !he immediately pnoodioJ r a..,..plo 
tillaU be deaned a poymml of Neb Bondi., af.,..,.jd\lfttil thcioooeuhall hive Jiwl the Tnnlee, 
infomlutlsf'tctotyto tlttl'nmN, inwYoooblc: ittslrucliotll: 

(•) •totins tM date when th• prDcipol or cod> •uch Bond ic lo be paid, -
at tMtwily 0<"" a Rd<mptioa date (which shell be 1ny n:demplion date p<nnitted bcn:by); 

(b) dirl0Ctin1 lhe Tlus1t< to coll fwmlemptioot J>'l"U8"I bc:n:to any Bonds to be 
t'Odeeme<l prier to matut;ty punuont 1o the pruvisWm or this l:odcnture; and 

(cl if the Bouds IO be redoomod will not be .. decm<d within 90 dlys of111ch 
cltpolit, d.Uc:c:tin,s chc 1'uJtcc to nmil. at soon H pr8cticahle. in cbe manner prucribed by 
Article D hereof, a notk:e to the Registcn:d OwDen of tuch Bonds and to each ne.latr:d 
S•curity J.,!Mnmt 1,.ucr llut the dcpo•it ""!llit<d by this Articl< X has b<en 1111do with 
the Tru11oe uwi thirt tuch Bonds are deemed to have bean p1id in 1c:contancc with ttU.1 
Anlclo X and statini tho !Dllurily or t<demptfon date upon which moneys are t<> be 
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1vail1ble for lhe poyment orlhe principal or rcdemptioo price. if applicabl<. ""Hid Bood> 
as specified ill Subponcraph (a) above. 

Azry moneys eo deposited with the Trust« u provided ill !hi> Article X may al lbc: dh<Otion 
of the Issuer also be imcskd and rem vested W Ditec1 Obliptiom, m1.turing ill the 1m<*Dts md 
lime< as hcttinh<ratt 1<1 rodh. and all income - 111 Dirccl Obliplioos in lhe baud> ot lhe 
TIUllcc pumlllll lo 1hi> Atti<:le X wbicb is JIG! required for the poym<lll oflhe Bonds and inl'"'1 
tt.:r.on wilh rHpe<t"' which 1Udl moncy11lloll hlY< bHn oo dtpoailcd, •II be depolited in the 
Bond fund as and whm realized and colJeclal f« use and •ppl.icatiotti u an: other mcne:ys 
deposited in that fbnd; provided. however. that bef<n any excess moneys 1hall be deposited in the 
Bond Fund, the Tnu;tcc shall fi.pt ohta.in • writtco \•etification ftoftl a 1;;e:rtiftod public acCOWJtaot 
that lhe moneya remaining an deposit with the TNJlf.C and invested in Direct Oblip.tion1 after 
such tnnsfer to th.: Bond Fund shall he 111fficic:nt in amount to pay princip1I and in1ttt:sr oR chic 
BondJI wbcP due and ply•hlc. 

Jfthe Bondi lo be defeeaed punuN1t to thia Article X are V•riable R.tc Bond!, the Wuer 
murtre<::eivc •prim written c:onftnnatiCJ11 &om the Ratia&Asenc.yto the tffctt thlt such dcf.:uane.:: 
wiU not mult jn a dow.qn.de or withdr.twal o(the ratinJ: on the Bonds. 

Notwithstanding tny provi11ioo of any other Article hereof which may be contnry to the 
provision& of this Article X1 all moncy1 or Direct Obliptjom: 1c:t 11idc IDd held in tlult pm'Dlllnt 
to the provi1ions of thi:1 Article X for 1he payment of Bonds (includin1 intere&t thereon) shall be 
eppli<d to &nd us<d1<>J.iy for the payment of the partlculerBoodo (inoludini iutctcotther<on) wilh 
respect to which such moocyi or Direct ObUpt.iom hJvc been so set uidc in truat. 

Anything in Article VIII hetcof to the contrary notwitbsa.ndin& jf money1 or Diroct 
Obligations bavo been deposited or :1cl Hide with the Tnu:lec pumwa lo thia Article X for the 
p•ymenl of Bonds md iruch Bonds •ha.II not have I• &cl been 1ctu11Jy paid in full. no amend.meat 
10th~ ptovision• ofthU Article X 1h1tl be m1de without tho consent of the: Rcgistc:n::d Owner of 
eech Bond affected dm-<by. 

AllTICLBXI 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 11. l CqftHDll. E1e gf Rniatpd Owpp. My ~ontcnt, rcqucJt, dirution, 
""""""1. object Mm, me otbu ina-~irod bcn:by lo be exet!llled by the llegi>kml o..ncn, 
Security lnstrumettt lsSU<n or Raerve lmtrumenl Provldm may ba itt ""1 number of COllOIX1<nt 
writings ot similar tenor md m8)' he exetuta:d by a1X'h Reaiitered Owners, SeL.'Urity lnstrw11eM 
lssuen or Reserve lnslNmeM Providcn ia pcnoa or by qent eppoiaacd io writing.. Proof t'.lf the 
execution of any such coment1 rciqoa1, diRcrion.. 1pproV1l, objec:tiou or olhcr inrtrumenl or of the 
writing appointing any suclugeat and of the own<nblp or Bonda, if mado in tho following marmcr, 
shall be sufficient for any of the pwposa beroo( "d a.ball be conclusive in favor of lhe Trustee 
with n:pnl to any action t.Jr:cn under such RIQUIMt or olher in1D'Ument, namely, the fact and date 
of the exeeu.lion by any pen on of my rueh wrid.ac may bo proved by the certificate of 1ny officer 
in ay juri1dicrion who by Llw has power to ta~ 1cknowledamtnU within such jurildietion that 
the per&em. 1ignjng mch writing aeknowled.lc:d be fort him the exe~u1ion thereof, or by atlidd.vit or 
any witness to 1Ueh ex~tiou. 

,2 
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Scctioo 11.2 1 !mi"'i!IJ or Rj1b11 Wilh ti.. oxceptioa or rllhl• ben:iJ1 cxpraaly 
c'"1fcrred, nothi11r cxpreued ar monticncd 01 or to be Implied fium tllis lndmturc or the Bonda ii 
Intended or tholl be ~ lo civ. lo 111y ponon OCb<t tboa the 1*11<• h......,, tbo Rc1i1tm<I 
OWntn or the llood1, 111Y Secerily 1""1lln>ent l•uor md 1117 llc'"""' """11mcnt Pravidor, U1'J 
kpl °' equii.hlc right. rancdy or c laim under or in reaped hcmu m urt covcn1ra. cooditiont 
and provilkm< h<ftin ......med, this lndc""'1C ond all of Ille cm.....u, condirio .. aJ>d pr'(l\ioicnt 
hcn::ofbcina inkndted to be Ind 1>etn.g fl)( the sole and cxdu.si~ bcni:fit of the parties hereto. the 
Rcgislc:"Cd Ownca• of dtc Bonda, •DY Security lnrlrumm hsucr and the R""rvc lnltnlmclll 
Providcn 01 bcttU. provldtld. 

Socti<Ol 11.) ~ If my prOTision hereof duill be bdd or deemed to be or ahall, 
in C.ct. be inoperative or 11QC1lfon:cablc 11 applied in any pafticul.-~ in any jwildk:cion or in 
all juri1dktioM, or io all CMet ba:aUk it conflicts with any o1her provision or proviaions hcn:of 
or any comititutiaa e>r 11a1Utc tit rule of publie policy, or for my otms nm.on, 1uch ~1tam:11 
wll not hove the ~ct ofl't.lll!orina the provl~Oll m que1tion imlpamive or un"1fol'eClbJo tu ID)' 
o1hw cao or cimamstaoce, or of rmd.mng 1ny oth~ provilb « prv¥i1iom: ~n contained 
ia.V11id. iaop1r1tivt, or llllCllfarcmble to any o:hmt whatever. 

Tho inv1Udity or any one or mori: phmscS, ~ent~nce&1 chKH~ or Sections Mrein c:onuiincd, 
1hall not aJTccl lbc remaining~ hereof, or any part lhcrcor. 

Seli:tiott 11.4 ~ II sharL be tuffident aen•foe of cry notice. requc.1t, ~omplaint, 
dcm1nd or other poper on lhe '""""if tho same &h.U be di;Jy moiled byngillfeled or certified mail 
1ddre1scd 10 il at ~858 South 900 Bast. Mumy. Utah 84121, Attmlioa: Chajr, Of to 1uch •ddrc11 
u cbc Isituermay from timc1o time filt: with tho Trustee. It 1hallbe lllftieic:ntservicc of any notiro:c 
or other papa· on the Trurtee if lbe same shill be duly mailed by registered or certified man 
a~ to hat One South Ml.in. 121'11. floor. Stlt Lake City, Umh 141l3, AUcurioo: Corpli)fltO 
nut Servtce1, or 10 such other' Mlhl 11 th• Trultot m1y from time tD dme ftle with tht bl\Wr. 

SenJon 11.5 Tru@c • "viq1 Acsnl !ftd Rcsj4lmr 1be Truflw 11 heir.by dlllpated 
md '""*' to eel 11 principol ~Agent 1ud Bond R.e9illm lhr nd ia rupu:t lo Ibo Bonds. 

Scctioo 11.6 ~ 1bil 1..i.mur. "'">'be .....-.1y ae<Ul<d ill 1""""1 
countc:rparta. each orwhktl .-Ube an originll and 111 orwllidlalloll ._.iNte but one IGd the 
$&11\C if'lltrumc:ot. 

Section 11 .7 •mlkebfc Law This lnduJurc llhall be govcraed ex.dU1ivtly by dtie 
oppl~lbleilwsoftheStaae. 

St:ction 11.8 hmmnitv of Officm M'14 Pirccrpn. No ftlCUUtsc shall be: had for I.he 
paymcat of the prihcipal of OI premium or inlete&I: on .ny af tlle Boodi. CIC for any claim basod 
1hsrwn or upon any obliptiaa. GDYCrtmt or agrecmmt hemn contaim:d 91:aimt my p11t, pruent 
or n.twe otllc•, or orb« pablio omciaL employeo, or qent or ... l'Hu<r. 

S..tion 11.9 llaJidul. If my dale tor lhe paymeOI oC pdnclpll of or inl.,...I on lho 
Bonds i1 not a Bu.in .. 1 n.y, "-wch .Pl)'ffteftt 1hlll be~ Oft lhl fim Bu.inut O.y thm1fter 
uid no illlctc:1t ahall accrue for the paiod between such date and mcb first:Businesa Day thereafter. 

Section I I.JO Ell!djw p11o This Jndenl\tt .... 11 bcoomo dl'ctive immediately. 

Sedian 11.11 CampH•ncc wl!h AC!. ll u lloreby cleeltred by !ho !1JUCJ'• ~ 
Body lhol it ii !he intention of !he l11ucr by 1he eucu&n of thia lndcncure., comply ift oll tnpec'S 
with tlw~ otlhe Act. 



m WI.TNESs WHEllE.OF, I.he J>l11ies hereto ha\'e cauaed Ibis Indenture eo be executed aa 
of the date tint written abovt. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

By:_~--~----
Scctetary.'Trcuurcr 

UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY, ~ , .. ..., 

By: _____ ~------
Chair 

ZIONS BANCORPORATION, NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION, as Trustee 

By: ___________ _ 
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EXHIBIT A 
FORM Qfj\F.iljj]S!T!ON 

R~: Utth Infraslructure Agency Tclecommunicati.on1, EJectric Utility and Sale.11 Tu. Revenue 
BObds (Morgan City Project), Series L__J, in the sum of i --------

Zio.m Bancorponticm, National Association 
One South Main Street. 12 ... Floor 
Salt La!re City, Utah 84133 

You are hereby authorized to disburse fi"om tht: SeriN __ Acoounl of the UEA-M01p11 
Construction Fund with regard to the above-rcfen:n~d bond issue 1he following: 

REQUJSmON NUMBl!l'.: 

NAME AND ADDRESS O F PAYEE: 

AMOUNT:$ __ _ 

PURPOBE FOR WHICH EXPENSE HAS BEEN INCURRED: 

1. The hsUH horeby ecrtifics and ~:tc:ntl thst ,..m obJigDition, il.cm of C0$1, or 
exptn6e mentioned herein his been properly incun'ed, is a proper cluqe agaja1t the Series. __ 
Consttuction Account bastd upon audittd. itemized claims 1ubst1nti1ted in tupport thereof 
(cvidcacc: of JUcb support nol herein tcquimd by the Trustee) llltd bu not been the bui& for a 
prev:iOWI withdl'IWIJ. 

2. The amowt remaining in the Series Comtruction Account after .such 
disbunement is made, toge1her with the amount of unencumbered Revenues. if my, which the 
Issuer reasonably e&tinm~s will be dcpoiiited in the Si:rics __ Construction Account diJrln1 du: 
period of oon.tru.clion of lhe Project from the jnvestment of moneys o.n depo1it 
in the Series __ Construction ACi:OUnt. win, togethor with any other moneys lawfully availDble 
or e111:pc:etcd lo be lawfully avt1ili1blc for p•ymcnt oftbc Cort of the Project and 1fter pa.yttte:nl of 
the 11Dounl requested in 11id requisition, be sufficient to pay the Cost of CompletiOD for the: 

Project in 111ccordance with the. pllDI and specifications therefor then in effect; it 
b!-c~ing-..,--.,-.,-k>~od that no moneyc from.the Seriea __ Conslruclion Account of the Construction 
Fund m11y be: ~p~ded unle~ .d\cr giving cffcp;t th~IJ, 1hc f\lnds rH'lainiitg iii the Series __ 
Co111truction Account, together with such olhcr fun.ch; and income and lawfully available moneys, 
are sufficienl to pay the Cosl olComplelion for th1 ] Projett. 

A-1 
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.. _ ... _____ _ fir.;._ _____ _ 

""'~------~ 
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PIBl!ll COMMUNICATIONS SERVICE AND ACQUISITION CONTRACT 

D11cdo1ofJ-.ry2,2019 

lTTAH INFRASTllUCTIJRl!AGl!llCY 

•"" 
MOii.GAN CITY, UTAH 

ARTICl.B I DBF!NITIONS .......... .............................. ........... .. ....... .. ....... ... ........................ 3 

Alll1CL£ II CONNECTION SERVICES AND ACQUJSmON OP IMPllOVEMENTS 
6 
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Section 2.5 
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Seeliao 2.9 
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Seclian 2.12 
Soclian 2.13 

Connection Sc:rvice.1 ...................... ..................... .......... ................. ............... 6 
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N-Reticlclttlal lnlllllati<D. ........ .... .......... ....... ........... ................. ............. 7 
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FIBER COMMUNICATIONS SEll.VlC6 AND ACQUISITION CONraACT 

11lic Fillet eoo-miclllioM Suvicc and Ac~iOO> c.-oct (lhe "Ccntroc:t") is 
"'1<t<ll illlaasor llJlllllY2,2019, by oadbcnwcenlhc UUh lnlTntnietun:~ ("UIA "). 
.. intal...i coope...m ...... separlle lc&ll axil)•, bocly politic ...i oorpoo11te and. politic.i 
"1hdivisioa or the Stale orUt.._ orgooi=l uader the iluerlocal C...,...UOO Aci, Ti1lo 11, 
Chaplcr 13, Utah Code A.........i 1953, u ..-doc!. oad Mcti m Cily, Ulsh (the "City"), 
aimllli<lpal capcntion and • political subdivitiool or the s .... ofUtah (UIA and the City 
.. IOIDOlimes tcrcmd to individuolly a a " Party" and colleclivdy" "Pm:ties" hcrcio). 

kEC' I TA LS 

1. Pursuam.lo Section 16-&-14, Ut• Coclc Aunotatod 1953, 111mended, cities 
inay tmStnict, niaiatain. and operate tdecommunic.Uon lines .W ~e tcle\•ision liJ1es. 

2. Purtullll. to the provisions or the Jntalocll Coopct0tion Ac~ TiUc 11, 
Chopter 13, Utllh Code Aimototod 1953, H •mendod (the "lnterlocal Act"), cities moy 
cxc:rciJre md r;njoy jointly \rith othercitie1 tl:ll)' power. prh·Ucp 01 aulhoiily ~i•cd or 
capable of exerciliic by 1 city. 

3. The lntcrlocll Act permits cities to mike the moot olliciC11t use of their 
power by enabling them to ooopcl'ltc with other cities on &he basis of mutuaJ ad\•aotagc 
and thctcby to provide son· ices .... &cillti .. in. m.nncr md undct fonns or JDVCnUllCDtai 
organiutiotii lh•t will accord bell with aco8fll>hic, Cconoftlijc, popullltiCll tlU:l otht:r fact.on 
ioJluc:m:illJ: the needs of dcvel~t oflocll com111unitie1 mid will provide the bcPcllt of 
~onomy of scale, economic dovclopmmt. IDd utiliz.ltWn of n1turll n::sources for Ille 
ovct•ll pro..00... of the acocnl wcltan: of the Stlllc ofVtoh. 

4. PllBUD to the lnlcrlocal Acl, certllill ....UCiplllitics otsmizod UIA "' 
provide for tloe ocqaisilion, construtlion, ond illflall•tion or rocilitics, fibet ..-n. md 
C<jlli- klgcllicJ 'O"itlo rolllled ............... f0t the JIWPOIC of COllllOCting l'l'JllC1lics 
within such -cipolitics and elaawhcn: to ., od• mccd fiber oplic communicotions 
nclwod (the "UIA N<!vo-ork"). 

S. UIA is • scpulllc lqll .,.,.;oy, bocly politio ...i corpotll.c ond • polilical 
mbdivisiao olthe s.... orutllt rogut..iy Ctclled, -ilbed, crpMzed md existing undcc 
md byviJtuc oCthc pnn-isicns of the 1-loc.ll Actmd ol'thc ~of the State of 
Utoh. 

6. The: Cily ha dclml1inod 111.i there ia • need wichin the City Co proridc 
Cooac:ction Semccs (u berWt dclhied) Co its Rlidc:atl. 

7. UIA bu dotc ...... d tllal it bas CX<e11 copocity in t11c VIA N.- to 
prmidc the COllDCction Sen·iecs md d<sir<s Co offer soch .,., ... capacity to the City. 

I. Tho City now dctitcs lo elute lo be ac..,ited, imtolt.d, cxmlllnlclcd md 
eomplcllcd tn acf\•anced tibcr optic comml.llicltiom: •IAl\'OC'k to serve re1idents of the City 
throupthcundcrlllkincorlhc impn>•-.ment1COfllempl ... dhmoby(uman:fully dC1Cribcd 
hm:in, the "lm_.ma") snd do1iro1 further that \JlA shlll acquir< md inst.oil 11id 



llnJ>C'O''Clll<lltsmd loplodge ID UIA ondrmnil lo the baoinolla dofinod Trustoc an amount 
of its eloctricol roe - and .. 1 •• tn ,.,,...,.. (11hme--dofi .. d) lo K<omplilh 
the ·~•cli1· .. let--. 

9. The Jmpnnrcmcnts will be owned by WA (•mare .,artlcul;irly described 
her<in, the "UIA..owa..! lnlp«lVC"1ellts'1. 

JO. It is the in1<ntion of the Pam .. lhot the lmp<Jv=cnt> to provide the 
Connection Services-be apenttcd "1d managed for the: mutualbcncfitoflhc Partie1 and lb.at 
the City will par or cause to be paid Service Fees to U1A calcubted in accordance with 
Section 3.1 of this Coab1lct. The am01.m.U p.aid by the ~ hm:wtdct do not conslitutc: a 
purchase of 1r.,· --=nm 6u;:ili1ics inmd by UIA. and ll'C.oud.e 1olcly in consideration Cru· 
the Connections Sccviccs pro\'idod by UJA to the City. 

It, lhc c-..c;..,, Servi .. , provided umlor dw. Contmt '"' not Cobia 
TcloYiaion ServiGll or Public Telccommunieltiona Savicc.11 u d.ifinmd .in 1h11 Municipal 
C.blo Tolevi1ion er Pablli: TelcoommunicodonJ SOl'licel Act, Ti11< 10, Chapter 18, Ulllh 
Code Annotot<d 1953, .... ended (the "TolooommunicolionsAct"). 

AGRl!llMENT 

In considcrotion of tho 1cquililim .llUI inJlollation of tho [tnpl'O><DICllll lllli tho 
c.n-1ian Smvic,. honDn prnv;dod, tho 1-ofttthc City 1hsllreacive from ouohoctMtiOI 
md lhe motuaJ covenants contained lu:nrin, the Parties agree as follows: 

AllTICLEI 
DBFINITIONS 

Jn 1ddition lo the: ddintd tcrm1 defined in lhe nc11a11 and clscwbcre in this: 
Contmct, the following term~ whctlu:r in the singular or in the plural, 1vh<a mod hucin 
md in the cxhibil> hcr<to, sholl hai·c the 1111:1111iqo tct forth below: 

"A,....golion Site" maftl lhc: mil~ or 0110mcrtl on mil propclfyon 'llhich 
tho M ...... City Fibo1· Hut will bo Joo1i.d.. 

"Aliood Upon End u .... ·· =-.... llUDlbcr of end "'"'' to bo pmvidod 1111vim 
putlllllllto1hi! Sorvi<:c CGntn<t to 11tisfydio City'• obliption to meet tho UlA R.vmuc 
R<quin:mm1, which shall be 502 end ascrs. UlA estimotos lhat the Agmd Upon Ebd u..., 
an: apec:led lo produce appro.'<ima1dy $llO.noofRcvcttuco annuolly. 

""Clpital Cost1 .. means (1) lbc-~ of any obligations J11i::um:d by UIA to 
finance or refimmce the coots of tho hllprovelncol>, and (b) llll01lllb n:quirod lo bc 
dc:pusikd fi"OlD tim~ to ~ into ~ reserves established in t:anncctioa. wilh any 
limmciD,'I w..m:ncod in (•) above. 

"City" means Morgan City. Utob. 

"City FcCI" me1111 fm poid by tho City lo UIA for the provilion ol Coanoction 
S.m... lo Ci!)' owned f1cilitie1 or.....,,... 11 tho Product Catalog whoi..lo 111a of 
UlA pmmant lo pll3Jl"Jlb 3.19 below. 

"City Fibor Hu1(1)" means tho !hcltci(s), electronics, switcheo, toule!>, fiber 
taminations, conduits, cables, racking. genctolo1, UPS units, cooling syslam, aod other 
mpport l}'llcms to support the Mainlioo Syotem,lnten:cmneol(s~ andothcri'lllun>pololltial 
inlcn:oanocts located on the Aggroption Sile. 

~· Network" means fiber optic lines. connccti.on linca and rc~atcd imprcn'e!ftalts 
ooqoirod aod con!l!ucted by UlA togcthorwith lie acquisition by UJA of 10<curigbtund 
topocity in the UIA Network ""d UTOPIAN- and 111:c ... rights and c~ty in other 
nelwa!bwilhin the City or for tho bonefit ofdie City. 

"Commwiicotiom Bntel]lri11" moms the oll!.o!plilc COllblilbed by tho City 
panum lo the Unifonn Fi1cal Procodaroo Ad for Utah Citic•, Tille l O, Choplor 6, Utab 
Cado Annotatod 1953, •• omondod, lo &r•lil•te the proyjding of biab llJIOOd 
--,.,,.; ... lhrougli tho City Nelworic to new ond ...,.. wilhin tho City 
panulDt lo this Contract. 



"Connection Service.:"' me.ans lhe wholesD.le scnicc1 pro\idcd by UIA to the City 
purrulllt lO this Cmttr~t 111·hc~by i:nd usctl 111·jthin thi; Cil)' h"'t •ccess: to lhc 
Imprm-emcnts through which they Dla)o- conb"1Cl v.1.th priv1te providers to recei\•e the Cable 
Tdcvision Servioc:s and.Public Telcoommunication Services (as those: lemls arc defined in 
the Telecommunieations Ac:t) provided thnn:Jgb the City Network. The term Connection 
Scnicca includes Conn~on Scn.i.ccs Capacity and ir morr; partie.ularly dp;sribed in 
Exhibit A auaoltod homo and incorponitod herein. 

''Connection Sc:nicca: Capacity'" means the 1°"9s: right:J to and e.11pac:ity in the City 
Network. 

"Contrm" me1JJ1 this Fi~ Communicf.lions Scn·icc iuul Acquisition Contntc.t 
dated as of January 2,. 2019, as it may be mnendcd from time to time in accord.ante with 
Section S.IS bcrcin. 

"End Use.rs" means those end U!ICl'I to be provided sc:rvicos punuant to thia 
Ccmtnct. 

"Elc:clrical Fee Revenues" mc:zmli all revenue' fee, and similar charges collcetcd 
hr the City for tho provilion of oloctrii: oenioes through tho City's clcc:tric cntetpri1C fund 
in on 11mount up lo $90,360 llllllUally. 

11Fiscll Year" me1n1 a period commencing on July 1 imd ending on the: next 
'"'""coding Juno 30. 

"Hook-up Lcuc Revenues" means the m•mucs that are gcncntcd pursuant to thc­
Hook-up LcllCI. 

"'Hook-up Le:ast:s.1:- means any and all ag:ruments benveen the Cily or UIA and c.nch 
End u.., lhat allows ouch End Uocr lo oonncct lo the City Network. 

'1mprov..men1s"" ttlelUUll tho.c: tiii;iliticl, in:iptovi;ntc11ts, tirtd M:C:~ le•~, ~ 
mid/or copocity rights ocquin:d, con1truclcd, mid/or imllllcd, operated and maintained by 
U!A within the City or specific.Uy undertaken for the benefit of tho City to provide 
Connection St:nices to and within the City Lo the End UteJS purmant to thil Contract, H 
more fully dcocribod in .llabib.iLA attaebc:d hereto, mid iooOl]>oratcd h=in. 

.. l!ldenture" means that certain Genen1 Indenture of Trust dated 11 of 
L____J, 2019 bolween UJA md the TIUltcc. 

"lnterconncc1" me ... the fiber 10qte(•) ~ the UTOPIA Netwo!I< bl!Ckbmto 
and the conncclion point lo the Mainline Sy&lem. 

'"Mainline S)•stem" means :Ill of die newl)• iftllalled fiber, conduits, hmdholc11 
rt:ltorltions and other material• along the roed.I md within th~ City limib as d~iru:d in 
Elshiliil..Cbcrcto. 

''Operating Contingency .. means an W1planncd Cl'"CDL or circumstmM:c. a .series of 
evenll or circumslanccs, or any restriction or condition imposed by any governmental 
euthority which reduces m.d materially adversely 1ffects 1ccess to the Improvements. 

·-ongintll Tel'IIt"' hos dtc. m~ t11iCl'ibed to :such~ in ScttiOl'I 5,16 hereof. 

.. Revenues" means the Serviee Fees, City Fees, ID.cl the Hook-up Lczisc Revenues 
1et1erated from services ilvoush the City Netv:ork to end uxn with.in the City pursuant lo 
thi11 Contract. 

"Salc!I Tax Revenue'1 mean.!! all sales tax revenue that the City collects under 
S..tions 59-ll-Port 2 of1hc Utoh Code Ammllllcd 195>, •• amended, in on llDl-t up lo 
$90,360 mmlllll~·. 

•'Sc:rviec: Fees" mc:am 111 fc:es (other than f"" rc:J~ lo IK Hook-up Lc:ues) 
charged by or on behalf of the City lo the End Uom of the Improvements. The Sen> ice 
Fc:e1 of the City shall be payable to UIA in considention for the Conneclion Services 
pt'0\1Jdcd by UIA to the City pursu.mt to thi11 Contract. The Servic:e Fees shall be caltL11:1.1ed 
and poid pumianl lo Ntiolc Ill oftru. Conu..c. Scn-ioc Fees do nol mcludc ony Hook-up 
Leise Revenues. 

•'Trustee" means lbe e.ntify serving as trustee wider the Indenture. 

•'UIA" mi;w the U~h I:td'rutnM:hn'c Agency, a separate lcgr.L entity, body, politic 
ond <OipOnte uid a political subdivision or the State of Utah, ClU!cd pursuont to lhc 
lntcrlocal Acl 

""UlA Netwmk"' mc:ID.I fiber optie lines, c:onnoction lines and related improvements 
mid facilities acquired, constructed and owned by UIA, iooludini all aoccss righlJ llJld 
~1p1Kity irt the UTOPIA Network end ai;:c;:ess righb Ind c~ity i1t other networks. 

"UIA..0.med 1mprovem ... 11" mOUIA the City Fiber Hut(•), lnterconnect(s), 
eottduits, fiber c1blca. cnctosUl'c!I:, and electronics COASltuCtcd within the Cit)• Qf'lder the 
terms of this Con!mL 

"UJA Rovcnuo Roquil<mcot"' mcom the SlDll of ill Capital Coots or UlA rclllling 
to the lmprovemcntl during each FiK211 Y car or other applicable period. The llllN.al UIA 
llevenue. R.equimncnt is not expected to exceed $180,720 . 

"Uncontrollable Forces"' means an~· cmise beyond the conlrol of the Pvty affected, 
im:htding. but not limited to, failun> of facilities, flood, ccthquoke, storm. ligh!Iting, fin:, 
epidemic,. 1YJJ', rio~ civil distarberu:es, W>o:r disturbartc:c, Slbot•JC, .utd re.str•ihl by CO\U1 
or public authorit;y. 

"1.JTOPIA" mc•ns the Utah Tclecotnm..nic-1.ion Open lnfi'astt\lctqre Agency, ii 
"'l'Br•tc legal entity, body, potitic uid corponta and 1 political subdivision of the Slate of 
Utllh, crolllcd pursuaat to the lntcrlocal Act. 



''UTOPIAN_. mo.,. UTOPIA'• wholonlc lcleoomm111ie1tions network, 
101ctllcr 1Vi1h aay addiWmo, repoin, l'Cll<W1l1, n:pl-., -aioaa, exlelllioaa al 
imP"'""'OllCllDooid-'O:I<. 

"l/TOPIAl'nxl>cl CaWog" momslho<llalog.C,...._and..,.iccaraainlaind 
by U1A. 

ARTICLE II 
CONNECTION SERVICES AND ACQUISITION OF IMPROVEMENTS 

Sccbon 2.1 Omcttioo Scryiqs UIA shall pn:Mde to aDd within the Chy aad 
the City 11h1H tr.ccin Dom. UIA. COJDJccticm. Scnic:~ inc-ludin1 Connection Scni,cs 
Capacity, rufficlcat ID ollenv nol less Ihm the ~cd Upm £ad U..n benefitting from the 
lmpro ... monta Mlbia tho Cily lo oooneC11o the Citr Nots.n. 

Section U ~ \JIA lhlll provido ........,,,, CODD<ction Sen>iccs 
bonina Ollly - or achcdulcd dov.11timc, .-01~ ond OpominJ 
ContiqDO.Ci11. 

Section 2.3 Acqpisitign Dok; of ~mt md Suhsfanljal CgmpJctipn 
\JIA 1'11111 undcnab and pcri'orm all of tho work usocWcd with tho ocquiJition, 
imlallation, com:trudfan arid completion of the lmpnn'el!Jenl!. The d,,tc of 
commencement of the md:relatir.g 1o the Impnivcmcnll Jboll be the dlto of full excculion 
1111d clclinry oltbi1 Ccmtrad: or if provision is made :IOr a Ida dltc &o be fixed in 1 notice 
to proceed inucd by lhe City, that fixed dale. UIA shall achit:r< rubrtantial eomplcdon or 
thc lmprovcmcall, vdlich will ollow lcut 9ll'Ai of the~ Upon End Uocu to h&n up 
aod schedule imlallation forK1YicaundcrUIA's lypic;il-aod timcJiamcL notlolcr 
Ihm 240 clly1 Dom the da or oommcncement. The City ati.11 pn!Yide I paruJ of noal 
JJRIPCI\)' or m ea_ to a pan:ol afnool ~ 1o lilc thc Aarcptian Site 11i1hin 30 
d')'l hll the dale or-omon1.. 

Soctian 2.4 Price ofhnpmycment1. The City and IJIA..,.. thal the Gu•am.ed 
Muimum Price (:ho "'GMP"' or the "Contnct Sumj for the Caalnot will be Two Million 
Four Huodred N;.. 'lloousad Dollln (Sl,409,000) (brabn out., follows: Ooc Milliaa 
Senn Hunclrccl Nindy-SD: Thousand Dollm ($1,796,000) b the Moinline Symm, 
inc:ludiog the <:Cy F ...... u..a(s); f,.. Hundn:d Eightem n....-1 Dolbn ($411,000) for 
instal!aUons; 0.. H...nd Sillly Thausmd DolJan ($160.000) b" property acqWJition; 
and Thirty-Fi\'C n.ou.md llollan (SlS,000) for ckotnJaics. lhis GMP is baocd oo lhc 
OCCflisitioa. Wlallltioa. ocmttuction and comp- ol doc !mpron:mcms more 
J>"'iculsfy sci b1h iD Eida)>rt B hclcto. 

Scctian 1.5 C... Oymnm1 UIA shall be solely ,_alblo fir tho aoquisitioa, 
inltall1tion, OOlllUllCtion aad eornplction or tho Im-- llld COll&ICCtion Scnicos 
mid shall also ba ~ fa< my 0011 ovomins above and beyoad tho GMP NI forth in 
Section 2. 4 horoof: 

SecUon 2.6 llcsidcmit! lnSL!ltgJiQDS UIA will porfonn mhlentiol instolllltions 
to sub•oribcd loClbcms within the City Network as part oflhc Hookup Lease entered into 
with an End Uacr. lamllatio:is includelhe typical <igllupP"'"ff ovailablc lhrou&h UIA's 

anlino ordorinJ ll)'llcm, 1checlulins.-..W. ad labor for ~ ... pl1cemcnl or.top camluit, 
fibor cablo, 1plicin1, indoor fiber tr.miaolion docuonics, md 1 1ingle CatSe ;,,,..11.siOll to 
lllc ""111<:ribor'1 """"'· Only I ttudtnl UlA iNll!lation buod on 1 I~ i1 
included. AJlanalive rouia., ~ fi.tihkaa. or 1ub1criber snferenee1 thll ~ the 
cxp:asc ol UIA's standard inslallaticm moy be ncaoriated w;1h \JIA oc a IJIA _.,v..i 
"""1nld<>r on a case>b)-<uc bnil • lllc lllbecn"bcr'1 expense. 

Soction 2.7 NDO-!Wjdmlia! ln!ll!!lljqu UIA will pcrf'ocm -....idOlltW 
(io. buliDm) io.Mllatioou • ill "'"' eorpenao blscd on Ibo tcrna o( tho lhm-<UmnL 
lITOPIA Product Catalog. 

Sccti0112.S ~ UIA will proYidc as-built drawing~ impectionreparu, 
and tell documcnlation of the comp"*"1 lmpvvcmcnll. 

Soction 2.9 BIJIJi[. UlA will be ieaponliblc for rvplirlng rr rep1oc:ing llll)' 
coaclait, libor, or l)'ltom clcc1ronic1 lh.r .,_,,. damogcd or dcfcctivo Dmi llllllDlll """' 
and uoc of City Network oucto. ID 1ha .. ..,. 1hot miothcr part)' io ,,,.....,...,.. fm' tho 
damap, iaoluding but DO! limited to tnl!ic ...,Ulen11, conlllruc:tion, and ~ UIA 
will pursue compensation from the iapomible pony, lo the 1m:nl lhat repoiihq>lacemenl 
cools on: not recoverable from 1 lhird p"1y, lncludin1 bul not limited to vandalism, .....,,.,i 
....._, 11<11 of God, or imbilily 1o ldcntify n.aponlll>lc plrty, \JIA will be l'ClpOll8bJe for 
cmb associated with the ch>c::tronic1 rtplecantnl and the City will be rapcmsibJc for 
rcimlnning UIA for expcn&e1forolhor...,a00111. 

Section 2.10 E!ectmnjcs M+••mco UlA ls responsible for maintaining the 
clectm:nic1 of the Oty Network,. inctadiq aa:rca.ation switches, subsr;rlbcr dcmmation 
devices. and U'IMCCh'Cl"J. 

UIA i• rcsponoiblc for 111ainllliDillc tho aipporl oy11tm1 includinji cabimt, bottmy 
'-ckup l)'llcms, acncr-. lrlnlfcr nrill:hm, mu! air condidon..._ 

U1A will porfmo ngul.- ....__,. oa die aloctn>o-ics and support ll}'llcml 
iocludill,I ODOJ!J,UJ"lllioA updotcs, codo updmr, firmware llpdates, cleaninp (u llCCCl-1 
!dueling. batteiyrcplaeomCDI, aod....,... taib ucedcd to keep the City-iD ,...t;.g 
cooditi<m. 

Section 2.11 Electronics B00'SP'M71' UIA igrtce llO keep t1:sc clcclra:lics 
compcmenls of the City Nctwc.-k ....,... wi111 ioduslly standards 111d compctili .. aplioos. 
\JIA ammiits that oil clcc:lrooics campma>11 or the City Nel'll'Ofk arc oew .---.. 
COllditiom aodmectcurrcnl standord1 •lb< time of installation. All doc!loOicooompoaenll 
of the City Network "ill .ouppoct J Gbps lfOcds throuchout tbe City Netwml. The City 
Nehrmlt will allo be dcsipd oo th.al 10 ()>pl ocn•ice can be availob!e "'>""'-wilhia 
the City Notwoik with only a chanp oColodnmic int.daces so tbat 1he oplic m upptdo 
to 10 Obpo sonicc is avlilablo ~ iD Ille City. 

Daring the term or this COll!nlot, UIA ...., .. to llJ'P• or '<i>*< II illl own 
npcme: the elcctron:ic1 components ulthc City Network 11 ncce111ry to NppOrt the smnc 
product ..-lilability u is gcncnlly , .. ;W>Jc Jn other UIA member or pmtner cities. 
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Sc<liCll 2. ll !Jtjlity Locain1 UJA will l"OVide utility loc1ti.n& 1trvices di<ecUy 
or via 111b-conltac1« for tlic Citr Nctw<>rk throogh the chnlion of lhil C-

Scction 2.13 O!uimhip or lmproyeme!!IS. It is qmod and undcntood tbll an 
ml snd pcuonal property eonstituting the UlA.c..n.d lmpruvcmel1U shall be ownod by 
UIA. 

ARTICLE ID 

PAYMENT FOR. CONNECTION SERVICES; DISTRIBUTION OF REVENUES 

Section 3. 1 Qctqminnfion of Psymcnt/Reycnuc Disfribulion 

(1) Jn consideration for all olthe sen'ice1 provided by UJA bereuocler, 
the Ci~· o;rccs lo pll)' or have paid on ""'ount to UlA ccp11I to the UlA Kcvcnuc 
Rcquiromeal. 

(b) In consi<krotion for lhc providiJl& of C.....ction S..Viccs by UIA, 
the City •hall pay M h3\'C paid to UIA or its successor or 111igm for each Fi1c.aJ 
Year, if then due 1nd owing, all of the Servjce Fees cha:rpdforlUCb.1ervicct durina 
said Fiscal Ycer, lo be ptid and mn.ittcd to UIA or its .suc:cc11or or usians on a 
mt111thly buis in occordmce with Section 3.3. Subject to Section 3.2(b) hm:ot: 
mch Service Fca arc: llltic:ipatcd to commc:n~ whc:a the: City it provided with 
Can.nee.lion Service1 relUcd to lhe Jmpro'\'emcnll and whca one or more A&Rc.c:I 
Upon End Uoen havo been elimiod Semce Fees. The City oc UlA oo behalf of 
the Cilv shall chorgc "'cauocd lo be charged to oll ond uoen Semce F ... and oball 
remit rir UJA on behalf of the City shall collect md remit 1aid Smico Fees lo UlA 
cm a mODtbly b1si1 md in 1ccard1nice with Section 5.12 bereo£. 

(c) lJpClll r<ceipl o( Ille Cit)• Fee1, UJA IYill apply die City Fees toward the 
pa)'_ of .. UlA Rev .... Rcqllinln<at. 

(cl) U1A shall also,.., beluilf olthe Oly, impose DI collect fees Olld chqc1 
fur !ho Hook-up l..calc1 md will apply such Hook-<1p Lcuo ~ ..... , 
towsrd the poym<111 oflbc: UJA K.--..- RoqoiJm>Olll. 

(c) Upon terminatiCl1 ol lhil Contrxt in 1CConlm<e with Secciooo $.16 
llczcof, ol Rc.-cn ... ,..;u -ero=oues of ...i bclol>g lo UlA. 

Section 3.2 Oblig!lion js Absolute 

(a) lbc Cil)' hcreb)· pledges the Rcvoo.ues and gr1l>ts • accurilv interest 
in md 1 fim irrevocable lien oa the - ...... 11 socurit)· for poymont of the UIA 
Revenue Kcquircmcnt md the City hcr<by ~to apply the Revenues• poyment 
for lh• UlA Revenue Requirement. 

(b) Subjool to .... povisioas or Section 3.3 hcre()rtirn<ting the_ 
of pa),_l hemindcr, lhe City's J>IYlllClll ol>liclllicim llcmnda to UJA fee 
Ccmoc;tioa SofVicca ud other oaYic:et hemioder tDd Rioted to lhe !mp1'Vcmcnll 
ponu>nt lo lhisArticle Ill sllall be lmvoeable, •blolote llld uneanditiClul llldsMll 
not be llll>jecl lo mv ,_, wbclhcr by dcfcmo, R<OUpnlCl'I, ~sot 
off, ~ oi offset or Olherwise, llld doall oot be eonditiOMd """" lhe 
COllllnx:Cion, ~or-~· or lhc I~ by UlA, lhc 
rcmc:dy fur ~c: being liMitod to ~~us. ~c:ific pcrfumimce _oc 
oqoilobk mnedy. Notwilhsundiooc the foccgomg. ot 11 DOI •-d lhot lhc Cily 
by lhiJ C....1nct auumc OD)" oblipllon or IW.ility u • po!Mloc, enclonu, lllTtfy, 
or othcr.isc with rcopcc:t to my obliclliou ineamd by UJA with respect 10 the 
Jmprcn-emi:ntl. 

Sc:c:tion 3.3 $pss:j1! Limi'Fd Obliptiop.. The Chy llftCS lo pll)' the Revenues 
due to UIA for Connection Services 1nd other tervitec Mreunder related to the 
Jmprm'eDlents in monthl)· in1tlllmcDt1. Subject to Section 3.S herein, the: City's 
oblig1tions to mike- mOJJ1hly paymmts punu1nt to thi1 Sci:tion ~.3 shall constitute an 
obligation pl)'llble .solely from Rovcnut1. In no e\'cnl shall the obligaliont of the City 
hen:unolcr be ""'111I1u:d H I genoraJ obliption or inclcbkdo ... or the City within the 
mc:o:niflg of ony c:onstitutioniil or 1talutory JlmUation or provi1i011 or PIY•ble from ad 
••alorem property t ..... s of the City. Tho Parties 1cknowlcc1JC ll1d OCJ'C" thot such p11)111CntJ 
sloall be mode out of the enterprile ftuwl eaablllhed with respcel lo the City's 
Communiclllions Enl<l]Jrise. Eseh moalhly installment Wll be due ond poyable by the 
City to UIA ""' lolrt thin the flftconlh di)' of th• next sucoeeding mOJl!h. A fUllll 
10coomling of '11 tr1DACtion1 between UJA llld the Citr in each Fool Year rholl be 
rcnclcnd to the Cilv by UJA '"'ocbc!on: the 90th doy ofthe 1Ucccodm1 Fiscol Ycor. The 
final accounUng shall .specif)• the 1moUD1, If 1ny, which the Citr must PIY lo UlA lo 
rcc:onc:ilc: lohll monthly plyTRcnb with ectual amounts due tnA \Ylth llc\•emic1 ind1c:atcd 
by m unclcrp11ymcn1 or ovapoymcot lo be maclc by lloo Cil)' or UlA "'tpcctivdy, which 
am0'"11 rholl be peyoblc to UlA no liter thu 30 dl)ls after the mcipl of the lino! 
ac:eounliog. 

~ 3.4 Pcfaultin Paymcg Iff.Mlle\-emea areaotpaidinfullcmorbeforc: 
... clooc ofbmmc:11 .. the 6nc...6 dl)-ol ... .-Ji in whichJlid Ro,...,...,,... cb, on 
illlcrestcblrge"il be made Ill the nllc oflonper«lll(l0'4)per......,ortho ,,,..._ 
nite ofilll<n:ll lcplly dwicMR. ~JS lcn. ]foll or a pcriolo oftlic ~ 
n:moin mpoid subsc:quclll IO the fitleenth div of the nmth iii which the Im-...ucs .. cb, 
UJA Illa)·, upon giTiDg t9ty (30) days' odY0nce written ooticc calculalod from lhc dst~ of 
~ ol such nolice by the City, ciseonti.nuo Cotwctioa Sen'<t1 ..i other sen'ICes -10 the Cilv ...ice~ and may refuse to...,.,,. soid lltfYica lo said City nil, lhc 
d<linquait illst111lm0nt hos boel> poid. F- and after the clll:cth .. dole of such llOlioc, UIA 
111oy, in its sole discmion, DOI provide Coone<°'"' Servi.es or other ..mces ~to 
the City. 

Section 3.S Un ofEccrictl Foe lhd Sales In ReytnllCf 

(•) In the evem md to the rxlOlll th= sh.oil bo 1 shmfall in the 
Revenues (• "Shortfall"), 1Uch lh1t UIA shall nol have sufficient mon<)-. from 
~enut1 topoy the UIA Rcvon"" Rocp1imncn1 whm dw:, llldifUlA 1hall for my 



ro11on &ii lo mro ,..h Sb«lrall cm bcholr of tho Cily, die City h.,.b)· pied.., and 
.,,..., to ...._. ID UIA ill Bl-":al Poe Rcvcnuco and Sale1 Tu Rav.,..., by 
rominln1 mcb m-ic1I PH ltevonuo1 and Sola T• Rcvomic1 lo thc Trullleo lo 
cure 1uch Sbant.11. 

(b) On or prior lo coch JllllDll)' I ond luly I cororncacing 
Janu111y ~ 2019, UIA shall determine: 

(i) the UJA Rc\'Cnuc RcqairemaU due on the next 111coccding 
Man:ll I' or Scpi.mber IS, 1s 1pplicoblo, md 

(ii") lbe ........,, of Rc•·cnucs lllA rcuonllbly beli<.\'es ";n be 
nailobk i>r pl)'menl o(lhc UIA ~~on said Morch IS 
or S ...... bc< IS. In addition, UIA sholl imann die Tn>ttu ond the Cicy of 
my Shmtfoll mid shall, cm or prior lo coob Ja1111at)' IS or July IS •• 
opplicalllc, lllbmit a roqucll to tho Cily ID nimil lo the TNltoc, l!loc:tric1l 
Foo~ and Sales Tax Ro'"''"" -1111 tho Shord'llll cbcribcd end 
cokulmd In acconlance with the provilion ""-obov1. Tho Ciiy '""" 
1o poy die Shortfoll to the Truncc no laler tblll 1be next succeeding Morch 
IS or September 15,asapplicable. UIA-totllltcsuchotheractinn 
u i1 a.wtUlly ml)' take to Hsure th.el the Cit)· tt.mi&s lo tho Trust" from 
Eleclrical Fee Rc•'C!lucs ind Sales Tn k<vmues any Sbottfall pumuwt to 
lhisCODlnct. 

(o) If (o: any re1S011 UJA or die City &iii IO cmnply with their 
obligmON - Seetioo 3.~) of this C-lbc Trustee pwsuant to Section 
5..2(b) o(tbo Iadcablu will, •any limo d~ l\ilidi a Shortfall exists, submit• 
rcqucll ID lie City ID ranil IO tho Eloclriool F"' a..._ ond Saks Tax Jlc•~nu:r 
cquol to tbo Shortfall &.cribcd 11\d cal.W.tcd in ~ with tho provUion set 
""1h abcM. 'lbc Cily "'°"' lo poy tho Sborl&ll lo Gle TNllC• no later thon tho 
ncxt 1UO-.liq Morch IS nr Septomber IS, u applicablo. 

(d) Tho City may crootc ., iooar additional debt or oth..-
obligolioas -..i by. pledge or the City'• m-ana generated from the City's 
electriciDI fees andn:venues gcncratcd &om tbG Cily9

1 alts t1~ on a parity wilh the 
pledge ""'"""'pumisnl to this Section 3.5 so long m tho total rovenucs gcacnrtcd 
from thc City's clootricll fees and totol reve ..... _..ci from the Ci~··• salca 
Tax n:cei\'od brdic City Curing the Fi1col YAlf immodiW:ly prcecdin1 the FU.ol 
Year in which Ibo additinnol parity dcbl or obligllion is lo be issued or incurred. " 
oppropriole, .. ..c less Ihm ISO% of the maximum -.al debt •cm•• in any 
&i•en Fisotl Y-.. the sum or (I) the deb\ scm.. m Ibo additional plrily deb\ or 
obli111ion plul Cd) debt ,.,.,.;oc cm any debt « ollliplion pte\'iOllOly iauod or 
illcllllod, • _-ialo, ond outllandi"I plu (lil1 1lic debt ICn'i<e cm "'l' 
obligatiou i-d by UIA ond poylble hill -. plid or nocoind u..i.r thiJ 
Contncl. tallld r.. 6a period of IVCh 1dditional plrilr clebl or obliption. 

(e) AH E!ectric1J Foe Rcvcaucs as.ks Tu Revenues paid by 
lhc City to 1bc Tnlltce or ~A or ill decignee pUl1UIDI to \.his Section 3.5 ih.aJJ 
constitull: 1 lom by the City to UIA which <hall be piOd by UIA ot the time snd in 
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lhe mmner 11 pnwidod in 1hc llmn ol 1 promi11ory nolo -~ hereto u lillbillil 
.D llom ~ ,....,,., ofUJA. Tho City 1hall be cndllcd to intcrCll mi oodil""' 
ICll'lncc nun the dlle said 1d•moo is made by die City lo thc Trullcc .. UIA,orill 
doDgn•o, 11 tho per llM\l!l\ nt< cqul to thc ,... ol rotum at thc Utah Public 
Tn1sunn"' 1 ln\•c:stmcat Fund in d!'ect .. the time of execution IDd dclivCJY of the 
pmniucny note, unlea by -CD! of the City and U!A o IUS« illtcnott nlle is 
ldfurlh in the excouted promisomynole for said loaa. ThoCi~· ldmowlcd:co that 
1he loon obligation incum:d by UIA benin shall be subonlinou: andjuaiO<lo UIA '• 
oahcr p~'D'lcnt obliption1. hymcnt obligations reprctcnlcd by a pramiaory note 
sho11 survive ttnnimtioo oC this C...tnct until poid in full or olbcrwise 
cxlioiuishcd. 

(I) llurins the Icon of llril Coatroct, the CM)• - Iha.I ii 
wiU not, 1811<H directed to do lo by Iha Slala of tJtob or a court of conipclc:l11 
jariadiotion, Jllduce tho role of the elemical roe or 11los Wt liam which it dcri\'OI 
llloc:trioll p,. Rnonues lftd SalclTua...mi.1. 

Section 3.6 Sucoct'tim Przmti=s UIA or its de.!ign0e &hlil have the right 
&om time: to time to bccin IDd mlilllllin mccessive proccodinSJ opinst the City r., the 
nicmwy of all S~ico Fees or SbDJtfills n:cJlired to be made under this Conlrl,;t by the 
City and lo recover the aame upnn the liability of the City herein provided. Nodlinglu:rein 
cOldoiDod 1hall be dccmocl to require UIA to defer ........ nocmc:nl ol eny _.. proc...iins 
aalil the md or the lmD or this Conllxt. 

Scctioo3.7 ~ UJA ar ilsdclii:ncemoytalce what<n .. rldiellall.,.. or 
ill oqllily may appeor ..,_Ill)' or dtoinble lo collect the OIDOlllllS pay1blc by die City 
- · ~ d•• 11\d thct<1fla lo become due, ar lo auorce .,........._. and 
ell......,.. oC ~ obliaotica. ..,._ ar -.nent oC lie City undor Illa pMiliano o{ 

lhia Coat-. Such aclica ml)' includa, llUl is nat limic.d lo, 1111pcnaicn or talllimlion oC 
aeniccs lo the Cib• far Cily PlllJ'O&.I· 1hc City mey Like wh11c\'or IClion II law ar in 
cquily DllY IPPO• ••-tr)· ar doiinblc 10 ...rot.. pcri'ormanco and o....._. aL 1ftY 
ohliptian, ll!"'cmcnt, or covenml oCUIA under the provisions of this Cootnct. 

Scction 3.8 No !!xchajyo Remg!y. No right or remedy bercin confarcd upnn 
or lUO<VCd lo UIA or its dclignc:e or tbo City is intended to be cxolusive or my ollK:r right 
or remedy, ind uch snd cvcry.rrightmd mncdy shall be cumullti\'C: 1.1\d i.aadditian to any 
other riPt or remedy aiven hcrewidcr, ... """ ... hereotler legally existlna. Th< f'ailui. of 
UIA or its designoc or the City lo inrilt al 1ny time upon the llriot olrKnimcc or 
pcrii>rblmc• by lhe other portlcs to dU1 Ccmlnct of any of the provisions oC!his Cnnlnlet, 
or lo aen:itc any right ar mncdy prov;dcd for in this Contmt, shill not impit aay lllCh 
right or ..,.eel)- nor bc <GNtrucd 11 1 ..,..;- ar rel .... iall<nenl lhmof C.. tbo firtun:. 
R<cdpl by the Thlllcc, UIA or its a;p-al any payments ,.quitod lo be mllClc Ulldcr 
this Colltnct with loiowlodJo of tho "'-Ii oh11y provision• of this Cml!ICI, tlioll not be 
d.....i 1 woiYcr oCtvcll bre1<h. In oddition lo d other remedies pro¥idcd ill \Iii• Caalnct, 
UIAarill d<sipoc ar the City lhallllcallillad, ta tha-tpmllitlod byopplic1blclaw, 
to injullelh< relief in cue o! the violati<m, 0< lllcmpl<d or threatcned vi~ oC my of 
the pnwisiom or this ContrlCI. er ID a clecroe cont:.lrNq performance oC my of the 
pn>\isiomofthis Contm:~ or IO anyodicrMllody legol ly ollowcd. lhoy proczeding shall 
be brvu&l>t ror the CDforocmenl of my rilJlt ... rcmod)· provided for in lhis Comnct in 
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wllick il shall bo dclcmlinod lhat the City sh.u hove foiled md ccnrinucd "'f1il to mike 1 
l)l)'Dl<•t of Peco ckx Ulldcr thi1 Cailnct at the lilllc of commcnccmc:ot tbo'OO( lhc Cit)· 
shill PIY UIA 0< ill duipoo all """"'"°" inoumd in ~ lh=wilh mch1dio1, 
wid>out liMillDco, .. -. allOfll<YS' r ... md npenlCI. Jn like maancT, it it should 
become ...,..nry fOI" lhc Cily to bring kpl procec:<iiiis apinst UIA or ill deli.,... IO 
c:uCORC Wf right gi-.cn it l1;:n:_.,, the Cit,· Jlbal.S ha\~ the righl, iC k is 1UCtcsrfuJ in tueh 
poctccb&s, to the pl)'mClll by UlA of all e>pd'SCS b>cun<d ;,, •-lion tllettwich 
includin&, without limitation,.1•uonol>lc attomcys' fees, ..i expense~ 

Section S.9 Rim qf'0csigncc JglnA 1g Exers;i~c Remtcfiu At~· time UlA 
or its dcsipcc is cotitlcd to enforce any of the rights or n:mcdici provided for in Chis 
Connet, the dcsipc m8)' proceed,, either in its own namc md IS trustee or any expreu 
trust ar otherwise, to protect and enforce ill rights and those ofUIA under this Co•tracC. 
whether or not UIA shill have eomplied with ony of the pmvioion• h<ttof or proceedtd to 
takc ony "lion •uthoriZ<d «permitted under :ipplicable law. Such fiihll and rcmedie1 u 
.,. alvm UIA hercuoder lhall ollO oxtmd to its deoiilncc md the delignce sholl be entitled 
to the benefit of Ill coven11111 and agn:emCDll in this Contraet eontained. 

SecUon 3.10 Citrnot Obliutcd fqrWA llebt All obligarion1 o!UIA are pty•blc 
1olely by UIA md 1rc not 1 debt or othet obHgoti"" of the City; provided howwer, !hit 
nothing in lhi1 Sceti"" 3.10 shill be conctrued 11 limiting the Ci~·'• oblipticm1 under 
Stcdon 3., oflhi1 Conl.nlcl. 

SectiOft 3.11 Billing 111d Collcctign by WA For purpmc! of expediency IDd 
e111cienq•, UIA wm pro\ridc billing and collection services for Conaection Senriccs and 
Hook-up I.cam to the End u..., cm behalf of the City. Revenue• mei•-.d by UJA from 
such 1eti1·ities arc pt0perf)' llloc:able and wm be allocated to t.nA and lo the City H 
providtd In thi1 Co•traet. 

Section 3.12 DimRFitian et Ts:npjp•tigp Aita' lhis Contract hu c.spircd in 
accardance with iti Lerms,, unless otherwise agreed to by lb.c Parties. all Revenues genera1c:d 
by doc oolkctioA oC S...iee Fees ...i Hookvp Lease R<ve.,.s und<r tlli1 Cantnct lhall 
beJoa.s IOlely to UIA, lesl poymc:oll d .. to the City llndcr ~ Promi_,, Note or olllct 
obllJalion um., o• ofthi1 c-

Section 3.13 fu:&'"ixc Uy UlA will bavo cxclusm ac: ofthc: City Nctwotl: 
for purpooc1 o( providing sem..s directly or ;,, psru>mhii> with scrvie< providen 
~ b)· UIA to lllbc<ribets or t11c c;oy Ndwell<. Third parties •IY ...ir lllilizi: the 
l)'tltm in pamenhil> •vith UIA. 

Section 3.14 Sntsm Ctp1city 

(•) U1A hu dotenoined lhat it bu cxoc:ss espacity ia the UIA Nct-1< 
CO provide lhc Connection Serviecs and that it will make such c1p1city nailable to 
chc City. 

(b) UlA qrees to pro>'id< a minimum of20 Gbps ofnclwork capllCity 
to the City Fiber H•t(1) ~pon 1ccepl1Qoe of the eOIOjO!eUon of the City Fiber Hut(1). 
UIA - to mlintain II lc111 30'h hudroom of unused e1p1eity to tho 
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Awcptioft Site and w~I at ill O'MI t><pcn1< monitor md •pcradc thc e..,.aty to 
die Aggr<gotioo Site of lhc Cit;y Net\..,.\: if it ••«•:de 70'-' utilizalian baled an a 
9S""'5min iotomll ~y ealnlacioa. 

Section 3. IS Stpjcc Prgvidqs UIA mil make the Cily ~ .Wlable "' all 
oC ilJ <OAlnl<ted S<O'ice !"O'iden Ullder the wne tem>s aod candilions u otha cities ia 
Morgan County. Such xn·icc poviclen uc not obfi1ated to proride semces rihia tl>o 
City. 

Section 3.16 Nct":qd,; Oocntiqps Ccptq CNOCl Sgyicg tnA 1gn:es to provide 
monitoring or the City Netwark on • 24n bul1 from ill NOC. This includes de>ice 
monitorui,,..,. notiJieation1, conliglntioa oC dcvi«J, diopmics, rqHlir diopotcb, and 
othet services as gcuerally pmvidcd by lhe NOC. 

Section 3.17 Nc1wgrk £nrincgjns Seryjses UIA will maintain the 
«mfiguf'91.ion1~ sodc1 and deli.an of the City Netwod: to euwt1 th.It it meets the: Der.di of 
the Cily Netwm. Additicmolly, UIA ..,.... to pnnide nelw<>rk design scn•iccs to the City 
for the pwpOIOI ofintcrcmmeerin8 the City. 

Section 3. l 8 field Iufmician Sorvjw Field lcthnician scrvU:cs will be 
provided b)· UIA during lhe t<nn or this Conlraol. Such 1crvices include diJpatch and 
rc.soJution1cMc:c1. 

Section 3.19 Cjtv Cqnpcct.iom The: City is cntitlc:d '° rccch·c scn:ices from UIA 
1t the Produet Catalog wholelole roles ofUIA. 

Sccticm 3.20 Customer Scn:iq: UlA st.am 1 c:unomcr ICh'icc call ceater for 
soles, iufonn.ttion, ....i oilier mlscell.,..,.. l111u01. For oulqcs, leclu1icll IUjJpOrt, snd 
billing Wiles, mhlcribcn ,.. IOD"rolly npceted to call their conlrletod service provider. 
In llhe ovmt a scnicc pn)\'ider determines the i1NC is rdatcd \0 p!'DblclbS with the City 
Netwod< ond ""'lhc O<Mee provider or in.bamc C<jllipmc:nt, thai the 1cn·iee provider moy 
rri:r tile issue to UIA. 

Sec:tion 3.l I Tcch!io!I Supaoa, UIA is raponsible for praviding teelinieol 
aJllllOlt b- tho ccancetion .., to the dcmorc«ion midi ill each home or .....,__ 
Tedmieal 5U1'P<"i for cus..,._ ...-., in.-wirini, OOMpUten, ...i ;..home Wifi is 
~ semce lhat U1A provi<ln Such 1emtc1 .. ic-ally expected to l>e bandied by the 
sublcnllci1 cmtractod torViu provider blscd m lbcir' tcnm of scniec. 

Section 3.22 ~ UIA 1dll l>e ._,;bk for incmncntlll eoots for 
1allw11R: lieeming °""°",.. incurred r ... mao.eJiog the City Netwod< including device 
monitori:na. hilling toftware, confipntion manacc:mmL md autmnst.cd povisioning 
sys~s. 

Section 3.23 Geogndllo Jgfgont1ioo Sy1tgm IGISl UlA "ill be J'Clponsiblc for 
mainlllininl GIS cl.u for the City NclwOfl<, melodiog lh• costs for"">' ooft-olare licmsing, 
hardware:. md d1t1 ardllval c:q>e11K1. 
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ARTICLE IV 

APPJ.OV AL AND PUBL!CA TION lll!QIJIREMENTS 

S~tior. 4.1 Sylgj113jgn CO Au1hOOzc4 Attqmey 'Ibis Contr.act sh:ill constitute 
.an agreement fur joint Mid coopcrmivc action pursuant tothc: i::dcrlocal Act. ln accordance 
wilh the iequir<ments of Section 11-13-202.S of tbc Intcrlocal A~ os 1111endcd, this 
C<>o>crocl shall be IUl=iUodtor 1PProvll to lhe govcnting bodic:o ofUIA ond the City and 
to 1n aulhorizod dantCy for UIA ond for the City who ahall _...,. thiJ Contract if such 
1llorncy dc:tczmiDct thtt it is in proper form and oompollo!c will> the laws of lhe Sllllc of 
U!a.'i. 

Scctiao4.2 ~ lnaccor~wi!hthc~o(Scclicn 11-13-
219 of the lntcdo..i Ao1, u ..,ended, lha p .. ming body o/.UIA shall provide for the 
publication of tbc IUOlatic>oo ldoplCd by it punua111 to ti& roq-.m.m .... ot Section I 1·13-
202 oflhe lnterloool Aq, u omcnded, in lhe official now1popcror !he nowopopet published 
within its bc:nmda'kil, Cl' if no D.IWIPIJHlr is 111 publw.d, 1bm. in a riew1pitper h1vinJ 
pior1l circuhotioa -

ARTICLEV 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Section S, l Aceisition Fd Con1truction g(dg. lqmnrmnentt UIA represents 
that ii will ac<;aire oc ,,.,. IO be .. quir<Q 11! pem.its, i;......, rigbll atd privileges, 
structum, cquiJllllClll, mtd licilitiea -.;th mpect lo thc 1Cquilitiom tnd ""'1Stnlcli<> of the 
bltpro\~lllenll ,__,. fGrlhe perl"o<m111Ce by UIA ortbit CmtncL UIA .shall mointain 
llld defend 1uoh ........ lie» ..... ond ri&hts one! priviiceor l!ld thall not wluntlnl)• pennit 
any c1taop t111:n:ia lhat .....wd rcJull ill imp1innen1 or dio porfonnonce by UIA or ill 
obliption under thi1 C-.:L 

Section S.2 llilU!Lsm. Each Party issolely RSpOGSiblc for the riik oftOI$ o~ 
or .wn.ge to, ~t of dill Porty (,.ganllcss of wlu:n: local<d), tm1 ... the loss or 
damage result> from 1hc otgllgcnce orfoull of the other !'my. 

Sectiou 5.3 Seycql Obligations Except whtft spec:iflcelly slated in this 
Contracl to be ~-. dte duties. obligations, md tiabiliti.a: of«he Parties in intended 
to be oev<ral llld-joiat or collective. NothiD& contaiacd in Ibis Cootrtct shall C\'01" be 
construed lo crcalG m auoc:iation. crust, plrt.nership~ ar joint l'CD!ure « lmpose a trust or 
permmbip duty, obliptioa, or liability on or wilh n:ganl to either Porty. Each Party lhill 
be indMdu.Uy tmd .....ny liable tr ita awn oblipli..., 1llldcr tltit C<mlrl<I ml lhall 
not be litbl• for 1111)1 obliption or lhl olhu. 

Section S.4 UPlity Dcdic!ljo,n, Nochiog in thit c...tnct abtll lio cantlrued to 
cn:otc lllY duty ID, my llllldanl of ... with reterooce ta,«..,. u1bilily ta 111y pcnon not 
a party to this Coolnt:L 
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S..tian5.5 Bgph111d&opdi. U1A.,...11het itlhallmlintoill...,.acbomk 
ICOOUllll, books ond run rclllillJ lo tho 1mpnn..,,.,n11 ond lh.i proper md oqaitable 
o1locotimas or'"" ..... """ expcooco "ll'ill bo 1118110 with ioopect ,., lhe cpmlian1 ot the 
Jmpmvmncntl. The City sboll ,,.,.;,. from UIA 1 monlhly 11llcmenl ca lhe aocounli"8 
ond dispooition of Service FeeL Also, UlA sholl submit to lhe City ruch nppclllir>g doll! 
with ,......l to 1U 1n11uol budgets and yeuly acco.,..tift8 ,....,.iliotions H ..., n:uonably 
noconary :o enable tho City :o effi:d _,. """"'"6ng lher<for. AU bonl: .....ms, book• 
or .. - and ICCOWllina roconh ofUIA !doling,., this Cootroct ........... oil1ble for 
impcc:tioo ond utilizlllion b)· 1 duly llll1ltarmd olliur or dcsiJDC• of lhe City II Ill 
reumullle times. UIA lh11l <Ol<le Rcb boob of occounl of lhe 1m.....- I<> be 
mdil<d -Willyt.,. independ<nl public -.Us expcricnocd in utility llC<OllllliDg A 
...,,, of'*" NCh ......... di~ inchtdia& my~ olthe - wilh 
,.spool tlrcm.o, lholl be promp<ly nttdc onilabk by UIA IO the City. 

Ssticu S.6 Rol91jqmbip to Odtcr' 'Wvmm!! ll i1 rccosnbcd IW tnA must 
eomply willt all 11c .................. ~gullay lll'P""'ll• nocelSll)' !hr ti» tnVllCllbip, 
ocquisitian, 0•1111t111ction """ open.lion or lb& lmprovcmonll. and it ii, lllmdono, •F<d 
lhll llbo Conn-..l is mtde oubjcct to lhc tcnm ond pl"<!Yi<ion1 or 111cb licente1, permits and 
"'~ appn>vlll, cxupl tll1t the City shall not be bound by Ill\)' tam oc pnwisioo of 
my licc:mc, permit. or n:gul110J)• appruval. which may contndict or vuy the ll:nN ""1cor 
ullbsitgpn:ady conJcntsinwritincto lx10bound. The City agreuthatitwill nolrcvisc 
or llDald its Sm·icc Feet charred IO end Ulc(l lll1dct its Conununicatiom &teqsisc: in 
my mmncr lhat would odvcrxly affa:t thc priority of o< lhe ,.curity fur the p.ym<nli to 
be ....r. ~r lo UIA witbout lhe llllllDol C0111eot of the Parties. 

S- S. 7 IJillilillg. Tioo City, its ofrtccn, dcsiJ11«1. lll\d c:mp!aye.., or Ill)' 
of them, llh.U DOI be liable for &"!' claiml, datwld$, coslS, lotm, • ......, ot oclioi1, 
domaga ..- lilbility of wll1110e\'U l<iad oc - uiJinr out ol or nnltiD& hat the 
awmnliip, tcqUiriliaa, oomtruction llld apenCion b)· U1A ot!he lmpren'C• .. •la. UL\, iis 
ollleal, 4k1ip.,, and cmployoc1, or my ol diem, oball nol be Ji1ble lbr Ill)' dliml, 
........, om1", loc101, •••IN of ,.lion, d-.i or li1bility ofw~kind armture 
lriliogoutoCorn:sulliDI from lhepafanmoce hy the City-thia c-

Scotioo 5.1 Allilm!!wlL ExoqJt for .,..,.;ty purposes in cOlllltdim with llllY 
obligation< iJtcurred b)· UIA, neilhor Ibis emir..t nor my pm hcrcof shall be lllipcd b)· 
my Pody without prior written conscm. oflhc olhcr. 

Scx:tio.n S,9 fvrni~hing Sqripc; lo Odtcq UlA, by entcri.nJ into lhil Cmllracl, 
does DOI bald iuelf oul to provide !he I_.is or '"'1il1r IOnlicc lo Ill)' other person 
«eatiiy. 

Seclioa S.10 Vnrpnqpl!!blc fgrpq No Pony...,.. buon.tderocl I<> lie ill d.r..ult 
iol Ropect IO Ill)' oblipc!oA homtnder, alhm" Ihm undor Alliclo ID, il ....,....i iom 
6tl!llliltg otn:ll obli1alion by tenon al. m Um:anlnlllahic r...._ If 1 Porty ii ratdcml 
-...b1e lo fultill Ill)' obllpdon by ......, of., Uncontrolllblo Fon:o -.h Porty abll 
oxcn:isc due diliploo lo remove aucb imhi1ity with all rc1oootbic di>plltdo uid tbolJ keep 
the: olla hrtics fully infocmod of•"- and conditiont 11 far in odvmce • ..,..ihlo. 

IS 



Q 
0 

Section S. 11 Cp!!!!!uni•i!!ians !!ntcmrisc The CitywiU opcrllc mdmointlin,or 
- lo be operlCcd Md ~ iU Cortununi•eli- Ent<rpriJC .. &ood openbn& 
ordu md will !ix. obsF> Md collect n1os, f-. md obspa in acconltnu with Sodion 
S.12htma. 

S..U00 S.12 !mpasi!iO!l ud C<>!lcctjoq gf f- Tloe Ciiy bu pm'iomly 
<Stobllllled or will ealablish 1 Conmunicllims Eiilcrpriac and locrcby ~ W.. it 
<har&tS or -• lo be <harp! on iU behalf all end users \'Vilhin "° City ~ ill 
Commw:sicldOMs &tapri1e monthJy fees for c..:h ccmncictioa Co the a_, Nctwoft in 
c:ousidcratk:m Cot 1hc Coaoc~lion Services and olhc:r cc.anunicatiom 1en·ices provided by 
tho City. Tho City shall Cltlblish « came lo be c311blishcd such cnl'orccmmt proccdlircs 
11 may bc occcHory to oollcct such roes. Said Cece, when collected. shall be 111ed by the 
City lo P•)' Ill obliptiom wider tbi1 Cootnct. 

Section S.13 Coble Tcleyiajoo S§yiec:; pd pybijc Tclttgmmunicotipn• 
SlllW;u. The flrtieo hereto odmowlcdge uid rcpr<scnt duit ncilher porty, b)· cot<rins inlo 
this Coutr1et. lhlll provide or be rcquiRd lo pnnidc C1ble Television Senoices or Public 
Tclooornmuoicltions Scrvi.ce1 u defined in the Telecommunications Act, nor ii either 
party CIJ>Oblc of providing Nid scrviccs. F..therma«, tbe fltliea haeb)• 1cknowled1• and 
ropttseot thot to the boot of their knowledge, the City is poyinJ forlhc full coll olprovidifta 
the Connection Scnicq or other services recei\-ed by it pur1111t1.t to lhis Contract 

Section S.14 Entire Nreqnenl This Conn.ct cOllltitutec the entire 1,&1Ccmcnl 
1mona the P1rtic1 with rr.spoct to the subject matter hcRof. No change, \'llli1lion, 
tormi01tion, "' ou.cmpl<d woi\·ct of my of the provilioas of this Contnct .shell be binding 
on the Portioo lllllels execui.d in writing by tbe other Porty. This Contract .shall not be 
modJfied, supplcmcol<d, or otbcrwi1e o1rcotcd by .. ,... of dealing. 

Seclion S. IS ~ This Cimlract shall not be ll!laldcd, modified, or 
......... i,. olt=d in any......,.. withoul tbe CODIClll of the pon; .. bcmo, which -t 
lholl not be """'"'""bly wilhbcld; pi'O\'idcd however, thol Scctioo 3.S, Section 5. 16, 
Seelicn s.n, llld Sedioo 5.19 hereof s11111 not be ..aided llDlil -i. o- 111111 my 
ol>liptiom inuod by UlA ond payable from llllOWlll paid ar rcc<i\•-ed loereundcr ahall lm-e 
~ rctirod in occordonocwitll lheirtmns. 

Scc:tioc5.16 Eaec1hsO.aoc!OriliM!Tcrm· T.....,tion TbisConlraculwl 
be e!Tcctivo os of tho dal< kftof and .UU ca:ttiauc in dl'<ct until April I, 2039 (the 
"Ori&iMI Tam"), or wch 1111« lilloc wbou my ollliglli- iJoucd by UJJI. and poyable -
..-hm:-"r ahall hnc been miml in ...,.,....._.with lheir l<rm&. 

Scc:tiOI 5.17 ~ Awy Doli<c, dcmMd, w r<q11<Jt p-oviclcd for in lllis Conmcl 
sh.U be in "1itinc and shall be docmcd propcrly ICfYed. givce, or mode if dc~vaed in 
P"""" or scot I>)- ••aistcn:d or cerlificd moil, postage prepaid, to du: pasons specifoed 
below: 

UJA: UTOPIA Morg111City 
P.O. Box JOl5 
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SBSB SoUlh 900 Eost 
~.UT1412l 
Atta: Cbicf Exuulive Olli= 

Mor&an. UT 84050 
At1n:M1yor 

The Portics ""'l'. II~ U..o, by DOlicc to lloe Olhor desip11e cifferenl or odditional 
peoom or diil'crcllt ldcltessos for .. ,Wilt& of llOlice hemind<r. 

Section S.11 Thinl:Partv BqteficiQs The tctMs and prcnilions of lhis ec.tract 
llball be biJlcling upo11 Md iouJc lo lhc bcnc(• of lhc: Plrlic:s hereto, md !heir respcctivc 
suc:ccuon md 1Ssip1, illcludins the Trwtce, md i1 mod< («their berlcfil Fmther, the 
Tn1Stee is an intended thinf..puty bcttcfida.y far purpotea ol'Sei:tion 3.S bc:~of,. in-elwding 
without lilnilltion ib rights to Elearic Fee Rcl'al\ICS end Sales Tax Revenues in lhe even1 
of.,,,. Shortfall mid to pumic all remedies rcllllod tbcn:to. No odiapcncm shall have any 
rights, interest. or claims hertundc:r or be cntilled to Ill)' benefill under ar on account of 
Ibis Contl'a<t 11 1 thitd-plP'I)· bcllOfici.try or otherwise. 

Scotian S.19 Goycmjnr l ,tl!' This COJllracl Jhall be interptct«I, g<n'trntd hy, 
ond OOl'slnlcd Ul>der lhc Jim~ of the Si.t< of Utoh. 

Section 5.20 EvsvtiOD jo CgynJ&mlltl This Contract m.y be. sittndt.~wsly 
"""utcd in >"Ovcr&I _.,.rpon!, Clth ofwhlc:h shall be"' origin1l 111d all of which "1111 
constitute but one Md the 1mne instrument. 

Section S.21 ~ If 1111)' p<O\i lion oflhis C<lntnct shall be hold or be 
deemed to be Ol mall, in fact, be iUc&al, inopcralive, or uncN0rc:e&blc, the HIDC shall DOI 
dct any olhcr provilion 0t prtrViJions herein omlaintd or rendu tho ume in.valid. 
inopcrltivc:, or unc:nforcc1bl c to any cxtt:nt '9.'halSOtvtr. 

(SipllC>lrC ptg .. follow) 
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CONNECTION SERVICES 

Str•lrti< ,.,.,..., M•-oot 

R.ec:tu.itand m.1111.ge strwteait ~ "''hicb. ,nJJ Mcllldc but not. 'be lilnhcd to 
S...ino11 ond Residential Sorrioc P""'*'> snd s.n-;,,.,. Provider>. Attr1<:1 now 
tcchnoloaics to the nctwod.: to ftcilitale •e~· scnice oilerings cm the ~·ork •nd lnen1ge 
tho City's cxi1tin& network md its communities. 

UIA will negotiate on behalf of the City the con1rlet 1nd contract amendment&, 
mf'orcc conlnCU with Providus IDd ensure Sc:nrice Level Acrcemcnt.1 ire met 1c:COL'liina. 
to business snd tonb'8ctuol obliptiOb>. 

Product Monoa""mt 

Reoon,mcnd, develop wholesale pric1n.- model 1lon,g with the City and rtrltcgic: 
portnon. This will in<ludc new wholualc pricing for newly developed produ<t1 brol!iht 
by UlA ond its Stralogic Portnc11. 

Present developed model llld lllY changes the Ci~· llld ltrllt<gic partners for rolloul 
oo Ibo Network. Mtintain, modifying ond briog lo end-of-life wbolosolo prodUA;IJ o.o the 
network. 

Plaanlos. l>aip ad lmplommhlion 

UL\ will PfO"ide plannina. delip and implcmentllion of the City" nelwoll< IS 
n:qucmd. A fllll outside plant design, ndwork design ind opc:rotianll imp .. t micw will 
be pnwidod olM& with 1 projecl implcmoatoti<m piM timelino, aloci& with ISIOCi,..d 
°budld ror 1hc plc. The pion ,.ill inolodc: 

Crc.tionllmport of cit)• n:ccrds "*> GIS .,,­

E!.ctimltod COii foe 1hc .wide plan! build requested •ea 

l!stimaled <Oii for the network eogiloeeriog Nld 

Project BociO«t to iotcroct md atswor qoocstiom about the ...,,...is md 
prcac.ntatiORI 

Support for submiual of~ ord... £or 1111}' <hmc<• on the dosip pion 

Suppolli111 prodnction m>p(1) llld docwncnlltion for proposed build m:c.. 

Extroct of information in suppoi1cd format provided by UlA 

M or1Wina/Ad¥<>tltt A•Urtll•ll Progt• 

A- 1 

UL\ will imligal• md O\'<ne< Ill)' morlo:tint ...i c..-.nic:alions dToru that se 
neceswy ta the oelll'C1Jk~1 sucua . This caurd include t.*1'lJl'ligtlS within cit)• 
govemmenls, residential mubu, multi-dw•llina unit llllllc.is, bollinesl -'«ts, oc with 
--.nity and Dltionol thouJhl leodcn, policy INlc<rt tod oilier oudicnccs. In pstiaollr, 
UL\ will sock opportuaitics to clovolop md ~ lbout ,_.. qiality-of~ifc, public 
sofcty, ond oconomi<: ,,., .. ,.,.,.,_ opporlmiti" on the ootwuk, working lo build the 
netwon:•s repulallom uneceaury public ia!tastructurc. 

UIA >YillR<Nit ond _ pe.......,l ..dlor"°""""lon to lllli>t in promoting tho 
nctwoll< atd...,..ing the subaoribcr buo. The City nuy u1i1t willl thc promotioo ootivitios 
n long u it ""iv~ she prior wriuc.a ~v1l &om UIA to do 10. 

GISStn'icu 

Upon implementation of new network dcsi&M 1.JlA will c.rcatc, nwtiagc. and 
maintJina Geo-sp1tiol dllblbuc lo 1r1d< the build of the City's norn·ork. UlA will provide 
a c:o•n'Ctliott ~lhod to iJnpol1 cnginoering doc:umcrttation (CAD Con\·crsion) and modify 
the geo-&pll.ill d.labue to include AS-Buill updatec u reported. 

Continuod support will be olrmd by tlkina OPS dota collection for key OSP 
elcment.c, re<onlin1 that informaUon into the doubue, providing ond tnckina fiber 
assignments made for PJ'O"iJioninc: 1micca tmd when rcquClted~ provide. 1n c::<tr'Kt oftlw 
dot•bm for the Citic• in IJ!. ovailoblc fonual 

Ootsidc Plant Sorvi«1 

During construction UIA will appoi.Dl a Pt0jec:1 Maaagct to ovcrx.c -11 .ppro,·m 
canstructicm for lhc 1pcc:ific: project They will man .. c the 1tFP process llling UIA 
SIOPdotd polioics to award COllstructioo bids IOd ockct qualifi<d cantncton. Th<y ,.;u 
provide mmaJ!OlllOnt over employ<•• 1nd COlltt&ctor< during tho conSlluelion pro"'"' by 
uoignc:d comtruelioa work packqc1 ond cmurin& indusuy bat procti<OS ond <ot11ia<nt 
~Spc<ificati-.. mct. 

The Proj<d M.,.gor w~l emurc: 

Budget tnclring llld rq>orting is availoblc l'or the City 

Obuoin ....,._,. fldd ....- IDd obligllliont 

J....., ore lnlcked ud bniuslit to n:ooN!ioll l'or tlic City oc its raidon!J 

R.MA pneca is follcn.'Od 
lm"GD.tory i.J ~cd md accounted fOI 
Mmnt.inina ncc:e111ry lcvtls of imeotOI)' to cam.plete l\'()(k packages 

Emun: COllltluotion work lluwab Quolity A1sur1DCe procedures 
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FiddScm-

UIA will proridc lleld CftWJ and/er COil- ID be dcplo)'cd in the rield IO 
m-· tho phylical plaoi •11kh i> - r ... tho C°dy. lJIA will moinlain pby1' .. 1 
bUIJ and c;bffldJ DI> die ""'"-..!<. DuriiJB the C\- of .. m..c thc Field SemcCs 0n.ap 
will rtspond to Ill)" oclual damage IO physical plalll ad Ill.Im# and exeaite lhc rcpoir 
nocdcd for rut«ing Ole ph)~iool pl...i u doomed nocclllll)' by UIA. 

N«wori< Eap..rilo1 Sonica 

UJA will pnwide Mtwork cngin.ccn and/or CODtnclon 1o evallWC, reicommc:nd the 
nocdcd doc:tronics to proriclc wholesale sen.'ict5 on lhc nc:tworl.. lbctc Nclwork coginc:en 
will : 

Tell and ocrli~ _.Oii< clce1rc11ic1 for deploymmil 

Creetc, .W.W. pb;yec•I md logical topoloSY of1he Network 

Confl,aure md i.ml:all the; Dl!IOBllll)' d1DVice1 in the ~'Ode 11 need.ct 

Resolve any iJ:sla l'l'it.h lhc11c devices and repl1&e: parts: ar dC'l-icc: u needed 

RMA1h-'1mndordproccos""' 

Rcscmb. md Development of new technologies along wilh strategic partners 

C.pacity pl...,iJig of the network 

Opttations Man___. 
UIA •·Ill provide managomClll ovcniabl of opc"1i<mA suppon or 1bc nee-'< 

This will include: 

.lalamlilm: ~of llratcsic )Jlltn•« on10 tho aotwark. eolllllillWll IWldotd 
:-r1co1 md ~ methods 111d procodutc1 wi1b - portn<n. UJA will auist 
1tratcaie putnen in understanding integration poinll or pmduds ~ scrvlce1 on lhc 
oocwo;k. 

Clpmliw! Mghcwh and Pmom!ru: O....top "'PP"liai: mclliods md procedonc 
?O coordil:l.ak delivery o/ llCITi'-CI to cusSolncrs. 

Network Oum!joos Ccntq /NOC): 24x7 NOC ID monitor beolth of dcvioc:s md 
1crviec1 oa. the network. Rapond to Slrat.e&ic Parmcr n:iquc.aa. m•age to ruolution 
roportcd illUCI 00 lhc -k. 

Nanmr\ hptjrad M1ims•e: Detect,. rec:md (lbmuclt 1 UIA •trouble t.ickctina 
10Mlon) 111droipoad 10-mllinton111ce md iisuc1. -Ind di11>111ch 1ppropi11& 
t11""' IDlo the liald b-moluliDft. 

Order M"W'i'Dmf System: Provide $)'ttetns IO allow 1hc ordering and acli\..Uon 
of wholc:1alt scJYiccs an 1'c ~twod:. track customer 1cquisitim Ind produc:e iDvoice1, u 
needed, of wholcsaJc: sc:rviu:s for cities so that they may Umria: reside.a ts ond tnA ml)· 
in1'olce Service Pro\iden. 

A·3 

~ PnMdc rcporti1111 of ..--s °"the nctWcrk. 

llmlWn&: l'nlvidc illfonnllioft ID die City 10 allow die invoicing oC ...,U..blc 
whol..nll8 '9n'icH OA the ~'Ofk. jfdac City Jl.andlc.1 ilJ O\\'!l inYOicm,_ 



llXllllill..li 

DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENTS 

Phylical Improvements 

Fib~ Optic Communii;:ation lina:will be d~loyc:d throughout the: City. Th~ linea: 
will be cOllltructcd bod! overhead uid widcrground in each of the citico "rights of way" 
followillj! 1111 local, state and fcder1l n:gulatioo1 uaillj! indUJ!ry b<Jt p111ctices lo deploy the 
mosl efficient and c~l-cff~tin infi~$lnu:t\lte, 

Elcmc:nts oftk infn.structure iru:lude 3 sc:panrte. catcgorie.1: Baekbone or middle. 
mile; C«Jnslnl.ction, •~c:ss kvcl or Jut mile c~ion tnd dtQp knl i;:onstru~ 

Backbanir: or Middle Mile Conltruction 

Consists of both overhead and underground paths, communication lhetten to house 
distribution ni·itchco, fiber optic patch panels. unintcnuptablc power !llpplics (UPS) 111d 
generators. The communic11ion 1heller.1 will serve as distribution poinbl within the City 
md will be connected divcnely with rinJ orchitecturc. Other clements include fiber optic 
cable. conduit, strand. pole mounting hardware, vaults, Bplice c:losures and all other ilcms 
ncccumy to construct and opcnitc the lllllw<>lk. Tbc testing and certification of the 
improvc:menb: will be in 1ctordanf;C" with nalionll indwiby mndlnb 1md UTOPIA'• 
Engineering Sl>Ddords documcot 

Aca11 Level or lAlt Mile ConstrudiOD 

Consists of both °'"rhead md underground p.alh• to every 111bscribcd addr<11 
within !he build 11n:1. Elcmonll of this lypc of build U.Oludc fib.,- optic cob1o, oondui~ 
stnmd. pole mounting hardware, v1ult1, splice closures and all other ik:ms nccc:s11ry to 
construct and operate the network This: infrastructure will facilitate and 1m•c .111 nctwodi: 
1ccc. points for subscribers to UIA. 

llrop I.enl Comtn>clion 

Consist of drop .fiber and/or conduit being placDd. from a network acce11 point to 
the demarution point within the sub.lcriber'.s pmniJe- 1\ilett: a network interface de\•ice 
will bo placod. Blomcnts of thi1 type ofboild includo lhroo qulrter incli drop conduit, drop 
fiber, 1Crial atllcbmonl hudw.,., network intcrflce device (NJD), UPS, libor pir;llil, 
optical trmsceiverJrecciver1 po\\'et cord and all other ilcms neicessmy to construct and 
opc,.I• !he nei.vorl<. In -• instonocs, UIA will al&<> be responsible for in'1alling cotS 
c1ble within the homes to provide 1 connection for the services ordered. 

D·I 

~ 

MAP OF MAINLINE SYSTEM 
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FOllM OP PR.OMISSORY NOTE 

s __ _ (dll<) 

FOR V AWE ltECEMlD, the undeuipd, Utllt Jnfrutruo!ur< A gene)' 
("Borrow<:r"). pnaioco to poy 10 the order of M<Jt3ao City. Umb ("Lender"), tbc principal 
lllD of (S 10g<:thu wil!l Ill subi<:quent loon ad•·onccs 
medc:. CX?tJtdi!.Urel wahariud 1r.d additional payments prodded Cot in lhi' Jl'romjssory 
Note and ptrSUPl to the Fiber Communications: Service .-d AG:quisititJn Coutrac:t dlttd as 
of L__J, 20_. bctwoen Bumm· or ood Lendor (Ibo "Canlracl"). 

I . ~ A1 used in thi1 Note, 1lu: folknring lwm1 shill hlVC dio 

,,, .. ""''' llCl fonb below: 

''E.aecUve DIW' mans: the dote the tc:rms oftbi1 N~ including 1he 11C(ln&ing r.tc 
of intcn:sl and she P9}•cnt obligations described herein, become effoeti,'C, whjch date 
shill be the date th<>_..... of the Loon arc disbu"ed to or for lhe bcncfrt of Borrower. 

''Evcnl of Der.ult' means f'ailure by Borrower la pey limely any instlllmenL of 
principal or in1crcst cm lhi1 Nole. 

.. Loin .. meam the loin adV1nccd by Lender to Banower \lDdet &he tc:rms and upcm 
the couditions cOlllain<d in the Cootroct in the prin<.iplll - of _____ _ 
($__), 

"Maturity Dlm"-•-----­
.. Moa.th'" melDI a ealendar manlh., 

"'NOie" DIClftl this Promissory Note and any exr:aasioas, fcllewols 0t modifications -"Pl)"llcnl Diie" .,...,. the _ ___ lb)· or.-Moatb on which Bamm-cr 
slialJ poy to Lender - i<tO'llt, or principal md IOCNed iar<RSI, m lho oubtAlndini 
principol of 1hi1 NOlo, 11 n:quiJ<:d by lho IC1D11 of this NOie, 

"Priocipal Jade-.11· .... .., al any time IWI fnm time 10 lime durina tho l<m 
oflbi1 Nolo all edv-. dilbuntmlDll, oxpoaditurcs, IDd poytltCllls dlldc by Lander 1flor 
the dole of lbi1 Nole panullll lo lhc 10rm1 of this Nole or the Cantracl 

2. Smlilx, Security fu.-lhi1 Note md ~by Botn>wor will bo limited 
CX<hllively "' tho lie\._ u dolinod in lho C-..t, tbal ere JICD<rlled undor tho 
Coob'let. BOITOW«'a ob]jplion lo repay lho Note i1 eontillp upon lhc anilability of 
Revenues gaie:rt\tld vndrl' tlu: Cont11ct in excess of 1bc UIA Revenue Rcqui.n::mcnt, u 
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dofiud in the Conln<l Borrower ii DOI oblipled lo ulilizo 1ny other~ lo rc:poy lhi1 
Note. 

3. ln1<rrn A•C!l!!!I• Tho llllpllid principtl boloftU l\ill bur in..1111 tho rate 
octfatlo in Section 3.5(e) of tbc ~-

4. lnl<n:s\ Co!cull!jon Blais All iatorut. accruing urtd<c lhio Note shall be 
COIQilated "'1 the ti.sis of I 360-doy )"": fi>< Ille actual number of doy$ ebipood. 

S. Paymeni. of Principal and AccNod lntmst. 

(o) BeiillllinJ on • llom>wer mil moko moathly 
instalhncnl p")mentJ lo Lender of pr;...ipDJ 1Dd ICCrucd inlucsl .., tbe """";.! 
Prinoipol Jndebtcdoo11 ill !ho _of ____ (S___)oadi. 

(b) Tho entire unpaid Pmo:ipol 1Ddebledl1111, toaethcr with a11--i ll!ld 
.apoid in1cn:11 lhmoa, ifllOl-poid, shall be due ll!ld pll)'lbla in full on the 
Maturity Dllo. 

6. Place of PmuML AU ~ under lhi1 Note lh11l be lllldc in lawful 
moncyof1he Urlit.ed StatC"S ofAmerie1atLcndcr'1otnce1: .tl Ullh,, or 
allW:holherplaec os Lendormoy from W= lotime dcsill"ote. All po)=eata on this Nole 
shall. al lhe option of Lender, be opp lied fine to the payment of aoerucd inlaolt md .0.r 
111 mch intertst ba1 been p,;d, ony nmWnd..- a ll be llJ>Plied towor<l lhc n:duction orlhe 
~JndeblednOD . 

7. DeftUI! Role gC Intcn:p.. DurinJ 1ny period ol time which an Event of 

De&olt h• o"'unod ond i1 coolilluiq, - shall '"'"'" •aoiolt the ~ 
Prineipol Jadoblodne11 nidcnc:ed bercby II 1 hl& cqwil lo lho olhonvi1e dl'ecti\'1 nlo of 
interul under lhi1 Nole plu1 liY< pm:llll (S.0%) por pmum, calculll&d oa the i.n. of 1 
3~·yoor fo< tho 1cWal numborot.S...., ~-

1. ~ Borrower ouy -">' Ill or 1 portion of the ..,...,. owed 
csli<r dun ii ;, due. 

9. L!tc Fee Qwwcs If Ill)' po)- rcquittd by thil Noc. not .....;, oc1 by 
Lcndcrwilhin1<a( IO)doy1oftcuvch..-isduc,1l11<fcccllargcc(Jlll lolivcporccnt 
(S.0%) of 111Ck Jal< poymcot .shlll be u lllli poyablc. 

10. Jncorportlion of Con!Dcl Tk &crma. coodiliom, CO\-enuds. provilions, 
ttipulllion11nd1grecment1oflhe ~n1'crcby modc1 pan of this Notti.,.-.. 
lo IUCb documeot ill the s1111c moanar md widl lb 11me eft'ect u if the eom.t ..... lillly 
IOI bth honin. Borrower hcr<:by cOWlllDll Md in-J111 lo abidc by Md -i>Jr with 
ooch IDd ovcry covonllll ond ooodicioa at fOdla in lhit Nolt ood tho COlllrt<t. 

11. Annlic•tion 0CP1Ymtp11 All peymentl a.n thit Note ah.it. 11 the option.of 
Lendor, be applied fiBt to lhe poymml of _...d interest and ofter 111 aucb a.-hos 
bcea poid, aoy tom,indo;r >boll be applied towald rep1y1nen1 or OD)' sdditioaal advmccs 
Lend,. bas mode hereunder which bavc not 1L"l:ady been added lo tbc Principal 



Indebtedness then outstunding,. and the. ballmc;c., if my, lowan:I Lhe l'cduction of the 
Principal Indcbtcdn.,.. 

12. WaiY'PJI SybgiMjon of Sccyrib• Borrower waives pn:sentmcnt fw 
payment. nolice of dishonor and prate.st, and consents to any exic:nllon of time wilh respect 
to any payment due uml.cir this Note. to any 1ubl1itution or rc:leue of col1Uc:.r1l, and to lhc 
lddition or relcn:e of •l'I)· party, No w•iver of any payment under this Not.e shall operate 
as 1 waivaof myotla"p;ymc:Pt No dclayorfailu~ of Lend.er in the cxc11:::ise Of Ott)' right 
or n:mcdy pro•·ided for under this Note shill be deemed a waiver of such riJh! by Lendor, 
and no exercise of any right or remedy shall be dcc:mcd a WQ1vcr of any other right or 
n:mcdy whioh Lender moy have. 

13. Ggyem,ing Ww This Note is to bG construed in aecordanoc with the ~·s 
of Lhc Sl.atr; of Utah, without 1fring dfp;ieC lO prihciplcs of conOicbl oflaN1, 

14. ~ Tune ii of the c1scnce hCROC. Upon lhe OCCUITCD.Cc ID.d 
c:onri:muuu:e; of an E1-=t ofl>Gfl\tlt, ~dcr sh.U ~~ in lddition to all rights and remedies 
11•ailoble to Lender at law or in equity, all rights and remedies allowed wuicr Ulah law. 

DA TED effective u of the dete fint 1bon written. 

[Signolun:s appear on following pages.] 
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(SEAL) 

ATTEST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

By·~-~~~~---­
City Recorder 

BORROWER: 

UI'AH INFRASTR.UCTURI! AGENCY 

By: ____ ---=c""h~air _____ _ 

LENDER: 

MORGAN CITY, UTAH 

By: __________ _ 
Mayor 
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& 
GILMO]\.EBELL 

15 W est South Temple, Suite 1450 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84101-1531 

(801) 364·5080 I (801) 364-5 032 FAX I g ilrnorebell com 

Utah Infrastructure Agency 
Murray, Utah 

Zions Bancorporation, National Association 
Corporate Trust Department 
Salt Lake City, Utah 

April 16, 2019 

Re: $2,550,000 Utah Infrastructure Agen·cy Telecommunications, Electric Utility and 
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Morgan City Project), Series 2019 

We have acted as bond counsel to the Utah Infrastructure Agency (the "Issuer") in 
connection with the issuance by the Issuer of its $2,550,000 Telecommunications, Electric Utility 
and Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Morgan City Project), Series 2019 (the "Series 2019 Bonds"). ·.The 
Series 2019 Bonds are being issued pursuantto (a} a resolution of the Issuer adopted on January 22, 
2019, (b) a General Indenture of Trust dated as of April 1, 2019 (the "General Indenture"), as 
supplemented by a First Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated as of April 1, 2019 (the "First 
Supplemental Indenture'' and together with the General Indenture, the "Indenture"), each by and 
between the Issuer and Zions Bancorporation, National Association, as trustee. 

We have examined the law and such certified proceedings and other documents as we deem 
necessary to render this opinion. As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied 
upon the certified proceedings and other certifications of public officials furnished to us without 
undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation. Our opinion is limited to the matters 
expressly set forth herein, and we express no opinion concerning any other matters. 

Based on our examination and the foregoing, we are of the opinion as of the date hereof 
and under existing law, as follows: 

1. The Indenture has been authorized, executed and delivered by the Issuer, constitutes 
a valid and binding obligation of the Issuer and creates a valid lien on the Revenues (as defined in 
the Indenture} and the other amounts pledged thereunder for the security of the Series 2019 Bonds. 

2. The Series 2019 Bonds are valid and binding special obligations of the Issuer 
payable solely from the Revenues and other amounts pledged therefor in the Indenture, and the 
Series 2019 Bonds do not constitute a general obligation indebtedness of the Issuer within the 
meaning of any State of Utah constitutional provision or statutory limitation, nor a charge against 
the general credit of the Issuer. 

3. The interest on the Series 2019 Bonds (including any original issue discount 
properly allocable to an owner thereof) (i) is excludable from gross income for federal income tax 
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purposes and (ii) is not an item of tax preference for purposes of computing the federal alternative 
minimum tax. The opinions set forth in this paragraph are subject to the condition that the Issuer 
complies with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, that must be 
satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds in order that interest thereon be, or 
continue to be, excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The Issuer has 
covenanted to comply with all of these requirements. Failure to comply with certain of these 
requirements may cause the interest on the Series 2019 Bonds to be included in gross income for 
federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds. 

4. The interest on the Series 2019 Bonds is exempt from State of Utah individual 
income taxes. 

We express no opinion herein regarding the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of the 
Official Statement or any other offering material relating to the Series 2019 Bonds. 

The rights of the holders of the Series 2019 Bonds and the enforceability thereof and of the 
documents identified in this opinion may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting creditors' rights 
heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent applicable, and their enforcement may be subject to 
the application of equitable principles and the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases. 

This opinion is given as of its date, and we asswne no obligation to revise or supplement 
this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may come to our attention or any changes in 
law that may occur after the date of this opinion. 

Respectfully submitted, 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

This Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the "Disclosure Undertaking"), is executed and 
delivered by the Utah Infrastructure Agency (the "Agency"), in connection with the issuance by 
the Agency of its $2,550,000 Telecommunications, Electric Utility and Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 
(Morgan City Project), Series 2019 (the "Series 2019 Bonds"). The Series 2019 Bonds are being 
issued pursuant to a General Indenture of Trust dated as of April 1, 2019, as supplemented by a 
First Supplemental Indenture of Trust, dated as of April l, 2019 (together, the "Indenture"), by 
and between the Agency and Zions Bancorporation, National Association, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"). In connection with the aforementioned transaction, the Agency covenants and agrees 
as follows: 

Section 1. PUIJ>Ose of the Disclosure Undertaking. This Disclosure Undertaking is 
being executed and delivered by the Agency for the benefit of the holders of the Series 2019 Bonds 
and in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with the Rule (as each such term is defined 
below). The Agency represents that it will be the only obligated person with respect to the Series 
2019 Bonds at the time the Series 2019 Bonds are delivered to the Underwriter and that no other 
person is expected to become so committed at any time after issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds. 

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indenture or 
parenthetically defined herein, which apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure 
Undertaking unless otherwise defined in this Section, the following capitalized terms shall have 
the following meanings: 

"Annual Report" means the Annual Report provided by the Agency pursuant to, and as 
described in Sections 3 and 4 of.this Disclosure Undertaking. 

"Business Day" means a day other than (a) a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, (b) a day 
on which banks located in any city in which the principal office or designated payment office of 
the paying agent or the Dissemination Agent is located are required or authorized by law to remain 
closed, or ( c) a day on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed. 

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean any person or entity engaged by the Agency to provide 
the reports and notices required hereunder and which has been designated in writing by the Agency 
as the Dissemination Agent. Written notice of the engagement and designation of a Dissemination 
Agent shall be filed by the Agency with the Trustee. The initial Dissemination Agent shall be the 
Agency. 

"Financial Obligation" means (a) debt obligation, (b) derivative instrument entered into in 
connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 
obligation, or (c) guarantee of (a) or (b) in this definition; provided however, the term Financial 
Obligation shall not include municipal securities as to which a final official statement has been 
provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5 of this Disclosure 
Undertaking. 

"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, the address of which is 
currently 1300 I Street, NW, Suite 1000, Washington D.C. 20005; Telephone (202) 838-1500; the 
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current website address of which is www.msrb.org and www.emma.msrb.org (for municipal 
disclosures and market data}. 

"Official Statement'' shall mean the Official Statement of the Agency dated April 9, 2019, 
relating to the Series 2019 Bonds. 

"Rule" shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b}(5} adopted by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time 
to time. 

"Underwriter" shall mean KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc., as the original underwriter of the 
Series 2019 Bonds and required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the 
Series 2019 Bonds. 

Section 3. Provision of Annual Reports. 

(a} The Agency shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent, not later than 210 days 
after the end of each fiscal year of the Agency (presently June 30} commencing with the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2019, provide to the MSRB in electronic format an Annual Report which is 
consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Undertaking. Not later than fifteen 
(15} business days prior to said date, the Agency shall provide the Annual Report to the 
Dissemination Agent and the Trustee (if the Dissemination Agent is other than the Trustee}. The 
Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a 
package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure 
Undertaking; provided that the audited financial statements of the Agency may be submitted 
separately from the balance of the Annual Report. If the Agency's fiscal year changes, it shall 
give notice of such change in the same manner as for Listed Event under Section S(e}. 

(b) If by ten (10} business days prior to the date specified in Section 3(a} for providing 
the Annual Report to the MSRB, the Dissemination Agent has not received a copy of the Annual 
Report, the Dissemination Agent shall contact the Agency to determine if the Agency is in 
compliance with Section 3(a). 

( c} If the Dissemination Agent is unable to verify that the Annual Report has been 
provided to the MSRB by the dates required in Sections 3(a), the Dissemination Agent shall, in a 
timely manner, send a notice of failure to file the Annual Report to the MSRB in electronic format. 

( d) The Dissemination Agent shall: 

(i} determine each year prior to the dates for providing the Annual Report, the 
website address to which the MSRB directs the annual reports to be submitted; and 

(ii) send a notice to the Agency certifying that the Annual Report has been 
provided pursuant to this Disclosure Undertaking, stating the date it was provided, and 
listing the website address to which it was provided. 

Section 4. Content of Annual Reports. (a) The Annual Report of the Agency shall 
contain or incorporate by reference the following: 
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(i) A copy of the Agency's annual financial statements prepared in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles and audited by a certified public accountant 
or a firm of certified public accounts. If the Agency' s audited annual financial statements 
are not available by the time specified in Section 3(a) above, unaudited financial statements 
will be provided as part of the Annual Report of the Agency and audited financial 
statements will be provided when and if available. 

(ii) An update of the financial and operating information in the Official 
Statement relating to the Agency of the type contained in tables under the headings: 

(A) "SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019 BONDS-Projected Service 
Revenues" (but only as the same become historically available) and 
"Historical Electrical Fee and Sales and Use Tax Revenues of the City" ; 
(B) "THE AGENCY-Financial Summaries and Budget- Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position; 
(C) "THE AGENCY-Financial Summaries and Budget-Statement of Net 
Position"; and 
(D) "THE AGENCY-Financial Summaries and Budget - Budget. 

(b) Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other 
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Agency, as appropriate or related 
public entities, which have been submitted to the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. If the document included by reference is a final official statement, it must be 
available from the MSRB. The Agency, as appropriate, shall clearly identify each such other 
document so incorporated by the reference. All of the items contained in the Annual Report shall 
be submitted in a pdf word-searchable format. 

Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events. 

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5(a), the Agency shall give or cause to be 
given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with respect to the Series 
2019 Bonds in a timely manner but not more than ten (10) Business Days after the event: 

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(ii) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(iii} Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(iv) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(v) Adverse tax opinions or the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determinations oftaxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Series 
2019 Bonds or other material events affecting the tax status of the Series 2019 Bonds; 

(vi} Defeasances; 

(vii) Tender offers; 



(viii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar proceedings; 

(ix) Rating changes; or 

(x) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or 
other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the obligated person, any 
of which reflect financial difficulties. 

(b) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5(b), the Agency shall give or cause to be 
given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with respect to the Series 
2019 Bonds in a timely manner not more than ten (10) Business Days after the Listed Event, if 
material: 

(i) Mergers, consolidations, acquisitions, the sale of all or substantially all of 
the assets of the obligated persons or their termination; 

(ii) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of the name 
of a trustee; 

(iii) Non-payment related defaults; 

(iv) Modifications to the rights of the owners of the Series 2019 Bonds; 

(v) Series 2019 Bond calls; 

(vi) Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Series 
2019 Bonds; or 

(vii) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the obligated person or agreement 
to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 
Financial Obligation of the obligated person, any of which affect security holders. 

( c) Whenever the Agency obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event under 
Section 5(b), whether because of a notice from the Trustee or otherwise, the Agency shall as soon 
as possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities laws. 

( d} If the Agency has determined that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event 
under Section 5(b) would be material under applicable federal securities laws, the Agency shall 
promptly notify the Dissemination Agent in writing. Such notice shall instruct the Dissemination 
Agent to report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (f). 

(e) If the Agency determines that the Listed Event under Section 5(b) would not be 
material under applicable federal securities laws, the Agency shall so notify the Dissemination 
Agent in writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent not to report the occurrence pursuant to 
subsection (f). 

(f) If the Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the Agency to report the 
occurrence of a Listed Event, the Dissemination Agent shall file a notice of such occurrence with 
the MSRB in an electronic format in a timely manner not more than ten (10) Business Days after 
the Listed Event. 
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Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Agency's obligations under this 
Disclosure Undertaking shall terminate upon the earlier of: (i) the date of legal defeasance, prior 
redemption or payment in full of all of the Series 2019 Bonds; (ii) the date that the Agency shall 
no longer constitute an "obligated person" within the meaning of the Rule; or (iii) the date on 
which those portions of the Rule which require this written Disclosure Undertaking are held to be 
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction in a non-appealable action, have been repealed 
retroactively or otherwise do not apply to the Series 2019 Bonds. 

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The Agency may, from time to time, appoint or 
engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure 
Undertaking, and may discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a 
successor Dissemination Agent. 

Section 8. Amendment: Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Disclosure Undertaking, the Agency may amend this Disclosure Undertaking and any provision 
of this Disclosure Undertaking may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied: 

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4, 5(a) 
or 5(b ), it may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from 
a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of 
an "obligated person" (as defined in the Rule) with respect to the Series 2019 Bonds, or 
the type of business conducted; 

(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in 
the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements 
of the Rule at the time of the original issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds, after taking into 
account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in 
circumstances; and 

(c) The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the Bondholders of the 
Series 2019 Bonds in the same manner as provided in the Indenture for amendments to the 
Indenture with the consent of Bondholders, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally 
recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interests of the Bondholders of the Series 
2019 Bonds. 

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Undertaking, 
the Agency shall describe such amendment in the next Annual Report of the Agency, and shall 
include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its 
impact on the type (or in the case of a change of accounting principles, on the presentation) of 
financial information or operating data being presented by the Agency, as applicable. In addition, 
if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial 
statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under 
Section S(a), and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made should present a 
comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial 
statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the 
basis of the former accounting principles. 

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Undertaking shall be 
deemed to prevent the Agency from disseminating any other information, using the means of 
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dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Undertaking or any other means of communication, or 
including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, 
in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Undertaking. If the Agency chooses to 
include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition 
to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Undertaking, the Agency shall have no 
obligation under this Disclosure Undertaking to update such information or include it in any future 
Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 

Section 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the Agency or the Dissemination Agent 
to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Undertaking, any Bondholder of the Series 2019 
Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or 
specific performance by court order, to cause the Agency or Dissemination Agent, as the case may 
be, to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Undertaking. A default under this 
Disclosure Undertaking shall not be deemed an "event of default" under the Indenture, and the 
sole remedy under this Disclosure Undertaking in the event of any failure of the Agency or the 
Dissemination Agent to comply with this Disclosure Undertaking shall be an action to compel 
performance. 

Section 11. Duties Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The 
Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure 
Undertaking, and the Agency agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, 
directors, employees and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may 
incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including 
the costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but 
excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's gross negligence or willful misconduct. 

The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty with respect to the content of any disclosures 
or notice made pursuant to the terms hereof. The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty or 
obligation to review or verify any information, disclosures or notices provided to it by the Agency 
and shall not be deemed to be acting in any fiduciary capacity for the Agency, the Registered 
Owners of the Series 2019 Bonds or any other party. The Dissemination Agent shall have no 
responsibility for the Agency's failure to report to the Dissemination Agent a Listed Event or a 
duty to determine the materiality thereof. The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty to determine 
or liability for failing to determine whether the Agency has complied with this Disclosure 
Undertaking. The Dissemination Agent may conclusively rely upon certifications of the Agency 
at all times. The obligations of the Agency under this Section shall survive resignation or removal 
of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Series 2019 Bonds. 

Section 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Undertaking shall inure solely to the benefit 
of the Agency, the Dissemination Agent, the Underwriter and the Bondholders from time to time 
of the Series 2019 Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 

Section 13. Countemarts. This Disclosure Undertaking may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 
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Date: April 16, 2019. 

UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 

By: ____________ _ 

Chair 
ATTEST: 

By:. ____________ _ 

Secretary-Treasurer 

E-7 



['I1fIS PAGE 1NTBN'I'IONALL Y LEl7f BLANK) 



Printed by: lm•g•Maste~ l1C 
www.......-mm 

• 


